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Page 14 Page 16
1 A | wasnot. 1 Q. Okay.
2 Q. How many mechanics were there? 2 Did you in your position at Atlas ever work with Versa
3 A 1believe at one time there were 12 to 14 of us. 3 valve products?
4 Q. Did you work full-time at Atlas? 4 A Yes
5 A ldid. 5 Oh, pardon, no.
é Q. Who was your supervisor at Atlas? 6 Q. Inyour position at Atlas did you ever work with belly
7 A. Originally it was Kipp Henderson. 7 dump trailers?
8 Q. Is he still there? 8 A No.
9 A Pardon? ° Q. Did you work with any type of trailer while at Atlas?
10 Q. Is he stilt at Atlas? 10 A Yes.
11 A Heis not. Atlas Contractors is no longer in 11 Q. What types?
12 business. 12 A An end dump, transfer trailers, and just like some
13 Q. When did Atlas Contractors go out of business? 13 12,000 pound flat trailers.
14 A Ibelieve it was 2013, fall or spring. 14 Q. Would you maintain and repair the end dump transfer
15 Q. s that why you ieft? 15 trailers?
16 A That's correct. 16 A Yes, maam,
17 Q. Do you know why they went out of business? 17 Q. Did you ever conduct electrical work on the end dump
18 A Economic reasons, | believe. 18 transfer trailers?
19 Q. Was your title simply mechanic or were you a 19 A Yes.
20 supervisor, can you describe for me more precisely your role? 20 Q. What type of etectrical work?
21 A When | originally was employed with Atlas 1 started as 21 A Typically repairing broken wires, lighting.
22 a mechanic and at one point in time | became a supervisor, a 22 Q. Have you ever in your time at Atlas ever fully
23 lead mechanic. 23 replaced the wiring system in an end dump transfer trailer?
24 Q. Approximately when? 24 A We have in a transfer trailer, yes.
25 A Perhaps like 2005, somewhere in that area. 25 Q. How many times?
Page 15 Page 17
1 Q. Okay. 1 A. Once for complete.
2 And how long were you in the position of lead 2 Q. Prior to 2001 where did you work?
3 supervisor? 3 A I 'worked for the City of Kiamath Falls, Klamath Falls,
! A Pretty much until the end of my employment with them 4 Oregon.
s in one respect or another. 5 Q. Let me go back. Where was Atlas Construction located?
6 Q. Okay. 6 A In Sparks.
7 And as a supervisor what were your job duties? 7 Q. So prior to that you were living in Oregon?
8 A Mainly to guide and help my other - the other 8 A lwas.
9 employees on my shift. 8 Q. What did you do for the City of Klamath Falis?
10 Q. Did you do any training of other employees? 10 A Mechanic.
1 A Yes. 11 Q. When did you start working for the City of Klamath
12 Q. What type of training did you conduct? 12 Falls?
13 A Mostly how to inspect and it depended on each job as 13 A I don't recall those dates.
4 to what was required and assess their fevel of competence and 14 Q. Do you have an estimation on the year?
15 help them understand and receive information or find it to make 15 A Well, perhaps 1997.
6 proper repairs. 16 Q. And did you leave just prior to moving to Sparks?
17 Q. Did you do electrical work while at Atlas? 17 A ldid
18 A |have, yes. 18 Q. Sothat would be approximately 2001?
15 Q. How often would you do electrical work? 19 A Correct.
20 A 1 would say at least once a week. 20 Q. Why did you leave your job at the City of Klamath
21 Q. Did you take any courses in electrical work? 21 Falls?
22 A Ihave not. 22 A Better employment.
23 Q. How did you learn how to do electrical work? 23 Q. You weren't terminated?
24 A From working with experienced mechanics and reading 24 A I'wasnot.
25 manuals. 25 Q. Atlas paid better?
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Page 18

A Yes, ma'am.

Page 20

Q. Can you describe that for me?

2 Q. Describe for me your duties as a mechanic for the 2 A Go with -~ my supervisor would come out and we would
3 city? 3 go over systems and general repair, maintenance and inspection,
4 A General maintenance and repair of the equipment within 4 adjustments, such as the handicap lifts on the buses. I was
5 the city, including pickups, dump trucks, small equipment. 5 given training on that from my supervisor and his knowledge of
6 Q. Did the city provide you with any training? 6 the electrical components and failures and diagnostics of such
7 A No. 7 with those buses.
8 Q. Did you attend any training courses while you were 8 Q. 1 presume you did not work with belly dumpers while at
9 employed by the City of Klamath Falls? Basin Transit?
1o A [ don't recall having any. 10 A Ididnot
1 Q. What kind of dump trucks were you working on? 11 Q. What about Versa valves?
12 A Ten wheel dump trucks class A. 12 A No.
13 Q. Did you work with any belly dumpers when you were -- 13 Q. Prior to Basin Transit Service can you recall where
14 A No. 14 you worked?
15 Q. What about with any Versa valves? 15 A Yes, I worked for Gastaldi and Associates Land
16 A No. 16 Surveyors.
17 Q. Prior to the City of Klamath Falls, I know we're going 17 Q. Can you spell that for me?
18 back in time quite a ways here, can you tell me where you 18 A G-a-s-t-a-I-d-i.
19 warked? 19 Q. Gastaldi?
20 A 1 worked for Basin Transit Service. 20 A Um-hum.
21 Q. Basin Transit Service? 21 Q. Gastaldi and what?
22 A Um-hum 22 A And Associates
23 Q. Where are they located? 23 Q. Land surveyors?
24 A In Klamath Falls, Oregon. 24 A Correct.
25 Q. What was your position there? 25 Q. What was your position there?
Page 19 Page 21
! A Mechanic. 1 A Land surveyor, I suppose, helper.
2 Q. What year did you approximately begin working for 2 Q. Okay.
3 Basin Transit Service? 3 Can you recall approximately when you began your work
4 A 1994 perhaps. 4 at Gastaldi and Associates?
5 Q. And did your employment end in approximately 19977 5 A Boy, that's getting so far back there.
€ A Correct. 6 Q. Can you recall approximately how many years you worked
7 Q. Can you tell me why your employment ended? 7 there?
8 A Tapplied for and received the job with the city. 8 A 1would say three to four.
9 Q. Okay. 2 Q. Okay.
10 Tell me what your job duties were at Basin Transit 10 And why did you leave that position?
1 Service? 1 A Much more stable and better pay.
2 A General maintenance and repair of transit buses 2 Q. Outside of the employers we just discussed have you
13 Q. Did Basin Transit Service provide you with any 13 held any other mechanic positions?
14 training? 14 A Yes.
1% A [ was sent to several courses involving the buses. 1s Q. With whom?
1€ Q. These are transit buses that were just operating 16 A The first one was with Tom Strong, Tom’s Equipment.
17 around Klamath Falls or were they school buses? 17 Q. Tom's Equipment?
18 A Yes, these are just operating general passengers, not 18 A Yes.
18 school. 1% Q. Where is that located?
20 Q. So the courses that you went to were in how to 20 A In Klamath Falls, Oregon.
21 maintain transit buses? 21 Q. How long were you with Tom's Equipment?
22 A Yes, component-wise like the transmissions, some 22 A Two years, | believe, approximately.
23 engine work. 23 Q. You were a mechanic there?
24 Q. Was there any on-the-job training? 24 A I 'began as a parts runner.
25 A Yes 25 Q. And worked your way up?
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Page 22 Page 24
i A Correct. ! A Not precisely. I'm sure it was January, February,
2 Q. Did they send you to any training? 2 somewhere in there.
3 A No. 3 Q. Early in the year?
4 Q. What were your job duties? 4 A Yes.
5 A Clean the shop, assist the mechanics with repairs. 5 Q. Okay.
6 Q. What type of equipment were you working on? 6 What position were you hired to perform?
7 A Mostly class A trucks. 7 A. A mechanic.
g Q. Did you work on any trailers? 8 Q. Who were you hired by?
9 A Yes. 9 A I'was hired by Tracy Shane.
10 Q. What types of trailers? 10 Q. Are there any other mechanics at MDB Trucking besides
u A Mostly logging trailers. 1 you?
12 Q. Any belly dumpers? 12 A No.
13 A No belly dumpers. 13 Q. When you started working at MDB in January or February
14 Q. Any Versa valve experience? 14 of 2013 was there any other mechanic that you worked with for
15 A No. 15 any period of time?
16 Q. Any other employer where you acted in the capacity of 16 A No.
17 mechanic that we have not yet discussed? 17 Q. Did you receive any training when you started your job
18 A. High Tech Diesel. e at MDB Trucking?
19 Q. Can you tell me approximately when you worked there? 18 A. No.
20 A Three years perhaps. 20 Q. Were you sent out to receive any training from any
2 Q. Is this in the '80s? 21 outside source when you began working for MDB Trucking?
22 A Pardon? 22 A Pardon? | don't understand.
23 Q. This is in the decade of the 1980s? 23 Q. lapologize, and thank you for telling me you didn't
2 A Yes. 24 understand. That means you were listening to my question.
25 Q. Okay. 25 Did MDB send you to any outside training courses?
Page 23 Page 25
1 What was your position there? i A No.
2 A Mechanic. 2 Q. Tell me what your job duties were when you were hired
3 Q. Tell me what types of equipment you were working on? 3 in January, February 2013 at MDB?
4 A. Class A trucks. 4 A My job duties are to maintain and repair the trucks
5 Q. Were you also working on logging trailers? 5 and trailers.
€ A Not so much there. 2 Q. How many trucks and trailers does MDB or did MDB have
K Q. Mostly - ? in its portfolio at the time you started in January or February
8 A Typically just the tractors. 8 of 20137
9 Q. Did you receive any training while at High Tech ® A 1believe there were nine.
10 Diesel? 10 Q. Nine--
1 A On-the-job, yes. 11 A Nine units or nine trucks.
12 Q. Any other training besides on-the-job training? 12 Q. So nine trucks and each of those trucks had trailers
13 A No. 13 that it hauled?
14 Q. Did you work with belly dumpers while at High Tech 14 A Carrect.
15 Diesel? 15 Q. Do you know how many trailers in total MDB had in
16 A Ididnot. 16 January or February of 20137
17 Q. What about Versa valves? 17 A. Ican't give you an exact total,
8 A No. 18 Q. But each of those nine trucks hauled trailers; is that
19 Q. Any other mechanic positions that we haven't already 19 correct?
20 discussed? 20 A Correct.
21 A. lbelieve that is it. 21 Q. What types of trucks?
22 Q. So going to your position at MDB you said you began in 2z A We have what they call the semi-tractor with a fifth
23 20137 23 wheel plate and we have transfer tractors, which are actually a
24 A lbelieve so, yes. 24 dump truck.
25 Q. Do you recall approximately what month you started? 25 Q. Before coming to work for MDB had you worked on these
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Page 26

types of tractors before?
A Tlhad
Q. And what about the trailers, what types of trailers
does MDB have?
They have bottom dump trailers.
. That would also be called a belly dumper?
Correct.
Any other type of trailers?
We have a flatbed, pneumatics and transfer. | believe

>0 >0 >

Page 28

A It was after my being hired there.

Q. Do you know what position he was hired to perform?

A My understanding was to assist me on maintenance and
to drive.

Q. Okay.

So he would split his time between those duties?

A Correct.

Q. And on average when Scott Palmer began working at MDB
how often would he assist you with maintenance duties?

e that is it. 10 A Fairly often.
u Q. Prior to coming to work at MDB had you ever worked on 11 Q. What about now, does he still assist you fairly often?
12 a bottom dump trailer before? 12 A Not as often.
13 A lhave not. 13 Q. When you began working at MDB did you receive any
L] Q. What about a flatbed trailer? 14 documents or manuals to review related to the trucks and
15 A Yes. 18 trailers that you work on?
1€ Q. What about a pneumatic? 16 A No.
17 A Yes. 17 Q. Have you ever reviewed any documents or manuals
18 No. Pardon, no, not a pneumatic. 18 related to the trucks and trailers that you work on?
19 Q. What about a transfer trailer? 19 A Havel ever?
20 A Yes. 20 Q. In your position with MDB?
21 Q. Did you receive any training on how to perform 21 A ldon't quite understand the question.
22 maintenance on a bottom dump trailer after arriving at MDB? 22 Q. Have you had occasion to review any documents or
23 A No. 23 manuals related to the trucks or trailers that you are working
24 Q. Did you do any independent training, anything on your 24 on?
25 own to prepare you for maintaining bottom dump trailers? 25 A Yes.
Page 27 Page 28
! MR. BROWN: Foundation. Go ahead. 1 Q. Can you deseribe for me any specific occasions that
? THE WITNESS: 1don't believe so, no. 2 you can recall?
3 BY MS. WOELFEL: A Suchas when I am working on the engines when I'm
4 Q. Prior to coming to work at MDB had you worked at all 4 unfamiliar, not famitiar with a certain procedure then we would
s with a product called Versa valve? s look up in a manual that particular procedure and
€ A No. & specifications -
7 Q. Did you receive any training on how to maintain a 7 Q. Okay.
8 Versa valve? 8 A --necessary.
g A No. 9 Q. Okay.
10 Q. Did you conduct any independent training on how to 10 Are there any MDB standard operating procedures that
u work with Versa vaive products? 1 are written down that you received when you began working for
12 A No. 12 MDB?
13 Q. Do you have a mechanic's assistant or anybody else 13 A Inrelation -- n regards to —
14 that performs mechanic work with you at MDB? 14 Q. In relation to your position or any manuals at all
15 A Pardon? 15 that you received?
18 Q. Is there a mechanic's assistant or anybody else that 16 MR. BROWN: Objection, vague. You can answer.
17 assists you in performing mechanic work at MDB? 17 THE WITNESS: 1 don't -- from when I was hired or to
18 A We have had some assistants and I receive assistance 18 present?
18 from Scott Palmer on occasion. 19 BY MS. WOELFEL:
20 Q. How often does Scott Palmer on average assist you with 20 Q. Well, let's start with when you were hired. When you
21 maintenance issues? 21 were hired did you receive any company manuals, anything
22 A Now or then? 22 outlining any policies or procedures from MDB Trucking?
23 Q. When did he start actually, let's go ahead -- 23 A 1don't recall receiving any.
24 A When did Scott? 24 Q. Are there any standard operating procedures related to
25 Q. Yes, was it before you or after you? 25 maintenance that you can recall receiving from MDB Trucking?
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Page 30 Page 32
1 A. No. 1 applied in this situation, whether with the switches and/or by
2 Q. Did you do any driving at any time while at MDB 2 manually, by hand.
3 Trucking? 3 Q. Okay.
1 A On occasion, yes. 4 And did he demonstrate for you how to operate it
5 Q. How often -- Well, describe for me what you do when s manually by hand?
6 you drive, ar¢ you transporting material? 6 A Correct.
7 A. Yes, typically. 7 Q. Can you tell me what he showed you or told you?
8 Q. How often are you engaged as a driver for MDB 8 A When we were over the grizzlies we could open the
9 Trucking? 9 Versa valve depending on how much room was in the grizzly,
10 A Not very often. Ichoose not to. On occasion, | 10 whether it would hold the complete trailer load or not. We
1 can't give you an exact amount of time, but typically they will 1 could open it partially by pushing in on the valve to a certain
12 need someone to fill in occasionally, so not very often. 12 degree to modulate its opening and then pushing on the palm
13 Q. Okay. 13 valve, which is attached to an accumulator that will hold the
14 Have you hauled the belly dump trailers before when 11 gate in that position until acted upon again either electrically
15 you have acted as a driver? 15 or manually on the valve.
16 A Thave, yes. 16 Q. Okay.
17 Q. Have you utilized the Versa valve in manually dumping 17 A That way we could modulate our dump to facilitate the
18 over a grizzly when you have acted as a driver? 18 space available in the grizzly.
19 A Tlhave. 19 Q. Okay.
20 Q. Canyou walk me through ~ I want to talk about when 20 So you're standing outside of your cab next to the
21 you have acted as a driver and you have operated the Versa valve 21 Versa valve and you're pushing on the handle; is that right?
22 and you have dumped over a grizzly, did you operate the Versa 22 A That is correct.
23 valve manually or through the switch in the cab? 23 Q. Okay.
24 A Both depending upon the situation. 24 And it opens partially; is that right?
25 Q. Did you receive any training on how to manually 25 I'm breaking it down into plain English, because
Page 31 Page 33
1 operate the Versa valve? 1 you're using a lot of big words here, and then what you're
2 A Yes, [ did. 2 describing is then you would open it all the way; is that right?
3 Q. From whom? 3 A. Correct.
4 A From Tracy Shane. 4 Q. What would you do after all of the material comes out?
s Q. When did Tracy Shane provide you training on how to 5 A Pull forward onto the grizzlies with the next trailer.
§ manually operate the Versa valve? 6 Q. Would you close the trailer before you would get in
7 A When? 7 the cab and pull forward?
8 Q. Yes. 8 A No,1would get in the cab and pull forward and
s activate the switch that electrically opens and then closes the

A Asin an exact date?

Q. As in give me your best approximation, was it shortly
after you first started working?

A Twould say probably six months afterwards when he
first asked me to fill in as a driver.

Q. So six months after you started working as a mechanic
Tracy asked you to fill in as a driver?

A Approximately, yes.

Q. When he asked you to fill in as a driver he gave you
training on how to operate the Versa valve?

A Correct.

Q. Can you describe for me the training that you
received?

A Yes, the training consisted of we drove the truck
together. He was with me, loaded it, checked our equipment,
returned to Cemex to dump the load over the grizzlies. At that
point in time he instructed me on how the Versa valve was

gates
Q. So you would not close the gates manually, you would

go into the cab and then you would -

A Correct.

Q - flip the switch and that would close it?

A. Twould tum the switch to the on position and then
return it to the off position and closing the cover at the same
time and allowing -- that allows the gates to close
clectrically.

Q. Okay.

And then you would pull forward?

A Um-hum.

Q. And do the same thing again?

A Correct.

Q. And then after that you would do the same thing one
more time?
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Page 34 Page 36

B A Correct. i in-house?

2 Q. Okay. 2 A Typically, yes.

3 How many times did Tracy Shane drive with you? 3 Q. Can you tell me do you work full-time for MDB?

4 A We made, | believe, two complete rounds 4 A ldo.

5 Q. Can you tel] me how many trips you have taken on your 5 Q. Forty hours a week?

6 own without Tracy? € A Yes.

1 A Oh, since that time, 40, 50, somewhere in there. K Q. Is that Monday through Friday?

8 Q. Have you always dumped over the grizzly in the same 8 A VYes,itis.

9 manner that you just described? 9 Q. Talk to me about sort of your typical schedule when
10 A I personally have, yes. 10 you are working in the maintenance department, what does a
1 Q. Did you receive any written materials to review on how 1 typical day look like for you?

12 to operate a Versa valve prior to beginning your work as a 12 A Atypical day --

13 driver? 13 Q. What time do you arrive?

11 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 14 A -- can be varied depends on the workload, the trucks

15 THE WITNESS: No. 15 and what we have pending for repair.

16 BY MS. WOELFEL: 16 Q. What time do you typically armive for work?

1 Q. Atany time did you receive any materials on how to 17 A | typically arrive at 8:00 o'clock.

18 operate a Versa valve? 18 Q. Are most of your drivers already out in the field at

19 A No. 19 that time?

20 Q. Was there any group training that you were involved in 20 A Yes.

21 on how to operate a Versa vajve? 21 Q. And is it typical that you will have some sort of

22 A No. 22 standard maintenance or some repair on a truck or trailer to do

23 Q. Now you said that you personally operated the Versa 23 each day?

24 valve in that manner. Are you aware of other people operating 24 A That is what we try to do, yes.

25 the Versa valve differently at MDB Trucking? 25 Q. What is the standard maintenance pracess for MDB
Page 35 Page 37

i A I cannot say how they operate them. The way | L trucks and trailers?

2 operated them was manually to ensure that [ didn't miss the 2 A Standard maintenance?

3 grizzly and spread material on the approach. 3 Q. Yes, do you have a standard maintenance protocol, do

4 Q. And the way that you closed the bottom dumper by going 4 you check them every week, every month, is there some sort of a

5 in the cab and shutting it there, do you know if that is the way 5 standard protocol for the maintenance department?

6 that everybody did it or just the way that you did it? € A Wetry to look at them once every two weeks at a

7 A Well, that's the way it was intended or what Tracy 7 minimurm.

8 Shane implied I should do to properly close that gate. 8 Q. And what does that mean to look at them, does that —

$ Q. Did he explain why that was important or not $ A We bring them in, we inspect and Jubricate the
10 important? 10 equipment.
1n A No. 1 Q. And what does an inspection involve?

12 Q. Are you involved in setting any training protocol for 12 A An inspection involves visually fooking for any

13 any other employees at MDB Trucking? 13 issues, broken parts, worn-out brakes, inoperative lights,

14 A No. b unsecured components, make sure all functions are correct.
15 Q. Do you perform all of the maintenance on the trucks 15 Q. Isitavisual inspection or are you

16 and trailers that MDB Trucking operates, do you perform the 16 A 1ts mostly visual. Some of it is physical.

17 maintenance on that in-house or do you ever send it out for 17 Q. What part is physical?

8 work? 18 A Such as the brakes, we check the length of the brake
19 A We typically do most of it in-house. However, there 19 to make sure it's within the specified distance for a foundation
20 is some that is sent out on repairs. 20 brake

21 Q. What types of repairs would you send out to someone 21 Q. Do you conduct annual inspections?

22 else to perform? 22 A Yes.

23 A Typically like engines and transmissions, the things 23 Q. Describe for me what the annua) inspections involve?
24 that | do not have the tooling for we send out. 24 A Well, the annual inspections involve pretty much the
25 25 same as & weekly or biweekly inspection, just making certain

Q. Do you typically do all of the electrical work
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Page 38 Page 40
1 that we have all of our safety equipment, windshields, 1 BY MS. WOELFEL;
2 windshield wipers, motors, engines and such like that, brakes, 2 Q. Okay.
3 securement, 3 Do you conduct — outside of the maintenance process
4 Q. Do you check the wiring as part of your inspections 4 that you described where you try to see each vehicle every other
5 every other week? s week, do you conduct any random inspections of trucks or
6 MR. BROWN: Vague, go ahead. 6 trailers?
7 THE WITNESS: Would you explain or more detail? 1 A The random inspections are continuous on the yard
8 BY MS. WOELFEL: 8 bringing them in or you're always looking underneath the trucks.
9 Q. If you were inspecting a belly dump trailer do you 9 It's more like when you get your CDL, part of your walk around
10 inspect any of the wiring on your multi-week inspections? 10 inspection and being 8 mechanic you are constantly looking for
1 A. No, we -- as we go through it there's a lot of wires n something, whether it's a puddle on the ground or a broken lamp
12 that you cannot see. We visually inspect any that are exposed, 12 or something not secured.
13 that's just part of what we do. If we see something odd hanging 13 Q. So are you physically out walking amongst --
14 down, unsecured, we inspect it, resecure it and make sure that 14 A On occasion we do, yes.
15 it's proper. 15 Q. And outside of that are you receiving reports from the
16 Q. Do you ever inspect the wiring that is not exposed? 16 drivers regarding issues that they are having with their
17 A No. 17 vehicles?
18 Q. So during your annual inspections you're not checking 18 A 1 don't personally receive the reports. Scott Palmer
19 the wiring that runs through the bars? 18 does.
20 A No. 20 Q. How do you receive the reports or the work orders?
21 Q. Is there any type of regular maintenance conducted on 21 A. Tmdirected by Scott Palmer.
22 the electrical system of the trucks? 22 Q. Well, how will you receive or how do you typically
23 A Maintenance? 23 receive a work order from Scott, do you have a standard meeting
24 Q. Yes, regular maintenance. 24 time where the two of you get together or does he leave them for
25 A Such as checking the alternator and the batteries, 25 you in a certain location, how do you obtain the information
Page 39 Page 41
1 yes, we do that. 1 that -
2 Q. What about the electrical system of the various 2 A It depends on the repair necessary. [ will either
3 trailers that MDB owns or leases? 3 receive them in the evening for repair that evening or typically
4 A With the trailers again we inspect to make sure that 4 we will meet in the momings prior to going into the shop and
5 the wires are secured and that we don't have any that we see or 5 discuss the needs for maintenance and repairs.
6 know of creating shorts or are in poor condition, any abrasions 6 Q. And do the two of you discuss prioritizing what you're
7 that we can see. 7 going to work on or who makes that decision of what you're going
8 Q. Are you involved in confirming whether or not the & to work on for the day?
g driver's conduct their daily inspections of the trucks and 9 A Scott typically makes that decision.
10 trailers that they are driving? 10 Q. Before Scott began working at MDB was Tracy the person
11 A Tamnot 1 that you were directed by?
12 Q. Do you know how the company ensures, if they do at 12 A Yes.
13 all, that their drivers are adequately maintaining their 13 Q. And did Scott take Tracy's place? Did Scott move into
14 vehicles? 14 Tracy's position when Tracy lefi the company?
15 MR. BROWN: Objection, compound. 15 A Yes.
16 THE WITNESS: | don'i understand what you're asking 16 Q. Do you know Daniel Koski?
17 there. 17 A 1do know Dan,
18 BY MS. WOELFEL: 18 Q. How long did you work with him?
19 Q. Sure. 19 A. Since | hired on at MDB until the time that he left.
20 Is there anything that you're aware of that MDB does 20 Q. So he had been there prior to your arrival?
21 to make sure that its drivers are adequately inspecting their 2L A Correct.
22 vehicles on a daily basis? 22 Q. Are you aware of the two dump incidents that Mr. Koski
23 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 23 was involved in?
24 THE WITNESS: 1don't recall. I don't know if there 24 A lam,
25 is or isn't. 25 Q. Were you working for MDB in July of 2013?
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Page 42 Page 44
1 A Iwas. 1 A No.
Q. And also in July of 2014 during the second dump 2 Q. Have you seen any maintenance documents related to
3 incident? 3 this trailer from the time before MDB took possession of the
4 A Yes 4 trailer?
5 Q. Other than those two dump incidents that we will 5 A I have not.
6 discuss, are you aware of any other inadverntent dumps during € Q. Do you know if the wiring on that trailer is original,
7 your time at MDB Trucking? 7 and I'm talking about when MDB first took possession of the
8 A No. trailer, do you know if the wiring that was on the trailer was
9 MR. BROWN: Object, vague. 9 original or not?
10 BY MS. WOELFEL: 10 A I could not say either way.
11 Q. I'm going to refer to the trailer that Mr. Koski was 1 Q. Do you have any information regarding whether or not
12 pulling that opened up in July of 2013 as trailer 6775. Do you 12 trailer 6775 had ever been involved in an accident prior to MDB
13 recall if that's the number that that trailer was assigned? 13 acquiring it?
14 A lbelieve it would be one of those numbers. That 14 A [ would have no knowledge.
15 exact number, T would have to look at a work order or something. 15 Q. Do you have any knowledge of whether trailer 6775 had
16 Q. 1 will show you some, but I will represent to you that 16 ever had any other inadvertent dump prior to MDB acquiring it?
17 it's trailer 6775. 17 A 1have no knowledge of that, no.
i8 Do you know when this trailer first came into MDB's 18 Q. Do you know if MDB made any efforts to evaluate the
18 possession, the trailer that was involved in the dump incident i9 state or condition of the electrical connections on trailer 6775
20 in July of 20137 20 before it acquired it?
21 A ldon't know the exact date. 2 MR. BROWN: Objection, vague.
2z Q. Was it in MDB's possession when you began work -~ 22 THE WITNESS: I don't recall.
23 A No. 23 BY MS. WOELFEL:
24 Q -—atMDB? 24 Q. Do you have any knowledge of whether the Versa valve
25 Trailer 6775 was not in MDB's possession when you 25 included with trailer 6775 was the original Versa valve
Page 43 Page 45
! first started working? ! installed on that trailer?
2 A To the best of my knowledge it was not. 2 MR. BROWN: Objection, vague.
3 Q. So the lease or purchase of that trailer occurred 3 THE WITNESS: [ could not say that it was original or
4 after you had started working at MDB,; is that correct? 4 not,
s A 1believe so. 5 BY MS. WOELFEL:
6 Q. Okay. 6 Q. Do you know if trailer 6775 was painted by MDB when it
7 Were you involved in the process of ~ Let me back up. ? was acquired?
5 Do you know if MDB inspected this trailer before it 8 A Painted?
9 leased or purchased it in 2013? 9 Q. Painted.
10 A 1donot believe so. Ifit were it was not with me. 1o A It was not painted.
1 Q. Okay. i1 Q. Has the trailer been painted or repainted at all since
12 Do you know who the trailer was purchased or leased 12 it's been in MDB's possession?
13 fram? 13 A No
14 A Ican't say with any authority. 14 MS. WOELFEL: Let's go ahead and mark that as
15 Q. Do you know how old trailer 6775 was when it was 5 Exhibit 1.
16 purchased or leased by MDB Trucking? 16 (Exhibit 1 was marked.)
17 A ldonot 17 BY MS. WOELFEL:
is Q. Were you involved in the purchase or the lease or the 18 Q. Exhibit | is a document Bates labeled MDB 723, Have
9 acquisition of the trailer in any way? 19 you ever scen this document before?
20 A. No. 20 A lhave not.
21 Q. You didn't inspect the trailer prior to MDB taking 21 Q. Okay.
22 possession of the trailer? 22 The date on this invoice is February 25, 2014, and 1
23 A Ididnot. 23 will represent to you that this is an invoice for the sale of
24 Q. And you reviewed no documents associated with the 24 two Ranco trailer sets from Western Nevada Transport to MDB, and
25 trailer? 25 one of the trailer sets involves trailer 6773, 6774, and 6775
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Page 46

and the other is 6776, 6777 and 6778, Are you familiar with

Page 48

A 1 was never able to duplicate it.

2 those two trailer sets? 2 Q. Tell me what you did in order to try to duplicate that
3 A Yes 3 event?
4 MR. BROWN: Objection, vague. 4 A My original thoughts on the process was 10 be a short
5 BY MS. WOELFEL: s inside the electrical system. So I turned on the lights and
6 Q. And do you know if the trailers were being leased 6 then went back through the trailers trying to move, shake,
7 before they were purchased by MDB, do you have any knowledge of ’ rattle, create a short, if it were to be one, within that system
8 that? 8 and to be able to observe the gates opening uncommanded, and it
9 A No 9 was a combination of lighting, brake lights, tumn signals,
0 Q. When they were purchased in or around February of 2014 10 emergency flashers, even though those weren't used at the time,
1 did you conduct or were you involved in conducting any specific I anything within my electrical system from the trailers and
12 inspections of these trailers prior to purchase? 12 tractor. I tried every combination I could think of to try to
13 A No. 13 duplicate this issue and was not successful.
14 Q. So I want to talk to you about the July 2013 incident 14 Q. Okay.
13 involving Mr. Koski and the inadvertent dump that occurred. Do 15 Did you work with anyone in trying to do these, I
16 you have knowledge of that incident? 16 don't want to call them experiments, but in your investigation
17 A T have knowledge of it occurring, yes. 17 and trying to duplicate, did you have an assistant to maybe work
18 Q. And you had been with the company for approximately 18 with you or were you working alone?
ie six months; is that correct? 19 A Occasionally | would have Tracy Shane give me a hand
20 A Possibly, yes. 20 such as operating from the tractor while | was back observing on
21 Q. How did you become aware of the July 2013 incident 21 the trailer.
22 involving Mr. Koski? 22 Q. How long did this work last in trying to duplicate the
23 A | was notified by Tracy Shane. 23 event?
24 Q. Were you working on the date that this incident 24 A Tcan't be specific, but it was quite some time.
25 occurred? 25 Q. Can you estimate, was it a matter of days or a matter
Page 47 Page 49
1 A believe I was, yes. 1 of hours?
Q. And how were you notified by Tracy Shane, did he call 2 A Oh, it was at least one to two days.
3 you or did you see him in person? 3 Q. So in your inspection you were unable to recreate any
4 A lbelieve it was in person, but I'm not certain. 4 type of electrical short that would open the belly dumper, is
5 Q. What did Tracy Shane say to you? s that correct?
8 A That the rear trailer of Dan Koski's set had deployed 6 A That is correct.
7 on the road. 7 Q. Did you conduct a visual inspection of the truck and
8 Q. Did he tell you anything else? 8 trailers to see if there was anything visually wrong?
9 A We did not go into any details, no. s A. Yes.
10 Q. Did you discuss conducting an investigation to 10 Q. Did you see anything visually wrong?
1 determine why the incident had occurred? 11 A ldidnot.
12 A Not at that time, that exact time, if that's what 12 Q. Did you conduct any sort of inspection on the Versa
13 you're referring to, but it was discussed 13 valve?
14 Q. When did you have that discussion about conducting an 14 A Just visually at that time,
15 investigation? 15 Q. Did you sec anything wrong with the Versa valve?
16 A | believe it was afler the truck and trailers were 16 A Tdidnot.
17 returned to the yard and we discussed what our course of action 17 Q. Did you conduct any testing on the Versa valve?
18 was to be on this. 18 A No.
19 Q. And can you describe for me what specifically you 19 Q. Did you believe that there was a problem with the
20 discussed with regard to what your course of action would be? 20 Versa valve?
21 A Originally the discussion was to try to determine of 21 A 1did not believe there was at the time.
22 try to duplicate this uncommanded opening of that gate. 22 Q. Did you interview Daniel Koski about why the dump
23 Q. Did you attempt to duplicate the uncommanded opening? 23 occurred or what was taking place when the dump occurred?
24 A Idid 24 A | don't recall interviewing, but I may have spoken
25 Q. Were you able to duplicate it? 25 with him at least to get the situation, like what lights were on
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Page 50 Page 52
1 perhaps. B again after your tests were run in July of 2013?
2 Q. Did you take any notes regarding your conversation 2 A Yes.
3 with Mr. Koski? Q. What actions did you take?
§ A No, ma'am. 4 A My actions were to completely isolate the wiring of
3 Q. Do you know if the trailer stayed in service for any 3 the tractor and trailer, remove or not use, I should say, not
6 period of time after the incident occurred that day? € use the wires that were originally installed for the purpose and
i A Pardon? 7 we ran independent wires from the tractor battery back through
8 Q. Do you know if the traifer in July of 2013 after it 8 each trailer to the Versa valves.
s had the dump take place, do you know if it stayed in service for 9 Q. So you believed that it could have been a wiring
10 any period of time before it was returned to the yard? 10 problem that led to the —
11 A No, I don't believe so. 1 A There was still the possibility.
12 Q. Did you come to any conclusions after your testing of 12 Q -- incident?
13 the electrical system? 13 MR. BROWN: Wait until she finishes asking her
14 A No. 14 question, even though you know what she is asking and so she
15 Q. Did you put together any documentation describing the 15 gets everything down.
16 tests that you ran? 16 MS. WOELFEL: You're doing a good job, but thank you,
17 A ldidnot. 17 Brian.
18 Q. Did you evaluate or test the air system as part of 18 BY MS. WOELFEL:
19 your tests? 19 Q. What led you to the conclusion that the wiring should
20 A Yes. 20 be changed?
21 Q. Tell me what you did with respect to the air system? 21 A Well--
22 A Built air, make sure that it would maintain air 2z MR. BROWN: Object, misstates his testimony. Go
23 pressure, maintain - or confirm that air was getting to the 23 ahead.
24 valve, passing through the valve and holding the gates closed 24 THE WITNESS: 1t was the theory of a short in the
25 and that it would also open and hold the gates open so there was 25 original or the existing wiring that may have caused this
Page 51 Page 53
1 adequate air pressure. 1 accidental uncommanded opening.
2 Q. Did you reach any conclusions after that test with 2 BY MS. WOELFEL:
3 respect to the air system? 3 Q. And in your tests you were unable to recreate a short,
1 A Any conclusion or a negative conclusion? 4 correct?
5 Q. Any conclusion at ali? 5 A Correct.
¢ A Atthat time after running that test the conclusion € Q. So there was no evidence that you were able to find
7 was 1 had not found an issue. 7 that suggested that there actually was a short in the wiring; is
8 Q. Did you tatk to Mr. Koski about any of the previous 8 that correct?
9 dumps that he had performed that day leading up to the accident? 9 A That is correct.
10 A No. 10 Q. When you rewired or when you removed the wiring from
11 Q. Did you evaluate whether or not Mr, Koski may have " the trailer 6775 did you inspect the wiring after it was
12 made an error that led to the inadvertent dump? 12 removed?
13 A That would not be my position to make such evaluation. 13 A The wire at that time was not removed. | merely
14 Q. Is that something that you considered when you were 14 eliminated the wires ~ eliminated the use of the wires that
15 trying to figure out how this incident occurred, did you 15 were existing.
16 consider whether or not Mr. Koski had made an error? 16 Q. So you didn't actually pull the wires that existed in
17 A 1believe in human nature it would be — that would 17 the trailer at the time that the incident occurred, you didn’t
18 still have to be thought of, yes. 18 pult that all out; is that correct?
i9 Q. Did you do anything to explore whether or not 19 A Thatis correct.
20 Mr. Koski made an error? 20 Q. You just included different wires and left the old
21 A 1did not personally, no 21 wires in the trailer?
22 Q. Did you reach any conclusion at all as to the cause of 22 A Correct.
23 the incident in July of 20137 23 Q. So you did not perform any sort of inspection on the
24 A No. 24 wires, visual inspection of the wires that were in the trailer
25 Q. Did you take any action to prevent this from occurring 25 after the incident occurred?
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Page 54 Page 56
1 MR. BROWN: Object, vague, misstates his testimony. i A T'm not certain of the date it went back into service.
2 THE WITNESS: That's correct, 1 did not. 2 Q. But pretty shortly thereafier?
3 BY MS. WOELFEL: 3 A. Pardon?
4 Q. Those wires, are they still in trailer 6775, the wires 4 Q. 1t went in shortly thereafter; is that right?
s that were original to the trailer when MDB acquired it? 5 A lcan'trecall.
6 A Ibelieve they may still be, yes. 6 Q. Okay.
7 Q. When you were inspecting trailer 6775 after the 7 Did you rewire all of the rest of the belly dump
8 July 2013 incident did you identify any problems with the way 8 trailers in the same manner in which you rewired trailer 67757
9 that the trailer was manufactured that you believe contributed 9 A Ibelieve I did, but I'm not positive.
10 to the unauthorized dump? 10 Q. And how would we determine whether or not you rewired
1 A. Can you rephrase that, please? 1 the rest of the trailers?
12 Q. Sure, I will repeat it. 12 A. We would have to go through the work orders.
13 When you were conducting your tests and your 13 Q. If there is no work orders demonstrating that you
14 inspection of the trailer after the July 2013 incident took 14 rewired the remainder of the trailers then does that suggest to
15 place did you identify any probiems with the way that the 15 you that you did not do it?
16 trailer was manufactured that you believe could have led to the 16 A It would suggest that | personally may not have done
17 unauthorized dump? 17 it, but it may have been done.
18 MR. BROWN: Object to the extent it calls for 18 Q. Did you direct anybody to rewire the remainder of the
19 speculation. 19 trailers after the July 2013 incident?
20 THE WITNESS: No. 20 A. I'made no directive, but it would be perhaps Scott
21 BY MS. WOELFEL: 21 Palmer may have done one.
22 Q. Inyour work with trailer 6775 after the incident and 22 Q. Okay.
23 your testing were you able to identify any problems with the 23 Are you aware that trailer 6775 has bottom gate
24 design of the trailer that you believe contributed to the 24 chains, do you know what those are?
25 unauthorized dump in July of 2013? 28 A Yes.
Page 55 Page 57
! MR. BROWN: Same objection, calls for specuiation. ! Q. What are they used for?
2 THE WITNESS: Potentially. 2 A My understanding?
3 BY MS. WOELFEL: 3 Q. Yes.
4 Q. Okay. 1 A For spreading material to limit the opening of the
5 What potentially did you believe with respect to the 5 gate,
6 design? € Q. Have you ever used bottom gate chains before when you
7 A Run the seven -- the activation wires with the wires 7 have been driving?
for the lights and brakes and ABS ail in one loom the potential 8 A No.
9 for a short exists. 9 Q. Have you ever had any training on the use of bottom
10 Q. And that was your working theory when you were 10 gate chains?
11 conducting your tests? n A No.
12 A Correct. 12 Q. Did you ever have any discussions with anybody about
13 Q. You were unable to find any shorts in your inspection; 13 utilizing the bottom gate chains while driving to prevent a
u correct? 14 belly dumper from opening all the way while on the road?
15 A Correct, 15 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation.
16 Q. Now, if you thought that there was a problem with the 16 THE WITNESS: I personally haven't had any
17 design of the trailer would you continue to run the unit, 17 conversation like that, no.
18 meaning if you thought there was a safety issue would you put it 18 BY MS. WOELFEL:
19 back on the road? 18 Q. Was the Versa valve replaced after the July 2013
20 A No. 20 incident?
21 Q. And this trailer went back on the road; is that 21 A Yes, it was.
22 correct? 22 Q. Why did you replace the Versa valve?
23 A Thatis correct. 23 A Gereral principles. We did not find a failure, but
2 Q. Itwent back on the road the next day after the July 24 perhaps there was an issue with the valve that [ was unaware of.
25 25 Q. Did you purchase the same type of Versa valve?

2013 incident; isn't that right?
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Page 58 Page 60
1 A Yes. 1 who had the previous dump a year ago, was there any concern
2 Q. Were you the person that instailed the Versa valve 2 about that?
3 once it - once you received the new one? 3 A We didn't discuss any of that, no, but it may have
4 A Yes 4 been mentioned that it was Dan. I'm sure it would have been.
5 Q. Had you ever installed a Versa valve before coming to s Q. Did you inspect the truck after it returned to the
6 work at MDB? € site, the MDB site?
7 A No. ? A Yes.
8 Q. Did you receive any training with respect to the 8 Q. And you inspected the trailer that had inadvertently
g installation of the Versa valve? 9 opened?
10 A No. 10 A Correct.
1 Q. Did you read the manual or read any manual on how to e Q. Was anybody else involved in the inspection?
12 install a Versa valve? 12 A 1believe Scott Palmer.
13 A I'm unaware that there is a manual for that. 13 Q. Did you inspect it on the same day that the incident
" Q. Soyou did not read any manuals prior to installing u occurred?
15 it? 15 A 1 believe we initially did, yes.
16 A ldidnot. 16 Q. Describe for me what you did during that inspection?
17 Q. Solwant to move to the July 2014 incident involving 1 A 1believe we checked our connections, made sure the
18 Mr. Koski. Can you tell me how you became aware of the 18 4-ways were proper. If I recali | think we turned on the brakes
15 July 7th, 2014 incident? 18 and the lights and such and see if we could not get an
20 A 1 was informed by Tracy Shane. 20 uncommanded opening,
21 Q. Were you working that day? 21 Q. Did you find anything wreng?
22 A Twas. 22 A No, ma'am.
23 Q. Okay. 23 Q. Did you conduct any other type of investigation
24 And how did you learn from Tracy Shane that this 24 related to how this opening occurred?
25 incident had taken place? 25 A From that time?
Page 59 Page 61
1 A Pardon? 1 Q. Yes.
2 Q  How did you learn from Tracy Shane, did he call you, 2 A No.
3 did you see him in person, can you recail how he conveyed the 3 Q. So you did an inspection With Scott Patmer you believe
4 information regarding the incident to you? 4 on the same day that the incident occurred?
5 A 1believe it was in person in the shop 5 A 1believe so, but I'm not certain of that.
6 Q. And what did he say to you? 6 Q. And after that -- how long did that inspection take?
7 A 1 cannot recall the exact words. 7 A An hour, two hours.
8 Q. Do you know what kind of material was being hauled by 8 Q. Did you do any other inspection or testing on the
9 Mr. Koski on July 7th, 20147 9 trailer at issue after that one to two hour inspection with
10 A No, | was unaware. 10 Scott Palmer?
11 Q. Did Tracy Shane indicate to you whether or not there n A At that point in time we put mechanical lockouts on
12 had been injuries as a result of the incident? 12 it.
13 A He did not indicate anything about injury. 13 Q. So you were not able to discover any type of an
14 Q. Tell me what he told you when he first spoke with you 14 electrical short that would have led to the incident, is that
s about this incident? 15 correct?
16 A Ma'am, that is quite a while ago. 1can't tell you 16 A Thatis correct.
17 verbatim. 17 Q. And whose idea was it to come up with a mechanical
18 Q. Can you give me your best recoliection regarding what 18 lockout system?
18 you discussed? 19 A That would be Scott Palmer.
20 A The best 1 could say is that the gates had opened on 20 Q. 'wantto go back to your one to two hour inspection.
2 his trailer on 1-80. 21 Can you walk me through each thing that you did during that
22 Q. Any discussion about how that happened, did you and 22 inspection?
23 Tracy discuss the reason for the opening? 23 A We started at the tractor, the source of the power,
24 A No, we didn't know the reason. 24 checked the connections at the battery and then | believe we
2% 25 went into the cab and checked the wiring behind the panel to

Q. Did you discuss the fact that it was the same person
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Page 62 Page 64
1 make sure we didn't have any wires come loose from the toggle 1 the mechanical lockout device?
2 switches, which we did not, and then we checked the wiring to 2 A Ona few of them, yes.
3 the deck of the trailer or the tractor looking for any abrasions 3 Q. Did you or Scott Palmer or somebody else design the
4 and stress to the wiring, which there was none. 4 mechanical lockout device?
5 Then we checked from the tractor to the trailer, the 5 A It's my understanding that Scott Palmer had seen these
€ cord to make sure it hadn't been abraded on the deck or any § devices and whether he designed it or copied it, I do not know.
7 other way of crossing, even though theoretically there is no 7 Q. Did you have any discussion with him about the devices
8 power on there unless the switch is tumed on. We inspected the 8 before the decision was made to utilize them?
9 wires as best we could following the trailer to make sure that 9 A No.
10 they hadn't rubbed through on top of another wire that 10 Q. Were you involved in installing the mechanical lockout
11 potentially might have been hot creating a circuit all the way 1 devices into the Versa valves on the various trailers?
12 through to that last valve. 12 A Yes.
13 Q. Did you see any evidence ~ 13 Q. Did you guys -- did MDB institute -- Scratch that.
14 A No, ma'am. 14 After July 7, 2014 did MDB require that al} trailers
15 Q --of any hot spots or anything, nothing? 15 have a mechanical lockout in place before they were able to be
16 A No. 16 put on the road?
17 Q. So you were unable to determine the cause of the 17 A That's my understanding, yes.
18 inadvertent dump? 18 Q. Were you able to reach any conclusion as to the cause
19 A Correct. 19 of the July 7th, 2014 inadvertent dump?
20 Q. Did you talk to Mr. Koski about anything that he might 20 A No.
21 have done to cause the inadvertent dump? 21 Q. Going back to the July 2013 dump, | had asked you if
22 A. ldid not. 22 you had replaced the Versa valve. Do you recall that?
23 Q. Do you know if Scott Palmer did? 23 A Um-hum,
24 A. 1do not know whether he did or did not. 24 Q. Yes?
25 Q. Did you run any tests on the Versa valve following the 25 A Yes.
Page 63 Page 65
1 July 7th, 2014 event? 1 Q. And you told me that you did replace the Versa valve.
2 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation, 2 What did you do to the Versa valve that you removed from trailer
3 THE WITNESS: No. 3 67757
4 BY MS. WOELFEL: 4 A 1believe we disposed of it.
5 Q. Did you evaluate or test the air system? 5 Q. Okay.
6 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 6 When you were inspecting trailer 6775 after the
7 THE WITNESS: Idon't recall. |think we assumed that 7 July 7th, 2014 incident did you identify any problems with the
8 it was fine, because it still had air. 8 way the trailer was manufactured that you believe contributed to
8 BY MS. WOELFEL: 9 the unauthorized dump?
10 Q. What do you mean it still had air? 10 A At thai the time, no.
11 A From the trailer when it arrived when we were looking 1 Q. Do you believe that there is a problem as you sit here
12 at it the air tank that operates the valves or the gates was 12 today with the way trailer 6775 was manufactured that
13 stil} full of air, had air pressure. 13 contributed to the unauthorized dump?
14 Q. So because of that you didn't conduct any other tests 14 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation, calls for expert
15 on the air system? 15 opinion.
16 A 1did not see any need at that moment. 16 THE WITNESS: No.
17 Q. Did you speak with the police department or anyone 17 BY MS. WOELFEL.:
18 else about this incident? 18 Q. In your work after July 7, 2014 on trailer 6775 have
18 A No. 19 you been able to identify any problems with the design of the
20 Q. Now describe for me the decision to use the mechanical 20 trailer that you believe contributed to the July 7, 2014
21 tockout system, did you participate in that decision at al}? 21 unauthorized dump?
22 A No, I was unaware of those particular devices of 22 MR. BROWN: Same objection.
23 varying degrees, otherwise we probably would have put it on the 23 THE WITNESS: No.
24 first set the first time. 24 MS. WOELFEL: We have been going for about an hour and
25 Q. Did you help with the fabrication of those devices, 25 ahalf. Why don't we take a five-minute break.
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Page 66 Page 68
1 THE WITNESS: Okay. ! theory of why those two occurred on the same day?
2 MS. WOELFEL: Thank you very much. 2 A There are several theories, or at least one prevalent
3 (A recess was taken.) 3 theory, but again it's just theory.
4 BY MS. WOELFEL.: 4 Q. What is that theory?
5 Q. Back on the record. 5 A I have no way to explore that.
6 So | want to talk to you about the second inadvertent 6 Q. Can you describe what that theory is?
7 dump that took place on July 7th, 2014 involving Scott Palmer. 7 A My prevalent theory is that we have an atmospheric
8 Are you aware that Mr. Palmer lost a load of sand on the same 8 condition in that area.
9 day as Dan Koski in 20147 9 Q. And what did you do, if anything, to explore that
o A Yes, L had heard that. 1o theory?
1 Q. How did you become aware that that had occurred? 1 A I'munable. [ don't have enough technical equipment
12 A [ believe that Scott Palmer had called me about that 12 to even attempt such exploration.
13 incident. 13 Q. Have you discussed that theory with Scott Palmer?
14 Q. What did he say to you when he called you? 14 A Yes, | have.
15 A That he had dropped a load of sand on the highway at 15 Q. What have you two discussed?
16 approximately the same area that Dan had. 16 A We discussed the potential of a static charge,
17 Q. Did Scott indicate how the dump had occurred? 17 atmospheric that could be engaging the magnet on the valve in
18 A To me at that time with that phone call? 18 that area potentially. | believe there are some high tension
19 Q. Yes. 9 lines out there. | believe there is some cell towers or perhaps
20 A No. 20 microwave towers. Any of those potentially, in my opinion,
21 Q. Did he indicate to you at any time how that dropped 21 could have an effect on those trailers.
22 load had occurred? 22 Q. An effect on what part of the trailer?
23 A He is unaware of how 1t occurred as much as | am 23 A On the Versa valve's coil, the magnetic coil that
24 Q. Did you conduct any investigation to try to determine 24 actually activates clectrically the gate.
25 how that dump occurred? 25 Q. Did you run any tests to try to determine if that
Page 67 Page 69
i A 1don't believe we went as in depth as at that time we theory is accurate at all?
2 were installing the mechanical lockouts. 2 A TI'munable to. [don't have the equipnent.
3 Q. So did you conduct any inspection at all of the wiring 3 Q. Okay.
4 on the trailer that Scott was pulling that opened? 4 Are there any other theories that you have discussed
5 A [ don't recall making that inspection. Doesn't mean 5 with anyone at MDB regarding why these incidents occurred other
€ that [ didn't, 6 than what you just described, the atmospheric condition in that

22
23
24
2%

Q Do you recall any investigation that you conducted of
the trailer that Scott was pulling on July 7th, 2014?

A [ do not recall doing so.

Q. Do you recall whether or not you reached any
conclusions regarding the cause of Mr. Palmer’s trailer opening
on July 7th, 20147

A 1 have made no conclusions as to why either of those
or any of those incidents have occurred.

Q. Do you know if anyone at MDB has made any conclusions
regarding why the July 7th, 2014 incident involving Mr. Palmer's
truck occurred?

A You said does anyone -~

Q. Yes, have you heard from anybody at MDB any
conclusions regarding why the incident on July 7th, 2014
occurred?

A No.

Q. Did you conduct any investigation as to why
Mr. Palmer's trailer and Mr. Koski's trailer may have opened on
the same day, is that a theory that you -- did you explore that

area?
A No other pertinent or no other prevalent theories
Q. Did you discuss with Scott whether or not he may have
done anything on his own to cause this incident?
A No.
MS. WOELFEL: I'm going to walk through a bunch of
documents, okay. | will mark this as Exhibit 2.
(Exhibit 2 was marked.)
BY MS. WOELFEL:
Q. Exhibit 2 is a series of four pages that are work
orders Bates labeled MDBMAINT, maintenance 000309, 312, 315 and
32L
Have you seen these documents before?
A I have not seen this particular document.
Q. We're looking at the first document that is entitled
work order and it's dated -- actually there is a date that says
December 1st, 2013 and then there is a date completed that says
November 30th, 2013. Do you see that?
A Yes.
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Page 70

Q. And at the bottom it says performed by Scott and Pat.
Do you see that?

A That is correct.

Q. And 1 presume that you are the Pat that this refers
t0?

Page 72

to become loose, therefore we installed 7-way boxes, junction
boxes to neaten that up is what [ believe we did here, along

with some more new cable, which would be wires inside wrapped
together, probably the ABS green wire with seven independent
wires inside this cable and bringing a 4-way cable to Jooks like

6 A That s correct. another junction box.
7 Q. And who is Scott that is named here? 7 Q. What did you do with any of the wires that you were
8 A That would be Scott Paimer. 8 replacing or that weren't going to be used, did you remove them
2 Q. Did you write out this work order or did somebody 9 from the trailer or did you leave them there?
10 else? 10 A Typically we remove these. It would be my estimation
11 A I believe Scott Palmer made this work order. 1 that we did. Again it's been a while.
12 Q. Now, if you look on the line that says additional, can 12 Q. And what did you do with the removed wires, would you
13 you read what is written there? 13 throw those away?
4 MR. BROWN: Objection, the document speaks for itself. 14 A Yes
15 Go ahead. 18 Q. If you had noted or seen any problems with the wires
16 BY MS. WOELFEL: 16 that y ou removed would you note that somewhere?
17 Q. Are you able to read what is written there? 1 A If there had been an issue, yes, we would have,
18 A [ believe itreads - the first word is not extremely 1€ Q. Where would you have noted that?
19 clear to me, but I believe it says rewired trailer to meet MDB 19 A We wouid put it down here on the notes.
20 standards, replace lights with LEDs. 20 Q. Okay.
21 Q. Okay. 21 Moving to the next page, MDB maintenance 000312, This
22 Do you know what this refers to when it says rewire 22 indicates that there is work on February 20th, 2014 performed by
23 trailer to meet MDB standards? 23 Pat, it looks like. Is this your handwriting?
24 A What ] believe he is referring to is we typically 24 A. Pardon?
25 don't rush through our wiring job. We install junction boxes 25 Q. Is this your handwriting on this document?
Page 71 Page 73
L when necessary in a clean, safe location 1o keep it from being A It appears to be, ves.
2 damaged or filled with water or such. We take more time in our ? No, that would be -- Yes, that is my handwriting on
wiring terminals and such and 10 insulate them than the industry 3 most of it.
4 standard. 4 Q. Okay.
s Q. Okay. 5 [ want to go to the next page, MDB maintenance 000315.
€ Is there a way in which you wire a trailer that is € This is a work order dated April 16th, 2014 and it indicates
7 considered, quote unquote, MDB standards? 7 that the work is performed by Pat and Scott. Is this your
8 A Just by the neatness in which we do the wiring 8 handwriting on this document?
9 Q. If you acquire a new trailer, if MDB acquires a new 9 A No.
0 trailer do you rewire it to meet MDB standards? 1 Q. Do you know whose handwriting it is?
1 A Typically, no, unless the wiring is indicated that it 1 A It's my opinion it would be Scott Palmer’s.
12 needs to be done. 1z Q. And this indicates that on April 16, 2014 there was a
13 Q. Do you know if what you were doing with 677 - 13 Versa valve handle loose and air spring action on lever not
14 Actually scratch that. 14 working correctly.
15 Can you tell me based on this work order what it was 15 Do you recall performing the work indicated by way of
16 that you did to trailer 6777 on or around November 30th, 2013? 16 this work order?
17 A Again | can't read his writing very well, but 1 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation.
18 believe what we're indicating is that we ran new cable from the 18 THE WITNESS: 1 did not perform the work on this
19 tractor to the first — or to the trailer eliminating or 19 valve.
20 cleaning up the wiring on the 7-way and the 4-way. 20 BY MS. WOELFEL:
21 Q. What do you mean cleaning up the wiring from the 7-way 21 Q. Okay
22 and 4-way, what specifically were you doing? 22 Do you know why it says under performed by it says Pat
23 A Again this is quite a while back, but | believe that 23 and Scott, do you know why your name is listed there?
24 we had wiring at the 7-way - the original 7-way that was messy, 24 A Potentially, again it's been a while, that 1 may have
25 to say the least, wires stacked upon wires, potential for them 25 removed the valve for Scott
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Page 74 Page 76

1 Q. Why would you have removed the valve for Scott? or not, Pat?

2 A He may have asked me to remove it or he may have been 2 A It appears to be my handwriting,

3 in the process. 3 Q. Okay.

4 Q. Do you have any independent recollection of working on 4 It indicates that the work performed pursuant to this

5 this project in April of 2014? 5 work order was performed by you, correct?

s A Nothing specific. € A Correct.

7 Q. Going to the next page, it's a work order dated 7 Q. So it says troubleshoot no power at gate dump 4-way

8 December 1, 2014. Can you tell me if this is your handwriting 8 plug; is that correct?

9 or not? 9 A That is correct.
10 A That's probably my handwriting. 10 Q. What does that mean?
1 Q. Okay. 1 A That means at the plug, the 4-way plug for the trailer
12 And is that your name at the bottom that says iz dumps there was no power. In other words, the gates were not
13 performed by Pat? 13 opening because no power was being provided to them when
14 A Yes. 1 commanded by the driver.
15 Q. Okay. 15 Q. So if the driver hit the switch from inside the cab
16 Now, this says T/S gates not closing with switch. 16 the betly dumpers would not open, is that correct?
17 What does T/S gates not closing with switch mean? 1 A That is correct.
8 A That is my shorthand for troubleshoot and then gates 18 Q. What did you determine was the problem that caused
19 not working or not closing with switch meaning in the cab of the 19 that?
20 tractor the third switch activates to open it and they ask for 20 A ltappears here that I found that the wiring for the
21 it to be closed by turning the switch ofT, the gate would not 21 switches, the positive wire to the switches was on an
22 close. 22 inappropriate circuit inside the cab, was wired to a light
23 Q. Okay. 23 circuit.
24 A By removing the power from it. 24 Q. How would that have occurred that it would be wired to
25 Q. Okay. 25 an inappropriate circuit inside the cab?

Page 75 Page 77

! And so what did you do in response to that issue? 1 A This is a personal opinion that it's inappropriate. 1

2 A In this response from what I found the accumulator 2 wouldn't have wired it to that circuit, so meaning [ would have

3 apparently was not functioning properly on the Versa valve, 3 taken it to a different circuit, which 1 did in this particular

4 therefore | replaced the Versa valve. 4 instance.

5 Q. How did you determine that the accumulator was not > Q. Okay.

€ working on the Versa valve? 6 So you rewired the circuit so that it was -- describe

7 A I couldn'ttell you specifically. I'm pretty sure 7 to me how you rewired it?

8 that I probably checked to see if there was air on the other 8 A This particular switch at the time when [ found it

9 side of this accumulator by functioning the valve, the handle, 9 ran the wire from the light circuit, the lamp circuitto an
10 and at that point in time it was as far as I can go with it with 10 accessory circuit that was made to run accessories inside the
1 my knowledge of the Versa vaive, therefore 1 replaced the valve n cab, which in my opinion these switches were accessones, not
12 and the function was proper. 12 part of the lighting and brakes or anything else, heaters or l
13 Q. Did you replace it with the exact same type of Versa 13 anything else for that matter, more to perhaps a more dedicated
u valve? 14 circuit.
15 A Yes. 1s Q. And after you madc that change everything worked?
i6 MS. WOELFEL: This will be Exhibit 3. 16 A 1t appears so, yes.
17 (Exhibit 3 was marked.) 17 Q. Okay.
18 BY MS. WOELFEL: 18 Moving on to the next work order, which is Bates
1% Q. Exhibit 3 is another stack of work orders with various 19 labeled MDB 155, this looks like it's work performed by Brandon
20 Bates numbers and they all relate to equipment number 5694, 20 Jones. Who is that?
21 which | will represent to you is Daniel Koski's truck, the truck 21 A Brandon Jones was a young man hired to help lubricate
22 that he drove to pull the three belly dump trailers. 22 and service the vehicles.
23 If we look at the first work order, which is dated -- 23 Q. Did he work with you?
24 first of all, it's Bates labelled MDB 031 and it is dated 24 A. He worked with me on occasion, yes.
25 April 13th, 2013. Can you tell me if this is your handwriting 25 Q. Did you train him?
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Page 78

A Toa certain extent, yes.

Page 80

Did you believe that there could have been a wiring

2 Q. So when you say his jobs were to lubricate and inspect 2 issue there that would have contributed to this unauthorized
3 the vehicles, what is involved with the inspection that Brandon 3 dump?
4 would perform? 4 A ldidn't truly believe so, but there is always a
5 A Well, he was instructed to keep his eyes open for 5 potential.
6 anything that looked odd to him, cracks or breaks, something 6 Q. Okay.
7 that is just not right and to bring it to either myself or ? And is that the reason why you did the rewiring in the
8 Tracy'’s attention at this time. 8 cab?
9 Q. So based on what is written here where it says grease 9 A Yes, 1 wanted to isolate those circuits as best
10 and inspect, do you know precisely or can you tell what Brandon 10 could completely from the tractor and that's why we went to the
11 inspected on equipment number 5694 and trailers 6773, 6774 and 1 batteries directly instead of pulling any power or ground from
12 67757 12 the chassis.
13 A Tcould not tell you precisely what he inspected. 13 Q. Okay.
1 Q. But if he found any problems you would have expected 14 It also says you installed a master switch?
15 him to bring that to cither your or Tracy Shanc’s attention? 15 A. That s correct.
16 A. That is correct. 16 Q. Was there a master switch in there before?
7 Q. Do you know if anything was brought to your attention 17 A No, there was not.
18 on or around May 19th, 20137 18 Q. Why did you install 3 master switch?
19 A 1do not believe so. 19 A It's one more step, one more protective circuit.
20 Q. Next page is MDB 073. This is work that looks like - 20 Q. Did you believe that there was a possibility that
21 the work order is dated July 20th —~ can you read that? 21 driver error could have contributed to the unauthorized dump in
22 A. Pardon? 22 July of 2013?
23 Q. Canyou read the date on this work order? 23 A That possibility never truly entered my mind.
24 A ltlooks like July 26, 2013, 24 Q. Did you install master switches in every other truck?
25 Q. Is that your handwriting? 25 A No, we did not.
Page 79 Page 81
1 A That is my handwriting. 1 Q. Just the one that Mr. Koski was driving?
2 Q. And it looks like the work order is completed by Pat. 2 A. Correct.
3 That is you; correct? 3 Q. On to the next page, MDB 078. This work order is
4 A Correct. 4 dated August 17, 2013 and it looks like it says performed by
5 Q. And the work is performed also by you; is that s Pat, and that is you; correct?
6 comect? s A. That is correct.
? A Correct. 7 Q. Is this your handwriting?
8 Q. And here it looks like you are rewiring gate switches; 8 A It appears to be, yes.
9 is that right? 9 Q. 1can't read what is written where it says additional.
10 A Yes. 10 Can you read that for me, please?
1 Q. This is inside the cab of the truck? 11 A. lwishicould. Icannotwith this copy. It seems a
12 A That is correct. 12 little blurry.
13 Q. Can you tell me why you were rewiring gate switches on 13 Q. Okay.
R July 26, 20137 ] A But it seems something about the trailer lights,
15 A 1believe at that time we had the uncommanded opening 15 troubleshooting the trailer lights, perhaps pulsing may be the
16 of the gate and this was part of the repairs to help isolate 16 word, may not, and then in my poor parentheses is possible
17 even more so the system. 17 ground.
18 Q. Okay. 18 Q. What does that mean?
1 Had you found any problems with the gate switches 1 A. Possible ground would be a possible grounding issue.
20 inside the cab prior to making the decision to rewire? 20 The circuit is not being completed well as perhaps a corroded
21 A There was one issue where we didn't have power flowing 21 circuit that doesn't aliow the electricity to retum to the
22 through when 1 rewired to the accessory circuit. 22 battery and, therefore, let's just take a light, for example, it
23 Q. That occurred on or about April 13th, 2013; correct? 23 cannot illuminate as it's supposed 1o, but it may illuminate
24 A Yeah 24 dimly because it's still getting some circuit, but not all the
25 Q. Okay. 25 circuit required to operate properly.
.
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Page 82

Page 84

i Q. Okay. 1 Next page is MDB maintenance 000089 and it says the
2 So what did you do to correct that issue? 2 work is performed by Pat and the date is February 6th, 2014. Is
3 A It looks to me it says | found an issue perhaps in the 3 this your handwriting, Pat?
4 7-way plug and socket on the tractor. 4 A It does appear to be my handwriting, yes.
5 Q. And replaced those parts? B Q. Okay.
6 A Yes, | replaced the plug and a socket on this tractor, & And here it says that you replaced cab power relay?
7 which the ground wire passes through. 7 A Correct.
8 Q. Okay. 8 Q. What does that mean, what does that involve?
9 When you replace a part do you throw away the part you 9 A In the cab for the main power coming to the cab
10 have taken off the truck or do you keep it? 10 supplies 12-voit DC is a relay behind the dash. When that relay
1 A Typically we dispose of it. 11 fails we lose all power in the dash. So that entails us
12 Q. M you were to keep it would that be noted somewhere? 12 removing a portion of the dash to get to this relay and
13 A No. 13 replacing it, physically replacing the electrical component.
14 Q. I'wantto goto MDB 095, so go two pages ahead. 1 Q. Okay.
15 A 857 15 Next page is MDB 109 and that is a work order for 5694
16 Q. 95, right there. 16 dated March 21, 2014, and in this it Jooks like you repaired the
v This is a work order dated October 20th, 2013, and is 17 center gate toggle switch cover?
18 this your handwriting? s A Correct.
19 A No. 19 Q. And that is one of the switches that operates the
20 Q. That is Scott's name on the bottom; correct? 20 belly dumnper; correct?
21 A That is correct 21 A Thatis correct. That is one of the covers for the
22 Q. If you had performed work with Scott in any capacity, 22 switch.
23 even just a little bit, would your name be written on the bottom 23 Q. One of the red covers that you would flip up before
24 of the work order? 24 you could move the toggle switch; is that correct?
25 A Typically, yes. 25 A That is correct.
Page 83 Page 85
B Q. Okay. 1 Q. Do all cabs have toggle covers over the switches?
2 Do you have any recollection of assisting him in 2 A Pardon?
3 replacing a master switch on 56947 3 Could you define which toggle switches you're
4 A Ido not recall assisting him. 4 referring to?
5 Q. Okay, 5 Q. The toggle switches that activate the belly dumpers,
6 Let's move on to MDB 101, Is that your handwriting on € does every truck in MDB's line have covers over those toggle
7 this document? 7 switches?
8 A Pardon? 8 A Correct, they do.
9 Q. Is this your handwriting? 9 Q. The next page is MDB maintenance 000103, It's
10 A That is correct. 10 June 25th, 2014, and at the bottom 1t says work performed by
1 Q. What does PM-1 mean? 1 Pat. Can you tell me if this is your handwriting?
12 A That is preventative maintenance first level 12 A Thats correct.
13 Q. What does preventative maintenance first level 13 Q. 1 believe it says troubleshoot, I don't know,
14 involve? 14 something turn signals and 4-way flashers. Can you read that
15 A It involves changing the engine oil and filter, 15 for me?
16 lubricating all the lubricatable components and inspection, 16 A lcertainly can. It reads troubleshoot TS in-op tumn
17 visual typically, and topping off of fluids, such as the 17 signals and 4-way flashers.
18 windshield washers, checking to make sure the wipers are in good i8 Q. Okay.
o condition and all the lights are functional. s And it says you found low voltage at the switch?
20 Q. And ifany issues were noted from the visual 20 A That is correct.
21 inspection would that be indicated on this work order? 21 Q. What does that mean, at the flasher switch you found
22 A The smaller stuff, yes. 22 low voltage?
23 Q. What if there was larger stuff? 23 A Correct.
24 A Bigger stuff would be opened on a separate work order, 24 Q. What could that have been caused by?
2% Q 25 A At this point it appears by my notes the fuse in the

All right.
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Page 86 Page 88
1 fuse panel was not allowing full voltage through the fuse. 1 Q. Are you inspecting the wiring that is not visible?
2 Q. Okay. 2 A. No.
3 A. Extremely rare, but it occurs, 3 Q. The next work order is dated July 7, 2014, which we
4 Q. Do you know what could have caused that? 4 know is the date that there was an unauthorized dump by
5 A At this point [ assumed that it was perhaps the fuse, s Mr. Koski, correct, and this says gate opened on highway,
6 the filament in the fuse was not making good contact. 6 trailer number 6775, install positive gate valve lock. Were you
7 MS. WOELFEL: Okay. 7 involved in the installing of positive gate valve locks?
8 We're going to move to another set of exhibits. Let's do 8 A. Let me find that.
9 the next set really fast. 9 MS. SHREVE: 1 think yours is in a different order.
10 (Exhibit 4 was marked.) 10 MS. WOELFEL: MDB 0013.
11 BY MS. WOELFEL: 11 Let's go ahead and break right there so I can put that in
12 Q. This is a set of exhibits related to equipment number 12 the correct order and we only have a few minutes before the
13 6773, which is the first trailer in Mr. Koski's three trailer 13 call. Iapologize for that.
14 lineup, the one attached to the truck. 14 (A recess was taken.)
15 Now, going to the very first work order it says work 15 BY MS. WOELFEL:
16 is performed by Scott, but it notes that there is pulled out 16 Q. So we are back on the record, and when we left off we
17 unused wire from, I don't know, can you read his writing better 17 were on Exhibit 4 and | had given you a jumble of paper that was
18 than me under the note section? 18 not in the same order as mine and we have comected that.
19 A 1 have difficulty reading my own writing, but I can't 19 We were looking at MDB 013, which is a work order
20 really speculate on what that word is. 20 dated 7/7/14. Do you see that?
21 Q. Okay. 21 A ldoseeit.
22 A The last word appears to be discarded. 22 Q. And that is for equipment number 6773, 6774 and 6775,
23 Q. Okay. 23 Do you see that?
24 Do you have any knowledge regarding what this work 24 A That is correct.
25 order was about or involved? 25 Q. And this is a work order that was on the same day as
Page 87 Page 89
1 A No. 1 the unauthorized release; correct?
2 Q. The third page, MDB 170, states inspect FAl and that 2 A That appears to be correct.
3 is performed by Tracy. What is an FAI? 3 Q. And it notes that there was a gate opening on the
4 Oops, let me see that. You have my super secret 4 highway with trailer 6775 and that there was an installation of
5 highlights, which you probably can't read that handwriting s positive gate valve locks. Were you involved in installing the
€ either. 6 positive gate valve locks on 6773, 6774 and 67757
7 What is an FAI? 7 A Ibelieve I assisted in the installation of these
A. Not knowing Tracy's shorthand I'm going to state that 8 locks.
8 potentially it's a federal annual inspection. 9 Q. Did you assist in the fabrication of those positive
10 Q. Did you ever conduct federal annual inspections on 10 locks?
11 these trailers? i1 A [ believe that Scott Palmer made that fabrication of
12 A Thave. Ibelieve | have done a federal on these 12 those locks.
13 trailers. 13 Q. Did he discuss with you at all the design that he was
14 Q. Who typically does the federal annual inspections on 14 putting together before he did it?
15 these tratlers? 15 A No.
16 A Typically it could be myself, Scott Palmer or Tracy 16 Q. Go to the next page, that is a work order dated
17 Shane at this time. Tracy Shane was the one typically doing the 17 August Sth, 2014 for 6773. Is that your handwriting?
18 federal annual inspections at this time. 18 A That is my handwriting, correct.
19 Q. What does a federal annual inspection involve? 19 Q. And it says you replaced a 4-way socket. Do you know
20 A ltinvolves the visual physical inspection of the 20 why you had to replace that 4-way socket based on what is on
21 condition of the trailer in regards to brakes, tires, 21 this document?
22 securement, chains, if required, lighting, bumpers, if required, 22 A Its an assumption that the socket -- the flap that
23 handholds and such. It's a somewhat general inspection of the 23 holds the plug in place may have been broken or there may have
24 overali condition, whether it's a tractor, a trailer. If these 24 been corrosion on the socket on the plugs or it could have had a
23 components exist on it then they are to be inspected 25 broken pin. Some damage, it's an assumption at this point.
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Page 90 Page 92
i Q. Because you can't tell what the problem was based on 1 Q. Okay.
2 this work order? 2 A It's a fairly major event.
3 A No. 3 MS. WOELFEL: Mark this as Exhibit 6.
4 Q. And the next page, MDB maintenance 000165, is a work 4 (Exhibit 6 was marked.)
5 order dated 9/16/2014. Is that your handwriting on this page? 5 BY MS. WOELFEL:
6 A Yes,itis. 6 Q. Handing you what has been marked as Exhibit 6, it's a
7 Q. And what does this work order describe? 7 series of documents related to equipment number 6775,
8 A Describing troubleshooting an air leak on the first 8 The first page is Bates labeled MDB 239 and it's a
9 and second gate cylinders. 9 work order dated July 18, 2013 with the date completed of
10 Q. What would an air leak on a gate cylinder do, would 10 July 19th, 2013. Is this your handwriting?
i that prevent the belly dumper from opening and closing? i1 A ldo not believe it is.
12 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 12 Q. It says the work order is by and then it says Pat. Is
13 THE WITNESS: It does not prevent them from aperating. 13 there anybody else at MDB Trucking whose name is Pat?
14 It's merely a leak in the air system. In this case it appears 14 A No, there is not.
15 to be on a QR valve and perhaps a cylinder and those air leaks 15 Q. It says the work is performed by Pat. Do you see that
16 needed to be addressed and repaired for loss of air. 16 at the bottom?
17 BY MS. WOELFEL: 17 A ldo.
18 Q. And you made those repairs? 18 Q. Whose handwriting do you think this is?
15 A Itappears [ had, yes. 19 A Pardon?
20 MS. WOELFEL: All right. 20 Q. Do you know whose handwriting this is?
2 We will move on to a different exhibit. 2 A ldon't know for certain, but it may be my wife's.
22 (Exhibit 5 was marked.) 22 It's much too legible for mine.
23 BY MS. WOELFEL: 23 Q. Would your wife assist you in writing up work orders?
2 Q. On the first page, MDB 196, that is dated - [ believe 24 A On rare occasions.
25 it's dated July 31st, 2013 and it says date completed 8/2/2013 25 Q. And does she also work at MDB Trucking?
Page 91 Page 93
i and it says work performed by Pat for equipment 6774. Is that B A She does not.
2 your handwriting, Pat? 2 Q. So would you fill out these work orders at home afler
3 A It does appear to be. 3 work?
4 Q. And can you tell me what is indicated in this work 4 A More than likely she was out visiting and with my
5 order? 4 hands being all greasy and whatnot it's more convenient to have
6 A In this particular work order it indicates that I ran 6 her - to be able to dictate to her what I did.
7 new wires in this trailer for the dump circuit. 7 Q. So you would be dictating to her and she would be
8 Q. Was this in response to the July 2013 unauthorized 8 filling out this work order?
9 dump? A Correct.
0 A 1do beligve so. 1o Q. Can you describe for me what you were doing with
1 Q. And it says you rewired dump valve circuit. Can you n respect to this work order?
12 explain precisely how you rewired the dump valve circuit? 12 A On the trailers there is two inline apparatus that
13 A Rather than using the circuit that existed with the 13 deal with air prior to the Versa valve, One of them is the
is 7-way wires it appears with the parts used that | ran 14 water separator and filter and the other is the oiler, which
15 independent wires from the 4-way socket back to the coil on the 15 automatically provides oil to the Versa valve and our cylinders
16 Versa valve. 16 to keep them functioning properly.
17 Q. How can you tell from this work order that you left 17 In this where they are put together these have used a
18 the existing wires in the trailer or the previously existing 18 fairly flimsy O ring system and a taper lock that holds them
is wires in the trailer? 19 together. Over time the O rings become weak and the air
20 A Atthis point | didn't state that [ had removed them, 20 pressure that they are supposed to seal is able to overcome them
2 therefore that's the only reason I can say we did not. 2 and leak to the outside so we have an air loss at that point.
22 Q. Okay. 22 With these particular valves 1 found the way they are
23 If you had removed them would you have written removed 23 done are inadequate for an over-the-road trailer. So what I did
24 24 in this instance, rather than duplicate the O rings and the
25 25 locking mechanism to hold them together, these particular valves

A Typically I would have, yes.

i
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Page 94

also have pipe threads that could be utilized and | did utilize
pipe threads and unions, which made a solid junction for the air
and climinates the O rings from leaking in the future.

Q. What would be the result of the air leak?

A Pardon?

Q. What is the result of the air leaking at the gate
control valve?

A At this one, this particular one besides basically
what we were dealing with was just a loss of air. It's still
part of the system. The air compressor from our tractor is
working harder to try to make up for this air. It still has
plenty of air to operate properly the cylinders on the gates and
maintain pressure in the tank, it's just unacceptabie to have
that air leak.

Q. Okay.

And this was shortly before the unauthorized dump in
July of 2013 involving this trailer; correct?

A It appears so, yes.

Q. When that unauthorized dump in July 2013 took place
did you check to see if what is described on this work order
played any part in that unauthorized release?

A 1did not make any specific test to this, perhaps
checked for feaks, but 1 don't believe there would have been any
found.

Q. The next page is Bates labeled MDB 015 and it's a work

w o~
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Page 96

Q. Okay.

And did you place the order for a new Versa valve?

A Ibelieve so. I wentand picked it up at our vendor.

Q. Were you the person that made the choice on which
Versa valve to purchase?

MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation.
THE WITNESS: You could say that, I suppose.
BY MS. WOELFEL:

Q. Did you have any discussions with anybody else at MDB
about what type of Versa valve to purchase in order to replace
the one that you had removed?

A No.

Q. So if you placed the order then it would have been
your decision on which Versa valve to order?

A Yes.

Q. Did you look at any other types of Versa valve when
you were making a decision on what to purchase?

A No.

MS. WOELFEL: Keep that exhibit in front of you. 1
want to show you what we will mark as Exhibit 7.
(Exhibit 7 was marked.)
BY MS. WOELFEL:

Q. Handing you an invoice that is dated July 31st, 203,
and it's an invoice ordering a side port Versa valve. Do you
see that?
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order dated August Ist, 2013. 1t says by Pat and performed by
Pat. Is that your handwriting?

A It does appear to be, yes.

Q. Can you describe for me what you were doing in this
work order?

A Itsays that we were investigating unintentional gate
opening. At this point it appears to me that I have begun to
replace and isolate the circuit for the Versa valve's function
in this particular work order, replaced the Versa valve,
isolated the dump valve circuit. 1 have difficulty reading my
own handwriting. Install the Versa valve and rewire dump valve
circuit from valve to truck isolating dump circuit and 1 removed
a coil case ground from the circuit.

Q. So you rewired the dump valve circuit in the same
manner that you rewired 6774 that we talked about?

A Correct.

Q. Then it says you replaced the Versa valve, Did you
take off the Versa valve, did you remove the Versa valve from
67757

A T'm pretty sure 1 would have, yes.

Q. What did you do with the Versa valve that you removed?

A My best recollection is we disposed of it.

Q. Did you run any tests on it after you removed it from
the trailer?

A Tdo not believe so.

W e
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Page 97

A Ido.

Q. And it's with Engs Motor Truck Company. Is that with
whom you placed your order for a new Versa valve?

A Thatis correct.

Q. You said you went and picked it up at Engs when it was
ready?

A Correct.

Q. How do you pronounce this company?

A. Ibelieve it's Engs.

Q. So going back to work order MDB 0135, do you know if
Engs had the Versa valve in stock and you just went and picked
it up or did you have to place an order and have it delivered?

A Iflrecall correctly it was in stock.

Q. Okay.

And you went and picked it up and then did you notice
when you opened the package for the Versa valve that there was
any written documentation inciuded with it?

A 1would have to say that there probably was.

Q. Didyou read it before you replaced the Versa valve?

A ldidnot.

Q. Did anyone assist you in installing the new Versa
valve?

A 1do not believe so.

Q. Okay.

After you installed the new Versa valve did you
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Page 98 Page 100
1 utilize the pinning system that -- scratch that. That didn't 1 Q. Canyou tell me what is going on in this work order?
2 happen for a year later; correct? 2 A Troubleshoot ABS light coming on.
3 A Pardon? 3 Q. What is an ABS light.
4 Q. You were not utilizing a pinning system with the Versa 4 A Antilock braking system indicator light.
s valve that you replaced in July of 2013, correct? 5 Q. Why was the ABS light coming on?
€ A Correct. 6 A The ABS light will illuminate any time that the ECU,
7 Q. You put the trailer back in service after you 7 the ABS clectronic control unit senses an issue withthe ABS
8 completed this work order; is that right? 8 system, whether it be a broken wire or no continuity to one of
9 A 1did not put it back into service, 9 the sensors or a bad sensor, a multitude of issues.
10 Q. Who makes the decision to put it back into service? 10 [t appears in this particular work order that I had
i1 A At that time it would have been Tracy Shane. 1 two wires that were damaged going to the front sensors and |
12 Q. Okay. 12 replaced them.
13 A Icould not give him reason not to. 13 Q. Okay.
14 Q. Sodid you recommend to Mr. Shane that he put 6775 1 Do you know how they were damaged?
15 back in service? 15 A 1don'trecall exactly, but probably some sort of
16 A Idid not make any recommendation. 16 abrasion.
17 Q. But you could not give him a reason to keep it out of 17 Q. When you are conducting that inspection trying to
16 service? 18 figure out what is causing the ABS light to come on are you
18 A Correct. 19 inspecting other wires at the same time to try to Jook for the
20 Q. Go to three pages back, MDB maintenance 240. t's a 20 source of the problem?
21 work order dated June 30th, 2014. 21 A Yes, you always do a visual inspection.
2z A June 30th, 20147 22 Q. Ifyou had seen any other problems with the wiring you
23 Q. That's correct. 23 would have noted it and corrected it?
2 A Okay. 24 A That is correct.
25 Q. For equipment number 6775, and at the bottom it says 25 Q. Soit's fair to say that on July 2, 2014 you didn't
Page 99 Page 101
i performed by Pat. Is that your handwriting? 1 see any other problems with the wiring?
2 A That is correct. 2 A 1didnot.
3 Q. Now this says reattached Versa valve. What does that 3 Q. So the next page is MDB maintenance 244 and that is
4 mean? 4 about five days later on July 7th, 2014 and that is the day that
s A At this moment just reading this | would have to 5 there was an unauthorized release; is that correct?
6 assume that a portion of the attaching apparatus, which in this 6 A Ibelieve so.
? case would be bolts, has come loose and that [ either 7 Q. Okay.
8 reinstalled and tightened the valve, or 1 should say retightened 8 And this is a work order, looks like prepared by Scott
8 the fasteners, or perhaps replaced with a different locking nut E and performed by Scott, and it says install lockout device for
10 or washer at that point in time. 10 Versa valve. Did you assist him with installing the lockout
11 Q. Okay. 11 device for the Versa valve on 6775, if you can recall?
12 With the Versa valve loose would that cause any safety 12 A Pardon?
13 issues? 13 Q. Did you assist him in installing the lockout device?
14 A In my opinion, po. 14 A 1don't believe so, but I may have.
15 Q. Why not? 15 Q. Okay.
16 A 1don't feel it could have -- [ don't recall it ever 1€ Go to the next page, MDB maintenance 246. It's a work
17 being completely free of its mount. At that point in time there 1? order dated 7/8/2014 and it says performed by Pat. Do you see
16 is no way, even with the way it's plumbed, which is air plumbing 18 that?
19 to the rear of it, there is no way that I could conceive it to 13 A ldo.
20 be able to fall and strike the handle and activate the valve. 20 Q. Is that your handwriting on this work order?
21 Q. Go to the next page. It's Bates labeled MDB 258. 21 A That is my handwriting.
22 It's a work order dated July 2, 2014 for equipment number 6775 22 Q. Now, this is the day after the unauthorized release;
23 and it says work performed by Pat. Is that your handwriting, 23 correct?
24 Pat? 24 A Ibelieve s0.
25 A That is my handwriting. 25 Q. And what is going on in this work order?
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Page 102
A This particular work order it appears that the ABS

Page 104

Q. Why would you need to do that?

2 light had iltuminated indicating another issue with ABS and this 2 A More than likely it had indicated it was no longer
3 circuitry, which was BU-1, was a fault. 1 traced the circuit to 3 functioning properly. Pressure protection valve protects the
4 an extension cable that either apparemly had a break in it or 4 tractor from loss of air from equipment used downstream.
5 somnething, was no longer communicating with the ECU and [ 5 MS. WOELFEL: All right.
€ replaced the cable and cleared the codes from the ECU. € You can put that exhibit away and mark this one next in
7 Q. Does this indicate to you that 6775 was being used on ? order.
8 July 8th to haul ioads? 8 (Exhibit 8 was marked.)
9 A Would you repeat the question, please? s BY MS. WOELFEL:
10 Q. Right. 10 Q. This is a series of work orders for equipment number
1 Based on the fact that you were performing this work 11 5693, which is Scott Palmer's -- the truck that Scott Palmer was
12 on this trailer 6775 on July 8th, 2014, does that suggest to you 12 driving when he had his inadvertent dump on July 7th, just to
13 that Dan, who signed the work order, had been using that trailer 13 give it context.
14 to haul loads on July 8th, 20147 14 On the first page of this, MDB maintenance 000277, it
15 A Not necessanily. It could be an old work order. 15 looks like the work was performed by you, Pat. [s that your
16 Q. So this would be an old work order? 16 handwriting on this document?
b A Not an old work order, but that day may have been 17 A It does appear to be, yes.
18 assigned to us. 18 Q. Tell me what is happening with this work order,
19 Q. Okay. 19 picase?
20 So when you prepare -- when a person prepares a work 20 A In this particular work order it's troubleshoot
21 order do they put the day that they prepare it on the work order 21 intermittent first trailer gate function.
22 or is there someplace eise that they would note -- 22 Q. What does that mean?
23 A Not necessarily. Sometimes it's the date that the 23 A That means it either wasn't functioning or wasn't
24 work is performed and completed or began and completed. As far 24 functioning pro perly.
25 as preparing the work order, me, the date I start to work on it 25 Q. Did you figure out why it wasn't functioning properly?
Page 103 Page 105
1 is the date that I have the information that it needs to be 1 A Itappears to me that there was a wire that wasn't
2 repaired and, therefore, that is why that date is on there. 2 secured properly in the plug, within the 4-way plug. 1t appears
3 Q. Okay. 3 that I replaced that 4-way plug. I may have found either a
4 At could have been brought to the someone's attention 4 broken screw or something along those lines that caused me to
5 the day before. 5 want to replace the plug.
¢ Q. Okay. € Q. When you replace a plug you normally discard the plug
7 Go to the next page. This is MDB maintenance 249 L that you have taken off of the unit?
8 It's a work order dated September 16th, 2014. It says performed 8 A Ido.
@ by Pat. Is that your handwriting, Pat? 9 Q. Go to the next page. It's March 23rd, 2015. It looks
10 A Yes. 10 like work was performed by you. Is that your handwriting?
11 Q. Can you tell me what is happening in this work order, n A That is my handwriting.
12 please? 12 Q. And can you tell me what is happening in this work
i3 A ltappears that there was an air leak at the first 13 order?
14 gate cylinder and at this point in time the QR valve, which is 14 A ltsays gate not working with switch. It appears when
15 called a quick release valve on each end of the cylinder was 15 1 checked it out they were working. The 4-way plug from the
16 leaking. At that point | removed it, cleaned the diaphragm, 16 tractor to the trailer ground had some corrosion so I replaced
17 which is one of the major functions of the QR valve, reinstalled 17 the 4-way plug and also noticed feedback at plug traced to a
18 it, and I'm centain if | said okay then 1 tesied it to make sure 18 light wire in the dash and unplugged the jumpers, recommended
1e that it was no longer leaking, 19 rewiring the switches.
20 Q. Okay. 20 MS. WOELFEL: Okay.
21 Go to the very last page of this exhibit, MDB 327. 21 I'm going to hand you another stack of documents.
22 It's a work order dated February 29, 2016 for 6775. It states 22 (Exhibit 9 was marked.)
23 that you are installing a pressure protection valve for gate air 23 BY MS. WOELFEL:
24 tank? 24 Q. This is all related to equipment number 6778, and 6778
25 A Comect 28 is the rear trailer of the three trailer set that Mr. Palmer was
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Page 106 Page 108
1 pulling when he had his inadvertent dump. 1 A Yes.
2 The first page is MDBMTSUP94. This work order is 2 Q. Without the pin he could?
3 dated July 17th, 2014. Whatis B and L? 3 A Yeah
4 A That is my term for brake and lube, which is 4 MS. WOELFEL: Let's take a quick break. I might be
s inspecting the brakes and lubricating the trailer. s done.
6 Q. Okay. € (A recess was taken.)
7 The next page -- let's actually go to the page after 7 MS. WOELFEL: 1am going to pass the witness at this
8 that, which is MDB maintenance 336. This is work from 8 time. So thank you for your cooperation and I believe Ms.
9 December 1st, 2014 performed looks like by you, Pat. [s that 9 Shreve is going to ask you some questions.
10 your handwriting? 10
1 A. Yes. EXAMINATION
12 Q. And this says you're reattaching the safety pin to the 12 BY MS. SHREVE:
13 Versa valve on this date. Why were you doing that? 13 Q. Mr. Bigby, my name is Paige Shreve and I represent
u A This particular pin is the pin that physically blocks 14 Versa Products Company and | have some questions for you.
15 the valve handle. 15 1 just wanted to verify prior to working at MDB you
16 Q. Is this the pin that Scott Palmer fabricated? 16 had never done any maintenance on belly dump trailers; is that
17 A The pin was not fabricated. It was purchased. The 17 correct?
18 pin is the blocking portion. The fabricated part was attached 18 A That is correct.
192 to the trailer. The pin has to be able to move independently, 19 Q. And prior to your employment at MDB you had never done
20 which we attached cables to it so if it were to slip out of the 20 any maintenance on Versa valves; is that correct?
21 operator's hands it won't fall and be lost or discarded. 21 A Pardon?
22 In this particular instance what 1 did was, in fact, 22 Q. Prior to working at MDB you had not done any
23 drill 2 hole in the mount and attached a cable to the pin so 23 maintenance on Versa valves; is that correct?
24 that it could not be lost, It may have been lost. This 2 A That is correct.
25 particular incident it may have fallen out or Scott was 25 Q. After the -- Strike that.
Page 107 Page 109
1 concemed that it may get lost. 1 Do you know when the July 2013 incident occurred where
2 Q. So the safety pin is the pin that prevents the Versa 2 there was an inadvertent belly dump on the highway in
3 valve from opening? 3 Mr. Koski's truck?
4 A It's the one you physically push into the blocking 4 A What is the question?
5 mechanism. s Q. Do you know what the specific date was in July of 2013
6 Q. And that pin needed -- basically what you were doing 6 of the first intentional belly dump?
7 here was creating a way that it could not fall out, is that what 7 MR. BROWN: Object, misstates. Do you mean
8 you're saying? 8 unintentional?
9 A No, that it could not be lost. 9 MS. SHREVE: Did I say intentional?
10 Q. That it could not be lost. So it could still fall 10 MR. BROWN: That's what ] heard.
1n out, but it would be attached to the trailer? 1 BY MS. SHREVE;
12 A It could be removed and dropped. 12 Q. The unintentional belly dump.
13 Q. Okay. 13 A 1 do not recail the date.
14 Could it come out on its own? L] Q. Do you recall if the trailer, the truck and trailer
15 A In my opinion? 15 was in service the day after the July 2013 unintentional belly
16 Q. Yes. 16 dump?
17 A No. 17 A 1don't recall specifically, but 1 do not believe so.
18 Q. Then why would you need to attach something that would 18 Q. Okay.
1 prevent it from coming out or getting lost if n couldn’t come 19 I'm just trying to narrow down the date with the
20 out on its own? 20 service dates.
21 A As the operator is dumping that has to be removed. If 21 After the July 2013 incident do you recall anyone
22 he is over the grizzly and it slips out of his hand that pin is 22 taking any pictures of the truck or trailer?
23 no longer available to him. 23 A Of the which?
24 Q. And if he lost the pin in the grizzly would he be able 24 Q. The truck and trailer after the July 2013?
25 25 A Any photographs?

to operate that belly dump trailer?
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Page 110 Page 112
1 Q. Yes. L it would be Tracy Shane or Scott Palmer and then they would in
2 A 1do not recall seeing anyone take photographs. 2 tum notify me. However, if I were in the yard they could
3 Q. How about the July 2014 incident on Mr. Koski's truck 3 notify me of an issue.
4 or trailer? 4 Q. Are there any records that are kept that the driver
s A. On that date | do not recall any photographs being 5 hands you if they are in need of something, of any maintenance
€ taken, 6 done to it if they find something wrong during their inspection?
7 Q. Do you recall any within that week of the incident 7 A I'mnot understanding your question,
8 being taken? 8 Q. Is there any paperwork that is filled out by the
9 A Idonot. 8 driver that they give to you if they notice something is wrong
10 Q. Okay. 10 during their inspection?
1 After the July 2013 incident did you notify anybody 1L A There is what is considered a DVIR, which is a driver
12 from Versa valve regarding the unintentional dump? 12 vehicle inspection report.
13 A Tpersonally did not, 13 MS. SHREVE: So I will do this as the next exhibit as
14 Q. How about after the July 2014 incident did you notify 4 10.
15 anyone from Versa valve regarding the unintentional dump? 5 (Exhibit 10 was marked.)
16 A. Noe. 16 BY MS. SHREVE:
17 Q. Earlier you testified that you did an inspection of 17 Q. Is this what you were referring to as an DVIR?
18 the truck and trailer, Mr, Koski's, after the July 2014 18 A That's correct,
19 incident; is that cormrect? 19 Q. And are these DVIRs handed to you or are they given to
20 A That's correct. 20 Tracy and Scott?
21 Q. And if I recall correctly you indicated that you did 21 A They are typically turned into Scott.
22 tests trying to create the short and also checked the air 22z Q. Does he ever pass them along to you?
23 pressure; is that correct, after the July 2014 incident? 23 A He passes along the information necessary to make
2¢ A On the July 20147 24 repairs.
25 Q. Yes. 25 Q. But not the actual document?
Page 111 Page 113
L A [Ibelieve we tried to do some investigation into it, 1 A No.
2 but not as much as we did in the 2013. 2 Q. What type of records do you usually keep when you're
3 Q. The 2013 you did more investigation? 3 doing any maintenance to any of the trucks or trailers?
4 A Yes. 4 A The records that [ maintain?
5 Q. So it's the '13 that you did trying to create the 5 Q. Yes.
6 short and check the air pressure and stuff like that; is that 6 A Just the work order.
7 correct? 7 Q. Do you keep any handwritten notes at all when you're
8 A That is correct. 8 doing any maintenance?
9 Q. Did you ever drive the truck around to try to get the 9 A ldonot.
10 inadvertent dumping to occur or was it all just stationary? i Q. When you installed the Versa valve in July 2013 was
11 A Inthe yard I did. 1 did not take it on the highway. 11 that your first time installing a Versa valve?
12 Q. What about after the July 2014 incident, did you do 12 A 1 would say yes.
13 any driving with it to try to create an inadvertent dump? 13 Q. How did you know how to install it on the trailer?
14 A [did not. 14 A. By watching and duplicating the installation that was
15 Q. Was it your position as in charge of maintenance for 15 already in place and the installation on other trailers. It'sa
16 MDB to ensure that the dnvers properly inspect their vehicles 16 fairly straightforward appearing and simple installation in my
17 each morning? 17 opinion.
18 A No. 18 Q. So you looked at the one that was already installed
19 Q. Who is responsible for that? 19 and then looked at other trailers to sec how it was installed
20 A I'would make an assumption it would be the general 20 and that is how you based your installation; is that correct?
21 manager, Tracy Shane at that time. 21 A Yes.
22 Q. And if a driver does do an inspection and they notice 22 Q. Would you say you're a qualified and knowledgeable
23 something wrong, do they come and notify you or do they notify 23 person and understand how the Versa valve product should be
2 somebody else? 24 installed and operated?
25 A Typically they are supposed to notify either -- well, 25 A ['would say [ was, yes.
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Page 114 Page 116
1 Q. And why do you believe that you have that - you're a 1 Q. Okay.
2 qualified, knowledgeable person about how the Versa valve 2 Does MDB require you to have any special license or
3 products are instalied and operated? 3 certificates in order to perform the maintenance on their trucks
4 A It's a general knowledge of mounting pneumatic 4 or trailers?
5 plumbing, duplicating what has been installed in the factory, 5 A No.
6 some wires and air line and bolts. 1 didn't find it to be 100 6 Q. Does MDB require you to do any sort of retraining or
? complicated. 7 updated training each year to perform maintenance on their
8 Q. Correct me if I'm wrong, earlier you testified that 8 trucks and trailers?
9 you did not look at any paperwork regarding installation of the 9 A No.
10 Versa valve; is that correct? 10 Q. Earlier | believe you testified that you have your
11 A That is correct. i theory of atmospheric conditions in the area that could cause
12 Q. Have you ever looked at any paperwork regarding how to 12 the inad vertent dump, is that correct?
13 operate the Versa valve? 13 A I'm sorry, you had your -
14 A 1have not. 14 Q. T'msorry.
15 Q. Okay. 15 If I recall correctly earlier you testified that you
16 When you do your typical inspections, 1 believe you 16 have a theory of atmospheric conditions in the area that could
17 said it occurs weekly or every other week, something like that, 17 have caused an inadvertent dump,; is that correct?
18 do you ever test the Versa valve during that inspection? 18 A That is correct,
19 A 1don't typically test its function, no. 19 Q. And ! believe you testified that there is -- there
20 Q. Have you ever had to — prior to working at MDB have 20 could be a static charge that could energize the magnetic coil
21 you ever rewired trailers before? 21 of the valve, am I correct in what you stated earlier?
22 A Yes, [ have, 22 A That sounds to be correct.
23 Q. Is the rewiring of the trailers that you performed the 23 Q. So would that charge go 1o the electrical wiring that
24 same type of rewiring on the belly dumps that you performed? 24 would be connected to the Versa valve, am | correctly
25 A The same type of wiring? 25 understanding what you mean?
Page 1195 Page 117
Q. Do you rewire the trailer of a belly dump the same way ' A That would be an assumption, but not having enough
2 you would rewire the other trailers that you performed rewiring 2 equipment to test the coil T don't know where it could
3 on? 3 potentially enter to the coil to allow it to open the valve.
4 A Yes, except for the exception there weren't any Versa ¢ Q. Is there another way electricity can enter into the
5 valves on those trailers, yes, standard wiring procedure. 5 coil other than through electrical wires?
6 Q. And did someone teach you how to do that rewiring? 6 MR. BROWN: Objection to the extent it calls for
7 A Pardon? 7 speculation, beyond his knowiedge.
8 Q. Did someone teach you how to do the rewiring of the 8 BY MS. SHREVE:
9 trailer to the Versa valve? 9 Q. That you're aware of?
10 A Yes, over the years I've had journcyman mechanics e A Can you charge your cell phone on one of those pags?
n while | was an apprentice, yes. 11 Yes
iz Q. Earlier | believe you testified that you made the 12 Q. Thank you.
13 decision to purchase the Versa valve in July of 2013; is that 13 So the valve, you believe, can get electricity without
14 correct? 14 going through the electrical wires then; is that corvect?
15 A That is correct. 15 A Thatis a potential,
16 Q. Is there a reason why you decided to purchase the 16 Q. Okay.
17 Versa valve from Engs? 17 Earlier you testified when we were talking about the
18 A Main reason we had an account there and it was known 18 maintenance records, you said sometimes the dates on the
19 that they had the Versa valves in stock. 1s maintenance records are not always the date that you receive —
20 Q. Did you ask anyone at Engs about any other valve to be 20 it's brought to someone's attention that it needs work done; is
2t used on the trailer other than the Versa valve you purchased? 21 that correct?
22 A ldidnot. 22 A That is correct.
23 Q. s there a reason why you did not? 23 Q. What is the typical time frame between when someone is
24 A Mainly is that was as built and that was the valve 2 informed that a truck or trailer needs repair and then the work
25 that the manufacturer chose to install. 25 order is performed?
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Page 118 Page 120
A. To my knowledge it's typically within & day. 1 was no air on the other side of the accumulator to close the
2 Q. Okay. 2 valve. When we replaced the valve everything functioned
3 During your 2013 inspection of the subject truck and 3 properly with no other repair.
¢ trailer, 6775, did you find any defect with the Versa valve? 4 Q. So there was air in the accumulator -- there was air
5 A No, I did not. 5 in the Versa valve, but just when you hit the accumulator it
6 Q. How about for your inspection during July 2014 afier 6 didn't -
7 the subject incident, did you find any defect with the Versa 7 A There was air in the system that should have allowed
8 valve on trailer 6775? 8 the valve to operate properly and the valve did not.
9 A 1did not. 2 Q. Anddid you try to open it and it wouldn't open?
10 Q. After the July 2013 incident on trailer 6775 did you 1o A We could physically operate the valve, but it wasn't
11 find that there was any design defect with the Versa valve? 11 closing with the switch.
12 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation, speculation, 12 Q. So it worked when you were physically doing it, just
13 THE WITNESS: To my knowledge, no. 13 not with the switch then; is that correct?
1 BY MS. SHREVE: 14 A Correct.
15 Q. And then the same again for after the July 2014 s Q. Okay.
i€ incident on trailer 6775 did you discover any design defects 16 If you can go to Exhibit 3, please. I'm going to go
17 with the Versa valve? 17 to MDB 273, please. This one looks like the work order was for
18 MR. BROWN: Same objections. 18 12/2/2015 on equipment number 5694 and here you replaced the
19 THE WITNESS: To my knowledge, no. 19 4-way plug, you pulled out the wires and reattached wires and
20 BY MS. SHREVE: 20 tested okay.
21 Q. If you will go to Exhibit Number 2, please. I'm going 21 Can you explain to me what you did here?
22 sk that you tum to MDBMAINT000321. The work order date should 22 A Yes, the wires on the 4-way plug from the tractor
23 be December Ist, 2014. Do you see that? 23 apparently to the trailer had been pulled out of the back of the
24 A That's correct. 24 plug for whatever reason and 1 replaced the plug and reattached
25 Q. We were discussing this carlier and it says an 25 the wires and tested it.
Page 119 Page 121
1 accumulator on the Versa valve is not functioning so you 1 Q. Does that happen often that the wires for the 4-way
2 replaced the Versa valve; correct? 2 plug can be pulled out?
3 A. That is correct. 3 A Pardon?
4 Q. You also indicated that you did not test the 4 Q. Does that happen often that the wires on the 4-way
5 accumulator, did I understand your testimony earlier? s plug can be pulled out?
€ A 1didn't have a way of testing the accumulator. When 6 A Not often, but it can be done.
7 I reached the conclusion that it potentially was the accumulator 7 Q. So inthose instances you just will reattach the wires
8 that's when the decision to replace the valve was made. 8 or fix the wires if there is any damage to it?
2 Q. Why did you come to that assumption that it was the 2 A Pardon?
e accumnulator? i Q. So in those instances you will just reattach the wires
1 A By the air, the activation and the path of the air and 1 to the 4-way plug or fix them if for some reason the wires are
12 checking to make sure that we had current running to our coil at 12 damaged?
13 that point in time it reached the position of the Versa valve as 13 A Correct.
14 to not be functioning properly. When [ stated it was possibly 14 Q. I'm going to go to Exhibit 5. Actually I apologize,
15 the accumulator typically that seems to be the most common issue 15 let's go to Exhibit 6. If you can go to MDBMAINT000240.
16 is the accumulator doesn't hold air and when the valve is 16 This is dated 6/30/2014 and earlier you testified it
17 commanded open there is no air to open the valve. 17 was your handwriting and it said reattached Versa valve. 1
18 Q. So you had trouble pushing the accumulator in? 8 believe earlier you testified you believed it was for a
19 A Pardon? 19 retightening of the vatve on the trailer; is that correct?
20 Q. Didyou have trouble with the accumulator pushing it 20 A That is right, yes.
21 in or did you have trouble with the valve not having air in it? 21 Q. When you were just retightening something do you
22 I'm just trying to understand. 22 usually say tightened or do you say you reattached something?
23 A There was air to the valve. It just wasn't 23 MR BROWN: Objection, argumentative.
24 functioning. It wasn't closing when you took the electricity 24 THE WITNESS: Perhaps I would say tighten.
25 away from it. It wasn't closing because my opinion was there 25 1/
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Page 122

BY MS. SHREVE:
Q. So it's possible, then, something could have occurred
that the Versa valve you had to actually reattach it to the

Page 124

CERTIFICATE OF DEPONENT

PAGE LINE CHANGE

4 trailer?
s A 1suppose that's possible, but 1 don't recall that. | s
6 don't recall a Versa valve coming loose completely from the )
T trailer. ’
8 Q. Could there have been another reason other than it
¢ coming loose that you would reattach it, like you were 1:
10 inspecting it or cleaning it or something like that? N
1 A Potentially it may have been removed by someone cise 2
12 and someone asked me to reattach it. That's possible. o
13 Q. Okay. »
14 Let me just look over my notes. 1 may be done. ' veeeee
15 Were you aware of any specifications that Versa 16
16 required regarding the installation of the product? . 1. PATRICK BIGBY, deponent hecein, do hereby certfy and
1 A No 18 declare under penalty of perjury the within and foregoing
1 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 18 transcription to be my deposition in said action; that | have
e BY MS. SHREVE: 20 read, corrected and do hereby affix my signature to said
20 Q. If you were not aware of the specifications did you 2 deposition.
21 contact them to ask them about them? 22
22 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 23
23 THE WITNESS: 1did not. PATRICK BIGBY, Deponent
24 BY MS. SHREVE: 24
25 Q. Ifa truck and trailer are disconnected for 25
Page 123 Page 125
i maintenance or repatrs is it your responsibility to check the 1
2 connections going from the truck to the trailers when they are 2 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
3 reattached? 3 1, JANET MENGES, Centified Court Reporter, State of
4 A Yes, if I'm the one that reconnects them, yes 4 Nevada, do hereby certify:
5 Q. If you're not the one reconnecting them whose ® That I reported the deposition of PATRICK BIGBY,
6 responsibitity is that? € commencing of Monday, April 10,2017, at 11:30 am
? A It would be the person making the coupling and the end 7 That prior to being deposed, the witness was duly sworn by me to
8 result would be the end driver. 8 testify to the truth. That | thereafter transcribed my s.aid
E Q. So if you had to do maintenance and you reattached s shonh@ A"Ot“ into typewriting and that the type?wr‘men
10 them you would check the electricity going from the truck to the 1 transcript is a complete, true gnd accurate !anlon of my
1 trailer? 1 said shorthand notes. 'That prior tp the conclusion of the
12 A Correct, on turn signals and such. ii 3‘2::::8:;\; reading and signing was requested by the
13 Q. Would you check it for the Versa valve? 14 1 further certify th-aI 1 am not a relative or employee of
15 A l\;SOtSa:g:/, r.\‘o, think that i ly all Th So 15 counsel of any of the parties, nor a relative or employee of the
. ’ ; E: 1think that is actually a ave. te parties involved in said action, nor a person financially
ij 1 will pass the witness. 17 interested in the action.
Anyone on the phane? 18 In witness whereof, I hereunto subscribe my name at Reno,
18 MS. QUIGLEY: I don't have any questions. 19 Nevada, this 20th day of April, 2017,
19 MR. BUNDICK: Idon't have any questions either. 20
20 MS. WOELFEL: [ don't have any follow-up questions. 21
21 So I think that your deposition will conclude and thank you JANET MENGES, CCR #206
22 so much for your time. 22

(The deposition concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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- Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES 1 INDEX
2 For the Plaintiff: 2 EXAMIMATIOR PAGE
(Appearing telephonically) 3
3 SCOT? ALEN PALNER 5
BRADLEY, DRENDEL & JEANNEY 4
4 BY: SARAH MARIE QUIGLEY, ESQ. EXAMIHATION BY MS. SHREVE 5
6900 S. McCarran Blvd, Ste., 2000 ' $
5 Reno, Nevads 89509 » EXAMINATION BY MS. ROELFEL 138
775-335-9999
é Fax 775-335-9993 | Z NUMBER nxgﬁ:ggu PAGE
Sarahquigley@bdilaw.com F 9
7
. 563 1
8 For MDB TRUCKING, LLC, & DANIEL KOSKI: 10 EXHIBIT 8 Work orders, Equipment No. 5633
) THORNDAL, ARMSTRONG, DELK, BALKENBUSH & EISINGER EXHIBIT O Work orders, Equipment ¥o. 6777 s
BY: PBRIAN M, BROWN, ESQ. 1
10 AND THIERRY BARKLEY, ESQ. (a.m. session) EXHIBIT 10 Work orders, Equipment Mo, €778 14
6580 5. McCarran Blvd., Suite B 12
11 Reno, Nevada 89508-6112 EXHIBIT i1 Invoice, ENGS Motor Truck Co. 53
775-786~2882 13
12 Fax 775-786-8004 EXHIBIT 12 Harnings/Versa Products 62
Beb@thorndal .com 14
13 BXHIBIT 13 Invoice, Weatern Mevada Transport €7
4 For RMC LRMAR HOLDINGS, INC.: 15
MCDONALD CARANO WILSON LLP EXHIBIT 14 Equipment lease 68
BY: JESSICA L. WOELFEL, ESQ. 16
16 100 W, Liberty Street, Tenth Floor EXHIBIT 15 SMS inspection reports EE
Reno, Nevada 89501 1 .
17 775-788-2000 " EXHIBIT 16 Koski employment file 105
Fax 77-7B8-2020 .
18 Jwoelfel@ncwlav.con " EXHMIBIT 17 driver's vehicle inspection reports 132
19 For VERSA PRODUCTS CCMPANY, INC.:
20 LEWIS, BRISBOIS, BISGARRD & SMITH, LLP " EXHIBIT 18 é::‘t’:xz:tf::mi“d"“' 136
BY: PAIGE S. SHREVE, ESQ. 1 BXHIBIT 19  Work orders, Equipment 6777, MDB 388 178
21 6385 South Rainbow Blvd., Sulte 600 2 308, g00 T rnens BT ’
Las Vegas, Nevada 89118 22
22 702-858-3383 EXHIBIT 20 Work orders, Equipment Ho. 6775 185
Fax 702-893-3789 23
23 paige.Shreve@lewisbrisbois.com 24 Note: Original Bxhibits retnined in binder at Sunshine Litigation
2 Services.
285 25
Page 3 Page 5
1 For THE MODERN GROUP AND DRAGON ESP, LTD.: 1 BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday, March 7, 2017, at the hour
, (Appearing telephonically) 2 of 9:45 a.;m. of said day, at the offices of McDonald Carano
GREENBERG TRAURIG, LLP 3 Wilsen, 100 ¥, Liberty St., 10th Floor, Reno, Nevada, before me,
3 BY: JACOB D. BUNDICK, ESQ. 4 CONSTANCE S. EISENBERG, a Nevada Certified Court Reporter,
3373 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 400 N 5 personally appeared SCOTT ALEN PAIMER, who was by me previously
é Las vegas, Nevada 89169 6 duly sworn, and was examined as a witness in said cause
702-792-9002 ] !
5 Bundickj@gtlaw.com olo
6 8
7 Also present: 9 SCOOTT ALEN PAIMER
8 DANIEL KOSKI 10 called as a witness, having been previously
(a.m. session) s
s n duly sworn, testified as follows:
BILL CARTER 12
10 13 MS, SHREVE: We can go on the record.
1 U Good morning, Mr. Palrmer,
12
13 15 THE WITNESS: Good morning.
14 16 MS. SHREVE: Do you understand you are still under cath
15 17 today?
16 18 THE WITNESS: Yes.
7
5 19
19 20 EXPMINATION
20 21 BY MS, SHREVE:
2 2 Q@ Testerdsy, I govo you som» genernl rules of 2
Z 23 deposition. Do yom r—= thocs rpules?
24 24 A Yes.
b Q Do you need g8 to repeat theos rules or 6o Gwr then
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Page 6
again?

A Mo

MS. SHREVE: Okay. Perfect.

So we will begin with the next exhibit, which is
Exhibit 8. And this will be the work orders for Equipment Number
5693, which will be the — I quess we're labeling it the sand
truck, so which would be your truck that you drove that day,

THE WITNESS: Okay.

(Exhibit 8 marked for identificatim.)
BY MS. SHREVE:

Q@ % we'll do the sams thing, kied of vhnt vo did
yesterdsy with theso wock orders. Plesss just state the date of
the vock ordse cad vhat wog dons with this work oxder.

A Oky. The date is August Sth, 2014, The work order is
for Truck 5693,

And it's troubleshoot intermittent first trailer gate
function, found wire not secured, replaced plug with — ch,
Fhillips plug,

So the mechanic, Pat, put a new four—~ay plug on the end
of the cord on the tractor.

Q  Bimiler to the fourway plugs that wo discussed
Yestecday?

A Urhuh, exactly the same,

0 6o then we'll go to the next cne, which is MBEST 62.
Czn you please tall 55 the ¢igs and what this work oxder is for.

W O 1 O W e L N s
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Page 7
A The date is March 23rd, 2015, for Truck 5693 again.
Troubleshoot, gate not working with switch and also adjust clutch.

Gates were working when checked cut, Four-way plug fram
tractor to trailer ground had some corrosin. Replace four-way
plug.

Also noticed feedback at plug, traced to light wiring in
dash, Unplugged jurpers, recommend reiring switches. He put a
new four-way plug and also adjusted the clutch.

0 Tat is meant by noticed fesdbeck at plug, traced to
light wiring at dash?

A I believe on that particular truck - actually, I'mnot
sure.

I think that particular truck had lights in the dash
that told you whether the switch is on or off, and it might have
been same sort of a feedback between the light and the plug.

0 hod vhen you auy “the switch 1o en o off," vhat switch
are yu spacifically talking shout?

A Okay. One of the dump switches for ane of the trailers,
whether it be the first, the second or the third trailer,

Q0 Oy, And does this indicate whether — it saps
recomended reviring switches. Doos it indicats whether there was
@ reviring of switches?

A It does not indicate that on this particular work order.

Q ¥hen you recommnd rewiving switches, does it usmlly
happen after or — no, I guees.

WO - o U e W PO

—
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Page 8B

A It would — it should, yes. Did it happen? I'mnot
sure.

Q Gy, We'll go to the nest wark order, which is
MOBMTSUP 68. Can you pleass tell za the date on this work coder
ard what occurred.

A The date of the work order is May 18th, 2015, for
Truck 5693. It says replace WR sensor cormector and add coolant.

Q  hod what is the WA sensor connector?

A I actually remesber this particular event because I'm
the one that wrote it up.

It would have been — the truck would have came with a
"check engine” light cn. We would have hooked the computer to it.
It would have gave us a code, I think it's 95, which indicates the
variable valve actuator sensor has a high or low voltage.

And Pat determined that it was the comector at the end
of the wire going into the sensor.

This is on the engine.

Q Guy.

A This is on the valve train intemal to the engine under
the valve cover,

Q Cksy. Pexfect. Let's go to the nemt ozder, which is
HBEETe 3. Con you plesse tell me the date conpletsd on this
work ovder sod what ocourred.

A This is on November 2%th, 2015; Truck 5693. And I did
this work order. And I replaced the seven-way plug at the trailer

Page 9
end of the seven-way cord.
Q Okay. Agin, this is —
A Just another seven-way.
Q@ -~ thy cowin~oy plug that we've sesn in previcusly in
othor ol eadoxg?
R Yes,

M5, SHREVE: All right. We will go on to the next

exhibit, which will be Exhibit 9,
(Exhibit 9 marked for identification.)

BY MS SHREVE:

Q Aod thig is in regend to Equipsent 6777, which wuld b
the second trailer en the sand truck that w'ze calling it —

R That is correct.

@ — that you were driving that dey.

R That is correct.

Okay. This is February 20th, 2014; Trailer 6777,
Troubleshoot air loss.

They found the rear gate cylinder on this trailer — the
gate — meaning the cylinder that opens wp the gates ~ leaking,
bypassing air at the (R valve.

He disassembled the cylinder, put a packing kit in it,
reinstalled the cylinder and tested it, and it cured the air leak.

Q Chay. W will go on to the next ors, if you cen tell me
tha date completed en this ona and vhat oscarred, pleass.
A This is on Rpril 16th, 2014; Trailer 6777, Versa valve
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Page 10
handle loose, and air spring action on lever not working

correctly.

Remove Versa valve, dissemble, found acommlator rubber
bad. Swapped accumulator with one from another valve, Clean the
inside of valve and accumlator, oil with air tool and reassemble.
Also adjust handle not to tighten, Test. All okay.

@ Okay. On this ome, it szye that you pesowed aod
dizassenbled the Veres walve, correct?

A Cor==~,

Q@ Med it eays you smpped the scommlator with another
walve?

The rubber inside the accumalator.

0 Chxy. Sud do you know which wolve you mritched it out
with?

A Mo

@ Do you kemp seooeds of vhich ons you would have switched
it out with?

A No, It would have been a valve that would have been
removed. It's probably a used valve that had been sitting around
in the shop, might not have even been our valve,

@ WVould it bawe bt & Veres valwe?

A (Oh, absolutely, yesh.

0 ¥ you take valwes, Veom walwes, oot of your — oot
of a trailer, what do you éo with thes? Do you kesp them, or do
you thror the say?

Page 12

0 Do you zecell seaing any other Vezsa valve aromd othar
than the cne that was taken off of 6775 from the — arowmd
Jogast 20137

A Do I remenber seeing any other valves arouwnd in our
shap?

@ Tas, thot conld bave possibly been one that you wonld
bavo weed,

A Idon'trecall. I don't think so.

@ Cumy. Mlxight. I'mguing togo to the esxt one, I'm
going to come back 1nter and ask some more oo thet oss, but I'Ml
move to the next work oxder, which is MBADT 000321.

Can you tall me the date completed on this one end what
ooaurred,

A December 1st, 2014; Equipment Muber 6777 again.
Troubleshoot gates not closing with switch, Found acoumilator
Versa valve not functioning. Replaced Versa valve.

Okay. There's another ane I must not have remembered.

0 8o would this bo the sams Versa valve that wes in tha
pravions work order we just spoke about, the MBI 3157

A No, this would be the new Versa valve.

Q@ & was tho Varsa walve, then, replaced — becanss -
sorry to go back — otrilkn that.

To 9o back to the previous ane, MOEMADR 315, it doss
not appear that you actmlly rplaced the Versa valve. It
appoars, from my understanding, thet you did scme meintenanco on

Page 11
A Well, we haven't had too meny that we've taken off. In

fact, this is actually contrary to what I said yesterday where we
don't repair them. Apparently, I forgot about this.

This is actually — this accmmlator valve is actually
attached to the side of the Versa valve. 5o I quess I didn't
think about it as being actually taking a Versa valve apart.

But I quess it would be considered a part of the Versa
valve. It's not part of the main spool of the Versa valve, in
other words.

@  Eov sany Versa valwes — you just testified that you
haven't taksn wany off. How meny would you say you've taken off
of trailers at MDB?

A Other than the two that we took off for —

0 Ye3, other then the b that you took off — that the
expextn took off for testing of the valve.

R Yes, other than those, I don't think we took off more
than ane or two.

Q  Could you lmow which trailer you would have taken those
wlves off of?

A T would say the only ane that I know for sure of, since
my time there, was the one taken off of 6775 and replaced with a
new valve in October — October — I think it was August of 2013,
that first incident.

In fact, that might be the valve that T took the
accumulator nubber out of, because we saved that valve.

2

24
2%

Page 13
it; is that correct?

A That {s oo Tec, changed the rubber in the accumilator
portion of the valve.

Q 8 thea on the MERADT 321, before you replaced the
Yersz valve = io that the same Verss valve —

A Ch, yes, this — I'msorry. Yes. T would imagire that
it probably still had a problem with it not — not sealing
correctly. So we just put a new Versa valve on it at that time,

@ Jod it lochr lilo thic ordar was — I know it says it
wes performed by Bot, kot it wag, I guess, msybe requested by you;
is that correct?

A Yes.

@ Do you recoll how ywou becee smre of this issue?

A I would have become aware of it fram the driver or I
might have been the driver. I would have to go back and look at
the records to see who was driving the truck right before this
date.

That, either way, whether it was myself or another
driver, a driver would have said the gates are opening with the
switch, but they are not closing with the switch, which,
generally, means the apcumilator is not holding air.

So seeing as how we already tried to fix it once, we
just — I told Pat just replace it, put a new valve on it.

MS. SHREVE: Okay. All right. And I'm probably going
to come back to these when I have additional questions, but for
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now, we'll just contimie dova the work order.
(Exhibit 10 marked for identification.)
BY MS SHREVE:

0 Al right. 8o wo're now going to go to Bxhibit 10,
vhich is Bquipment Ewaber 6778, which would be the trailer that
you ware driving on the dsy of the subject incident thst had sand
in it vhich epilled on the highumy.

Ig that correct?

A Yes.

Q % the first one is MOBMISUP 94. Can you plesse tell me
the date and explain what "B & L" mesms on your work cxders.

A July I7th, 2013, is the date of the work order. And
it's for Equipment Number 6778 performed by Pat.

And as you can see, the baxes “inspect® and "lube” are
checked, And he writes B § L, which is a synonym for inspection,
but he puts brake and lube,

Essentially, he's inspecting the b akes and lubing it,
same thing,

Q  Pexfect.

Wa'll go to the nemt one, MDBMESDR 99. Can you pleass
tell ea the completsd date end what oocuered on this doy.

A Okay. The date is October 25th, 2013; again,

Trajler 6778, Replaced four-way plugs, replace four-way plugs and
sockets on trailers.

Q Oy, Aguin, this is the smmo four-wey plugs —

W 0 -3 o N oan W R
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Page 16

R The bottam of the gates, the gates that open up to dump
the load.

Q Ckey. Ckay. Bod that's the last ome for that eshibit.

That's all the saintensnce recoedy for right now. I'm
going to switch gears & little bit.

Jad if T a correct, there wieo thre wmintentional
dopings that cocurred einoce youo — or, vhile at MB that you are
amre of.

B Yes. One happened about a week before I came to work
there and two happened while I was there.

Q Ckay. Aod for emch of then, did you bewe to £ill out —
doss DB reguire eny kind of & repoct to by filled oot choat o
dumping of these trailers?

No.

Do you have to —

Are you talking about an internal report?
Yea,

Yo,

Do you hawe to £ill out an exterval report?
Not that I jmow of.

Q Do you notify the client a3 to, I guesy, why their lcad
didn't arrive cn timo?

A Oh, absolutely.

Q CGeay. And hor do you notify thet?

A ¥%ell, all these happened when Tracy Shane was

o D O

Page 15
Yes.

- that we talksd sboat?
Yes.
let's go to the next one, MIBADE (00335, Caa you
please m the completed dete on this one and what occorred.

A December lst, 2014; Trailer 6778, And Pat reattached
the safety pin to Versa valve.

This would have been samething that I would have told
him, Basically, the safety pin that locks the handle on the Versa
valve from opening, there's a safety wire that attaches it to the
trailer that keeps — 80 you don't lose it when you remove it, was
broken,

L= 2~ I ]

So he just put a new safety cable on there so we don't
lose the pin.

Q Chzy. 8o can we go to the next ona, chich is
MIERGEEUR 107, ZBed cen you tell me the date an thin one and what
ooourred, pleass.

A Octcber 23rd, 2015; Trailer 6778. Reseal front gate
cylinder. Remove cylinder, replace barrel and seals, reinstall
and tested okay.

So we moved the front gate cylinder off of the gates,
disassembled it, but a new barrel on or two, put a new seal kit in
and reassesbled.

Q Okxy. Vaen yoo szy “the gates,” what gate are you
specifionlly talking sbout?

W @M - o U @ W N
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dispatching, He would have just called and told them. I think we

talked about that yesterday. One of the tags was changed then.

Q 8o it would be typical to change the tag if there wes &
dmp —

A Yes.

Q - to reflect —

A Yes,

Q0 Whan the incideat cocezred in July 2013, did yoo — did
M08 notify enyooe fram Verss sbout the incident thet oocurred?

A Mot to my knowledge, no.

Q  Hov sbont the subjsct incident an July 7th, did they
rotify ~— did M8 notify snyone from Versa welve in regands to the
gravel truk or trailer?

A No, I do not believe so.

0 Fnd then the esma question —

MR, BRORN: You are talking about, obvicusly, at the
time that it occurred?

MS. SHREVE: At the time that it occurred, yes.
(bviously, they now are aware, but at the time that it occurred.

THE WITNESS: No I don't think so.
BY MS SHREVE:

Q  Other than this lammuit, bas M8 potificd — of to
incident that cocurred on July 7th, 20147

A I do not believe so.

Q The same guestion is going to be, again, foo the eand
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mmatymmddﬁngmﬁn&yofﬁmijtmdd;t,
did anyons from OB, at the tize of the incident or right after
the incident, notify Verse of what oconrred?

A No, I do not believe so.

Q  And then other then this lewpuit, did they — did MB
ootify Verss of vhat ocomered?

A No, I do not believe so.

I do know that I have personally called Versa and tried
to get ahold of somebody to talk to me about it, and they always
act like they don't know anything, they have never heard of this
happening before. So

@ 2nd vhen you gay you personally called, &s en employes
of MIB?

2 Oh yeah, Yes.

Q Gy,

A But not specifically to any of these specific - I
didn't — didn't notice them about these specific incidences.

Q Gy, So csn you tell oo virn you called,
spprozimately?

4 Idm't recall.

1 do remember calling Versa and saying I would like to
talk to somebody about this, and they put me in touch with
somebody.  And they said, yeah, we never heard of this happening
before.

So ~— and I know other pecple have called them, and

Page 20

Q  What are the other cospenies?

B Capurro Trucking, Lakeside Specialized Transportation.
I'm not sure if Harco Company — actually, it's Harco Trucking
nov, I'mnot sure if they have,

I'm trying to think of the other companies.
I can't think of them off the top of my head.

Q  2od bow do you bewo kmoledg of gates eponieg ot othor
oompanies?

B Neus travels fast. And you can still drive out on the
highways and see all the loads sitting on the side of the higisay.
So it's not hard to imagine.

One of them actually happened — one of Lakeside's loads
they lost actually happened when they were hauling for us.

Q0  And vhas did that ocoux?

34 That would have been early 2013, I'm assuming. I'm
just guessing at that.

Q And did you bave eny comvezentions with enyooe foon
thess compsnies about ths openings of the truck — or trallex?

A I've spoken to people at these companies about it, yes,
not in an official menner, but —

Q Do you recall vho you gpoke with specifically in popaeds
to thass incidents?

A Mo

Q Do yo reenll ehat they onid choot tho incideats thot
occurred?

Page 19
pretty mch — I just kind of fiqure we're on our own in that
area.

Q@ Do you -~ did thio phony call bsgpon bofero the
Bugust 2013 incidsnt?

A Mo

Q  Did this phone call heppen bofora tho July 7th, 2004,
incident?
Pogsibly, I don't know.
Bow meny times did you call Vozon?
Probably just ance.
Okay, Bnd do yowo recall vho you cpohe with?
No.
Do you recall whet you cpecifically said to thes?
Basically, that we've had — that the industry out here
have had a lot of gates opening, and if they — if they lnow
anything about anything that they can do to help us with it.

And they responded that they didn't really know anything

about it.

Q Gy, You just testified that pu bed o — yoo've had 2
lot of gates cpeaing. Are you smure of other gates opening?

A When I say we've had a lot of gates opening, I'm saying
in this area, other carpanies.

0 Aro you mamre of othar cospanies that bave bad gates
cpening?

A Rbsolutely.

D D O 3 O 3
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R The only — the conwersation would have been what are

you guys doing about solving the problem, And everybody,
basically, is in the same position we are where nobody knew what
to do. That was the conversation.

Q  Did enybody — did snyone indicate &s to what they
beliove caused the durping?

A They did not indicate what caused it. They only
indicated nobody knows what's causing it.

0 D4 they indicate whather they investigated it?

2 No. Oh — o, I'msure they did, but they did not
indicate that.

Q & your conversation that wou bed when you called
somchody at Vezen, did they direct you to contact angbody elss?

3 No. 1 talked to somebody. I got the impression they --
my advice that I got fram pecple, when I said I was going to call
them, they said you are not going to get an answer from them, And
that was pretty mch how I felt when I talked to them.

md do you mov who told you that you wonldn't got an
answer fro Yorsa?

3 Oh, people in the industry, like - Pat, like, works
with them, They are not going to say anything.

A after talking to them, I mean, what are they going
to say, yeah, we have a problem with these valves, sure, we know
all about it. I mean, what are they going to say?

You know, without — it was a somewhat informal
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1 conversation,
0 & Pat Bighy is ope of the pecple --
A Untwh.
Q@ - that said that to you?
MR. BROM: Say "yes” or "no," please.
BY MS. SHREVE:
Q  Yesh, can you —
A O
MR. BROEN: Say "yes” or "no.”
THE WITNESS: Ch. Yes.
11 BY MS. SHREVE:
2 0  hnd do you know anybody — cen you recall any other
13 pseas?
14
15

W B w1 W R

oy
(=1

No.

8o Pat Bigby is the only one you recall saying that?
Yes, that I recall,

Do you know if Pat Bigby called Varsa?

18 No, I don't believe so,

19 Did he give you any explanation as to why he bolieved
20 that, I qousss, Versa wouldn't give you sny informmtion?

21 A T believe the point he was trying to get across is they

16
Y}

- -

W oo -~ N S W R

REBeELsaEDRES

Page 24
they just as soon don't want to say anything, I mean, I dn't

think they were hiding anything, but they just —
Q0 Wt gave yoo the impression that they — or ectuslly,
strike that.

¥at do you meen by they didn't went to say snything?

A T just got the impression after talking to them — I
mean, I didn't push it that hard. I just tried to talk to
samebody about seeing if T could get some information from
sanehody about if they have anybody looking into this or if they
had any problems in the country where they can give me some
insight on what to do.

And they pretty much didn't offer vp any help. They
didn't seem that they were — maybe the quy I talked to just
didn't really know that they were having problems or if there was
a problem,

But I left it at that, I didn't really push it that
hard, because at that particular time, I still don't — we still
didn't know what was causing this.

0 Do you kmow what phone nmber you called from Versa?

A Ch, I donot remember. I probably looked it up on
Google.

A I'm speculating, meybe lLakeside or Capurro called them.

hard time exactly recalling.

22 are not going to admit to anything. 2 @ Do you kooy chich drporteent you would heve called?

2 Q  Did be indicete why be felt that way? 2 A Yo

A A No. A 0 Did you specifimlly tell them ebout any of the

2% Comzon sense, I would imagine. 25 incidents that you — that MO8 hed experienced?

S Page 23 Page 25
1 Q  Bat to your knowladga, he didn't call Varse himsalf? A Yo

2 A Idn't think he did, no. 0 bid you ook than in regards o what type of valve shoold
3 Q  Ave you sawere of anybody that did call Versa besides by ueed on & teniler?

4 yoursalf? A No. This vas a cowple of years ago, so I'm having a

5

6

I'm not sure,
I have 1o idea if they did.

8 Q  Eo no one gpacifically told you that they reached ont to
§ Versa sbout —
10 A That's correct.

u Q0  Did you send Verss Valwe 2 lettsr or any othee
12 oommmication other than that cne phore cell?

13 R Mo,
14 Q Ckay, Aad you don't recall the day, correct, that you
15 called Veres?
16 A Ko

17 Q  hod you don't reckll vho you spoke with from Versa?
18 R Mo

19 0 I'msorzy, what ex=ctly -- vhat specificelly do you
20 remmbor that Vareo coid to you when you called thex?

21 R I don't remember exactly. All I know is, it wes

22 saweshat of an informal call. I thought I would give it a shot,
23 call and see if T could talk to samebody, if anybody Jnows

24 anything about this.

25 And I — I pretty mch got the impression that they —

WO ~d o U et B e
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But I do know I was going through a process of trying to
investigate this, and I do remember calling them. That's all —
basically, that's all I remembexr. And I remember the phone call
that just really didn't get me any information.

Q Chay. 2od woo sald you went throogh a process of
investigatiny this. What was the procses you went throogh?

A Oh, I did some Intemet searches to see if I could find
any other instances around the comntry of gates opening, and I
didn't really -- I didn't really find anything.

That didn't really lead to any — any - any insight
into what was going an.

Q@ Ckay. Other thon Internat ssarches, what elss did you

do to invastigate?
A T talked to same of the other peaple.
0 2nd do you recall —
A That was probably later in 2015 that I did that.
0  Teat you did the investigating into it?
B Yes.
Q Coy.
R 1domn't remember what day — what time it was, actually,
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0 CQuy. ZAodvhn you ceid wu eulled pegple, do you
~ewenee vhe you culled?

Page 28
Q 80 oo one gpecifically told you with certainty thet that
trailer bad -~ that tho txndlecn bed Veren walves on them, the

1 1
2 2
3 A Yo 3 omes that had —
4 0 Vould they bowo betn other treckiey compenies? 4 R Idm't recall that, but I knew they were all Ranco
5 A Yes, campetitors. 5 trailers and I'm pretty sure all Ranco trailers have Versa valves.
) Q 8o other than the Intarnet searching and meking phone 6 Q@ Eow do you know they were Renco trailers?
7 calls to the competitors, did you do anything else in 7 A Just because that's the type of trailers that these
8 imvestigating? 8 companies operate.
9 A No, I do not believe so. S @ I Ranwo the caly type of trailer that —
10 Pretty much after the 2014 incident, we pretty mich gave |10 A Manufacture —
11 uw on figuring out why it opened. We put the gate locks in, and 11 Q@ — that hay the bally dep?
12 at that point, it becomes not an issue on why they opened, because | 12 A Yo
13 they can't open now. 13 Q Vot are the other menufecturerg, other thon Renco?
14 So that would — you know, so everything I did would 14 A I'msorry?
15 have been prior to that, which would have been almost three years |18 Q  Other than Reno, what are tho othre rruvfechmoeg that
16 ago. 16 the trailers could beve bsen?
1 S0 a lot of it is informal. Just when you talk to 17 A I can't even think of any other anes that these other
18 somebody, you know, initially, you say, hey, what are you quys 18 carpetitors operate. Pretty much everybody rums Ranco in this
19 doing, do you have any problems, you know, It's just informal. 19 area.
20 So I don't remember exactly what I would have talked 20 Q  Ind vhat aro othr walwes ether than Veron wlves that
21 about it to them about. 21 oould bovo booa en -~
2 @ Cikzy. % e you coping thio dnvootisntion would heve 2 A 1 lnow Waboo makes a valve, but 1 haven't seen any of
23 oomrred before ths 2014 ipmdw=at. Is thot vint ywou wepe saying 23 those in use since  for 20 years, too much, you know, Many
24 thare? 24 newer trailers don't usvally come with those, And it is possible,
25 A No, it would have been after. 25 but not likely.

Page 27 - " Page 29
1 Q  Cimy. 1 0 Do you inow what models of the Verss walves wexe cn all
2 A Idon't know. I don't know exactly, yw know, the 2 of tho trailers that did unintentional dumping?
3 timeline. It would have been before or after. It could have been | 3 R T can't say for certain, but I would be almost sure they
4 either one. I just know it's been something that I've always been | 4 are the exact valve that we have on our trailers.
5 curious about. 5 Q End vy would you be almost sure ehout that?
6 Q Ckay. Did you do any investigetion oftrr the 2013 6 A Because that's what all the trailers in this area come
7 incident? 7 with,
8 A Yes. 8 I've been doing this for 30 years, and pretty mxch
9 Q Cuy, What did you do aftsr the 2013 incident? 9 everybody nuns the same valve,
10 A Just talked to some of the people in the industry, I 10 There's anly two different confiqurations I've seen in
11 think that's probably when I called Versa. 11 this area for Versa, and they are both identical. One just
12 Tdm't know. I don’t think anybody called Ranco. I 12 happens tobe @  mounts on a menifold, and ope is a direct
13 don't really remember too much about it because I never really 13 mowunt.
14 received any valuable informetion from anything I investigated. bt But they are the same  same design valve. Just the
15 Q 8o you said you did not @ll Ranco. Ig that - 15 way they mount, it's only two different.
16 A Tdm't believe I did, no. 16 Q@ 80 in your 30 yeasn, heve you cren eny other walvo er 2
by} ¢ Do you know if anybody elss did? 17 trailec thes — other thon tha Verrn volve?
18 A I dm't think so. 18 A Yes,
19 @ Do you know for a fect that the wintentional cpmnings | 19 Q0 Do you sea a Jot of tham, a lot of ~ in wor pt 3D
20 on other truchks or other temilesn comwred with o Versn valve? 20 years of @perience, seen 8 lot of other velves, other thon Veeom
21 R TYes, 2l valws on trailsrs?
2 Q  2ud bov do you oy that? 2 A Not a lot in percentage to the Versa valves, mo, not in
23 A Just common Jnowledge I suppose. ALl the trailers that | 23 the last, say, 15 years.
24 are in this town, almst I would say 98 percent of them have 24 Q 8o what would bs your estimete of the percentags that
25 Versa valves on them. 25 have Vexan velves?
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A Currently in operatiom?

Q That you'w seem in your 30 years that opezate it.

A Oh, maybe — how many percentage — what's the
percentage of Versa valves or the other valves?

0 The Varss valwes.

A I would say in all the years I've been doing this,
probably 80 percent.

Q  And you esid in shout 30 years you've been dodng this,
or 207 Sorry,

A I've been doing this since '80 — 1980 probably. So
that would be what, 35 years.

Q@ o in your 35 yoars, you've seen approximataly
90 percant of the trailsrs have Versa valves on thes?

A Yes.

Q And in your 35 years, you are aware, based on your
testiomy yesterdsy, of, roughly, a dozen wnintentional openings
that bave cocurred?

A That's at least.

Q Is that mmber more?

A It could be. I mean, we're talking about ones that I've
had firsthand Jnowledge of.

Q Yeeh,

R Ones I've seen. And there are also omes that you know
that happened. You've seen evidence. You know that they

happened.

W M wd o T s W DO e
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.

Yes.

Q Ckay. Red on the oney you've sesn, how did you know
theco weeo Voron valws on the teailer? DA you sen the Versa
Talva?

B Actually, yes.

0 Fod wo aleo said there's timgs you sse evidence of a

A Yes,

@ That type of evidence do you ses?

R vhen you drive out the highway and you see big rocks on
the side of the road that you know somebody was hauling in to
Nevada Cement, for instance, that don't belong on the side of the
highways, because the accident it was accidentally dimped an
the side of the road and NDOP came along and pushed it off,

And there's still evidence of it sitting there, The
rock is still sitting there on the side of the road ten years
later, because they don't remove it, they just push it off the
side of the road into the borrow pit.

Q@  Is theve any wey that rock oonld ome on the side of tho
road othor then an unintantionsl domping?

A Mot that particular rock.

Q Yy is that?

R It's clinkers from the cement plant, coming from a
specific location, I mean, somebody would have had to dump it

Page 31 " Page 33|
So we're talking about a different -~ ones I've there. I can't imagine somebody intentionally dumping it there.
personally actually seen happen, just a few of them, but anes that Q  Bot that's possihle?
I've — I have firsthand knovledge of, there's probably at least a A Very, very unlikely.
dozen. Q  But possible?
Q Vosn you szy "e few,” bow mmy do you consider tobe a A Yes.

faw, becsuse I know some people -~

A Three or four,

Q@ Ckxy. JAod you said you have firsthand knowledge from —
ghout & dosen; is that correct?

A Uh-uh.

Q In your 35 ygars?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And how did you get that firsthend keouledyy of
those dozen?

R I've seen -~ driven by where they have dumped the loads
on the highway. I've been following trucks that dump loads in
front of me on the higay.

I've been associated with three of them that — with our
campany, I've seen evidence of, you know, other campanies that
have actually — I mean, you could still go out on the highays
and see where the asphalt is still in the middle of the highway
five years later.

You can still see evidence of where it was dumped. And
you hear about it right asay.

Q Ciy., You cnid you've seen trailers dmp on the highwey

W @~ hown W RN
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And the cars that drove over the top of it and wiped cut
their oil pans probably wouldn't be teo happy that the quy did it
N purpose.

Q@ I coold bops he wuldn't, but it's ~ unything is
posaible,

R Yesh

Q0 Iundco, oo, tho dozen dn your 35 years that you are
@2x0 of, do you know who mmafactured those trailers?

A I've seen Fruehauf trailers that have dumped. I've seen
Beall trajlers that have dimped. I've seen Ace — I believe
Ace — maybe not Ace.

0 And in all of thsse that you have firsthand keowledge
of, do you kmov the semufectnver of the truck that wes pulling the
traileg?

A The majority of them would have been Peterbilts.

Q 2ud of thesn dosan in your 35 years, ave you mare of
how ey tzailers were being palled by the truck?

A 1 imew that one for sure was ane trailer, a semi
trailer, And all the rest of them were at least two trailers.

0 Do you knov eppromismtely hov meny were two versus
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thres?

R The only one I have firsthand knowledge of that are
three trailers are the ones that we dumped. Not that many people
nm three trailers,

Q Do you ever rua rxe0 thun thees trailers?

3 No.

Q Ciay. On the ones that had two trailers, do you kmow of
vhether it was the first or second trailer that ws — censed the
dop?

R No, I don't recall that, other than the one that I know

WO - U B W R
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Page 3b
T understand you are just trying to get a feel,
But you can answer if you can. So go ahead.
THE WITNESS: Are you specifically talking about trucks
configured with bottam dumps?
BY MS. SHREVE:

@ Yes.

R Yes, I would say there are hundreds of trucks in the
Western Nevada, Northem Nevada area that travel bauling materials
daily, five, six days a week.

Q@ Okay. 8 in yoor pwt 35 yenrs, there's besn — trucks

W A O U e W B e

L ES

that dumped in front of me on the highway was the rear trailer. 11 are driving, spprodmmtaly 100 0 dy, ocix days & weok, for tho
0 Okay. S twt's the caly ons that you actually saw that | 12 past 35 years then, roughly?
there wes & Versa valve on? 13 A That'sagood  yes.
B Yes, u ¢ 8 I 't domath thot quick, but it's o lot of teveks?
Q@ Do you recall who mmmafectured that truck? 15 B Yes.
A Peterbilt. 16 Q0 Aod with all of thesy bolly 6vp txuchy, you azu enly
@ Do yoo remll who memufectured that teailer? 17 emre of 12 times that this occurred?
A Ranco, Ranch Manufacturing. I'mnot sure. They changed | 18 A I wouldn't necessarily say that, You mean my personal
names a few times, but Ranco trailer is vhat it is, yes. 19 knowledge of it?
Q@ Do you remll vhen thet wan? 20 Q  Yep, that you oxe w0 of on waintenticnnl bally dump
A No, I donot. 21 cpening.
@ Do yw remll if it o bafero 20137 2 A Persomally, yes, I only know of 10, 15, 20, something
B Yes, it was. 23 like that. But that's not -- yeah, that's all I personally would
I believe it was. 24 Jnow about.
0 8w it before you wore amployed with MOB? 2 Q Right. 8o your personal knowledge of the three that
T " "Page 35 Page 37
A I think it was, yes. 1 oocurred st MB, correct?
MS. SHREVE: Do you mind if we take a break for a second | 2 A Urhuh,
and go off the record. 3 MR, BROWN: Asked and answered.
{A discussion wes held off the record.) § BY MS. SHREVE:
MS. SHREVE: Let's go back on the record again. 5 Q@ Tho ons that you actoelly chearved bave a bally dup o
BY M5 SHREVE: § tho higlemy, corvect? You cbsarved ono bally duep oo the high-ry;
Q@ M. Palmer, you undevstend you are still wnder oath 7 io thet cozrect?
after this bresk, corvect? 8 A I've seen, actually, two. I've seen one in California
B Yes. 9 dump as well. Maybe I'm getting off track here.
Q@ I'm just going to do & couple mure quastions in regards | 10 @ I'm just going ower tho co=y that you ooy W bwa
to the duzpe that you bave seen or are awere of, 11 Jnowledge -- you testified that you brd lmodedya of valateaticonl
Fow, in your 35 — roughly, 35 years of expariance, bov | 12 belly dowps cocurring, correct?
ey trocks would bave bem deiving, that you would have sesa — 13 A Yes.
liks bow msmy trucks a day drive in Bovada, carrying trailers u Q@ I'm trying to wmreertned your knovdedss of the bally
of -~ bally dusp trailars? 15 domps that ooorred,
A On an average day? 16 A Yes,
Q0  Yes. 17 Q@ Okay. You had said thero wes thres that you are mare
A Are you saying, like, in this area, how many a day? 18 of from MDB. Aod earlier, you testified you actmally cbserved cns
Humdreds of them. 19 oo, Is it more then ane thnt you ectumlly cheerved?
Q  Bundreds of the® 20 A Yes.
B Yes. 21 Q Ckay, Bow meny bave you actually cheerved in your 35
0 Rod then axo hindrods of them driven every dey, or is it | 22 years?
fiva days o waek, like Moodwy thromph Pridey, or is it sewen days | 23 A Are we talking about actually occurred while it's
a vee) 24 happening?
MR, BRGEN: 1I'm going to just object as to foundation. ] Q0 Yes, that you actmally cheerved the bslly dusp cpening
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and the itams in the truck came cut.

A Two.

Q0 Waare did these two incidants coow that you just spoke
chout thet you actnally cbeerved the belly dump opening end the
iters that were in the trailer come oot of the trailer?

A One of them ocourred on Interstate 80 going eastbound at
the top of Patrick Hill, so just about a quarter of a mile west of
the Patrick exit, Interstate 80.

@ Do you rewsll spprozizately what year that happened?
No, 1 do not.

Was it bafora 20137

It would be a quess, but I would sey more than likely.
Were you working at MDB at the time of that?

I do not think so.

And what wes the mlv of this truck that was pulling the

O D o

%

Peterbilt.

Boy ey teniloes v it pulling?

Two.

Wt — do you hmey tho makes of the trailers?
Yes,

Boxr do you know the meks of the trailers?

I could see then.

Wat were the mke of the trailers?

Ranco,

o o 0 o b

Page 40
Q Ckay. Do you recall what walves were cn that truck?

A They appeared to be Versa valves.

0 8o you don't kmo for covo, yoo just — or did you ees
it, that it oo 0 Yoren mlw, in fact?

A Well, T remenber driving by and looking at the trailer
and trying to discem whether it was a Versa valve, and it did
appear to be a Versa valve, yes.

Q@ Ckay. ¥hy were you trying to disocemn if it wes a Versa
valve?

R Because we have  this was after the first incident we
have, So we're alvays — everybody is always trying to figure cut
what's going on, what happened, why did this quy dump his load,
what happened.

Q Coy., 8o just to soow, 2 bR = to o swre wo're
oot rigeing ooy, v have tha theeo £ee M3 ond the B0 you
actmlly chesrved vhich wo just cpoks sbont ca 80 eastbound and
then the ane in Deceriee 2013, correst?

A Yes.

Q  Did you chcowee any other ones of o ootend belly dump
cpaning ood —~

A Mo.

@ 8 in your 35 years, hondreds of trucks being driwen,
you've caly actmlly seen it ocour twice, but you have knowledge
of threo times at MDB, 0 & total of five times of what you
actmally obegrved in your timo at MDB; is that correct?

(TP —
L I~ T
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And what ware the valves oo the trailars?

Versa.

And bov do you koow thay weee Versa?

Two reasons. One, I actually saw the valve. And the
other reasen is that all the Ranco trailers owned by

Lakeside Specialized Transportation have Versa valves on them, to
my knowledge.

Q Chay. Znd wms it tho firot or cooond tradlor et bed
the belly domp on this spacific?

B Second trailer.

Q  And then what was tho second incident you actenlly
chaczved oour vhere the belly duep openad up and the itess in the
trailer durped on tha gromd?

A Ckay. That would have been probsbly December 2013, It
would have - on Highway 99 heading southbound near — south of
Woodland, California, near Woodland, California.

Cizy. Aod what wes the malo of thio txech?

1 do not recall that.

Wt ws the mbe of the trailers?

I do not recall that.

Bow mnny trallees?

Two.

Do you recnll if it wag the first or second trailar that

o 0

b.g 0 or o o o

I believe it was the second trailer.

|
|
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MR. BROWN: (bjection, asked and answered.

BY MS. SHREVE:

@ Is that correct?

A It is corr~t.

9 Gy

A But I think it's a little skewed because I'm not
watching the other hundred trucks every day. I'mjust — I can
anly watch so many trucks a day, so I can't be everywhere, or I
might have seen all the other anes open.

Q  Right. Bot that's what you've seen?
Yes.
fio vhen you — bov meny tirg bow you dnstalled o

Personally?
Yes.
Probably ten or more times.
Bow many tines hag o Veren valve been installed ot MIB?
Four to five times.
Brd who was installed thess valves?
1 believe Pat Bigby installed them all. This is since
my time there.

Q  kod hewe you ever installed o Yozoa wvalve at 1087

A I do not believe I did.

Q0 Tzold copbody alcs othor than Pat Bighy imntnll a
valve — or, Pat Righy cnd youreslf dnotall o Yexen wlvd €3 o
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trailer? Q0 S0 who installed the Versa valve on Trellez 6775 in
A T dm't believe so, not after my time there. Jogust 2013?
Q Vhat sort of inforition would an MB explopes need to R Pat Bigby.

kot when they are installing a nev Vecsa valwe o a trailer?
MR. BROAN: Well, object, vaque, overbroad.
Answer if you canm.
BY MS. SHREVE:
Q@ I cen reask it if ywoo need ee to.
A I'mnot sure what you are asking. You would need to
know that it needs to be replaced and replace it.
Are you talking about what does he — how — what does
he need to know how to do it?
f Yes. &o I'm talking specifically with just installing a
valve o to the trmiler,
Is thare any specific knowlednn you would nsed to know
to install & valve, & Vezes valw?
A If you are asking me is it difficult or is it highly
technical to install a valve? Mo, it's mot., It's very easy.
@ 8o thoee's no training thet you would nsed to bawe en
iestalling 0 valwe, & Versa valve?
A You wouldn't want to let somebody install it that's not
a mechanic. So if you have your 20, 30 years experience as a
mechanic, yes, you could do it. It's very simple,
Q@ Gray. Bad why is it that you wouldn't want comsone
othar than g sechenic installing the Verss walve?

Page 43

A No difference than you wouldn't want anybody working on
your car that's not a mechanic. I mean, if they are not
mechanically inclined, you don't want them,

@ Sao - wold need to know gpecific infometion of
bow to ingtall & Veron wolvwe?

A They would have to have basic mechanical knowledge.

Q Cksy. So thon would it be fair to say that yoo wouldn't
o=2d onything othor thon bosic mechenicsl knowledge to install a
Yoron wlwa?

& Tt would be fair to say that, yes.

0 Do wou know vho designed this sysben thet — in vhich
the Versa wvalve is a component of?

MR, BROAN: Objection, vegue, foundation.
THE WITRESS: Can you rephrase that
BY MS. SHREVE:

Q  Gue

A — maybe a little bit differently,

Q hat is the Vexes welva compssted to?

A The Versa valves that we have installed on our trailers
operate the gates that open and close to dump your load, hooked to
the air cylinders and the air supply tank.

0 Czy. 8o do they voxh 0o o oyotry, tho Vezen valvs with
the hoss omd the tank, then, to cpema the gute?

A Idm't know if it's a specifically designed system, but
I quess they work in concert with each other, yes.

1
2
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Q@  Ezd bo ever installed & Veres valve prior to the
installation of that valwe on ogust of 20137

A I'mquite certain that he has, but I can't testify that
for sure he has; that he's worked with other companies that have
Versa valves, so I'm sure, along the course of his experience, he
has done that.

Q Do you know if be was provided any training en
installing the Versz valve?

A I donot think so, no,

0 Beve you ever provided eny training oo ingtalling g
Vezsa valwe?

A lo,

Q0 So after the incident that occurred en July — ia
July 2013, who mde the docision to purchase a new valva to put in
Dedlor 67757

A We're talking about the 2013 incidence?

@  Correct.

A That was before I came to work there, where I believe
Tracy Shane was the manager at the time and Pat Bigby was the
mechanic. Pat Bigby would have said we're going to put a new
valve on it, and Tracy sald okay and ordered the valve,

Q@  2nd who dotenwined vhat valve to -- in 2013, after the

Page 45
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wlvs vith ca the 6775 trailer?

A Do you mean which model valve?

Q  Yhich mdal, which bxand, o dobrerdnod vhich — vint
valve they were going to use to replecy the Ve wilve that was
on Trailer 67757

A It would have been Pat Rigby.

Q  2nd vy wap it determined to — otxike that,

Tnt wlve v pupchased to install en Txodler €775
after the 2013 — July 2013 incident?

A It would have been a Versa valve with the same model
mumber and part mmber that was currently installed on the
trailer.

0 Jmd vhy oo it dondded ©o voo that, to puxchass that
Vorse walve to install it oo the teniles?

A ¥hy was it — can you repeat the question, please.

Q Sore.

Yy was it determinad to purchass the Veron walws that
ws the sam as the one that was o Txailer 67757

A You mean why did we replace it with the exact same model
mmber that was on the trailer?

Q Yes.

A A couple of reasons.

One is, as I said befere, almost every trailer in this
area has a Versa valve to ontrol the gates. So therefore, the
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suppliers that you go to, to purchase valves from, stock thegVersa
valve. They wouldn't stock any other type of valve.

The other reasen is, a Versa valve bolts on, There are
same modifications you have to make to adapt a different valve to,
say, the system that's already in place.

And that would liken it to, you lnow, why would you buy
a Toyota fender for your Toyota if — when you smash your fender.
You are going to buy what ~ what — keep what the car came with,
is what you are going to replace the part with, You'll go back to
what it came with standard.

0 Eovdo yom — do you know that the Trailer 6775 was
built with & Versa valwe in it?

A Idon't know, T would assure that it was, yes.

Q Do you have any records thet it was?

A No, I don't have any of the original purchase records or
the build sheet on that particular trailer.

¢ Do you know if the Veres valve on Trailer 6775 bhad bean
repleced prior to the Joly 2013 incidsnt, between the tims it wes
mnufectured and then?

A Mo, I donot know, have knowledge of that,

Q0 Is the Varss valwe used with & compressed air systes?

A Yes,

@ 15 the Verss valve used vith an industeial hydrsmlic
floid systes?

A 1 guess you could say that, yes.

W OO 2 o i W N
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BY ¥MS. SHREVE:

@ Yes.

A This particular valve has three mumting bolts. You
urbolt ~ you remove the air lines fram the valve, remove the
electrical comnection to the solennid, and then you unbolt the
three bolts and you remove it, It's that simple.

And then you reverse that process to install a new one.

Q Ckay. 8o cen you explain how MDB installed the new
Veorsa valve oo Trailer 6775,

A After the removal of the old valve?

@ Yes.

A We would have just bolted the new valve on and then
taken the fittings off of the original valve, install those into
the new valve, hook the hoses up to the fittings and comnect the
wires back to the solenoid and, you Jnow, tighten the three bolts
up that hold the Versa valve to the trailer.

Q  Vhen MDB iootnlled th Voren valve on Treiler 6775, did
you have to check tho proasuro of the systen vhen you axe
installing it?

A Yeah, after you install the valve and test it, yes, you
would have to check to make sure there's — everything is working
correctly.

Q@  Did 108 check the pressure of the Verss valve before
they lostnlled the new e oo Trailer 67757

A Did we check the pressure before removed the old valve?

R T T R N
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Q0 Can you eplein to me the procedare on hov to replace &
Versa valve on & trailer as was done on 6775.

MR, BROAN: Can you identify the topic in the 30(b) (6)
notification that this would fall under?

MS. SHREVE: Sure. Qne second.

Well, it would be maintenance, service and repairs of
how to — how he repaired the Versa valve on to the traller, or
maintenance,

KR. BROAN: How he installed it on it?

MS, SHREVE: I mean, that would be in your maintenance,
He has maintenance records of installing the new —

MR. BROWN: Right.

M5, SHREVE: -- valve, correct?

MR, BROWN: I mean, it seems fo me you are asking his
persanal knowledge, almost as, like, an expert witness, as opposed
to - as to the person nost knowledgeable within MDB Trucking,

I'1l go ahead and let you answer the question.

M5, SHREVE: And Mumber 12 is MDB's installation of the
valve on the trailer. So I'm not asking as to personal knowledge,
I'm asking as how MB installed this valve an the trailer.

MR, BROWN: Okay.

THE WITHESS: S0 the question is, hew do you physically
replace the valve, how would we have physically replaced the
valve?

11
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Q@ VYes.

A I think so. I'm sure there was no prablem, though.

@ Did M08 check the filtration of the systee before
ingtalling the Versa valve?

A I'mnot sure if we did or not. It's samething that we
do routinely, All there is, is a weter separator on there that
filters out water, if it gets any water in there, and that's
usually never a problem

Q  Did MDD chack that befoze replacing the valve on
Prailer — before resoving the valve a 67757

A Idon't think so. We would have checked it prior to
that under routine meintenance, yes, but not immediately prior to
removing the valve.

@  Did you check it ismsdiately after you installed the
valve on 67757

A Well, T can't testify to what Pat Bigby did, but, yes,
I'm sure he would have, That's standard routine.

#hen you hook it all back up, you check the oiler, make
sure the oiler has got oil in it, the filter is cleam, it has
pressure and everything operates correctly,

0 TWuld there be sny reconds to indicete this comsurred?

R TIdon't think so.

Q  Does MB bzve Imoulede regarding the specifications of
Varsa's peoduct in regerd to terpersture?

A T have read those before in the literature that's
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supplied with the Versa valve, but I could not tell you what those

are right now.

Q  Doss Pat Righy know it, sinoe he was the person that did
the installation? And we're talking specifically about the
installation of — i0B's instaliation of the Versa valwe oo
Trailer 6775,

A Yes, he would have jnown at that time.

Q  Bow shout the specifications for the pressure for the
Verss valve for installing it cn 67757

M. BROMN: I'm going to dbject to the extent it calls
for speculaticn.

THE WITNESS: I would imagine he did. If it's in the
literature, he would have Jnown that, reading the literature
before installing the valve.

BY MS, SHREVE:

Q  Ase you tho porecn most knowledgeshls about the
installation of Verss valvo 6775 oo the sibject trailer?

A In 2013

0 Yes.

3 1 would say I have equal knowledge to what Pat has, but
1 didn't actually install it.

@ Cesy,

MR, BROWN: He's also been disclosed as a fact witness,
Pat Bigby, as the one that has replaced it. And he is the most
Jnowledgeable here to talk about the policies and procedures in

general, business acumen. So — MIB, in regard to the maintenance
issue.

M5, SHREVE: And I'm talking about Mumber 11, which says
MIB's installation of the product on 6775, is what I'm
specifically talking about. Knowing the specifications for the
Versa product for installing it, is what I'm speaking about.

MR, BROWN: Right. I understand. I'm just meking a
record that we're carplying with the 30(b) {6) and our knowledge of
fact witnesses as well.

MS. SHREVE: I'm sorry, I'm going to ask you to repeat.
What was the last question that I had asked?

{The last question and answer were read by the reporter.)
BY MS. SHREVE:

0 Fow about specifically, Versa's specifications regarciny
lobrication of the valve when installing it on Trailer 67757

Thio goeg to Vezea's — sorxy. This goes to MB's
Imowledge of —~

MR. BARKIEY: Hhich category, Counsel?

MS., SHREVE: MNamber 11, installation of the Versa valve.

MR, BROAN: Mo, that's the decision to purchase subject
valve.

MS. SHREVE: Ch, sorry. Do I have the wrong number?
Maybe it's 12. Sorry, I wasn't finished with my question.

MR. BRORN: T know,

" Page 51

M5, SHREVE: Sorry, it's Muber 12, not 11.

24
25

Page 52
MR. BARKIEY: Okay., I will mote for the record that 12

does not talk about specifications of the menufacturer.

MR. BROWN: I guess what you are asking him — are you
asking him if he can quote all the specifications of every Versa
product that he could install in the truck without looking at the
docunents? 1 mean, is that what you are asking him?

MS, SHREVE: I'm asking him if, during the installation
of the Versa valve on Trailer 6775, whether there was Jmowledge of
the specifications of temperature, and the second was pressure.
This one is now lubrication,

MR, BROMN: Oxay.

MS, SHREVE: So it's in regards to the installatiom, if

they —
MR, BRORN: Okay. I understand.
MS. SHREVE: Okay?

BY MR, BROWN:

0 8 I'll goback
8 for the installation of tho — for tho lestnliation
of the Versa walve on Trailer 6775, ths porcoa instolling the
prodoct Imow the specificstions of the Veron peoduct in zegneds to
tha luhrication?

L If, in fact, the literature spelled that out in the
Versa product box when we received the valve, then the person that
installed the valve would have known that.

#hen 1 say the perscn — I'm specifically talking about

Page 53
Pat Bigby. Ml'mmldngﬂmass:mptimbasedmthefact%rat
he does things the same way I do them, and I  we read the
instructions,

So if there's anything in there about the pressure or
the oil or shatever, he would have known that,

Q Oy I'mgoing to ask the seme question in regands to
the filtration, I'm guassing your answer would be the ez 8o
well?

A The same, yes.

However, 1 don't know that it would have mede any
difference whether you knew it or not. I mean, you are replacing
a valve with the same valve that came off it.

So you are not — if I put a new alternator on the car
that's identical to the one that came off the car, I'm assuming it
was engineered correctly to be on the car to begin with. That's
samewhat of an assurption I'm making when I'm putting the new one
on.

MS. SHREVE: Okay. So I'm going to go back to actually
purchasing the Versa valve that was installed on Trailer 6775.
Bnd I'm going to mark this as Exhibit 11,

{Exhibit 11 marked for identification.)
BY MR. BROWN:

0 S this is Bates ruwher M8 016, Can you tall mo vhat
this document is.

A Tt is an invoice from ENGS Motor Truck Company, dated
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July 31st, 2013, And it's for the purchase of a side port Versa

valve. And this would have been the valve that we would have put
on Traller 6775 after the first incidence in 2013.

Q0 1s there anpvhere oo this invoios thet indicates that
this wee the walve that was pot cn Trailec 67757

A There’s a purchase order mumber, customer order mmber,
6775,

Q@ Ckay. kod so your customsr order is reflective of what
equipnant muber the purchass is for?

A Yes.

Page 56

@ At this particnlar tims.

R Probably three or four times a week,

0  Did oo oz did M8 ash BNG8 Motor Compeny ebout
purchoning caothx valve, other than the Versa velve?

R Ko,

Q  Did 178 ask 58S Moter TFruck Company sbout purchaaing a
differcat typs of Voo alve?

A A different model mumber of Versa valve?

@ Yes, a different modal.

A Mo, we did not.

1 @ Ckay. Earlier, you testified thet it wes decided to 1 @ hod vy &id you not ask DNGS Motor — oz, vy did M8
12 porchasn the Versn valve beceusa that is what was on it, corzect, |12 not ask B8 Motor Truck Compeny ebout purchasing & different
13 previcnsly? 13 model mwber of & Veres velve?
14 A Yes, that is what I testified to earlier, yes. 14 A More than likely, because this has been the standard
15 It's also that's what we wont. That's — yeah, we went | 15 valve I've seen used for all — for 35 years I've been around.
16 Versa valve, I mean, there's no reason why we don't want to put 16 And that's what everybody uses, and that's what people stock and
17 back on what was on there. 17 sell, and that more than likely, we would not have thought about a
18 Q  ¥eo this the firgt time that a Voenn volve tng purchased | 18 different style of Versa valve.
19 f£ron MIB — that MB porchnsed & Veren valva? 19 o Gy
20 A I have no idea. 20 R The avallability of a different style.
2 Q  Ard vhare was the Verss valw puxchased from? A Q At the timp of the purchass of this Veres walve, was M0B
2 A Are you talking about who did we purchase it from? 2 sxare of sny other modals of tha Veres wvalve thot would bewe £it
a Q  Yes, Woo did MiB puxchase thr wlwe from? 23 in the Treiler 67757
24 A ENGS Motor Truck Company, 24 Prior to the purchase of this valve?
25 Q  How did you decids to purchase the Versa valw from 25 QYo
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1 28 Mobor Conpany? 1 A Can you repeat the question.
2 A Because at the particular time, they were our prime 2 [
3 supplier and they stocked the valve. And we called them, and they | 3 A Are you specifically talking about MIB Trucking or
4 said, yeah, we have one in stock, we'll send it over. 4 myself?
5 Q 8o you've dealt the ENGS dotor Truck previously? 5 Q0  Yes, you're — to clarify, you are spesking on behalf of
6 A Yes, for meny years, yesh, since 2010, 6 MB Trucking, 80 any knowledge that MDB Trucking would have
1 Q Do you still do business with BIG8 Moter Compeny or 7 through its employess or whoswer it would be.
8 Notor Truck Company? 8 A No, I don't think MIB Trucking knew this.
9 R Yes, but they are no longer really in the parts 9 Q  Vare you smare, them, of another mndel of Yoo wilwe
10 business. So we don't — they have a limited parts — they don't | 10 thst woald £it in the trailer at this ties?
11 do that much parts — outside part sales now, but we do still do ih A Mo, I'mjust aware of other — I just — I'm aware of
12 business with them on occasion. 12 the vast array of valves that Versa produces and the
13 Q Van did they stop providing as zeny pacts, I quess? 13 omfigurations it can be ordered in for different applications.
14 R Rbout six months ago, I think they downsized. 14 But as far as I know, this is the valve that is used for
15 Q  And who do you doal with at EXGS Motor Truck Compeny? 15 bottom dump trailers.
16 A Persomally, I deal with Clayton or Jake. 16 Q Is this still the valve that is used, to yoor kntededse,
17 Q  Does Clayton hsve a last name? 17 for botton domp trailess?
18 A I'msure he does. 18 A I would say it is still a valve used for bottom dimp
19 @ Do you know it? 19 trailers.
20 A M. 2 0 8 io thewe onother valve, them, that is veed for bottee
2 Q  vhat shout Jake? 21 dmp trailers?
2 A Idm't know what Jake's last name is either, no. 2 A Is there another Versa valve?
x| Q@ Eow often doss MDB purchase products from BIGS Motor 3 0 Yes.

24

Trock Copeny?
A Currently or at this particular time?

24
25

A Yes, another model of Versa valve that's used for bottam
dmp trailers, yes.
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0 Vamn did yoo boome swre of this other model that is

used on bottem durp trailers?

A In 2044,

Q@ Do ym lmov vhen in 2014?

A Bpril?

@ 5o you ware
incident that occurred?

A That a different model Versa valve was available?

Q Yeso,

A I should — well, I would say that prior to that, yes, I
did know of trailers that came with a different style valve, yes,
similar style valve, but slightly different, yes.

Q Do you knoy the style mmrber, by chenge?

A Ch no, I donot. 1

of this prior to the JRuly 7th, 2014,

W B ~1 O UV e L) RO

@ I wos thinking you probebly didn't bave that 15
asorized — 16
A Mo 17

Q0 - ut figuved I wonld ask, 18
When MDB purchased the valvs on Mugust lst, 2013, did 19

the valve come with any, I guess, litesators with it? 2
A I can't speak for that particular valve. But the valves
I've seen, other valves I've opened up in the box that were still
sealed in the bax, had literature in them, ves. 2
Q ¥ao this valve still gsaled in the box vhen you 2
received - when MB received the valwe?

Page 60
maintenance, you said you would kesp it?

A Ch, if something comes with an actual maintenance
renual, we would keep it, But if it just comes with installation
instructions, we've already installed it, we are done with that,

@  Did this Verss wlve product oo with any saistevanss
or service instructions?

A Idon't recall.

Q Ckay. If it did, would MB heve that?

A Not from this original valve, no,

Q0 Cay. Wy wuld they not keep it from this one, if oo
just testified that you would kesp service and maintenance
marmals, or that MOB would keep servioe and maintenance meouals?

A Okay. If it did come with that, then we would have
saved it, but I do not believe it did.

Q Ckay, Yat about warranty infommtion regarding the
Vorsa valwe, did it oomo vith smy?

A 1 do not recall.

@ If yoo prchased — i MDD purchases o peoduct, do thoy
koop 8 copy of the werrenty infosmatien, if it oo vith cao?

A 1 would say that sometimes.

0 that are the oocwiens that would bo tho Poomtines™

A I would imagine, how much the item cost. If it'sa
starter that costs $200 and comes with the warranty informatien,
no, we don't save that. Trying to get warranty on a starter,

yeah, good luck.

WO - O L s W R
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A Ican't say it was. I would imagine it was, but I can't
say.

@ Do you lmor of anyane who would bovo knovledge of that?

A Idm't think so. I don't think anybody would remember
that.

0 If the Verss valwo id oo £xnled in a box and it com
with literature, would you kop thot — vould MOB keap that
literature?

A No, not in 2013,

Q  Does bIB vsuslly kesp the literature that oomes with the
product that they hawe?

A If it comes with a service or repair marmal or a parts
marmal, we would keep that. But most everything we do is online.

So, now, with the Intemet, all these marwals are !
available cnline. So if you have a problem, you need to work on
something later, you can alvays - you have easy access to it from
the different mamifacturers. 1

%o instead of having a whole library of paper or 18
literature that you are trying to find something, it's mch easier |19
just to have your catalogs online. 20

So, no, we would not keep the stuff. il

Q Oy, 22
R Finding it would be kind of a chore when you needed it, |23
S0 - 24
0 And I just want to clarify. If it wse servios or 2%
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So it's not really an issue for us to actually kesp the

warranty information.

Q Cay. 8o what would, then, ke, I gueno - if you are
indicating it's based off, likely, ths dolloe Comt, <ot vould
b3 th dollar eount to whexe you would kowp o waexoaty?

A I don't know, maybe a couple of thousand dollars, I
quess it would be an itemby-item basis, depending on what it is,

I mean, generally, all of our vendors take care of the
warranty information. So if it's got a %0-day warranty, we call
wp the dealer, and they say, yeah, well, how long is my warranty
on it, %0 days. Okay, well, it's within 90 days, take care of the
warranty for you.

It’s not sarething we have got to deal with the
manufacturer, so it's not something we are all that concerned
about.

@ When you gay you call the dealers, are the dealers the
company that menufoctured it or the cmpany you puxchased the
produrt fre?

A For instance, ENGS Motor Truck Campany —

¢ Ca-hob, yes.

A - if we bought this Versa valve and it failed, which,
highly mlikely, but if it failed within a couple of weeks, we
call them up and they get us another ane,

They would take care of the warranty, He would never do
anything about it. So we don't deal with factory warranties too
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mch, packaged.
Q@ 8 then if this prodoct did come with 8 warzanty, you @ Is thao o roncon why you would bave kept this ong, but
would not hawe kept it? not the ons fron the purdhaco of tho Jugest — wes it 1st, 201

A Mo, I sericusly doubt it.

¢  Doso MOB read tho warrentigs that coms with their
peodacts?

A Once again, I don't think so.

Q@  Does MDB reed sy of the warings thet would oo with
their product?

A Yes.

MS. SHREVE: With the product.

W @ - N U e b R
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A Mo, other than the box, I still have the box for that.
0 (Cuy., Is thare 2 reason you hept the box for this ons?
A It probably had the old valve stuck in it. That's the
only thing I can think of.
0 Jnd wng that wive purchesed through BG — or
B8 Motor Trock Compery?
A 1 dom't believe so.
You are talking about the —

12 1 am going to do the — our next exhibit, which wuld be | 12 Q0 T valve that ceme with this.
13 Number 12, 13 A I donot think so, no.
14 (Exhibit 12 marked for identification.} u @ Do you know who you would have purchased it frem, if it
15 BY MS SHREVE: 15 wasn't B8 Motor Track Compeny?
16 0 This is VDB 722, 16 A 1 belleve it was purchased through Peterbilt Truck Parts
17 This was & docoment that wes prodoced by MIB regaxding 17 and Equipment Carpany.
18 wsrrenty of the Varsa walve, 18 0 Is thero o veason you would hawo purchased it through
19 Does this dooment look familiar to you? 19 them, ingtesd of o Mdtor Fruchk Compeny?
20 A Yes, it does. 20 R The reason would be, if you call up ENGS and they say
a @ Did you — did M08 zcod this docmment prior to 21 1o, we don't have one and you call vp Peterbilt and they say yeah,
2 installing the Vezon valse en the cubject Teailer 6775 in 22 we have ane, and we need one, because we need to replace it today.
23 lugust 20137 23 So that would be the reason.
24 MR. BROWN: (bjection, lack of foundation. 2 Q0 Youn you purchaesd your parts, do you purchase them nesr?
25 THE WITNESS: 1 sericusly doubt that we did, because 2 A Al of our parts?

Page 63 Page 65
1 this is dated same date. This particular one is dated July 1 0 If you mare — when yoo purchoss Verss valves, do R
2 of l4th, it eppears. So it would have been it would have been 2 purchese Verss valves naw?
3 this — whatever Versa was putting in their valve at the time, 3 R Oh yes. Yes,
4 I don't know if it vas this exact one at that particular | 4 0 Do you know who origioally cuned Feailes 67157
5 time. You would have to show me the one that came with that, for 5 A Yo
6 me - but, yes, this looks familiar to every one I've ever read. 6 If 1 understand the question, you mean who originally
1 I don't know about the exact language. Maybe in July 7 purchased it?
8 14, they changed the language. 8 0 Yes, who crigisally ~ I'm sorry.
9 BY M. BROWN: g A Maybe I do. Maybe Westem Nevada Transport is o we
10 Q Cksy., 5o this did not come with the Versm valwo thet 10 purchased it fram. I do believe they bought them new, but I can't
11 wes purchassd on Aogust ist, 2013? 11 say for sure.
r A I do not think so. pod Q  %en you gay you purchesed them from —
pki Q Gy, 13 A Rell ~
14 A 1 think it came with one of the other valves that we 14 Q@ — lease -- do you mean +ho you lease it fro? I
15 purchased. 15 that —
1§ Q0 Cksy. Aod yoo kept this in regerds to a different walve | 16 A Yeah, let me restate that, when SKS purchased them from
17 that you purchased then; is that correct? 17 #NT and leased them to MIB Trucking.
18 A Yes. I mean, Versa could provide -- maybe Versa could 18 I do believe that Western Nevada Transport is the
19 provide me with the one that came with the one in 2013, because 19 original owner of those trailers, but I could be wrong. I'm just
20 I — it could be the same as this, I dm't know, 20 meking that assumption.
s Q0 Yesh, X — 2 Q  ¥DB leased Trailer 6775 from Rastern Eoweds Transport,
2 A Yeah, I'mnot asking you to do that. I'm just saying — | 22 correct?
il Q  Yesh, Idon'tlnow, That's why I was asking you whether | 23 A For a period of time, yes.

[ d
P

2%

the Veren wive actmlly ceme packaged. ¥ don't know that,
A Idn't know that., I can't imegine it would not come

2
25

Q  Did M8 laase 6775 heend-nen?
A Mo
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1 0  Doss M08 have the histary of Trailer 6775 prior to 1 0 Gy, 8 the truck was saparate fron tho teailers?
2 lesging the trailsr? 2 A The transaction to purchase it —
3 A Are you talking maintenance records? 3 0 Yes.
4 Q  Haintenance records, yes. 4 A from SKS? Yes.
5 A No. Tdonot have them, 5 MS. SHREVE: ALl right. I'mgoing to go to — actually,
6 Q  Did B inquire as to eny of the maintessnos that 6 Can we take another break?
7 ocourred on Trailer 6775 prior to leasing the trailer? 7 (A discussion was held off the record.)
8 A Did we inquire about that when we leased themor at any | 8 MS, SHREVE: Never mind. We're not going for a break.
9 time? 9 Are you quys still there on the phone?
10 Q@  Weno you first lasssd the — 10 MR. BRDICK: Yeah.
1 A Idonot know. I wasn't there at that particular time, |11 ¥, QUIGIEY: Yeah,
12 But I would imagine — we purchased them fram 12 MS, SHREVE: Are we still on the record?

Bk}

Western Nevada Transport, and they do maintenance and they -~ the
same way we do it. They are a reputable company. I'm sure they
were maintaining them correctly,

But when we first leased them, we would have went
capletely through them, meke sure they are fit for service.

— s
o

7

S0 I'm going to do this next exhibit, which will be
Exhibit 14,
(Exhibit 14 marked for identification.)
BY MS. SHREVE:
Q This ig NDB 726 thwoogh 731, Will you take a Eceent and

18 0 If Westem Heveds would heve provided MDB with 18 lock at this.
19 mmintenance records of thy tenilero pricr to leasing it, would MB | 19 Does this loot frmilize to your?
20 keep theow vesowds? 2 A Yes.
21 A Hell, yes, pal 0  Jad whet io this domret?
2 Q  Does OB beve ony of those pece™? 7] A This is an equipment lease agreement between
23 A Mo 23 SKS Corporation and MIB Trucking, IIC.
24 M5, SHREVE: I'm quing to go to the next exhibit. A4 Q  And how long is this leass far?
25 Let's do Exhibit 13. 2 A Looks like it's a 12-month lease.
Page 67 Page 69
1 {Exhibit 13 marked for identification.) 1 Q Did M8 renaw thiz leacs nfter ths 12 ronthe?
2 BY MS SHREVE: 2 A T would imagine so, yes.
3 ¢ ‘This ie MDB 723. BEavo you coca this dotwmont hrdoce? 3 0 Doz3 MDB keep records of all of thedix leacs
4 A Yes, I have. 4 A T would say yes.
5 Q hat is this domr-at? 5 0 Does MB hawe & leoso egrement for Teailer 67757
6 A It's an invoice from Western Mevada Transport to 6 A We do have — there is an equipment lease. Are you
7 SKS Corporation for the purchase of two sets of Ranco trailers. 7 asking for the particular document?
8 And these would be our Trailers 6773, 6174, 6775, €776, 6771, and | @ Q  Vould !B bave rotained the leass agresment docvment?
9 6778. _9 A Its actual document?
10 0 Do you lease ths txuck that pullo the teailer separste ' 10 @ For Trailer 67,
11 from the trailers? 1 A We should have, yes. If I'mnot mistaken, we could not
12 Liks, do2y - pozry, otrike that, Tont's kind of abed | 12 produce that; is that correct?
13 question. 13 Q  Correct.
14 o oxps Truck - U A Okay. So it got lost or — apparently. I don't know.
15 A 56542 15 Q@ 8o you don't huvo that lesss sqresment -- or, MIB dom
16 0 Yes, I'm omafusing all tho ewhers. 16 not bavs —
17 A SKS Corporation. 17 A I donot have it, no.
18 o Cug. 18 0 Tho — strike thet.
14 MR. BMDICK: Can you say that name again. I'msorry, I |19 Docy &8 Corpogation parforn ony mrintensnoe on the
20 didn't hear it. 20 troilers MOB lewces?
21 MS. SHREVE: SKS Corporatiam. 21 A Yo
22 BY MR. BROWN: 2 Q Do &8 Corpezation ask fox ey Cosmmmts fxon MUB
23 @  Did SR8 Corpocetion purchass the truck from 23 repmnding any chinteonnes ond repeirs done on the treilecs that
24 Western Reveds Trensport? U they lears?
25 A o 2% A Mot specifically. But MIB Trucking and SKS Corporation

Litigation Services
www.litigationservices.com

800-330-1112

AA000359




SCOTT ALEN PALMER VOL.?2

03/07/2017

W -3 A W N

S EERES

—
fo o RS |

xR

W O o~ O WY e ) B b

[
<

Page 70
are owned by — have the same common cwnership, so the records are

easily available to them.

Q % if 868 Corp. wented to have any records regroding the
minteance oo & trailer thet was lessad, they could just pull it
fron MO

R Exactly, yes.

@  Did 58 Corp. provide MIB with sny suppliers' or
mrafacturers’ werranties that came with the trailer or the
trailers leased?

R Yo

Q  Doss 9B typically lease their trailers?

A Yes.

Q  Does MIB leass oll of thedr treilers from
&8 Cozporntion?

R Tonmy knowledge, yes, they do,

Q  Doss Equipment Wwmber 5695 — is it always connected
with Teailer 6773, 6774 and 67157

R 1 think you said 5695. T think you mean —-

[Vl S TS I PV N

10

Page 72
M&tmm@y,mmmhﬂnm,iwt
40 percent of the tims, it's disconnected, or less or zove?

R Probably more.

Q  Rnd vhy would it be more?

R It has to do with what particular driver would be
assigned to that truck. So if that particular driver is, say, a
bottom dump type driver, like Mr. Koski was I mean, that's,
basically, what he did most of the time — then you keep that
truck under those trailers,

But if you get samebody that maybe has more transport
experience or — you know, then they might be assigned to it less,
because they are doing other things, as — yes.

Q  leo Tealler 6713, €774 snd 6775 alewps connested?

A Not always.

Q T are they sot comnectsd?

R Fell, they wouldn't be conmected if you are working on
them. And it is possible that we would unhook the back two
trailers and nm the front trailer by itself.

Q 5684, 19 Q  ¥ould you ewer ron the — just the beck teo traileve?
R Yeah, Is it always commected with those trailers? 20 R Mo, not possible, not practically possible, no.
Q0 Yes 2 0 sy, I'mqoing to go beck to Echikdt 2.
R Yo 2 MR, BROWN: I'm sorry, Coumsel, did you say Exhibit 2?
Q R iz it not conpected to those trailers? bx] ¥S. SHREVE: Yes.
R When it's pulling another trailer, getting worked cn. 24 BY MS. SHREVE:
Q  Bow often doos it occur that it pulls — that Trock 5604 | 25 {  Would Trailer 6773, 6774 or 6775 run with a truck other
Page 71| Page 73
pulls trailers othar than 6773, 6774 and 67757 1 than § — 56947
R Over the course of a year, say, or you are talking about | 2 R Yes.
during a certain time frame, like, of the accident, or are you 3 Q If — strike that,
talking about in general, like, overall? 4 Gy, W¥o'll go to Bshibit 2, MIB 463,
Q 8 w'll g per math, 5 Yeoh, you cen pull that off.
8o in g month, is it typical for Truck 5634 to rn with | 6 ¥ould this bo a tise that all thres teailers, 6773, 6774
or to pull 6713, 6774 and 67757 7 and 6775, were pot mm together?
R In the sumertine, during the busy season, it's typical 8 Oz, cen you read the truck muber end then the trailer
for it to be hooked to that primarily, And other times of the 9 mebers for — ca this daily deiver sbeot,

year, it could be hooked to an end dump, a flatbed. It could do
all sorts of different things,

Ard even during the sumer, summertime, it can be
unhooked, hooked to an end Gump.

This is normal course of business for us, trucks
switching trailers.

But that truck is specifically, I would say, assigned to
those trailers. That's what it would primerily pull, yes, that —
probably 60 percent of the time.

Q 8o sinte ~ strike that,

Botween the July 2013 incident and ths July 2014
incident, bow meny - agprowimately what percentzse, if you want
to do percuntage, pevcsntage & month would Truck 5694 be
discomected from Trailers 6773, 6774 and 67157

R T would say we disconmect it 40 percent of the time.
Q  Bod then the same would go for the July Tth, 2014,

10

A This is Deniel Koski's log sheet for July 16, 2013. And
he has written down Truck 5691 and Trailer 6774 and Trailer 6775.

But I would have no idea why that would be.

If in —~ well, no, I do not have any idea vhy that would
be. I've never seen this since I've been to work there,

@ 8o it's not typioal to run 6774 and 6775 withont 67737
R Correct, and also not behind a transfer truck. But I
quess you could do it.

I don't know if he was actually cperating that day. I'm
not sure what he did, I can't really read this. There's a bill
of lading, the shipping document for that day. So I'm not sure
what happened,

g Oy,

R But it is technically possible to run it behind.
Technically possible, it's not practical.

0 (Ckmy. From July 2013 to the subject incident ca
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July 7th, 2014 — eguin, you can give ma percenteges —
spproxizmtely bov mny times a wonth are Trailers 6773, 6774 and
6775 disconnected, or wmre they discomected?
From 5694 or any —
Froa sach othex.
Oh, two percent possibly.
8o not wery often?
No. Very rare.
Bo aboat £rom the eubject incid-at of July 7th, 2014,
until the present, how often bas Trailer 6773, 6770 cad 6775 been
diecomected?

A Probably the same, five percent.

T mean, I could be wrong. There are times when we rm
the front trailer by itself, and in 2014, we might have ren it
five percent of the time,

@ Gy

A But it's not a comon configuration.

@ If wou perforn mdntenance oo any of those trailers, do
you dieconnect them?

A No, not generally, not nomal maintenance, not
preventative maintenance.

The only time we unhook them, if we want to put it in
the shop and close the doors, because it won't fit in the shop
without discomnecting it.

Q 8o with the maintenance records, if there wes

© P O O

- Page 75
meintenance done on amy of these trailers and it indicutes it wes
done in the shop, then the trailer would bewo boon — tho trailers
would heve besn disconnected?
A Depends on what time of the year it is, In the
sumeertime, you just pull it in the shop, work on it, pull it out.
Hintertime, snowing outside, they probably discomnect,
more than — if you have more than a little bit of work to do on
the trailer, they discomnect it, bring it in the shop and close
the doors.
@ I there sy way to determing whether or not the trailer
was discoonocted when the mmintenance was performed?
A Yo
¢ Cuy.
MS, WCELFEL: Take a break? It's 12:02.
¥S. SHREVE: ¥e'll go off the record.
{A recess vas taken.)
M3, SHREVE: Can we go back on the record.
BY MS. SHREVE:
@ M. Palcor, you vodwotend yon are still uedsr cath

;
i

Yes.

So in regards to the July 2013 incidmt that cocmered —
Uh-tuh,

=~ did enyors fron KB ooncalt Verea or reach out to
Versa to ask what Yeemn wlve thoy chonld purchase to replace the

[~ - -
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Page 76
wvalwe thot ws on the Track —
MR. BRON: (bjection, asked and answered.
BY MS, SHREVE:

0 -~ 6775

A No, we did not. Didn't think there was a need to,
especially considering the brand-new trailers were coming with the
same valve. So they are still shipping the same valves on the
same trailers, so I would imegine that's still the standard
de facto valve,

@ I'c going to go beck to Exhibit Mosber §. £0 it'n the
work oxdeen eu Conipment 6777,

A Chay. Thank you.

0 Earlier, you testified that yoo wre svare of 2
different Versa valve modal that Versa used. I beliewe you said
in April 2014, you wore mmre of a different Varsa valve.

A That was the first time I seen one installed on a bottam
dump trailer, yes, something different.

Q@ 8 if wu look ot MDEBATN 000321,

A Okay.

Q Ind thio in dated Doorhew Ao, 2014, Dad thio
indicutes that thy ~ you ecplestd tho Yoren wlwo, costect?

A Correct.

0 Did you — did ¥DB ewer contect Veron to inquice chout
the difference in the Versa walwo rodel thot you voce maws of and
the one thut wes porchased to replecs this Veson valve?

Page 77

B Do you mean in regards to before purchasing this valve
to replace the valve on this trailer?

Q Yes, to replacs.

A Mo, because the valve ~ we had already installed a
lockout device on the valve, our own version of a lockout device.

So there's no reason to purchase a valve that wes
different. We already had the lockout device in place at this
particular instance. This was after we put the lockout devices on
there.

Q lnd co then that's the reason why you chose that walwe
as wmll to purchacy to replecs the Versa valve thet wes alresdy an
that trailer?

A Is that why, because we already had a lockout device in
place?

Q  Yes. Was that your — strike that. let me zephrase.

Wy did yon dacide to purchase the same Versa walw to
raplace the one on Equipment Momber 6777 on — for this
Dooasber 1st, 2014, replacement?

A Because that's the valve ~ I think I stated before that
that's the valve that people stock, so that's the standard valve
that people use,

And we had already installed a lockout device for that
style of valve, so we just went back to that valve,

0  Cray. Thenk you.

Eaxliar, you tastified tint thezo 0E0 €03 thot wou
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have disconnected Trellez 6773, 6774 and 6775 £rom each other

sfter the July ld4th — oz, July 7th, 2014, incident; is that
coTzect?
A Yes.

0 And vhen you reconnect those trailers, do you do any
testing on the Vorss valves to mke sure that they open or cloee?
A ¥e would perforn the same routine as we would for a
pre-trip inspection. So you would ook it up, make sure
everything is properly cormected, all the lights work, the

trailers build air.

And you ~ I think I said before, it's up to the driver
to decide whether he wants to test the functionality with the
suitches in the cab.

But I, myself, I just make sure the gates cpen menually
and there's air pressure to the gates and make sure they're
closed. And that's how you test it,

Q0 ‘Then you would test on the treiler after it has besn
connected?

A Yes. You don't want to put it back on the road if it's
not going to work.

Q  Does MB have any written policies regarding the
operation of the trucks?

MR, BROWN: I'll object, vaque as to "operation.”

Go ahead.

THE WTTMESS: Does MIB — yesh, MIB specific?

Page 19
BY MS, SHREVE:

Q@ TYes. Doss MB haw any policy and procedures oo how to
work 8 truck, like, drive it, the switches, all of that?

MR, BRORN: I'm going to object, vague, overbroad.

Do you understand the question?

THE WITNESS: I do.

I was able to find a policy and procedures manual. Did
you get a copy of that, or no? I don't know if I —

MS, SHREVE: I did not.

THE WITNESS: Did I —

MR. BRO®N: It wasn't one of the anes that Thierry gave
you or that I gave you?

MS. SHREVE: Huh-uh, This is —

THE WITMESS: But that's what we use currently. We
just  you are talking about during this particular time or now?
BY MS. SHREVE:

0 I'm talking sbont at that perticular time,
A I do not believe so, no.

MR. BRON: I'm going to just say, can we say 2013,
2014, There's, I think, three different times,

BY MS, SHREVE:

July 2014.

1 do not believe so, no.
Bow shout July 20132
No, I do not believe so.

e D X O

W O - Y W e W R

2
2

W O I O LN e W N e

BRRESEESEEREESRESR

24
2

Page 80

Q0 W do you baliave tho policy or a handbook of soms
sort that — regarding tho operstion of the trucks cese about from
¥R

A I became aware of a policy and procedures mammal that
was implemented in 2016, I don't know that — I can't tell you
specifically if it tells you — how much detail it goes into the
actual operation of the truck, how to cperate the switches or that
kind of stuff.

I know it specifically tells you to ~— that the trailers
are equipped with lockout devices, and they mist be — trailers
are — the Versa valves are — have a lockout device and they must
be attached at all times,

0 Cksy. Jod then I wes going to aak for trailess, bot you
kind of touchsd on the trailers ao wall.

A Right.

Q0 8o would the trailers be the emmo as the truck? ¥oald
it be one policy and procadure?

B Yes, just one, yes.

Q If there wasa't sny sort of policy and proczdure
reqarding cperation of the truck, how would ca cplepes know how
to cpezete 8 truck? And I'w just talking caecifically the truck.

A Are you talking about operating the truck in the
capacity of duping the trailers, or are you talking about just
generally cperating a truck?

0 Gonerally oparating & truck in 2013, July of 2013,

Page 81
A Well, all of our drivers are properly licensed with

(DLs, and they are certified. I mean, they have CDis and they
have to have proper endorsements to drive doubles, triples.

And we don't hire drivers that don’t have experience.
So they have to provide you with at least a couple years, three
years of experience doing what we do.

Q Gy,

A And then you do @ — you know, you do go on a road trip
with them, make gure that they know how to operate the vehicle
properly.

Q (Cuy. Bov doso MOB clnin to its ezployees how to
cpezotn thn bally dip of tho tndileea?

MR, BROAN: I'm qoing to object again, Owerbroad.
BY MS, SHREVE:

Q Bow do you cperate the bolly dump of the trailar?

R Depends on what kind of job you are on.

If you are on a job that requires dumping with the
switches, then you would just pull oo to the job. When the dmp
man tells you where to dmp, you lift up the cover and dump the
switch.

How do we actually tell the driver that? He's trained
on that verbally, And most all the drivers have years of
experience doing this.

Q 8o if you act — if you ooo coing to activate tha bally
dup with & ewitch, you juot Lift vp o cibdh?
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A You lift up the safety cover. The switch is underneath

it. The cover is to keep you from accidentally activating it by
bumping it. And then you push up on the suitch.

It's like you are tuning an a light, headlights, or
vhatever. And that activates the solenoid on the valve, and it
operates the gates.

Q  Mow — if you wawe going %o do it mmmally, bov do you
gctivate it mnoally?

R You just — which is what we do most of the time. You
stop the truck where you are going to dump, get out, and just move
the lever by hand.

Page 84
plates and the proper fenders. So when you go to the pit, the

loader puts the material in the hopper, doesn't load the rest --
you know, he doesn't spill it over the ends.

Q0 Was thowo o policy end peoosdore in plece in Joly 2014
regarding saking purc thet the cargo in the bally dwep trailers is
secure?

A Is what?

@ W thers & policy and procedure in placs in July 2014
to make sure thot the cargo is secure?

MR, BROW: (bject, foundatiom.
THE WITNESS: Not a written policy, I don't think. It

12 There is an arcumulator valve on the valve that you push | 12 was all verbal training.

13 in initially to keep the hand valve, the operating valve from 13 BY MS. SHREVE:

14 springing back so you can control the gates to keep them in a 14 Q@ End eo vhmt would bo the vezbal training thet M3 wonld

15 semiopen position, because we dump in — we call it a grizzly, 115 providd?

16 which is like a hopper, so we can't dump it too fast. 16 A Hell, if the loader operator ~ are you talking about

17 We have to open the gates up, crack them open, like, By keeping the load from blowing out, or are you talking about

18 meybe a foot or two and comtrol that by hand, It's easier to 18 keeping the load from spilling out? I'mnot sure I completely

19 control it after you push the arculator in to release the 19 understand. Just secure in general?

20 trapped air pressure in the valve, 20 @ Yeeh, gecure in general, mkn mwe the lood dooo eot

Fal Q Ckay. ‘Then if woo azo going to close the valwe, howdo 21 oo out of the trailer, whother it oo ent £ros o top,

2y closs it? 2 bottem, gide.

23 R Just pull the handle closed. 23 R Well, it's pretty easy. It's not rocket science.

24 Q G, L24 I mean, you go out to the pit. The loader puts the

25 B It closes the gates. And you visually check to make }25 material into the hopper., For same reason, some gets spilled out,

Page 83 Page B85

sure the gate is closed. And you can hear them closed. It's 1 then you would  after you get off the scale, you get out and you

2 not — they are right there, two feet away. 2 brush it off.

3 0 Do you bhave to wzit eny certain somt of tieo after you ;3 1 can't remenber the last time that happened, not in

4 close it to regpen it again? 4 this area.

5 A The cnly time — you only have to wait — are you § 0 Io there anything, on 0 drivx, thnt tho deiwee does to

6 talking about hand? § moke exro the meterisl inadds tho tzailer i croure vhon driving,

7 0 Yes. 7 not just st the loading?

8 A You only have to wait — you are only limited by your 8 A Mot while driving, no. Nothing — there's nothing
air supply. 9 special he has to do. Stays in the trailer. He's going down the

10 So if you open the gates and close them in enough time, |10 road.

11 it's going to lower your air pressure and you have to wait for the | 11 After you leave — after you leave the scale, if you are

12 air pressure to build back up. But other than that, you can open | 12 hauling sand, you got to go under the water rack and water your

13 them up right away. 13 load down to make sure it doesn't blow.

4 Q  Eow do you know if the air pressure ig built beck op? 14 I mean, I'm not sure if that's what you are looking for.

15 kK The gates won't open, or you can also look at the 15 0 Doz ¥IB reguive their drivers to inspect their loed

16 gauges. ALl our trailers have gauges., You can see right there if | 16 ofter thoy howo picked it @ to mske sore the contents isgide tho

17 it doesn't have enough air pressure. 17 trailer ig sacure from —

18 @  Does M3 hova cny policy and procedore reganding 18 A Yes.

19 securing the cargo it carries in thair belly duwp? 18 @ — coming out of top, bottem, gid=3?

20 A We donow. This particular point, that I know of. 20 K Yes. Yes. It's the driver's responsibility.

A 0 In July 2013, A Q  2od vhat does MOB roquize their deivers to do in this

2 A MNot that I know of. I don't know if there was one, a 2 inspection after the contents in the trailce b hera locfed, to

written one in effect.
But it's common knowledge. Everybody knows how to make
sure ~— you know, all of our trailers are equipped with shed

24
25

maho sure that nothing comes out fron the top, botten o gides of
the trailer?
A Then MIB requires their drivers to make sure their gates
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Page 86
are closed, which that's pretty standard in order to get loaded.

They are not going to load the trailer if the gates are open.
They can't.

And if you are locking to make sure that there's not any
rock spilled over the ends of the side boards, I quess, like I
say, that doesn't — it hardly ever happen.

And as far as coming to towm, we've just got to make
sure you water your load down if it's sand, samething that blows.
And they all do that,

Q Doss MIB require its drivers t check the pressure

WO 2 O Y e N

Page 88
qate chains.
Q  Gats cheins, I just went o msks suro v0'ro speaking of
the ssms thing, so I'll mll then gitn chndon,
A Sure. That's fine.
0  Doss MB have any policy regerding the gute chning, of
vhen to use thes?
A Yo
The purpose of the chaing — the trailers that we have,
the chaing are — the purpose of the chains are to limit the size
of the windrow. They are not designed to keep the gates fram

11 geuges oo the valve, the Versa walwe? 11 coming open.

12 A Yes, 12 0 Weze these gebte chaing on Temiler 6775 on the dey of the

13 Q  hnd how often do they reguixe that to be chacked? 13 sbject incident?

14 R Well, they check it every time they durp, that you can, | 14 R Yes.

15 yeah, 15 Q Weze these gate chaing on Tesiler 6778 on the day of the

16 @ Do they check it after the trailer is loaded with 16 subject incident?

17 whatever contente they ore picking up? 1 R Yes.

18 A Mo, 18 Q  Can putting the guto chaing — I'm trying to think of

1 Q Eavo you evet brtn told not to inspect & load that 19 bow to word this corvectly. Strike that,

20 ym've just — 20 Doss placing the gate chains on the bally domp prewent

2 A No. 21 the bally dmp -~ can it prewent the belly durp from opening, if

2 Q@  Ieo you move of cay — is MOB mmro of ony govermment | 22 it is — if it is menually activated?

23 policies reganding securing your leed? 23 A Okay. The chains are always attached to the trailer,

24 R T just know that it's the company or the driver's 24 and all you have to do is shorten the links of it.

25 respansibility to make sure you secure your load, 25 Ard if you shorten it w as short as you can get it,
Page 87 Page 89

1 0  How doss MB ensure thet its axployess follow the 1 it's still not going to keep it fram completely — it's not

2 prooadare of making sure their load is secure after they have — 2 campletely going to prevent it fram opening.

3 the trailer has been loaded? 3 It's going to narrov it down how much it can open, maybe

4 R How do we ensure that? 4 only a few inches, but they are not designed as a lockout device.

H 2 VYes. 5 They are designed to — as a way to limit the size of the windrow

6 A Idn't — 6 when you are doing road construction.

1 Q  Doss MDB do anything to ensure that their drivers secure | 7 Q w0 gou ooxe of — is MIB s of [Ty govermmant

8 their load after contents bave been poured into the trailer? 8 regulations requiring tho chains to b chortened to belp sacure

9 MR, BROWN: (bjection, foundation, 9 their load?

10 THE WITRESS: Well, short of following the drivers 10 A fo

11 around to ensure, there's not much you can do, other than if they |11 QB bOB ever muppoted to any of their driveen to

12 don't secure it, you can fire them or write it up. 12 shorten tho chins to kolp prewent tho decdoortent oponing of o

13 Like I say, that stuff doesn't happen. Everybody 13 belly érp?

14 polices everybody out there, So our driver — you know, all of i MR, BROMN: (bjection, foundation.

15 our drivers are looking out for everybody else, even other 15 THE WITMESS: I haven't, and I don't think anybody has.

16 companies. 16 Like I say, I don't think it would do any good, but maybe. I

17 BY MS. SHREVE: 17 don't know.

18 Q  Are there chaing on trailers that com ba usad to secuwe | 18 BY MS. SHREVE:

19 the bally dump 80 it dosen't open or 8o that it opens a oectain 1 Q  Eove you cwer hed — have you ever sesn a belly domp

20 width versus fully open? 20 teniler brws the chaing shortened while driving thair trock?

21 A Yes. A R That's kind of a broad question, because, you know, I've

2 0 Vst do you rofer — that wonld you call those chaing? 22 hauled wet concrete in bottom dump trailers and you have to put

23 1 don't knov the proper tessinology of it, so that's vy I'a 23 chains and binders cn there to keep the gates from opening. But

trying te —
A I'mnot sure what you call them, I just call them the

2
25

that's specific to that particular haul.
As far as what we do, no, I've never seen anybody — I
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dn't see a reason for doing it. If you think there's a way for

the gates to come open, that's not the way to stop it.

¢ Yoot would be the way to stop it?

R If you are concemed with the gates opening wp by the
valve, then we put a lockout device on the valve.

Q 8 would chortening the chains on tha belly dump be

campletaly?

shortened?

Page 92
0 If yoo £flip to DB 008,

A Okay.

0 Tt do all of thesn inspection date mrbren, ototn
plates — what aro all of thees?

A These are inspections of vehicles for whatever, for —
perfomed by law enforcement, it looks like.

wich is 15,

another wey to cnomro that tho full — the bally dum dossn't cpen Q0 Zod do you get copies of these inspectiong?
A Ch yes, I do. Yes.
A (h, yes. That's what they are designed for, yes. 0 Ind do you have oopdes of thesa inspections?
@  Are yon chlo to gtill drive the txock with the chaing 10 A At this particular point in time?
11 Q Yes, Doss MA.

A Yes. 12 A Probably, They are also available online, are they not?

Q Aro you cowo — oz, ig KB gows of ooy resuloticns 13 Idm't —
regairing & pin, & lockout pin e & Veern wlwe? 1 Q Fo.

A No, not in Nevada. I mean, there might be same state 15 A Ch
requlations, but none that I know of. 16 @ I would requos ¢hat you scuech for these, and if yoo

Q lot's go to — you briefly touched vpon this, Dozs 1B | 17 heve tham, pleass provids th= to your attorney.
require it drivers to havo cartain certificaticns o gpecial 18 MR. BROMN: The ones that match up with these, on this
licensa in order to drive their trucke? 19 document?

A Yes. They have to have a comercial driver's license, 20 MS, SHREVE: Well, we had requested everything through
Class A, doubles, triples endorsements. And along with that, 21 the present from — I believe it was qune 30th through the
other qualifications that go along with that are medical card, 22 present. And —
clean driving record, whatmot. 3 MR. BRORN: What did you call these?

Q By chout for explegces that perfor muintcomos oo the | 24 ¥S. SHREVE: The S5 system.
trucks and tendlexo? 25 And this document — I was told this was everything

Page 91 Page 93

A Is there any certification that's required? 1 through the present, but this document, cbvicusly, is

Q  Yes. 2 Mpril 2014 — or Rpril 4th. You understand.

A It's not an employment requirement. It's nota 3 So I would just request that. And we don't have actual
requirement of employment. You have to have experience and 4 copies of the inspection report at all, It was just this.
knowledge in this area, and you also have — but if they do 5 MR. BROAN: He'll see what we can find,
actually perform annual inspecticns, they have to be certified. 6 MS. SHREVE: Perfect. Thank you.

Q  Bot for regular rovting meintensncs and repsirs, there's | 7 THE WITNESS: I don't think I ever was asked for those.
po -- M08 doeca't requixe any specific certificstions e licenes? 8 BY MS. SHREVE:

A Mo 9 Q  If you cen Just look to see end provide to your

MS, SHREVE: Okay. I'm going to go to the next exhibit, |10 attomey, I would appreciate that.
1 % let's go domn to - it looks like on 7/7/2014 —
(Exhibit 15 marked for identificatiem.) 12 A Okay.
BY MS. SHREVE: 13 Q That's the doy of the epecific incident.
0 8o thio is M0B 007 through M08 10, Bave you seen this | U It lockn like thewe s an inspection done oo the
15 sbject trock; ig thot coevect?

A Have I seen this specific document before? 16 MR, BROAN: It's on the next page.

@ Yes. 17 THE WITNESS: (Ch, you are on Number 97 I'm sorry.

A I dom't think — I'm not sure. 18 MS. SHREVE: No, on Number 8.

¢ Aro you foniliar with vhat this docment is? 19 MS. WOELFEL: It's five lines down. If you look at the

A Yes. 20 inspection date, start at the top and go five.

Q  And what is this? il THE WITHESS: I see the 7/7, yes. What's it

A It's part of the ¥, Safety Measurement System, part of | 22 specifically that you are asking for?

Federal Highway, PMCSA. 23 BY MS, SHREVE:
@ 2nd do you keap records of the-s < ta? A Q Is that — for the subject truck and trailer ca the ¢y
A 1 suppose, on occasion, I do. 25 of the incident, the subject incident?
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Are we talking about the driver that's —

The graval truck on July 7th, 2014,

20142

Yes.

I'm assuming it is. I mean, I don't have a license
plate mmber to match up with the 5634, but I'm assuming it is,
I'm not denying it. I certainly wouldn't say it's mot.

9 I vould — in your reaponses to requasts for
interromtozies, it was indicsbted that 502618 is the licesso plate
for the trock, I'll represent that to yoo.

A Sure.

Q  So vhat emactly — what, I guoos, violations were given
to tho truck on the day of the subject incidmt? It looks ik it
reads ebove, if 1 mm cozrect.

A I'mhaving a hard time reading this as far as which way
it goes.

Q Ckay. And then I guess the best might bs to wait wmtil
w got the actuml inspection reports to be chle to go into detail
shoat it,

MR, BROWN: T guess so, because I'm unaware of what
these descriptions are for.
BY M5, SHREVE:

0 Soifen—

A Yeah, because page 2 of 4 is missing, cortect?

MS, SHREVE: Well, we would request page 2 as well, So

> O > O

Page 9
Q@ Ckay. Ywere was the load thet was picked wp on tho day

of the July 7th, 2014, incident?

A It was picked up at Palute Quarry, Paiute — it's Cemex
Paiute aggregate quarry in Wadsworth, Nevada.

0 Is it "Cemex™

B “Cemex,” yesh, C-eme-x.

Q8 if I just cell it “Camex,” would you understand we're
talking shout thet specific location?

o,

Bow would you like mo to pheass it?

Pajute.

“Faiute™

Yes. That's what we call it,

Is there a policy, when picking wp & lozd at Paiute,
regarding whether the driver gats out of the truck or stays in the
truch to meapally scones the lewer, the edtch?

A No, that's nothing to do with the loading site. Paiute
is vhere we load the load, So he would not have anything to do
with operating the valve at the time of loading,

0 50 cen ywou take me throogh the proosss of loading the
truch at Palute.

80 you would drive, cbricusly, there, and you pull in,

A For the most part, what happens 1s, when the truck
nitially goes to the pit, you have to go to the scales and tare
in, get your light weight.

0 D O

T Page 95 Page 97
we will request that and revisit that to go — to see what It's not samething that's required every day, but if you
occurred on that day. are going there for the first time, you get your light weight.

BY MS. SHREVE: And then they find out how much your legal with weight

Q Cxy. Fa'zo going to got oy £rom this docommnt and
Just recuast tmt you lock for thoso documents.
A Okay.

MS. WCELFEL: And I'l just  if you are able to look
for those before we resume tomorrow — because I think we're going
to have you back tamorrow — that would be great, if possible,
Brian, because we might need to ask Mr. Koski questions about that
document as well.

MR, BROA: We'll try.

MS, SHREVE: I was going to say, if not, we would like
to reserve the right to bring him back to ask about that.

BY MS. SHREVE:

Q  ¥heze do yoo — oxo thowe roge thon eno location to pick
up & lond, that MDB picks vp leods fresp

A Yes.

Q  Boy pemy different locationo are there?

A Are you talking about in Nevada? Califomia?

Q  For — doos MDB, the Rowadn locatica, pick wp loads in
other states other than Roveds?

A Yes, I mean, there are 25 different locations we would
pick up from. 90 percent of our business probably cames out of
just a few locations.

WD 2 OV U e W N
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is and they put that in the computer.

And then subsequently, you go out into the pit, and you
tell them what you are picking up, rock or sand. And he tells you
where they are loading — what part of the pit they are loading
fram, and then you get loaded,

You tell him. He imows how much you can haul, because
everybody hauls similar amomts.

So if you are loading sand, they might put two buckets
on the front, two buckets in the middle trailer, and one bucket in
the back trailer.

Then he follows you up to the scales and tops you off at
the scales while he's watching the scale to make sure you are not
overweight.

And if, for some reasons, he messes up and gets you
overveight, they make you go trim your load. They can't — their
system won't allow them to print an overweight ticket.

0 Fov do yon know what the legal weight is for your truck
and trailar?

A We measure it and use a formila provided to us by NDOT,
Nevada Department of Transportation.

0 2ud do you know what the legal weight is for Eguipment
lhmhar 5964 with Trailevs —
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Page 898 Page 100
1 R Yeah, 5694, 6773, 6774, It would be 129,000 pounds, 1 80-. You would be overweight.
2 gross weight. 2 Q@ Would it bo possible if your — would theze be any way
3 @  Doeg ecch trailer bave a epecific losd weight? 3 of Inowing that the sacond trailer — do you measurs your secoed
4 A A Limit? Yes, 4 snd thicd trailer together, then — wait, strike that.
5 0 hod hov do you know what that limit ig? 5 How do you measure the second and third trailer? Yo
6 A By how many axles it is, You have to go by the same 6 said the truck and first tzailer are messured together, correct?
7 fonmla, how many axles do you have versus your bridge, meaning i R Yes. As you drive along the scale, you can look at the
8 your distance in axle spacings. 8 scale. It has got a digital readout. You can see what you weigh,
9 Q  hod vhat is the losd limit for 67737 S So if it's 75,000, then you know your next two trailers
10 R You are talking about net weight, or are you talking 10 can't possibly be 80,000, You would be 150-some thousand pounds.
11 about gross weight? i | So in order to be 129-, they are way underveight. They
12 The truck -- I would say it's legal at about 12 probably caly have 30- and 30- in them,
13 75,500 pounds, the truck and the tratler with its load on. 13 Ind if you are trying to say — you are trying to get
14 Q  Vhat sbout Trailer 67747 14 at can one trailer be way overloadsd and the other trailer be,
15 A It's legal to 40,000 pounds as a trailer by itself. 15 say, emty, I don't think the material could physically — ym
16 Q  Rod what about 67757 16 could fit that much material physically in one trailer to overload
17 R Same thing, 17 it that mch.
18 Q 40,0007 18 These are small, small trailers.
18 R Yes, 19 Q Yesh, that vao ry guastionm.
20 Q@  Doas that include — I'm sorry, just to clearify — the |20 A Yeah,
21 weight of the trailer itsalf? 2 Q You con evezlocd then,
22 R Yes, that's the gross weight. That's the maximm gross |22 R You can overload them, but not — not to the point of
23 weight allowed. 23 40,000 pounds.
24 Q@ Do you imow how mch Trailar 6775 waighs? 24 0 8 are tharo no records kapt as to the weight per
25 A I would be quessing, soreshere around 9,500 pounds. 25 individel troiler of wdnt it's bauling?
e Page 99 T Page 101
1 @ Dozs }0B weigh its trailer? 1 A o
2 A M. 2 0 In o driver vequized to check in with MDB at ooy tims
3 Q  Bow dosg tho losdar knov bov ruch to put in esch trailer | 3 throughout the duy?
4 if there's thyes txailers? 4 R Only if he needs something or he has a problem,
5 R Because he does this all day long, so he's familiar with | § Q@ Is o drivor soguized to contoct MDB when they pick wp &
6 it. § load?

If he went out there with a set of trailers that he 1 R Yo

8 never saw before and he told them I'm legal at 129,000, he would 8 Q@  EBow chont vhen they drep off o lood?
9 say, well, we'll start off with — you are loading rock, twwanda | § L
10 half in the front and two in one and see how — until he fiqures 10 0 I'mgoing to g0 boek to Dhibit Mubes 2,
11 how much to put in you, 11 R Is that from yesterday?
12 0 8o does be waigh th troiloeo individually? 12 Q  Yes.
13 R No, not the loader operator, 13 Are these the drivex's dally loge previded to M2 ewory
14 But when you came across the scale, when ywu first come |14 day a driver drives?
15 on, you have your semi, you've got your tractor. And your first |15 R Yes. They tum them in every day.
16 semi trailer come on the scale first, yoo can see howmch you |16 @ I wos looking through tho driver's logs thot varo
17 weigh, 17 prodused, end I 4id not ses any driver'o log fren tho dyy of the
18 And in reality, there's no way for the next two trailers |18 2000 — July 2013 incident,
19 to weigh what they are legally capable of hauling hecanes you 19 I knov — wa'ro not eure em tho duts. I think kaccd e
20 would be overweight, 20 the intmrrogutory responses, I'll reprecent to gon thot M3 onid
21 So each trailer by itself has more carrying capacity as | 21 in one ares, it was July 5th, and emother ons, July — I balices
22 an individual trailer. But when you put them all together, your 2 it wg 30th.
23 length and your bridge loss lower the overall gross weight of the | 23 R The day of the first incident?
24 vehicle, 24 Q  Yes, the July 2013 incidsnt.

R Okay.
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Page 102 Page 104
Q@  And there aleo seem to be & lot missing bere gnd thare. | 1 correct?
Do you ke i€ you provided all tho deiver's logs that MDB hes, to | 2 A Yes.
youe otbozney? 3 Q Vhen was Mr. Foski hired?
A So are these all of the logs that we produced, or these 4 A I would have to go look. I would have to look that wp.
are just a sampling of the logs that we produced? 5 2013, I believe. 20122 I don't know. I don't have it right off
@ I heve the rest of them right here, I wat theough all 6 the top of my head,
of them, snd these are the onss that I pulled cut that were arcwd | 7 @ Do you know who hired hi=?
either right before or right after the time of the incident — 8 A Yes, Tracy Shane.
A Okay. 9 Q And what gmlifications did Mr. Koski have before be wog
@ - for '13and '14, I o glve you all of then to lock | 10 hired by ¥0B?
at if you would like to review them. 11 A He worked for numerous trucking companies as a (DL
A O no, I just — because there is a lot missing here, 12 driver, hauling aggregate and dump trucks, similar to what we do.
So that's why I'm wondering if these are just the anes you have 13 He had a (TL, medical card, proper endorsements.
questions on. u Q@ Oksy. I'mesotzy, Iwasn't bavieg thio oo ca Chikit,
Q@ Y3, these are just a sample of thes that I took out 15 bat I'e just going to poll it out to belp refredh your rmesy in
that vore oropnd the sibject incident. I bave the rest of then 16 regards to Mr. Foski's explogment.
tint g produoed here, 17 A I'mguessing it was 2012,
A I thought —~ didn't we look at these yesterday, though, |18 MS. SHREVE: Hold on ane second,
the ones from that day? 19 I don't have copies of this, but we can get copies made?
MR, BROAN: I thought so. 20 This will be Exhibit 16, and it is the employment file of
BY 5. SHREVE: 21 Mr, Koski that was produced by MIB. It's MDB 683 through 691.
Q W looked st th £rom 2014, I'n talking shout the 2013 | 22 ¥5, WOELFEL: Do you went me to meke quick copies right
incidant, 23 non?
A Oh okay. 24 MR. BROWN: Yes.
Q@ Bod there wao nothing ofter — the 2014 incident is the | 25 MS. SHREVE: We can go off the record for a second.
Page 103 o - Page 105
last one that vos produced. There'n rothing past 2014 that was 1 Sorry about that.
produced, 2 (A recess was taken.)
A Ibelieve that's all that was requested, or at least of 3 {Exhibit 16 marked for identification.}
me. Do you want — 4 MS. SHREVE: He're going to go back on the record.
MR. BROGN: We'll find them. If they didn't get 5 BY M5 SHREVE:
produced, we'll get them. 6 Q 8 off tho recond, I hended you & domrat thnt w0
THE WITMESS: You wanted all of them through a certain 7 produced ag Mr, Koeki's employmant file, T how rodded io as
time? 8 Exhikit 16.
MS, SHREVE: Yes. Yeah, through the present. That was 9 Doas this reflect your recollection of when Mz, Hooki
the request. Well, yes. 10 was hired?
MR, BROAN: I don't have their request in front of me, 1 A Yes and no. I'm someshat confused by the dates on here
but we'll find it. 12 that I'm reading, if I'm not — if I'm reading them correctly.
MS, SHREVE: We'll talk about that. 13 Q (Ckmy. ot —
THE WITMESS: Are you talking about for the specific b A Date of application, I'm reading that as August 8th,
trucks or the driver? 15 2010, Is that what everybody looks like they see?
M5, SHREVE: It was for the trucks and the trailer, not |16 Q ‘That is vhat I sse, ye3.
driver specific, but it was the trucks and trailer. }17 A But then you go down to the bottom here, he's got an
THE WITNESS: Okay. ;18 accident on 5/13, 2011. So I know that can't be true.
MS. WOELFEL: Paige, is it okay if we take a five-mimute , 19 Brd then you go to the next page or the third page, and
break right now? 20 it says he worked for a couple of copanies up until 2012,
MS, SHREVE: Sure. We can go off the record. 2 So I'm assuming that this is 6/8/2012 when he filled out
(R recess was taken.) 22 the application,
MS, SHREVE: ¥We can go back on the record. 23 @ Iwill help you. Eov sbout, go to XDB 689,
BY ¥5. SHREVE: 24 R Yes, I saw that. I-9 form -
0 ¥, Palmer, you wnderstand you are still under cath, 25 Q0 fo this may —
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Page 106
A -~ was also signed also on 6/8/2012. So provided that

the I-9 form was filled out properly at the time that he was
hired, that was his hire date.

@ Rod who does it eay is the representative from MOB?
Tracy Shane.
hod vhat's the date there?
6/8/2012.
8 safe to say that, likely, he a5 hired oo Juns Bth,

o o e

2012?

A Yes.

Q  Vhen Mr, Woski was hired, whst training did he undezgo?

A He would have went undervent the noomal training
procedures that we train our drivers on, on how we expect them to
operate in accordance with our values, a3 far as you are expected
to do proper pre-trip inspections, you are expected to obey the
traffic laws,

You are trained on shere you are going to  you know,
how to haul the material that we haul, how to fill cut the
paperwork, how to dump the material what — at the place. And
this is all done hands-on.

@ iy, 2od hov long dorzg this txaining — bov leng would
this training hove lasted?

A It usually lasts one to two days, full days.

Q  Did bo — ws he provided any othr tralaing othow thim
from M08, like any cuteids company?

2

24
25

Page 108
A First time I met him, be was driving for Rainbow Rock.

And we had a yard right next to Rainbow Rock, s0 he used to cut
through our yard every day. So I've known him since at least
1994,

Q 8 you've knoen hin in the truch driving cepecity, I
qoass?

A Absolutely.

So everybody — the word of mouth is he's a good driver,
Everybody knows he is a good driver, that kind of thing. That's
how  that's how you know a driver,

¢ Cimy.
A By his reputation,

And you also work with him. You are out there driving
with him on days.

Q Ckay. After Mr. Koski was esployed through wheo —
actmlly, strike that.

Is Mr, Koski still aaploped by MOB?

A No.

@ Eov lony o5o did he etop working for MB?

R T believe he stopped working for us sametime around
January, February of 2015,

Q@ Ckey, Znd vhy doss — bow oome bo no longer works for
M8

A From my understanding, he had some sort of a mini stroke
and that — he was off work for a while,

Page 107

A Mot after he was hired by us, no. Well — no.

@  Did Mr, Koski receive any company policies or handbooks
when be was hired?

A I'mnot sure if he received the Federal Motor Carrier
green book, they call it. I'mnot sure if he received that.
There's no record in his file that says he received it.

Q@ Chsy.

A S0 I'mnot sure.

When you say “other training," I mean, he went to MSHA
training. I mean, that's really nothing to do with driving a
truck, but

Q vhat training was that?

A MSHR, Mine Safety Health Administration training. He
did three days of training with that so he could get on to mine
sites, but that's really nothing to do with driving a truck.

Q Cmy. Aoy other training, whether it was related to
griving the trock or pot?

A No.

This is an individual that's known to us, known to
Tracy Shane, I've known him for 25 years. Everybody knows he has
driven trucks his whole life. So he's got experience. You put
him in the truck, you can see that he can do the job.

Q  You enid you've knoem M. Koski for ower 25 yesrs?

R I have, yes.

@ 2nd hov bwo you — how did you first meet Mr. Koski?
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He actually came in fram the job and said he felt dizzy

and left, and they took him to the hospital. He ended up having
sort of a mini stroke, and he hasn't been the same since. So he
decided to retire,

Q  Infd do you zemll when that was?

A That would have been arcund Jarmary, February of 2015,
to the best of my recollection.

0 5o Mz, Koski retired from MIB; is thet corvect?

A Yes.

Q@ 8 from the time be started mtil when be retired in,
roughly, Jamary ce February 2015, was M. Foski ewer provided any
additional company policies or handbocks or training sammls?

A Not from my knowledge. I mean, not that I can say for
sure, I should say. He may have, but I don't — I can't prove
that he was.

@  Bow did MB dzcids to aseign Trock —

A 5694,

@ — toMr, Roeki?

A That was just the truck that probably would have been
available at the time. We may have just recently purchased it,
and he — he was next in line to get that truck and that — he
started driving that truck and he liked it, so you just keep him
in there,

@  Did K. Ko drive any othex troow?

A (h, yes.
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Q  Vamt other trucks did he driw?

& I'msure he would have driven just about every ang of
owr trucks at one time or another.

Q 8o wms Trock 6580 —~

A 5694,

Q — 5634 specifically assigoad to Mr, Koski, or could
other drivers drive it?

B It was assigned to him, yes, but that doesn't mean
somebody else couldn't drive it. I drove it quite a bit.

Q  2nd vhen did you driwe it?

A Idrove it — I have driven it off and oo since I've
been there, you know. But there have been times when I would
drive it for meybe a month while he was driving another truck.

Q  Aod would you drive it with Trailers 6773, 6774 and
67157

B Most of the time if I was, in fact, hauling aggregate

and bottom dumps, but not necessarily. 17

Q  Other thon yoursalf end Mr, Foski, did ouybody else
drivo Truck 56807
R Yes,

0 %o eles drove, bobween July 2013 end the prssent? 2
R Ch, gosh. It's prabably been ten different drivers or 2
more drive it. 23

Q  From July 2013 to tho preorat, b any othes driver
polled Trailer 6773, 6774 and 6775 cthez thon ik, Kooki?

Page 112

R Immediately after it happened?

Q  After you gpoke with Mr. Foeld and be told you that the
truck doeped on the roed.

B Fell, we did. That's when we replaced the Versa valve
oo the back trailer and did all of the wiring — did a few wiring
changes in the truck, But, yes, we did do that inspection and did
same revanping of things.

Q Vs Mr, Koskl disciplined for his — for his ections a
the day of the subject incident of July 7th, 20147

B Mo,

Q  Did you speak with Mr, Foski on the day of the subject
incident? Did someone fron MB spesk with his?

R Yes.

Q  Did someone from MDB inepsct the txzuck oo the doy of
this incident?

MR, BRORN: (bjection, asked and answered.

THE WITHESS: 1 don't believe we actually inspected the
truck, That was the day we put the lockout devices on it. And
they haven't had a problem since, so yeah.

BY MS. SHREVE:

Q  Did the subject truck end tradler - you just iedicated
that you put the leckent devicn on the day that it comered,

fo did the truck — wo the troch ond trailer — truck
oed $vndloes in ssevice the following éuy, olaoe it hed the
lockout é=vies oo it?

Page 111

Yes.
Bow maty different drivors?
Ch, probably half a dozen,

Q Wbs M, Foski subject to sy discipline in regurds to
the July 2013 incident?

B No, he was not. He didn't do anything wrong as far
as - o,

Q Did M8 do ary investigetion in regards to Mr. Noski's
sctions on that day?

MR. BROAN: (bjection, asked and answered.

THE WITHESS: We spoke with him, and we were sure that
he wasn't the cause of the accident, or the cause of the spill of
the rock. I shouldn't say the accident; the incident.

BY M5, SHREVE:

Q  2zd vhat Gid be say in regards to the July 2013 incident
vhen you spoks with his?

B That he was just driving down the road and the gates
opened.

Q  Did M8 do sny inspestion in the truck after the
July 2013 incident?

MR, BROWN: Objection, asked and answered.

THE WTTMESS: Are you talking about, did we inspect the
truck after it happened?

BY MS. SHREVE:
Q Yea.

-~ -
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A Ibelieve 50, yes. I think it was critical that we had

them back in service the next day.

0 I'mgoing into same of your knowledge shout the ssad
truck, which ves the truck you were driving on the day of the
mbject incident.

R Olay.

f S cen you just explain to o the process of your day &
that ¢y, July Ttb, 2014, like from when you got to woek.

MR, BROAY: I'm just going to object. He has already
answered this about what time he got there.

But you can tell her again.

THE WITNESS: If I remember correctly, the truck and the
trailers were already hooked together the night before.

So I came to work at 4:45 a.m., proceeded to do my
pre-trip inspection on the truck and the trailers, make sure
everything is working, and left the yard at 5 o'clock and headed
to the Patute pit.

If I remamber right, my load time that day was 5:31.
And the reason it's 5:31 is specifically to show the two trucks
loading at 5:30, vhich order for them to load wp.

If you just put both of them at 5:30, then nobody knows
which — who to load in fromt of. So I'm5:31, that means you
load behind the quy at 5:30. That's all that means.

BY ¥S. SHREVE:
Q Chay. And what load did you pick vp that dey?
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A& I believe I went to Paiute quarry, picked up
three~quarter concrete rock and took it to Cemex Concrete, the
Cemex Concrete batch plant in Reno.

Q0 And if you wamt to look at Exhikdt Rosber 2, it's
¥DB 679 and M8 681, It eppears to bu wour driver's timashest and
bill of lading.

A What mubers, 4797

Q 6.

A Oh. Okay. It's in Exhibit 2. Yeah, it's in that cne.

Oh, these are all 400 mumbers,
MR. BROAN: I wes telling him. He'll eventually get

W o0 - O e W N
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sign the ticket, grab my copy of it and leave.

Q Ckay. Bafore yoor truch wss losded at 5:28, doss the
loader chack your belly dump to encure that it is closed?

A MNo. He probably would see it if it was open in the
daytime, but in the dark, he wouldn't notice it — probably would
not motice it.

But if it was cpen, it would just dup on the ground,
and within a few minutes, you would be getting yelled at on the
.

Q  Does he check the pressure geuge oo the Veen valwe?

A Mo,

there, 12 Q0 Aftor your truck is loeded, do wou incpret — do yom
BY MS, SHREVE: 13 inspect your trailers to see if the belly gutes axe cleced?
Q I think it might bo the last one in thet eshibit o 14 A Yeah, I doa visual as I'm walking to the scale house.
close to it. 15 It would be pretty obvicus. You could see if the gates are open
A Oh, here we go. 16 as you are walking by the trailers. Yesh.
MR, BROWN: Yeah, go back a little. Keep going that 17 0 S0 on the first lo~d that you brd, you did a vicnl
way. They are before those, 18 inspection of —
THE WITNESS: Chay. 19 A VYes,
BY M, SHREVE: 2 Q -—of it. Okzy.
Q0 80 679 and 661 appear to be your sand truck, the sand a Did you — during your fivst leod, did you vicmally look
trock yoo were driving, 22 at the pressure gauges on the first —
A Yes. 3 A N
@ 1 think thip will kelp you in peforencing. 24 It really doesn't take a whole lot of pressure to keep
A Okay. 25 the gates closed once they are loaded. And for same reascn, if
Page 115 Page 117
%o you exrived to pdck v your lood. you don't have any air pressure, you are going to know it right

I arrived at 5:28 a.m.

Okzy. And what did you pick vp that day?

My first load, I picked up concrete rock. So I arrived
at the pit at 5:28 a.m. and left the scales with my weight slip at
5:51 a.m.

Q  Chsy. And bov doen the individsal leading your txuck go
about — how did ba lood your trailer that day?

A Okay. Seeing how I already have a tare weight and they
only require you to get a new tare weight not that often, maybe
every couple of months, I just came in the pit, go around the back
of the scales where the rock is located.

And when it's my tum to load, I pull up. And he knows
to put two and a half buckets in the front trailer, I pull wp,
puts a bucket and a half or something like that in the second
trailer, pull up and puts, like, one bucket in the back trailer.

Now, depending on if there's another rock truck behind
me and whether he'll follow me up to the pit — wp to the scale
and top me off, or he'll load the mext truck and top us both off
at the same time.

Probably what happened is, I was the only truck there,
So he brings up another half a bucket. I pull on to the scale, he
watches the scale, and as soon it gets to 129,000 pounds, he
stops.

o> o

She prints the ticket in the scale house. I go inand

YW GO - U e W R
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away. It's going to open up on you as soon as he puts the first
load bucket on.

So in all my years, I've never seen a truck leave the
scales with the gates open. By that time, somebody has already
alerted them, hey, what are you doing, your gates were open when
you vere loading.

S0, no, I do not visually check the air pressure on
every load.

Q 8o then aftre you vars loaded — and you degerted, it
looks like, gt 5:51, ———
A Yes.
Q0 hare did you g0 when you daparted?
A I went to the Cemex Concrete batch plant located in
1 arrived there at 6:27 a.m.
Q0  Anod when you arrived, what did you éo?
A ¥hen you arrive at the plant — this particular plant,
you go around the plant counterclockwise. So you head up the ramp
on — I quess that would be the north side of the plant.

You honk your air hom twice to let them know that you
are there so he can turn the belt on.

So when you pull around the back of the plant and you
position your first trailer over the grizzly, the belts are
already on, and you can get out and dump the rock and have it
start going up — up the belt, because by the time you get to the

Reno.
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second and third trailer, if the belts aren't om, your last
trailer wn't fit.

0 8o vhen yoo arriwed, did you — I'n tnlking mecficlly
your - the first time at 6:27 a.m., did you mloed the belly Gmp
of the first trailer?

A Urhh,

Q  And hov did you unload that?

A Thewsy I do it is, T pull on to the grizely so that the
gates are straddling the grizzly. This is where a driver can
actually use his switch to open the gates.

But you can't open the gates wide open and have the
vhole load go in there, It makes a mess. You can open it and
close it, but T don't see anybody doing it.

1 physically get out of the truck and walk back there
and use the hand valve to dump the trailer by hand.

@ Gy

A And also, that gives — then especially when it's dark
in the moming, then you know for sure you are over the center of
the grizzly. You only have a few inches front or back to be
centered on the qrizzly.

If you are too far forward or back, you spill the
material off where the grizzly isn't. And the loader has toc come
over there ard push it into the grizzly.

So I visually check to make sure I'm in the correct
place ard s0 open the gates by hand about halfway, and you just

I
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kind of let the rock flow in there,

@ Orlwh. 8o you - just clarifying, you open the lever
80 that the helly qate only opens halfwey; is that correct?

R Yes, You start cracking it open. The gate starts
slowly opening, When it gets about halfway, you pull the Versa
valve back into the neutral position so the gates stay in the
same — they don't start to close or open, they stay right there,
right where you set them,

Q Ckay. 8o vhen you are dmping your first locd, did
you — you didn't — just trying to clarify

The belly dp weam't - y opan a5 far as it conld
go; is that coerect?

R Not when you first start opening it, mo,

Q Vhen ~- do you ever cpen it fully?

A (h, yes. As soon as it — as soon as you see the
majority of the rock came out, then you open it all the way so
that the gates are all completely open.

And then you can pull the Versa valve back closed
myentarily, push it back open momentarily, And that kind of
shakes the gates and makes sure there are no rocks. If there is
any rock left over in there, they will came out. Then you close
all the gate all the way.

And as you are doing this, you are watching the air
pressure gauge, For me, you are curious, make sure you've got
enough air pressure, but generally, there's plenty of air

W D g o e W N
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pressure.

Q  Eo on the firet load, you ended vp opming it fully,
cloging it, cpaming it again, is that corvect, to shake out the
rest? Is that how I waderstood it?

A No. You open up halfway, let the rock come out until
the majority of it comes out. Then you open up all the way, then
you just barely start to close it, and open it, just a couple of
inches.

If you close it all the way, then open it all the say
back wp again, now you would be out of air, not that it would hurt
anything, but that's — at that point.

Q  hod then did you close that bforo wou pulled w to
wnlosd your sscond?

A Oh yeah.

Q  3nd did you do the &0 thing with youx — tis second
trailer as you did with the first?

A Exactly the same thing.

Q od did you do tho emet oo thing for tho thind
trailer?

A Yes,

Q@ 5o ooy that you'wo valend=d your txuck, whnt did you do
oert?

A Left the plant, went back to Paiute and got another
load,

Q  Yom you qerived at Paiute, did you check to see if

Page 121
your — if the gates were opan?

Fo,

@ Did you chack the pressuze gauges?

A No.

Q  Did the persan loading thn tewck, teo youe keodcdsy,
check?

R Fo.

Q Qg
7:05, cozzcct?

A Yes.

0  BSotellsuhat - once you arrived,

A COkay. On the -- somewhere along the line between — I
can't remember if it was on my dispatch or samebody told me after
T hauled my first load, but somebody switched me to sand, which is
very common.

You switch to sand, rock, sand, rock, depending on what
bin is getting full or what they need.

So I get back, and I amnoumced on the radio, 5693 back,
back in the pit, getting sand this time, to make sure they update
their camputer, so that when you leave the pit, your weight slip
says sand an it, not rock, bessuse then that messes up their
inventory.

So then you go to a different portion of the pit, shich
is where they load the sand, And be loads the sand, And you do
the same way you did the rock, Slightly different configuration

80 you oezived, you cadd — 80 it looked like
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on how many buckets he puts in because of the weight of the sand,

but the same scenario,

Q Cky. 2od then after your comd g oll locded, did yoa
cheek to £23 4 your gates were closed?

A Mo

Q  Did you check the pressure?

A M.

It's an assumption that they are closed. I mean, if

they weren't closed, you would be stuck in the pit. So, I mean —

W W A U e Ww ND —

yeah, 10
Q  2od then, 2o after you were loeded, what — what 11
hoppeaned neat? 12
A After I went across the scale, got my weight slip, went |13

and headed into town, did the exact same thing as the first load
went there,
The cnly thing different is, when you get there with

sand, you don't honk your hom so they can tum the belt an, 1
because the grizzly, you dump in ~ you pull up, straddle the
grizzly, you get out, you tum the belt on yourself.

Q Ckay. Aod with thip loed, did you msmvnlly uea — did
you use the meounl lever to opsa the bally dup?

Page 124
A Well, I would have had to stop before I got to the pit

to do all of this because you are not allowed, your truck, in the
pit. So in order to do the inspection, you have to stop somewhere
outside the property to do this.

0 o did you stop — prior to picking op tha 8:31 load,
did you stop ecmmhere to do the inspection op it?

A Mo,

@  Did you stop ey time betwaen your first concrete load
at 5:28 end your second or your third sond pickwmp at 8:31 to
ingpect your truck —

A ¥o.

¢ — and teailexe?

A Yo

Q 8o your truck v lovded with tho oond,  Mftee your oood
ws in the treck — in tho trailers, did you do omy ierpectiea ea
the trailers, after it wg losded?

A Just the visual inspection. As you are walking to the
scale house, you are always — visual it — I am, a$ a driver,
always visually inspecting what you have, make sure you don't have
a flat tire, You look at the tires.

You are sitting on the scale and you've got a big pile

pressure gauge is within a few inches of the valve, so you are

A Rell, vhen you are loading out at the pit, you can see

K Yes. 22 of sand underneath your trailer, it would be pretty obvious.
@  Did you do thnt for all thres tenilers? 23 @ 8o you smy you do your viseal inspection. Do yom bwa o
A Yes. 24 routine vismel inspection that you do?
Q0 2od did wo cpen it in the oo Eoemer ag you didwith | 25 A T mean — me, personally?
o Page 123 Page 125
the first load? 1 g Tes.
A Yes. 2 A Yeah, I'm always looking at my equipment as I'm walking
¢ Did you ensure that all trailers varo cloced prior to 3 by it.
leving? 4 @ Do you bove hied of a mmtal checklist of —
A Yes. 5 A Yes. Un-tuh, yesh.
Q0  Did you check the pressure on all threa trailers? 6 0 And what does your memtal checklist includd of your
A Yeah., I mean, vhen you are — the valve — the air 7 viswl iospsction?
8
9

looking at it as you are closing it. It's pretty hard not to.

0 Cksy. Jod so after you ware unlosded, vhat did you do
nent?

A This is on the second load?

@  Yesh, the second,

A T went back to Paiute, got another load of sand, the
same as I always do -- or, I mean, the same as the first tw
loads, went, repeated the same procedure to go back, get another
load of sand.

Q@ Rl zight. Aod when yon arvived to get this load, did

—
— o

you caeck the bally dwps to ss0 if they wave cloesd? bL)
A Mo, 20
¢ Did you chack the pressure gmug? 21
A No. 2
@  Did you check the comections botwaen the trailers? 23
A N 4
@  Did you do any inspection of your truck or trailers? 2

what the loader operator is doing. You can tell if he's not
putting the material in there correctly.

So, for some reason, you see him doing samething weird
back there, like, it's a different loader operator, maybe you get
out, walk by there and do a more thorough check.

But for the most part, you are just looking to make sure
everything looks right.

It's like looking at your gauges in your truck. You get
used to what everything is supposed to look like, and if something
is cut of place, then it catches your eye.

0 8o you did your visumal inspection after you hed your
load when pou were walling?

A Uhhh,

Q  And then ~— ond you didn't notice enything in your
vigml ingpection?

A Mo

0 2od then wbat comrred?
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A I left the pit and headed to Reno to dump at the same

Cenex Concrete plant.
Q@ Ckmy. And did enything come on your drive to the
plant?
A fhen T got to town, I received a phone call from
samebody that says, "Hey, did you lose a load of sand?®

And I said, "I don't think so.®

At that particular point, I was able to move the
steering wheel slightly to the right and back to the left, and 1
could see the back trailer.

I could see the back gate was wide open on the back
trailer. And I said, "Ch, crap, I quess I did,” at which time, I
reached over — first of all, I looked over to see if my switch
was on, which it wouldn't, It wouldn't possibly be on, but that's
the first thing I checked.

And then I lifted up the cover for the rear trailer,
turned the switch on and back off again, and that closed the
gates.

¢ Chmy. 8 you first looked ower in the —

A Visually inspected the switches to make sure the covers
vere down,

0 Rod vare the cowrs dom?

A Yes.

Q Cay. Aod then I'n going to actually back vp & second.

Viwere ware you when you got notified of this?

W @D ) O LN B W B ks

10

Page 127
A I was at Vista Boulevard heading into town. I'm not

sure what exit that is. 21?

@ Do you know approximstely how long it had been since you
had left?

A Twenty minutes.

Q@ o it would be fair to say arowd 9 o'clock is when you
ware notified?

A Yes.

@ Jod do you recall where you pulled over?

A Ididn't pull over.

@ G I'msorzy. I thought yoo said you pulled ovex. 8o
you ware inspecting when you were driving?

A Well, if you are going down the road and you look in
your mirror, you canmot see the gates.

But if you tum your wheel just slightly to the right
and back to the left, the back trailer will move over like this,
move over six inches and back six inches. And when it moves back,
you can see the gate and you can see it's open.

Q Oy

A Mnd that's when I reached over, opened it, tum the
switched on, turned it off. And that energizes the solenoid and
closes it, even though who knows why it was open,

At that point, there was no reasan for me to pull over.
I just went to the plant.

@ Chsy. hod when you arrived at the plent, whot did you

WO - oh Ut e W N e
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do?

A Just dumped my load like nomal and then headed to the
yard, because at that particular point, I think I heard already
about Dan Koski's incident.

Q@ And when you got to the third tmailer, did you open the
third troiler?

A No. Imean, it was empty.

Q@ 2nd hov did you Imow it was epty?

A Well, vhen you are going down the road and the gates are
wide open, there's no chance of there even being so mich as a
pebble in there now, after it has been bouncing dem the highway
for 20 miles.

I mean, there's just mo chance. It's cpen all the way.

Q@ 8o you didn't check?

A (h, mo,

Q@ Did you look at the lever of the Veren walve o the
third teailex?

A Yesh.

0 Fant g the podition of the lever?

A At this point, it was closed.

0 5 itwes dea?

A Out.

g -

A It's hard to say. Out.

0 lst's see if wo can — we'll go to Rehihit 3, which in a

Page 129

plehome of the Versa valwe, just visually, to mke sure wo have
the same mderstanding.

fo MB 004, Ckay.

A Bs you can see in this picture, the Versa valve, the
handle points dowm, If you push the valve in towards the center
of the trailer, it opens the trailer, and then if you pull it all
the way out towards you, it closes the trailer.

@  Borht v tho position of the lewer?

It was in the "out” positicn after I got to the plant.
Did you touch tho lover et all —

Idm't —

- to sa0 if you conld — if thare wis amy resistanco in
pushing it in?

A I think I did.

Q Ckay. 2od vhat did yon find?

A I think there was resistance in it, meaning the
accumilator did have air in it.

Did you look at the sir presoure guugs?

I beldeve so.

Jnd what did the air predcurs guupy indicate?

I'm sure it had better than a hundred pounds of air.
fo then after — striks that.

Rfter you left the drop-off locaticn, what did you do

D > K X

>0 Moo

next?
A Went to the yard, our yard, MIB's yard.
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@  hod vhat oocurred ot tho yard?

A Well, after doing a cursory inspection at plant, seeing
if there's nothing cbvicusly wrong with the valve, with the
plumbing or the wiring, nothing — there's nothing that was
broken, going to the yard, looking at it there, there's no cbvious
thing that — ance again, there's nothing cbvious that pointed to
vhy this thing opened, I decided to put the truck out of service
and to fabricate the lockout devices.

Q  Did you tell anyone aboot what oocnrred with your truck
ard trailer?

A No. Everybody already knew it.

You are talking about did I tell my supervisor at the
time?

Q0 Yes.

A Yeah, he already knew it. Yes, I talked to him about
it.

Q  Eav did ko aleceody ke

A Because everybody — news travels fast. I'm sure
everybody in Northern Nevada lmew samebody lost a load, as soon
as -- you know,

0 8 thesa'o o Lot of gpagip going avound?

Yes.
Q And at that time, hed you heard about Deniel Koski's
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problems. 5o it could have been, I dn't know, the driver.

Tracy Shane might have said I don't know,
@  Did sngone implement that?
A Idm't know. I never did. As a driver, I never did
it.
Q@ Chay, ¥ould ehorbening tha gate chmin balp ensure that
the belly gate dmp wouldn‘t fully open?
A Ch yes.
Q@  So that would be & way to belp eccuxe your losd fren
unloading, I guess, folly?
A 1 suppose it could. I mean, it could help, yes.
MS, SHREVE: Can we take a short break so I can just do
a quick review over my notes to make sure that I don't have
anything else,
MS, WELFEL: Sure.
M5, SHREVE: We're going to go off the record.
(A recess s taken.)
MS. SHREVE: So we'll go back on the record,
BY MS. SHREVE:
@ M, Palrer, you onderotend you are still under cath,
oorrect?
A Yes.
MS. SHREVE: So next, I'm going to hand to you, which is
Exhibit 17. This was brought to us today by your counsel.

A Yes. 25 (Exhibit 17 marked for identification,)
Page 131 Page 133
Q Iod did you gpeak with anpone regarding your load and BY MS. SHREVE:
his loed both cocmrring that day? @  Yesterdsy snd posgibly todzy es wall, you testifisd that

R Well, my immediate contact was Pat Bighy. And T just
said, you know, I'm putting these trailers cut of service, I'm
going to fabricate these, and that's what I'm going to do, because
it's just — we had already been through this the year before. We
couldn't find anything wrong. We still can't explain vhy it
happened.

So we just decided to go the — this route, where his -
make it 50 the handle cammot move,

Q At ooy point, did yoo goys ~- or, did snpone fron tTB
mgaost 2o chovirning of the gats chains just as & safety
precoution to encure thet it woulda't — the belly ¢ite) vould not
fully epen?

A After this issue or before this issue?

@ Aoy tiso — I goess eny tims after Jamuary — or, sorxy,
July 2013,

R Maybe somebody suggested it. I'mnot sure. I wouldn't
have suggested it, because, like I say, it's not a positive
lockout device,

Same of the Ranco trailers have a way to do that, but
our back two trailers don't have a way of doing that.

@ Do you hrea an idee of who =y bave sugested shortening
the gate?

A Oh, everybody has got their ideas about how to solve

W o =) L e W N
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the - that your drivexs prowids wehiclo inspection reparts whem
they do their inspection. 1s thst cozvest?

A At the time of this happening, our drivers —

MS, SHREVE: C(an you repeat my question to him. Sorry.
(The question was read by the reporter,)
THE WITMESS: That was correct wp until the point that
they changed the law.
BY MS SHREVE:

g Ckay. %ot is the — vhat ley wup chonged®

R The requirement to fill out the DVIRS is now only
required to fill it out if there's a defect noted.

Q@ Ckay. And when was thet chsnge?

A I don't know, approximately a year and a half ago.

Q@ J2aod what we required prior to the lmy chenga?

A You had to fill out a IVIR every day regardless of if
there is a defect or not.

Q@  So egpprowimately o year and 2 half zgo, that wes changed
to caly if the driver noted soms sort of defect, corvect?

A Correct.

Q Cay, lod co vhnt you bropght to us todsy i what 8
Driver Yehicle Incgection Report ip fox MB that woold be £illed
oat?

R Correct, even though, if you look at that, it says
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*Morrison Trucking” at the top. I don't know if you noticed that.

Q@ Idid. Iwms going thare next to ask, why do your
vehicle inspection reports say “Morrison Trucking™

A Mpparently, Tracy Shane wanted to use these inspection
reports that samebody gave him, And drivers were crossing out
*Morrisen Trucking® and vriting “MDB Trucking” on there instead,
But, apparently, whoever filled these cut did mot do that.

@ Ckay. Bo bavo you alwmys hed the Morrison Trucking —

R Oh, we had them for a while. Now, we don't. Now, we
have ones that say *MDB Trucking.”

0 Oy

A If you know Tracy Shane, he don't like to throw anything
out.

@ Bo lils to soogela.

Ig ¥03 ot oll zelated to Morrison Prucking?

A o

@ Bnd eo everything on this wehicle inspection report, is
this everything thet is doms dnily that's inspected?

A Are you talking about the check boxes?

Q@ Yes, all tho bomes, 1Is thot evurything listed that is
to be inspacted evary day?

A That is a guideline that, my guess, J.J. Keller puts on
there for you to go by. But there are other things that we check
that aren't on here, and things that are on here that we don't
check because they don't apply to our vehicle,

W oD ) N & W N
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at the end of the day.

@ Ckey. 8o oms of thess, if I'm correct, then, in
wndorstanding, it's not filled out in the morning, just in the
efternoon; is that cozrect?

A Correct. You are required to do the inspecticn in the
morning, but you don't actually fill out — it's not required to
fill out the inspection report until the end of the day.

You can — you £ill that out in the moming if you want,
But if samething else breaks during the day, you can add it to it
and then tum it in,

@ 8 if yon brd dlenovered somsthing in your initial
ingpection, would you note it on here and just wit until your
final ingpection at the end of the dzy?

Yes. I would note it on here.

You wonld add?

Yezh.

% that & "yes™ Sorzy.

Yes, sorry.

Is thot typloal for most of MDB's drivers, to note
samathing on thelr inspection wehicle vepart in the morning if
they noticed it?

A Uh-huh, yes, it would be,

¥3. SHREVE: Go to the next exhibit, which would be
Exhibit 18.

0 O D

{Exhibit 18 marked for identification.)

W e oh O o W RS
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Q0 ¥hnt aro thiegn that ore eot on hege dut wou would

check?

A Oh, you check your gates to make sure that they are
properly closed, You check to make sure your safety pins are
inserted on your hitches, en your transfer trucks. You're making
sure your valves are open to your back trailers, on your miltiple
sets of trailers,

And there's also — you are looking for all kinds of
things.

Basically, what the drivers are following are the
quidelines put forth by the commercial driver's license pre-trip
inspaction, and this just helps them remeaber same of that stuff
as they are doing it.

Q@  Rod would this be the same inspection that's condocted
at the end of the day as well for the driver?

A Yes. 50 it's the same inspection done in the moming,
pre-trip and post-trip, almost identical. And this is tumed in
at the end of the day.

And your driver can fill it out any time during the day
or at the end of the day. It doesn't have to be filled out in the
moming. It has to be completed and turned in at the end of the
day as part of his post-trip inspection,

Rs you can see on this first one, on August 19th, 2015,
the driver didn't even sign it. I'm not sure which driver it was
that day, but he filled it out at 3:00 p.m., which, I imagine, is

W 0 n i W N
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BY MS, SHREVE:

0 These were provided to me this morning from your

comnsal, I gooss you pulled for mo last night.
Can you explain to me what thees ave.

A The first one I'm looking at is the brake inspector
qualifications, certification.

It's set forth by the USDOT rules, Federal Motor Carrier
Safety Administration, that in order to work on the brake system
of a vehicle, you have to be certified, qualified by your
enployer,

So this wuld be my employer, MB Trucking, certifying
me, based on my 30 years experience, to do brake.

Q  (Chay.

A Required brake maintenance ard repair.

Q@ Cksy. Jnd then what about the second page?

A The second one is similar, It's just this ome is an
inspector qualification certification, which is required for me to
perform armual inspections under the Code of Federal Regulaticns,
that I'm qualified.

It just certifies that I'm qualified, and they checked
that.

1 think this is in response to samething you asked
yesterday, if I had any certifications to do this, yes.

Q@ Ves. I sppreciate it.

Are there any other cartifications thnt yon howo othsr

Litigation Services
www.litigationservices.com

| 800-330-1112

AA000376




SCOTT ALEN PALMER VOL.?2

03/07/2017

Page 138 Page 140
1 then these teo that you heve provided todey? 1 Q & there was a wiring issue that was preveatiog the
2 A T mean, I have other — not provided by my employer, I 2 switch from operating the gatn?
3 do not think so. I have air-conditioning certifications to be 3 A Cor—~,
4 able to perfom air-conditioning work on a comercial vehicle, 4 Q  Eow did you correct that prohle?
5 ¢  Auy other certificstions in regavds to parforming any 5 A I believe I wiplugged the four~amy from the front of the
6 repoir vork of aintenance oo thase wehicles? 6 front trailer, cleaned it, put it back in and it worked.
7 A Idm’t think so. 7 Q Ind you used the eams four—smy?
8 MS. SHREVE: I think that's all the questions I have 8 A Yes.
9 right now, I reserve the right to ask some more after other 9 Q  Aed clesning that foor-wzy fimd the problest
10 comsel contimes. 10 A Yes, because when you clean it, you are also — if it
sl So at this moment, I would pass the witness. 11 gets any kind of corrosicn on it whatsoever, the switch — it's
12 MS, WELFEL: Great. Thank you. 12 not really corrosion, it just — basically, you are just cleaning
13 M5, SHREVE: Do you want to take a break and switch? 13 it with a wire brush and spreading the prongs out slightly and
bt} ¥S. WOELFEL: No, we can get started. I'll just try to |14 plugging it back in and it worked.
15 speak wp i5 0 Io that & pretty typical isoo vhere you would b com
16 If you can't hear me, let me know. 16 cozt of corrosion or debris dn emy of theco plugs it vould
17 THE WITNESS: Okay. 17 peewent or that would ceuse scwe soct of & enlfunctien in the
18 18 vieleg?
19 EEMINATI 19 A It's possible. ®hen I say "corrosion,” that’s probably
20 BY MS, WOELFEL: 20 a bad choice,
2] 0 My namo i Jessica Woelfel. I represent ML Lamar, 2 It's more of axidation of the brass. It doesn't make
a2 I'll get through as much as I con todey, then we'll pick | 22 good contact. So you have to get in there and clean it with 2
23 back wp tomorzow morning, just dependiny vhere we are. 23 wire brush,
24 8 I want to go back to, just really quickly, Exhibit 17 | 24 @ Do you do any type of regular inspactions of tho wiriey
25 that you ware just looking at, the Driver Vehicle Inspection 25 to check for thoss types of isgues, or do you just wmit wmtil o
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1 Peport. 1 éziver hriess 4t to your atbemtion that a ceb sdtch im't
2 A Can you explain samething for 2 second. 2 working?
3 Q &me. 3 A %hen they oome in for the routine inspections, we check
§ A RC lamar, is that the parent cowpany to Ranco, or is 4 to make sure that the wire is in place and the wire is not —
5 that the company who purchased Ranco? I'm not sure who 5 everything looks mechanically oorrect, in other words, it's not
1 0 Dat's tho company that sald to Deagon. So that's ~ 6 broken, the wire is not broken, the four-way plug is not
7 A Okay. Just in relation to Ranco trailers? 7 physically broken,
8 0 Yes, cnufrctucer of the trailer, originel mecufecturer. | 8 But we do not unplug and clean it every time we check it
$ Clny. Vath respect to this trailer — this is Trailer 9 off, no.
10 ugbex €775 ca the fivet page — the re—azks hegn — call, first 10 Q Do you ever, in the anowsl inspsction, wnplug and cleon
11 of all, o oo tell m2 who the mechanic's sigmotive i oo this 11 and check the wires at that point?
12 docynt, first pago of Exhibit 1T? 12 A On the amual inspection? I would — I dom't think so,
13 A Are you talking about the — 13 m.
14 Q  First pogd of the Deivwes'o Vehicle Incpesticn Report, b It -~ you have to understand the nature of these plugs,
1% A Oh, that would be my signature, that the defects were 15 and you change them all the time anyway because of damage. And
16 corrected. 16 so —
n Q Okay. Pud the remarks were that the czb switch is not n Q Okay. 8o going all the way beck —
18 cpening the gate. ¥hat dose that meen? 18 A OCkay.
19 A That means that the switch inside the cab, that has the |19 Q ~ to the veey boginaing, I wont to go to when MIB firet
20 cover on that you open to activate the trailer to dump it with the | 20 leaced the Tenilew 6775 £xon Deatern Kovedn Transpoct.
21 electric solenoid, was not operating, something that — the 2 kR Oay.
22 trailer was mot being — you camot operate from the truck cab. 2 G Do you kmov vhat yoor 173 first leaced Trailer 67757
23 It doesn't necessarily mean it was the switch, it 23 A I believe it was 2012.
2 just — it oould be the wiring between the switch ard the valve. 2 0 Cen you tell me how MB caso to vogk with Waotern Nevadn
25 Somewhere along the lines, it wasn't working, wasn’t operating. 25 Tzemmport to lesse treilers snd wehicles?
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A T believe that — well, being in the industry for so
long, myself and Tracy Shane Jmow the owners of Western Nevada
Transport, or have known them for probably 35 years.
So everybody knows everybody. And he probably called
Tracy, says hey, I've got these trailers I want to get rid of,
yeah.
Q@ Do you kmow vhan that relationship begen betwesn M8 and
Wastern Hovada, what year that they first started working
togather?

Page 144
it ws or was not oxiginal?

A Mo,

Q Bud I don't semamber if you answeced this questim oz
not, bot does MDB heve any of the mmintensece docmments frem
Fostemn Hovedn Trensport in relstionship to Trailer 67757

A No, we do not.

0 Doss 53 have any of those docmsats?

A Mo

Q  Now, when Trailer €775 wes firgt leased, cm you tell e

10 A Officially? 10 what efforts MOB wads to evaluste the condition of the elestrical

1 0 Officially. 1) cxmections on the trsiler?

2 A Prabably when they leased the trailers. 12 A At the begimning, I wasn't there at the time, but the

pi] Q  For the first time, wes thot in 20127 13 routine would have been the same as what it was after I became

14 A Probably. 14 employed there,

15 1 mean, we probably had a working relationship before 15 We completely go through them, check all of the wiring,

16 that where we would haul for them and they would haul for us, But | 16 probably replaced all the plugs that even remotely look like they

17 as far as leasing trailers, I think that was the first time that 17 were old.

18 any of that happened, yes. 18 Q Ckay. When you say “check all of the wiring,® what do

19 Q 2012 vag the firet time? 19 yoo mesn by that? Describe in detail for ms what your process —

20 A I'mpretty sure, yes. 20 what your standard prooass wonld be.

21 Q  Chmy. Eow old vas Trailer 6775 at the tims of the 2 I understand that you waren't there in 2012.

2 initial lease? 2 A ®ell, you do a visual check on the wire, the ones — the

A A T would have to look and see what the year of the 23 wiring that you can see. There's a lot of wire en a Ranco trailer

24 trailer is. I'mpretty sure it's a 2002 or samething like that, 24 that's hidden. You cannot see it.

25 So it would have been ten years old, I believe. 25 So without pulling it completely out of the trailer,
Page 143 ' Page 145

1 0 Chsy. 1 it's hard == it would be hard to inspect every aspect of the

2 A To the best of my knowledge. 2 wiring.

3 Q Do you knov what the condition of the txailer was at the | 3 Q B0 I'm just going to stop you there.

4 timo OB initislly leased 67757 4 Do you kmow i€ you polled the wiving cut to inspect it

5 A T think it was in good condition. 5 when you first received Trailer 67757

¢ Q Cemy. Do you kmow if tho wirieg t33 ozigienl? 6 A ¥o, we did not.

7 A I believe the wiring was original. 7 Q  Bave you, ainco heving — leasing the trailer in 2012,

8 Q Chay. Yy do you balieve that? 8 polled the wiring cut of thess hiddon lemtionn to inspect the

9 A Because the wiring vas original when we first started 9 wiring?

10 working on them. 10 A ¥epulled it out and replaced it.

1 Q  Did you — o, do you know if M8 meds amy inquiries as | 11 0 In201%

12 to any chenges or ecdifiontions that were meda to 6775 by 2 A T believe so.

13 Western ¥ewadn in the ten years bafore MB leassd? 13 Q0 Cotside of that time in 2013, dbv you evar confuct

14 A Idonot believe we did, I think we just did our own W4 inspecticns during your ammpl isspecticn whare you do a viswal

15 inspection on the trailer to make sure everything was mechanically | 15 inspection of the hidden wiring?

16 correct before we put them in service, 16 A Yo

17 Q@ 8 you don't know for sure if the wiring was original or | 17 0 S I bed inteerupted you. Yom vrew deccxibdey the

18 not? 18 proceas of checking the wiring, 0nd Jo0 coid that von conduct @

19 A No, T can't say that for sure, no. 19 visml ingpecticn at fivst.

20 Q@ Same thing with respsct to the walves, the Versa walwe 20 Bod 20 cen you g0 on to explain the 2ot of the prosess.

21 that wes o 6775. 21 A Fell, the process would be that you look at the trailer,

2 Do you bave any coafimmation at all that that was en 22 And, like I said, there's very little wire that's actually

23 ariginal valve that wes placed en 6775 when it wes menufactored? 23 exposed.

24 R No, T can't say for certain. 24 So ~ but you would look to see that there's any damage

25 Q0 Hove you sesn any documsnts whatsogwer indicating that 25 to any of that wire where it goes into the side of the trailer,
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vhich would be a rub point. You check that.

You check seven-way and the four-way connection in the
frant of the trailer, meke sure that the plug looks good, check it
in the back of the tratler.

Now, you do have cords that go between the trailers.
Those, you check. You pull out the sevenrways and the four-ways,
make sure that they are all — they all look good. You put it all
back together.

But the main thing you are looking for when you are
testing the lights is the lights work and you don't have a ground
issue. Then, generally, you don't have — generally, you don't
have to look any farther.

Q@ Cisy. All right. Iind then with respact to vegulax
enintensnco en the electrical o« 1 kind of tooched on that,
but you said that you would do o vicznl inspecticn when the
trailer came in an your regules hind of mlti-week inspections.

A Un-huh,

0 1o that o Y™

A Yes, I'msorry. Yes.

@  2od then yoo would — when scoebody would being it to
you ottention that there was 3 problem with a connection, you
rigat pull o plug, replace & plog o check for debeis o
cxzosicn, correct?

R Yes.

Q0  Rod then during your annoal inspecticns, what would yoo

Page 148
A Absolutely — no, they have not. There's no evidence —

they have not been repainted.

@ Cwmy. Moy, 8§38 io cued by the oo omes of 13B; is
that correct?

A That's corr~.

Q Is there any diffesenoe in camership?

A It's a different structure. One is a limited liability
campany and — each of them being a member.

0 Correct.

A And the other ane iz — SKS is a corporation where

Travis Bonanmo was the president and Kari Bonanno, I think, is the
secretary-treasurer.

Q 8o it's Teovio Boocuws cod Moxd Boormno, oozrect?

A Yes.

0 And they are — are they the sole mewbers of
MB Trucking?

A Yes,

¢ e thy ¢bo cole sharebnlders of BX8?

A Yes. As far as I know, the last time I looked.

Q Mo, you - yeoterdny that you repart to & pexeon
named Terry Dovio?

A Yes.

Q Fhst oompeany does bo wozk for?

B He's officially employed by Bonanno Cancrete, but I
think he works for both Bonarmo Concrete and MIB Trucking.

Page 147
do with respact to the electrical system o the trailer?

R We would go through the same process. We don't
actually = I mean, it's not like we pull all the wiring out. I
mean, we're talking a major project. We are talking a two-day
project to pull all the wiring cut.

We wouldn't do that in every trailer if it didn't show
any signs of malfunctioning.

0 Ckay, ¥hen MB first lessed Trailex 6775 in 2012, do
you koo i€ they hed it repainted?

R No, we did not. To my knowledge, I do not believe we
had it painted.

Q B yoo sogodetos cup of your trailers since 20127

L Mo,

Any of our trailers?

0 Yes,

L Oh, boy, I think we have, Not any of these trailers.

Q Tell me, when you do repeint a trailer, & you remove
eny ceponents from the tendler before you do a repaint?

A If we were to repaint a trailer, we would remove a lot
of compenents, lights, fenders, tires, wheels, that sort of
things.

0 Ind nono of the trollery at issoe that we've been
diccasaing, 6773, 6774, 6775, none of thoss hove boen repainted —

A lo.

Q - sinoo MDB has leased those trailers?

Page 149

@ Do you kmow whnt his job title ig?

A Now, on his email, it says "safety coordinator.”

Q0 How long has he worked with Bonanno Concrets and/or MDB?
Can you tell me approximately when be started vockieg with MIS?

A Mpproximately a year ago.

Q0 8o cza you parzov that dem @ littlo kit cose? Ao w
talking sbost spprosimataly Morch of 2016, or — i that your best
recollection of when Torzy Devis started working with 173,
spproximately Mirch 20167

A Yeah, that samds about right, yes.

Q0 Now, you said he was woking with Bonsnoo Concrete
spproximtely two yeers ago; is thot correct?

A Yes,

0 OCkay. Eov lomg bave you hed to report to Terry Davis?

MR. BROEN: Object to foundation.

Go ahead.

THE WITNESS:
BY MS, WOELFEL:

0 Do yoo report to Yecry Davio?

A I commnicate to him.

Q  Bow often do you cxmmicats with his?

A Acouple times a week, two or three times a week,
sanetines three or four times a day, depends on what we're doing.
Q0 Mod vhat types of incps do you commioets with

Tarzy Davis sbout?

I'm sorry.
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A He takes care of sare of the safety things at

MIB Trucking and safety policies, If I have questions about
workers' comp or drug testing, supervisory training, that sort of
thing, he gets involved in,

Q st type of safety policies ig Terzy Davis involwed in
with respect to MOB?

A I'mnot sure.

Q Yoo montioned you talk to him about safety policies and
whengver be's iavolwed in ssfoty policies end thet his role is
safety coordinator.

1
2
3
4
5
8§
7
8
9
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July of 2013¢

A Would have been the same weekly safety meetings, but the
topics would have came from a different agency, I suppose you
could call it.

Q OCkay. At the weekly safety meetings, would you disouss
any safety issoas thet have been noted by your drivers thet might
impect other drivers and things of that nature?

A I think those are mostly covered tme on one with
drivers,

0 S, for exmple, vhen thore was the dump of I, Rodki'o

b3} Can you dascribe move fully what his rolo catzils for 11 truck in July of 2013, wonld thet topic have bem discuzccd at one

12 MO8 ss 8, I guess, quote, unguote, "safety coordinator™? 12 of thess weekly sefety mestings and, you know, discussion of

13 A I believe on his title, it's safety coordinator of 13 eafety masures? Woold you hewo bed that comwersstion in omd of

14 Bonanno Concrete. I'm not sure what his title is at MDB Trucking. |14 these weskly safety meotings?

15 But because he's a safety coordinator at Bonammo Concrete, he does | 15 A No.

16 help me with safety issues at MIB Trucking. 16 MR, BROWN: (bjection, foundation,

n 0 Vst type of safety issves doeg he ~— 17 Go ahead,

18 A Our weekly safety meetings, that sort of stuff, OSHR 18 THE WITHESS: I'm sorry.

19 training, HSHA training, 19 BY MS. ROELFEL:

2 0 ¥hat kind of weekly enfety Esotings do you have? 2 0 I, yon wuld not heve?

pal A We just have weekly, like, tallgate topics, I quess you |21 A That wouldn't have been part of the topic of the weeldy

22 could call that. 22 safety meetings, That would have been in addition to that.

23 Q Doss that inwolve eort of gathering uwp all your drivers? | 23 0 Ckay. Jod cen you tell =2 if there was a cooversation

A A Sametimes, yeah. 24 had with drivers or staff kind of to pull evarybody together to

35 Q@ Wall, describe for o> o typical weskly safety mesting. 25 talk aboot this incidest and how to sove forwerd froe the incident
Page 151 Page 153

1 A Sametimes it's hard to get all of our drivers together 1 in July of 20137

2 at the same time because they all start at different times. And 2 A Everybody — at that point, everybody Jnows what's going

3 so there's a tailgate meeting type topic that we discuss, and I 3 on. Everybody knows his trailer opened.

4 discuss it with them as I see them, or in groups of — smaller 4 Everybody knows that the other trailers were opening wp

5 groups of pecple. 5 on the highway at the same time, Lakeside, Capurro, There's a lot

6 0 Do you havo o witten agenda for theon weskly mestings? 6 of people have trailers opening up. Everybody in town lmows about

7 A I'mnot sure. 7 it, and this is 3 problem. This is an industry problem that we're

8 Q@  You don't knoer if you bave a written cpend o not for 8 having.

9 these safety — weskly eafoty meatings? 9 Q (Ckay. 8o in July —

10 A I'mnot sure what you mean by "written agenda.” 10 A 5o we don't believe it's a safety issue specific to ane

1 @ Do you write doxn what you are going to distnos ot thess | 11 of our drivers, it's an industrywide problem. So everybody is

12 waehly tailgate enfety msetings? 12 aware of this, and everybody has taken as much precaution as they

13 A Yeah, Yes. 13 can to keep this from happening.

14 @ 2ad vhot do you do with the doomants where you write 14 Q Ckay. Aod o in Jaly of 2013, this wes a problen in the

15 dmn the topico for dicousaion at your weekly safety meetings? Do | 15 industry that MOB was smre of end diccnaing?

16 you omo thoza? 16 MR, BROKN: (bjection, foundation.

17 A Yes. 17 Go ahead.

18 Q Do you havo o fils that ircludes all of thoee? 18 BY MS. WOELFEL:

19 A Yes, i Q Is that whnt you axo testifyleg to?

20 Q Okzy. Eov long bove theee weekly safety mestings been 20 R Yes, specific — yes, specific to certain manufacturers

21 takirg plocs? 21 of valves on certain mamfacturers of trailers, ves,

2 A A cople of mnths en this particular one. ®e used to 2 Q  knd yoo are saying specific as to certein memufacturers

23 do a different type of weekly safety meetings when Tracy was 23 of valves and certain mnyfectarers of trailers, ¥o are fou

24 there. 24 poferring to thece?

¥ Q0 What type of oofety mestings, if any, were in plate in 25 A I'm speaking of Ranoo and Versa Valve,
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1 Of course, that's not entirely fair to say that only

2 Ranro trailers would open wp, because 98 percent of the trailers
3 in this town are Ranco trailers,

So, of course, if you are going to have a problem, it's
5 going to be a Ranco trailer. S0 I can't really say — I'm not
6 just pointing my fingers at Ranco trailer, but —
1 Q Ckay. And so0 you've testified that this is sort of a
8 general thing that MB was ssare of iz or aromd July of 2013,
9 thet there had beso some damps that bed oocured.
10 Vhat, if any, safety meesures did MB implement to
addresn those issves in July of 2013 to provent future dwps, July
or Jagust of 20137
13 A& In July, after that happened to us {n July of 2013, the
measures we took were to rewire the trailers, put the new Versa
valve on, rewire the truck., And we had no issues whatsoever for a
year.

And the truck that I drove never — or that — the
18 tratler that I had behind my truck on the same day never had an
19 issue, ever, Fhy have an issue at the same time on the same date
20 at a similar location on that day? We don't know.

So we did everything that we could possibly do to
inspect these, mechanically and electrically, to see if there's
any problem that could possihly cause this to happen.

We — nobody really can explain to — explain why this
was going on.

WO B 3 N W e W R
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in ondar to install an entizely nev eitch into the truck? Do

they bsve to do redrirg in the whicle to zake that work?

A On this particular truck, I  as with most trucks, even
if they come from the factory, get their power socurce off of ane
of the hot wires under the dash that would be bot, unswitched, In
other words, it's hot all the time, even if the key is off.

There are rumerous wires that you can find in the
factory wiring loam that's hot, And that would go to the supply
of the first switch, which would then be jumpered to the supply of
the second switch, which would be jumpered to the supply of the
third switch.

Ard then each of the delivery temminals of those
switches, we wired to the respective gate velve on Trailers 1, 2
and 3.

Q G

A And what Pat Rigby did, which I'm not sure if he
installed the master switch, but the master switch was put in.
Brd the wire, the hot — the positive wire is run straight from
the switch to the battery, fused.

A so therefore, if there's any sort of feedback that
you are getting in the factory loam is now eliminated. MNome of
this actually changed anything, but they were just doing it for
peace of mind.

0 Ve yon xeplood tho viziey i Teaddoz 6775, éid you
test the wiring in 6773 ced 6774 ot tho &3 tir??

Page 155
1 @ Oy Did you inepact every other 0B truck in July and
2 hugust of 2013 to eee if ey of thoee trocks had eny issves with
3 the wiring or the valves?

4 R We inspected every trailer that had a valve and every
5 truck that would have pulled those trailers, yes.

6 Q In20l¥

1 A Yes, and found o problems.

8 @ And fomd no probless.

9 Did you gt £rom Mr, Roski, aftex tho July 2013
incident -~ did you bave him write o witben report of what

11 oscorred with respect to thot incident?

12 A I donot think so.

13 Q0 Vhen you - vhen 103 Gid choogs the wiecy after the July
14 of 2013 incidet, did it pull the eatize wiriey cyote??

15 A Yes.

16 0 100 percant of the wires in 67757

17 R Yes, we did.

18 Q0 Yons of the poevioos wires wers left or rpliced or

13 connected, it wes an entirely new viring systes?

20 A Correct.

yil Q  And sy understending from yoor testimony is thot thore
2 v eleo o now mester suitch installed in tho treeh ofter the

23 July 2013 incident. Ts that corzect?

24 A Yes, that is co—=~—,

Fi Q0 at types of wiring changes -~ or, what has to bo done

25

Page 157

A I think we replaced the wiring in all three trailers at
the same time,

Q Ckay. So ths wiring was completaly replased in 6773,
87714 cnd 67757

A I believe so, at least the back two trailers for sure.
I believe all three trailers were done. I worked on them for
probably three days, you know, It's quite the job.

0 Ckag. Ind vhat did you do with the wire that you puiled
from 6773, 6774 ond 6775? Did you test or kesp or just theow
amy? What did you do with thoss wires?

A We either scrapped it or threw it away. Did we test it?
¥o. Did we visually inspect it? Yes,

0 Did you seo enything in your vismel inspestion of tho
wiring?

Did I see anything abnormal?
Boything abonewal ,
1 wouldn't say there was anything abnormal on the actual

> o

wire.

With the way it was wired, the way the routing of the
wiring and how — some of the — was kind of hokey, the way they
would run the dump switch wire back into the seven-way junction
box and use that — a fuse that's — on the front of the seven-way
receptacle, there are fuses.

And apparently, Ranco likes to take — disable one of
those fuses and use it as a fuse for the dump.
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S0 the wire — which is, actually, you know, to us, is
unacoeptable to nun the wire for the dump wire through the
seven-vay and use that as — so we thought that wes very umsual,
so we eliminated that completely.
So the four-way wires simply go straight to the Versa
valve. They don't go in through the sevenway at all.

Q  Did you think there wes saything with respect to the way
that the wiring was routed that led to tho insdwertant dmp on
July 7th, or whatever it wes, July 2013?

A Iwouldn't say there was, like, a smoking qun there,
like, there was something obvious that would have caused it, no.

W O ~) G U o W RN e

10

Page 160
it — I mean, it didn't melfunction mechanically.
9 Did you knor whers the Vers walve — the old Veran
vl tht ©o soswed v bept o stozed?
R It would have been kept in our parts roam, but I don't
think I could identify it, if we have more than one there.
Q  Does M08 ptill beve that Vezes wvalve?
A I don't know.
I dnow we have a couple of Versa valves laying around
there in different states of repatr, you know.
But we share the shop with WT, and they have Versa
valves. 5o, you know, we share parts or whatever as far as if

2 ¢ 2nd you did not wnintain thet wivieq st all? 12 somebody needs a used part.
13 R No. We would have thrown it away. 13 S0 there's no way I could identify which valve it was.
1 0 Okey. And then yoo modified tho wy thot b viriey ws | 14 0 8 you share a workshop vith Western Neveds Trensport?
15 rwn when you rewived it; is that corvest? 15 R Ue do now, yes.
16 A Correct. 16 0 Then did you stact shoring that ehop with them?
by Q  Did you sodify the way that the wiring had provicusly 17 R 204,
18 xun in any other mennar, other thas what you just described to me? | 18 Q  Wmt zonth?
19 A No. F¥e just kept the seven-way and the four-way wires 19 A Jamary.
20 separated fram each other, 20 0 Do you label the parts that balang to you vexenn the
2 Q0 Gy, In July 2013, wer &3 the cumer of the traller or | 21 parts that beloog to BED?
2 g Vestern, do you recsil? 22 R No. They have their side of the shop with their parts
23 R I believe Westemn Nevadz Transport was still the 23 room, we have our side of the shop with our parts room. So it's
24 ower — 24 pretty easy to fiqure out whose is what.
25 Q0 In July 2013? 23 Q Ckay. Did you alect the cemership ebout the July 2013

Page 159 Page 161
1 & — ard we were leasing them directly from them, 1 rolonse?
2 Q  Did you notify Western of the ioadvertent dop in July 2 A Are you talking about ownership of —
3 of 2013 3 Q Of M8,
4 R Once again, I didn't have to notify them, Everybody 4 R Oh yes.
5 lmows. They knew, yes. I didn't notify them, but they already 5 Q0 Do you Inow what their response was or their direction
6 knew, Everybody knows this already. 6 was in response to finding out that there had besn a relasse in
7 Q@ 1o there any dommentation relating to notificetion of 7 July of 20137
8 Rastern of the 2013 dump? 8 R Yesh, make sure it doesn’t - I mean, fiqure out what's
9 R Mo § going on.
10 Q0 Do you know vho notified Westem of the dup in 20137 10 0 Ind did they instruct you ¢ iestigate thn proble and
11 A Mo, 1 try to figmo out the canse of the incident?
2 Q  Zod you testified that the Versa valve, at the end of — | 12 A Yes.
13 efter the dump in 2013 wes alsp replaced. 13 Q0 And you eaid that you ware confident — oz, I belico
14 Bod T beliewe you said that M0B kept the old Vorsa walwe | 14 you said you were confident that it wes & Veres wlve foilwe et
15 that it rewowed; is that correct? 15 led to this; is that correct?
16 A I'massuming that we kept it, because we don't throw 16 R No, Idon't think that's the correct - I don't think
17 that kind of stuff cut. Plus, we would keep it for spare parts or | 17 that's what I said.
18 whatever, even though we generally never reuse them. 18 I think I said that — I believe that vhat caused this
19 But we don't like to throw that kind of stuff out. 19 is the Versa valve inadvertently becoming energized by a manmer
20 Q  Did you run any tests co the Varsa valve thst was 20 other than by our truck, but it was definitely energized
21 remowed? 21 electrically.
2 A No. 2 @  Red hov conld it have becoms inadvartently electvolyzed
23 Q Oz did 4B run eny tests? 23 by @ memnex thnt'o oot through your truck?

24

A No. There's really no reasm to test any of the stuff,
because we Jnow why —- I mean, we know it openad electrically, so

2

kod we are talking shoot July of 2013 night now.
R Okay. We can talk about that day or any of the days.
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That's the $64,000 question.

That's what everybody is trying to figure out, is after
the 2014 incident, when we put the lockout devices on, other
carpanies followed suit, put the same lockout devices on all their
trailers because they were afraid of it happening again.

But there are still trucks — a lot of trucks running
around with out lockout devices on there. So for them, I quess,
it could just be a matter of time before it happens to them, I'm
not sure. It's just —

Q Sohat I think I hear you saying is that it's your
balief that in July of 2013, there was scme other electrical
reascn vhy the Vezrm walve was charged, other then the truck, but
your investigation could not identify whet that wes?

B Yes.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
1
12
b}

" Page 164

durping shoulder material or base rock on the highsay, you are

going from the pit to the job and you've got to dump, you dan't —
they don't went you out of the truck, taking your pins out, out
there on the highway, every load.

So for the most part, it's having the gate marmally ~
having a marual lockout on the gate is somewhat of an
inconvenience that  at the time, I didn't think it was — it
just didn't seem like that was a workable solution, to try to come
w with a lockout device at that time.

@ Io that the same thing with respect to the gate chain
along the bottom, thet would be — would crests o misrnos ox oo
work for tho driver to put that on and teko thnt off?

R "A misance” is probably a poor choice of words.

If you look at these trailers, they are short trailers.

L}

15 0  Fow, you otarted in August of 2013 wth Y08; io that 15 They caly have about a foot between the tires and the gates. So
16 correct? 16 to crawl over there and chain these gates is & real chore. And
n A Yes. 17 it's actually a safety issue to try to get in there and chain
18 Q@  ¥as — and you perticipeted in the peeiring project at | 18 these gates.
19 this timn, oxrect? 1 So to crawl under there and do this every load would
20 A Shortly thereafter. 20 be — I don't think that would be a workable solutien.
2 Q@  Had the resiring project already bean underwey when you |2 Q by woold it be a safety issus?
2 first started? 2 R Because you can barely fit under the gates back there,
23 A The wiring of the tractor, the switches in the truck had |23 You have to crawl under the truck.
24 been done. 24 S0 inless you pull over to the side of the road and
25 Q@ So the mster critch project had alveady been worked an | 25 chock your truck and ~— I mean, it's hard to get under there. So

Page 163 Page 165
1 ond copleted whan you startad? 1 you wonld have to do it every load, yesh.
2 A Yes, 2 Socner or later, you are going to get somebody hurt,
3 Q  2od then you participeted in reririeg the thees 3 stuck under there, whatever, There are things you can hit your
4 trailers? 4 head on.
5 B Yes. Yes. 5 0 S0 it somds lik: using those ot amy i vould creste &
6 He were trying to be as proactive as we could. When I 6 nafety issue.
7 came to work there, I got right up to speed on what was going on, 7 Can you doscribo for mp — I mean, do you not hooo yowe
8 They told me what — the steps they took. I talked to 8 eaployess use those chains at all?
9 them about what I thought. And we proceeded from there to try to 9 A I've never used them at MB Trucking, and I don't think
10 do whatever we could do to keep this ~— to see if we could find 10 anybody else has either,
11 what the problen is. 1 But the deal is with that, if you — if you are going to
12 Q@  And prewent it from cccurring egain? 12 use them the way they are designed to be used, you would get to a
13 A And we thought we did do that, yes, because it was a 13 job site that's dumping base rock, and the dump gquy would tell
14 year before it happened again. 14 you, you know ~ he would give you a visualization of the way he
15 Q  Did you suggest your pinning eysbem in Rugust of 2013 15 sants the chains set up.
16 when you were aseisting in the rewiring and investigation? 16 And you go out there and you set them once in the
1 A Mo 17 moming, you are done. Every load you oame back, they are set
18 0 Wy oot? 18 already. You don't have to get out every time, chain and wnchain
19 A I don't even think it was an idea of mine yet. 19 them, chain and unchain them.
2 Q  Ckay. 20 You just do it one time in the morning, and you are
A B For the most part, cur operation, which allows our 21 done. And if you are going back to the same job, you leave then
22 drivers to dmp in a grizzly where you have to get cut every time | 22 the same way for the next day,
23 and you can get out manually to do it, it's not a ruisance to pull |23 0 Ezwe you ever used the chaing as part of & — driving
24 the pin, 24 the truck end doing & load?

But if you are doing highsay construction and you are

2%

A At MB Trucking?
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0 At soy time in your 35-yesr career, have you utilized
that chain systes?

R Ch, yes, extensively, but not to keep the gates from
opening, to keep the gates — to restrict the opening of the
gates, yes —

Q Oty. S you hawe used them —

R - for the size of windrow they want cn a job site, yes.

Q  Hawo you ever baen injured in putting the chaing oo o
off?

R ALl the trailers that I have ever chained are semi
trailers that have ten feet between the axles and the gates. So

WO o W PO

A
j=riiy =3

Page 168
At the ecens of the accidemt.

Well, the truck was not at the scene of the accident.
Tall, the truck pallsd over to the side of the road.
No, he was not asked to do that.
Uiy, Thank yoo.
0id you test the electrical system of any of the three
trilorg that were involved in this iecident upon its retoen ¢
the yard?

R Jo.

Q Ry not?

R There was no need to.

D X O > O

12 you walk under the trailer and you chain them. 12 Q ¥y 2o theeo 80 aood t0?

13 These are short trailers. They have — it's anly, 13 R Because we put lockout devices on there, which prevents

14 like — you can barely get your head in there to chain them, 14 the gates from opening.

15 Q@ 8 =y quastion is, heve you ever besn injured estting wp | 15 We had already rewired the trailers completely. We had

16 the chnining dsvice — 16 already checked the trailers out extensively,

17 Y 7 At this point, we felt that putting a lockout device vas

18 Q@ — under & trock? 18 the best way to prevent this frow happening again. Amd so far, it

18 A Yo 19 has been two and a half years and we haven't had a problem.

20 Q Are you mmre of any other exployes that you've worked 20 Q & vhen yon wepe — when the truck o0 back to the

21 with belng injured setting up a chain device underncath a belly 21 yard — and you zaid yon bed alvcody xodeed tho teniler

2 dompax? 2 conpletely, you are talking shoat ¢he sedro that took plet en9

23 MR, BROWN: Cbjection, foundation. 23 year spo?

24 THE WITNESS: I dom't know of any. 24 R Yes.

25 /1] b Q Jnd there w0 o iprpection of s closteical syoten
Page 167 Page 169

1 BY MS, WOELFEL: 1 after Mly of 20147

2 0 Gy, £ going to the Jily 2014 relesse, my 2 A Mo, not — not in direct relation to that incident, no.

3 wndarstanding is thnt Uz, Koski contacted MOB while ho was at the | 3 Well, T shouldn't say that, We didn't do that

4 site of the dowp end he had pulled owar; is that correct? Behed | 4 inspection. The forensic — the pecple — the sclentists and

5 contacted thes to advise tham that this incident in July of 2014 5 forensic people came out and did a complete inspection, all — a

6 hed ocourred? 6 year later, or vhatever it was, 3 year and a half later.

1 R Yes, 7 0 Iter the lawsnit bad been filed?

8 Q@  2xd do you kmow who b spoke to? 8 A Yeah.

9 A Tracy Shame, 9 0  Ind the viring systen in the trailers, the mbject

10 Q Ciay. Acd do you kmow if anyhody requested that 10 teailers, io it wor statement that the wiring systma was emctly

11 bz, oski tehe suy photos of do sny documentation of the truck or | 11 the swme ag the wiring gysten that wes installed in Jaly of 20137

12 o cite of o crent? 12 A To the best of my knowledge, yes, it was. I don't

13 MR, BRON: Objection, foumdation. |13 think — ve never — we didn't make any modifications to it, no.

1 THE WITNESS: Okay. The site of the event was a mile u 0 o modifiontiong to it catoids of cheoging plupgs?

15 back down the road. So it would be pretty hard for him to walk | 15 A Maybe — exactly, samething like that, yes.

16 down the freeway a mile to take pictures, especially while they 16 Q Oy, Did you eavo the plugs that you chsaged after the

17 are waiting for fire and rescue to arrive. 17 July 2014 ewent until the timn that the forensic ingpection,

18 He's on the side of the road, talking to a 18 electrical inspection hed occuwred?

19 Highway Patrol officer at the time. I don't think that would be 19 A Ko

20 the time for Hr. Koski to be to do an independent investigation of | 20 f Ut did you do with the plugs oz sny plup that you

21 what happened. 21 changed on the sbject trailers?

22 BY MS. WCOELFEL: 2 R Ve throw them in the garbage after that, yesh.

a Q S my guestion is, did onybody from MOB esh him to take 23 Q  Did you do eny testing — cutaide of creating this pin

2 eny photos or docmsent the troct? | 24 oystes, did you do any testing to the Versa valve to oo if it wn

25 A At the scene of the accident? }zs mlfomcticning i ooy way?
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R No, other than visual inspection of meking sure it was 1 MR, BROAN: Just kidding.
mechanically sound, which means that it's still in place, the 2 THE WITHESS: I don't think Terry — I vasn't talking to
handle is still in place, there's no damage to it, it's still 3 Terry Davis at that — I don't even think he was working there at
operating correctly, it's just got a pin in there now. 4 that particular time. I'mnot sure.
¢ Ckay. Did wu take 8 writben statement from Mr. Koski 5 BY MS. WOELFEL:
aftar the July of 2013 release? 6 ¢ ¥as there o go-betimen betwesn you end cemesship before
A T dmn't believe so. 7 Terry Devig arrived?
MS. SHREVE: Take a rest room break? 8 A Okay, At 2014, Tracy Shane was the manager.
MS. WELFEL: Sure. Take a five-minute rest room bresk. | 9 ¢ Cmy. And would Treg talk directly with the bo
That's fine. 10 cemers?
KS. SHREVE: We can go off the record. 1 A With the owner, with Travis Bonamno. Kari wasn't that
{A recess was taken.) 12 involved with the business. It would be Travis Banarmo. And he
M5, WOELFEL: Okay. We can go back on the record. 13 would talk with him directly, yes.
BY MS. ROELFEL: pU] @ 2nd oneo Teovlo loft, ip thet when Terry Davis csms
Q  Cmn you tell g if anybody wes injured in relationship |15 cnhoard?
to the Joly 2013 drp incident? 16 A Travis? No, Travis is still aromnd, he's just kind of
R Tomy knowledge, nobody was injured. 17 too busy with the concrete stuff. So I think Terry helps him cut
¢ Jod, chuicoply, there ware soms injuries with respect to | 18 as sort of his right-hand men type of thing, I think his position
Joly of 2014, or alleged injuries, vhich is why this lawsuit has 19 is sort of, yeah.
ocoarred. 20 0 Are you mmre of soy conversationg the pewehip
A Yes. Yes. 21 end/or sanagument related to the possibly of litigation inwolving
Q  Ves )OB mamre of those injuries ca — oz tho nlleged 2 this cocident after July 2014?
injuries, cn the day thst the incident comrred? 23 MR, BROWN: (bjection, vaque as to time.
A Oh yes, definitely. 24 Go ahead.
Q Vs MB conosrned that they might get sued on the date | 25 THE WITNESS: Mo, there was no talk about that. Nabody
Page 171 Page 173
of the incident? 1 was talking about that.
MR. BROWN: Objection to the extent it calls for 2 BY MS. WOELFRL:
speculation. 3 0 s thare any instruction or discussion regarding
You can answer. { presarving the evidanos after this incident occurred oo July 7th
THE WITNESS: The sentiment in the company was everybody | 5§ of 20147
was concerned for the people that got hurt, and everybody really 6 A No. Once again, we didn't think it — we did not think
actually felt bad bacause we thought we tried everything to keep 7 it was an issue.
this fram happening. 8 I think the Higiway Patrol came out and did an
And, veah, I don't think anybody talked about getting a 9 inspection as well after this happened.
lawsuit, I don't think that was ever even a topic. 10 Q ¥ did the Higlemy Patrol do their inspsction?
BY ¥5. WOELFEL: it A I might be misspeaking here, but I believe they did —
Q o — did you think that it vas o poscibdlity thet DB ' 12 came out the following day, did a cursory inspection. I'm not —
might b2 inwolved in litigation s a result of tho incid=at? 13 followup to their —
MR, BROAN: Cbjecticn to the extent it calls for Y Q 2nd did they come to the yard to do that inspection?
speculation, asked and answered. 15 A I think s0, yes.
THE WITNESS: Mo, I didn’t think anything about that, 16 Q0  Wemo you there whea thig incpection eocurvsd?
no. I mean — 17 A Possibly not. I might have been out driving that day.
BY MS. WCELFEL: 18 0 Do yon know who wag thege when this ivspection coourred?
0 Did you — I'n coexy, you &en go nherd sod finieh, 19 A If it did, in fact, ocour, which I'm not sure — like I
Did you bovo ooy discussions with oonowehip o — 20 said, I believe it did — Tracy Shane would have been there, and
A Terry Davis? 21 Pat Bigby would have been there.
Qg Yeo, tirmok you. 2 Whether they participated in it or they just let the
— ot Teexy Dovis? 23 Highway Patrol do their job, I'm not sure,
MR, BROSN: Don't. 24 Q0 Do you heve any docymsnts in MDB's possession related to
THE WITMESS: Ch, sorry. 25 thig inspection by the Highwmy Patrol?
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A I woild have to look and see if there is.

0 Jod I wuld ask that you take  look, and if you do have

1
2
3 snything —

[ A Yes.

5 Q - to tum it over to your attorney.

[ Aro you mmre of any findings by the Highwey Patxol in
7 regards to this inspection?

8 A Mo,

9 Q ¥hen - after July Tth of 2014, when did you finish
makieg your ploning syste?

I finished in the same day.

hod — that wes fast.

On — on the subject trailer.

Ca the subject threo trailers.

Actually, T'mnot sure, I did cne whole set the first
day, And I don't remember if it was my set or his set.

Q  And e eet in a set of thres?

A Yes.

Q  Chay.

A 5o after that incident happensd, no bottom dumps left
the yard to haul material without the lockout device in place.
But they were all done within a day or two of this incident,

Q@  And you mempfactared that lockout systert?

A
ane for a trailer that — yes, I think he made ome.

1 Q  And you designed the lockout syetenf?

2 A Yes.

3 Q  Did wu bawe to drill or do anything to the Verss valve
4 to mabo thst pinning system work?

5 A No, no mdifications at all to the Versa valve. You
6

7

8

9

20 R

Page 175

don't even have to — you don't even have to remove the Versa
valve to put it in place, You do nothing to the Versa valve
whatsoever,

You just slide the bracket around the handle, mark where
the hole is going to be drilled for the safety pin, take it back
off, drill the pin, put it back -- drill the hole for the pin, put
it back, bolt it on, and you are done.

Q S0 you remove the Verm wlwe —

A Mo, did not remove the Versa valve,

@ You did not rezowe the Veres valve st all?

A No. You fabricate the bracket, you install it — you
drill holes cn the trailer where —— below the Versa valve, mount
it, figure out where the hole is going to go for the — behind the
handle, mark it, take that bracket back off, drill the hole, put
it back on, then you are dane.

Q  Vas there dicononion on whather to purchass a different
Vazea valve for the mbject trailer, 6775, after the July Tth,
2014, domp?

24 A No, because — I don't know if T should elaborate on
25 this.

Page 1741
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I did the majority of them, yes, I think Pat Bigby made : 24

25
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I knew of a different valve that had the lockout

capabilities. But at that particular point, I can make the
bracket and get the trailer back on the road right now, versus
buying it, $700 valve, and replacing all the valves. And it would
do the same thing. So, mo.

If, in fact, the Versa valve had failed — in hindsight,
if I would have known about this, '13, we would have dane it then
probably. I don't know.

Q  Are you esere of a dozp involving Capurro Trocking
somatime in 2012 or 2014?

A Uh-huh,

Q I that & "yeo™?

A Quite a few of them, yes. It was actually maybe even
before that time, 2010, '11, '12. Seems to me ] remember quite a
few,

@ Anc you smre of any litigetion egminst
Caparro Trucng?

A Hu-uh, no. I think there might have been, but it's
just rumor, It would be a rumor if T said samething.

Q ¥hen hed wa beand that roee?

A Oh, Idon't know, I don't know that anybody was
injured. T just know there were same cars that qot damege to
them,

0 B4 yoo bowd choot that incident ehortly after it
oocurved?

Page 177

MR, BROMN: (bjection, foundation.

THE WITNESS: Well, like I say, news travels fast.
Everybody knows it immediately, Everybody starts calling people
and say, hey, did you hear so-and-so lost a load on the highuay.

Everybody knows it right away because it's really
samething that actually concems everybody.

BY MS. WOELFEL:

Q  Bow long — you gaid you've bes in o txueling
industry for agproxisately 35 years; is that cozwect?

A Well, since 1% — late '70s, yes.

Q  Boy — vhen did you start wocking with bally durp
teodlers?

A
1980.

Q  Ind hovo yoo used them consistently throushout your
careery sinoe thea?

A Yeah, off and on, between driving and management
positions and mechanical positions, yes.

Q  And bave the belly dump tzailers thit you'ws = with
alwzys been Renco trailers?

A Y

Q  uhat other types of belly drp tenilers brwd you voslrd
with?

A Fruehauf, Cook, Utility, Beall, I'm sure — Midland. I
mean, I'm sure I'mmissing some, Trail King, Load King.

First time I ever used a belly dump trailer was probably
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Q Oy, I'sgoing to eboy you som docoments,
& Chay.
MS. WELFEL: Jump into same documents.
And I apologize to the folks on the phone because I
dm't have — I didn't circulate these earlier,
(Exhibit 19 marked for identification.)
BY MS, BOELFEL
Q 8o Exhibit 19 io o docueent that's Bates-lebaled MOB 388
oo page 1, 394 oo page 2, cnd £00 on page 3. If you look ot to
top, they all relate to Equipment Mowber 6777,
Do you ses that?
A Yes.
@ 2nd oo you tell me which piecs of Equipment 6777 wes or

A Ibelieve 677 — well, I don't believe it, 677 is the
fraont  is the middle trailer of the set that I was pulling n
subject day, July Tth, 2014.

Q Cumy. 2ind if we look at the first page of the pege that
i0 Bates-leboled MOB 383, on the work order, it is by you?
Un-hoh,

Scott, that's you, correct?

A Yes.

0 g therw ony othey percon wr—rd Soott that worko for
HoB?

A No. The work order is mede up by me, but the work was

L= T
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Q0 When did you meke this change to your timecnr@s euch

. that I would be eble to allocats your tims working on mintencnos

issuee?

A I think — I believe it was Jamary of 2015 that we
changed timecard formats.

Q %y did you chaoge your timecaed fommets in
Jenuary 20157

A Because somebody in the office wanted to start figuring
out how much it was costing to work maintenancewise on each piece
of equipment, but it never really came about.

But that's where — how it started

@ Gy, Al right, 8o locking ot the first pege of this
ok exder — ond com you read the £ixet — or read what is listed
o uritten in vedte wheve it sagn "Rdditioml.®

1 den't con anything checked on thn top. It exgs

"ditionnl,” oad then you brwe comothing writtca. Con you reed
that for E2,

A Yes. It says rewire trailer to meet MDB standards.
Replace lights with LEDs,

0 Gy, Wt aro MO standapds? [hat does that reom,
that you are rexiring this twailer to oot 103 otoadwds?

A Our standards is to wire the trailer in conjunction with
BCSA rules and proper techniques, I would suppose.

Q@ Ckay. You said in conjuncticn vith somsthing,
something, somsthing rules —

Page 179

performed by myself and Pat,

Q Ckay. And there's a section on each of these work
onders for total time, and I've noticed that most of them are
blonk,

In that to indicate the &iro it tock to perfora the work
ozdax o tho maintengncs that needs to be parformed?

A That's what — that's what that's for, yes, but we don't
generally use that.

@ Wy oot?

A Because we don't allocate time to a particular piece of
equipment.,

Bnd the way we do it, we do it with a separate timesheet
that has got all the trailer mmbers and the time it took the —
the mechanic worked on each trailer,

g S5 I just wnt to mke e 1 wmderstond what wou are
oaying.

Iee you ooying that ca your timeoheat — for ewsple, if
1 wonted to Imov bov long it took you to parcforn tha voeh that is
indicnted on the Dececher 1, 2013, work order, I could figure that
oat by looking at your timeshests; is thot corvect?

A You could. Presently, you could. ¥hen this ~ November
of 2013, you would not be able to, no.

9 Wy oot?

A Because that wasn't — that's not the way we filled our
timecards out then,

10

Page 181

A Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration rules.

g Oy,

A That would = that would apply probably to — more to
ABS system than anything else where they require certain type —
gauge of wire for ABS brakes, that sort of thing.

Q 8o e you deecribe for Bo wbat you did hero to redre
this treiler to met MB ctendards.

E  V¥e installed junction boxes at the frant of the trailer
to eliminate the seven-way and the four-way plugs at the front of
trailer, so they could be hard wired in,

I don't — we installed all new four-way and seven-ay
cable on the draw bar and plugs an the draw bar, installed new
three-vay wire fram front to rear.

Installed junction box at rear of trailer to isolate
wires to dump valves. Replaced all lights with LEDs,

Q 8o hat yon just doocxibod, that would bo considaced MIB
standerds with respect to the wiving of the trailer?

A Yes, to — yes, the type of wiring we did, you know, and
the techniques that we used to do it.

Q@ %onld you do this to every troiler oo thot pu ensuzed
that it met M08 standarde?

A Not if it already met MIB standards. If it already met
our standards to begin with, then we wouldn't rewire the trailer,
.

(0  Does amy part of this work that you desczibed imvolws
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pulling the wire, the hidden wiring?

A Yes,

Q Gy, So doge this mesn that — $0 how do you kmov if a
new trailer thnt yoo've leased meets MB standards, unless you
pull the viring sod inspect how it's been wired in the first
place?

Well, we wouldn't know that.

80 do you rewire evezry new trailer thet you lesse?
No. That's usually for used trailers.
New to us?

0  Eew to you.

A Yes. No, but when you look at the wires that are — if
you are looking at the wiring that you can see and it doesn't meet
our standards, then now is the time to start looking, digging
deeper and start pulling all the wiring out and putting it in
correctly.

0 Gy, S if yoo see efposed wiring that doem't mast
B gtrndardy —

A Yes.

@  — then your standard procedure - MDB standard
procadure is to pull all of the wiring in the trailer and rewire
it; is thet correct?

A Or we would bring it up to our standards.

It wouldn't necessarily mean we had to pull an all the
wiring out, but generally —- it might entail that.

o0 b
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misspeaking, but I do believe you can go down and buy a brand-new
Ranco trailer that still doesn't meet our standards, but so be it.
BY MS. WCELFEL:

Aod this is your perscoal standands?
Yezh. So it doesn't necessarily mean —
That there's & defect in the product?
Exactly.
Q Ckay. What genge of wire do Wu vse when you are
reairing?
MR, BRORN: Objection, foundation.
BY MS, WOELFEL:
0 Int's talk shout 6777,
MR, BRORN: Same objection.
THE WITHESS: What gauge of wire do we use?
BY MS. WOELFEL:
Q Yes,
A That's kird of a broad question. There are miltiple
gauges in the trailer,
Q Ckay. Vhat tgpes of gruges are in the treiler, ed &
tzuiler like 67773
R For instance, the four-way wire is four wires in a
casing, and they are all 14-gauge.
0 Cay. ¥hat othsr types of wire?
A The seven-way cable, that is your main — that's your
main lights, turn signals, brake lights, ABS, ground, we use only

g = -~ ]
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But I do remember this specific trailer where the

seven—ay cable going fram the seven-way at the front of the
trailer to the back was spliced,

Somebody had spliced it from ABS to nonRBS seven-way
cord, which does not meet law, the federal law guidelines, or our
standards.

@ Ouy.

A So that is what brought us to the conclusion to rewire
the trailer.

@ And cen you tell &a vhen MIB first leased Teailex 6777,

A I believe it was December or late October maybe of 2012,
I believe,

Q Chay., And go wms this treiler in cperation for almost a
gcax before it wes rewived to mest MOB stendards?

A Yesh, Well, it wasn't — yeah, until we detemmined that
it didn't meet MDB standards.

e Cuy.

A That's sort of a generic tem that I use when I wrote
the work order up, It doesn't necessarily mean we have a specific
standard that we go by.

Q¢  Are thess standazds written out?

R No. They are just in my — Pat and I's head. He know
how we do things.

MS. SHREVE: The next two are also in Exhibit 9,

THE WITNESS: And I do believe — I don't want to be

/]
23
24
25
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RBS cable.

¥hen 1 say it meets ABS standards, it means it's got an
8-gauge ground, 10-gauge stop light, and the rest are 12-gauge.

0 Gy, Iod that would bo - tho type of wicdey in, you
Just endd Boplpreat Broe 6777, would that bo tho oo —

A Yes.

@ - in 87157

A Yes, Yes.

MS, WOELFEL: I'm sorry, my exhibits are in a little bit
of a mess here, I'm looking for a specific one,

Let's go ahead and mark in next in line,

I'11 apologize in advance if there are any diplicates.
I tried to prevent that from occurring, but it's certainly a
possibility.

(Exhibit 20 marked for identification.)

BY MS. WOELFEL:

@ Eshibit 20 is @ sarieo of docmmnts that all relate to
Equipment Rarber 6775. Jnd thees are Bates-lsheled MB 239, 240,
246, 253, 286, 258, 262 rnd 1S.

led T juot vont to salk through these ~ each of thees
quickly.
Jod Bqigmeat M-t 6775 is the svbject trailer that
Mr. Yoski wes driving that in~duortently opaned; is thet cocvect?
A That is correct.
0 ind en July 18th, 2013, cen yoo — leghy Lils this io a
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work ordor perposcd by Bot; s that compest?

A Pardon?

Q ‘This is 0 vozk cedir thnt wop peegazed by Bot, do ¢t
correct, €0 far &0 you €1 tell?

R You know, actually, it was prepared by his wife,

@ Ixw godng to say it's reslly nice bendbriting,

A He must have had 2 bunch of them to do and took them
hame and dictated them, I quess, But it is Pat's work order, yes.

Q@  Dlad the work wes perforsed by Pat?

A Yes.

Q@ od can you describe for o the vock that was parformed

R Troubleshoot air leak at the gate control valve.

@ Do you knowr if this work ardar v beforo oz after tho
Joly '13 dump incident, becemse thers's comn confonien og to tho
date. S I'm wondering if yoo knov whotber this woek axdoe do
fram bafore that incident or after that incident.

A Well, it's kind of a loaded question,

MR, BROSN: Well, ask -- listen to what she said, do you
Jmow. And all you can say is yes or no, whether you kmow or not.
THE WITMNESS: Well, if you are saying is it after the
July 13th incident, then, yesh, for sure, it's after the July 13th
incident.
BY MS. WOELFEL:
Q o, Wall, I'm not — the July 2013 incident, So let me

14

A
2
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for leaks, okay.

Q ¥ow, this henduriting, we estzblished, io not Bot's.
Bis wife is writing this, it locks like.

A I think so, yes.

f Were is hip wifo gotting information? Is Put toking
notes? Is be just telling bee vhot be did? Do you ko eng idm
whare she's getting tho infomation that's included on this
docomgat?

A She is prohably getting it from his notes. This is
exactly  this looks exactly like what Pat would have written if
he wrote it.

It doesn't look — I mean, it doesn't look — I
understand what he did, vhat he was  so whether she wrote it or
he wrote it, I think it's the same — same thing, yes.

Q@ Do you usmally keep handuritten notes cn somthing other
than a work oxder when you aze perfomsing work on one of the 8
trucks oz trailers?

A Idm't know if he does. I think he does. I do, just
50 you don't forget to write the mileage down or the part number
or something like that, and then when you go to do your work —
sit don to do your work order, you have it in front of you, fill
out your work order, throw the paper away, you don't need it now.

Q 8o you throy ooy your bandwritben potes onoe yoa fill
out the work ezder. In thnt your testiresy?

R Yes,

Page 187

MR. BROWN: There you go. We don't know when it is.

Q0 % =y question is, we knov that a2 dmp cocurzed scmetise

Q Gy, Wb don't kmow the eamct date that thet ootarzed,

A 1dm't know for sure, but I believe it was dane before
I believe that the incident — the first incident

25

1 clarify,

2 THE WITNESS: Ch, oh, I see. Okay,

3

4 BY MS. WELFEL:

5 @ I'moot trying to trick you.

6 A Oh, no, o, T know that.

7

8 in July of the year 2013 involving Eomipeent 6775, correct?
9 R Yes.

10

11 but we have a vork ovder dn front of us, BDB 239, thnt's dated
12 Joly 16 that discossss em air leek at a gate aatrel wiv.
13 A Unh-huh, yes.

14 @ Ly question for you is, did this coowr ~- or in this
15 work oxder fros before that incident or ofter that incidemt, if
16 you kno?

17

18 the incident.

19 with the bottam opening inadvertently was the end of the mmth in
20 July, so I believe this was done before.

21 Q@ Ckzy. Cen wou toll ma what wan dons to fix this
2 peoblen,

R Pat found the O-rings on the oiler and water separator
leaking. Tried to repair with O-rings, removed units, bypassed
air lines, plumbed solid with pipe fittings, reinstalled, tested

SHEREBREDS wea,me e wreo .

BEREBEES

A
2%
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Q  Go dom to the pemt pege —

A Can I meke a clarification? This actually wasn't the
gate control valve that we were working on. You quys do know
that, right?

@ &ure, Yoo com maks that clarificaties,

A Yesh, we weren't actually working an the gate cantrol
valve, which would be the Versa valve. We were actually working
on the oiling system that's the head of it, yeah.

Q  Thenk you for thot clarificstion.

Ckay. So en to the next page, which wonld ba MB 240,
and this wrk ozder is dated 8/1/2013. Jad it says ¢ite
oompleted, 8/2/2013, for Rquipment 6777,

Do you see that?

A Yes.

@ Is this Pat's hendriting?

A Yes, it is.

Q 2od this seys investigats wnintentioanl gite cpeaing.
Bo this is the work order to dasl with the unintenticen] gots
cpening that oomureed ot the end of Jaly 2013; is that comzoct?

A That is correct.

Q Mnd the total tien is not filled ut. Nnd vy it yow
tegtizony thet thewe's no oy to figuve cut bow such tirs it took
to iz this problex?

A 1 could only quess.

Q0  Bow, this is the wock order for resdiriny the tenilesy,
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is that corvest, to reize?

A This, no. I think it's to rewire the truck., He might
have actually done something to the trailer. I'm not sure.

Q Con wou comnlly tohe o look and tell me what this wark
oxder is for.

R Okay. This was — his notes was investigation ~
investigating unintentional gate opening. So he replaced the
Versa valve and rewired dump valve circuit from valve ta truck.

0 MWat doss that mean — stop you there — “rewired dosp

@ W o = W R

w

Page 192
A Yes.

¢ And what did you do with -- or, what do you typically do
with the four-way socket and plug that you remove?

A Throw them away.

Q Do you know why you had to remove or replace the
four-wvay sockot and plug here?

A Now, once &gain, if there's any issues with wiring,
somathing not making contact, we replace -- these are pretty

high-maintenance items. We replace them, rather than try to clean

valwe cirauit from valve to trock™ Can you dascribe whare those 10 them or whatever. ¥%e just replace them.
coponents aze. 1 @ FRext one is June 4th, 2014. Agein, no name on the
A So what he did was, he made sure that the wiring from 12 bottom, But does that look like Pat's handwriting to you, or is
the batteries of the truck went to the svitches, and from the 13 that your handwriting?
switches in the foumaay thmx;h —_— directly to each Versa valve 14 A It's got a little of both, It looks like it's got
an each trailer without going through any other wiring, any 15 Tracy's handwriting, my handwriting and Pat's -- or, no, Tracy's
it's not  inclusive in any other wire. It's separate from all 16 handwriting end Pet's handwriting -- and =y handwriting, yes.
other — all other portions of the trailer, 17 Q@  And the work order, {t says by -- 1 think that says
Q Oy, 8o what you axo saying is, the wirc frol tho 18 scott?
truck, ho seitched the wiring eo that it went stenight fron the 19 A Yes, by Scott, but Pat wrote °by Scott,® meaning I'm the
truck — the battery divectly to the Verss valve? 20 one that hrought it to his attention and told him, hey, wé need to
A Mo, from the battery directly to the switches in the 21 fix this.
truck, and from there, directly to each Versa valve, instead of 22 Q  Describe to me what this work order entails.
going through the seven—ays. 23 A The trailer came in to the yard. Drivor would have
Q 8o before v romo cpoaliey, ©o telked about how you 24 npoticed -- let us know by filling out a DVIR, which ve may or may
completely sedred the hwes teniless = 25 not have at this particular time, that the ABS light was on,
Page 191 Page 1893
A Yes. 1 indicating a malfunction in the ABS system on the trailer.
Q -~ in response to this incident, correct? 2 Q@  And so vhat did you do to repalr that?
A I balieve so. 3 A pat would have hooked up our computer to it, figured out
Q Iz this the work ordar for the rewiring? 4 what wag wrong vith it, diagnosed it, found that the YB-1 wire was
A Ho, not for tho cemplete trailer. 5 broken, which is ope of the wires going from the modulator to one
Q Okay. That would be a differeat work order? 6§ of the four vheels, wheel ends.
R Yos. If -~ yoah, it would ba, 7 And he temporarily repaired the broken wire, spliced it,
Q Okay. And what's reflected on this work order does 8 which you are really not supposed to do, but it does work. And
not -- does not discuss or identify the work that you did im 9 then he replaced it on -~ two days later when the new one came in.
rewiring the three trailers, €773, 6774 -- 10 Q Next page is 6775 on 6/30, 2014, and I believe we
A No. 11 touched upon this one earlier in your testimony.
Q -~ and 67752 12 A Yes,
A Ho. 13 Q Since the last time -- I think you touched upon it
Q On to the next document, and that's a work order dated 14 yesterday -- do you have any idea what this work order is about?
February 15th, 2014, for Equipzent Number §775. 15 A Ko, In fact, this morning, I pulled this work order out
And can you tell me what this -- first of all, you can't | 16 before coming here and went over it with Pat Bigby.
identify who perfermed this work because there's no name; is that 17 Q Okay. Tell me what you guys discussed.
correct? 18 A And he says the only thing he can think of is tha bolts
A That is correct. Whea -~ I can identify it by his 19 were loose and he tightened up the bolts.
handwriting. 20 Q On the Versa valve?
Q That looks like Pat's hendwriting, too? 21 A Yes. That's the only thing he could think of.
A It is Pat's handwriting. And, apparently, he didan‘t 22 Q Did he have any personal recollection of it, or wae he
even put the date on, because that's my handwriting for the date. 23 just kind of speculating as to what it could possibly --

corract?

i
Q  And it says “replace four-wsy socket and plug”; is that | 24
|
2

S

A I think he was speculating, yes.
Q What else did you chat with Pat about this morning
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1 before your deposition? Did you talk about anything else with 1 You don't keep those?
respect to your testimony the day before? 2 A Mo,
A oh, no. Ho. Q Por any purpose.
Q Did you get any more clarification or talk through any Okay. and then the next page -- it's actually out of
5 other issues? S chron order here and we have discussed it. It's & repeat. Ignore
A Huh-uhb. 6 that one.
7 MR. BROWN: Is that a "no*? 7 A Okay.
8 THE WITNESS: Huh? 8 MS. WOELFBL: It's 5 o'clock right now. Why don't we
] MR. BROWN: I5 that a "no™? 9 breek and pick it up in the morning.
10 THE WITNESS: Oh, yeah, nc, we did not. We had other -~ | 10 THE WITNESS: Okay.
11 ether projacts we were trylng to figure out before I hed to take 11 MS. WOEBLFEL: And we'll shoot to have you done by
12 off to go to deposition. 8o, no. 12 noontime. We'll do our best to make it happen. Okay?
13 BY MS, WOELPEL: 13 THE WITNESS: Okay.
14 Q So the only item that you discussed with Pat related to 14 MS. WOELFEL: Thank you very much.
15 your testimony or sought clarification from him this morning was 15 THE WITKBSS: Yes. Thank you.
16 on the document that's Bates-lsbeled MDB 256; is that correct? 16 MS. SHREVE: Bye, everyone cn the phone.
17 A Yes, that's correct. 17 {The proceedings concluded at 4:59 p.m.)
18 Q Did you talk to any persen other than Pat this morning, 18 ~olo-
19 you know, about seeking clarification er checking on the stuff 18
20 that you had testified abont? 20
21 A Mo, I did not talk to anybody. 21
22 Q All right. Next page, MDB 258, date en thsre is 22
23 July 2nd, 2014. What's going on with this work order? 23
24 A Same trailer again, came in with ABS light on agein. He | 24
25 would hsve done -- gone through his typlcal diagnostics test, 25
Page 195 Page 197
1 hooking the computer to it, found both sensors wires to the front 1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATION
sensors damaged, replaced both wires. 2
Q  And with respect to the wirss that he remeved, he would 3 1, CONSTANCE S. EISENBERG, a Certified Court Reporter in
have thrown those away, cerrect? 4 and for the State of Nevada, do hereby certify;
A Yes. 5 That orn Tuesday, March 7, 2017, at the hour of 3:45 a.m.
Q  Wext page, MDB 262, that is the work order that was 6 of gaid day, at 100 @. Liberty St., 10th Flooz, Reno, Nevada,
7 completed on July 8th, 2014. Can you tell me what's going on with | | Personally sppeared SCOTT ALEN PALMER, who was duly sworn by me to
8 this one. § testify in the within-entitled proceedings;
g A Okay. Apparently, six days later, came back with the 9 That said deposition wes taken in verbatim stenotype
10 ABS 1light on again, did the same troubleshooting and found BO-1 10 notes by me and thereafter transcrihed into typewriting as herein
11 circuit fault. Traced circuit to the extension cable, replaced 11 appoars;
12 eable and cleansd or cleared codes. 12 That I am not a relative nor an employee of any of the
1 q okay. 13 parties, nor am T financially er otherwise interested in this
1¢ A This time, he found the problem with the extension U action;
15 That the foregoing tramscript, comsisting of pages one
13 cable. 16 through 197, is a full, true and correct traascription of By
6 0 So the first fix on July 2nd didn't repaizr the problem. 17 stenotype notes of said deposition.
17 It looks like the repair that Pat did six days later found the 18 DATED: At Reno, Hevada, this 16th day of March, 2017.
18 socurce of that issue? 13
19 A I would say that he replaced the sensors, and the sensor 2 Mw/,/'p&’l"“‘
20 wires go to an extension that goes ths rest of the way. So /
21 apparently - replacing both sensor wires didn't fix it or just a 21 CONSTANCE S. EISENBERG, CCR 142, RMR, CRR
22 coincidence that the extension cable was also broken, But, ysah. 22
23 Q And with respect to the items he repleced, he would 23
24 throw the ones he removed away; is that correct? 24
25 A Yeah. No, we do not have those. 25
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I declare undexr penalty of perjury that I have read the
feregeing
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ERRATA SHEET

pages of my testimony, taken
(date) at

{eity), (state},

13

15
16
17
18
19
20
2
22
23
U4
| 2% . .

10 and that the same is a true record of the testimony given
11 by me at the time and place herein
12 above set forth, with the following exceptions:

14 Page Line

Should read: Reason for Change:
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s s
[ R N

13

139

20
21
22
23
24
25

Page Line

18 Date:
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ERRATA SHEET

Should read: Reason for Change:

Signature of Witness
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LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH P
6385 S. Rainbow Boulevard, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89118
702.893.3383

FAX: 702.893.3789

Attorneys for Defendant/Cross-
Claimant/Cross-Defendant VERSA
PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC.

DISTRICT COURT
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
ERNEST BRUCE FITZIMMONS and Case No. CV15-02349
CAROL FITZSIMMONS, Husband and
Wife, Dept. 10
Plaintiffs, DEFENDANT/CROSS-
CLAIMANT/CROSS-DEFENDANT
vs. VERSA PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC.'S
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT
MDB TRUCKING, LLC, et. al. AGAINST DEFENDANT/CROSS-
Defendants. CLAIMANT/CROSS-DEFENDANT MDB
TRUCKING, LLC'S CROSS-CLAIMS
AND ALL RELATED CASES.

COMES NOW Defendant/Cross-Claimant/Cross-Defendant VERSA PRODUCTS
COMPANY, INC., by and through its attorneys of record, Josh Cole Aicklen, Esq., David
B. Avakian, Esq. and Paige S. Shreve, Esq., of the law firm LEWIS BRISBOIS
BISGAARD & SMITH, LLP, and moves this Court for an Order granting Summary
Judgment in its favor as to MDB TRUCKING, LLC’s Cross-Claims against it.

4832-2642-3367.1 AAQ000219




1 This Motion is based upon NRCP 56; the Memorandum of Points and Authorities;
2 ||the affidavit of David B. Avakian, Esq.; the exhibits attached hereto; and any other
3 || evidence the Court may entertain at the Hearing on this Motion.
4 DATED this 1% day of May, 2017
5 Respectfully submitted,
6 LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLp
7
8
9 By /s/ David B. Avakian
JOSH COLE AICKLEN
10 Nevada Bar No. 007254
DAVID B. AVAKIAN
1 Nevada Bar No. 009502
PAIGE S. SHREVE
12 Nevada Bar No. 013773
6385 S. Rainbow Boulevard, Suite 600
13 Las Vegas, Nevada 89118
Attorneys for Defendant/Cross-
14 Claimant/Cross-Defendant VERSA
15 PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC.
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
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AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID B. AVAKIAN, ESQ. IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

DAVID B. AVAKIAN, ESQ., being first duly sworn, deposes and states as follows:

1. | am a Partner at LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP, and am duly
licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada.

2. | am competent to testify to the matters set forth in this Affidavit, and will do
so if called upon.

3. | am an attorney of record representing Defendant/Cross-Claimant/Cross-
Defendant VERSA PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC. in the subject lawsuit currently pending
in Department 10 of the Second Judicial District Court for the State of Nevada, Case
Number CV15-02349.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of MDB’s Cross-
Claim.

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of the Deposition
Transcript of MDB's PMK, Scott Palmer, Volume Il1.

6. Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of the Deposition

Transcript of Tracy Shane.

7. Attached hereto as Exhibit 4 is a true and correct copy of the Deposition

Transcript of Patrick Bigby.

4832-2642-3367.1 3 AA000221
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8. Attached hereto as Exhibit 5 is a true and correct copy of the Deposition
Transcript of MDB'’s PMK, Scott Palmer, Volume Il.
FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

DAVID B. AVAKIAN,-ESQ

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me
this _12Y day of May, 2017.

—— et

NO A BLIC C NowryMTCHELLCOX
In and for said County and State L UAPPT Mo e of Nevada

* My App. Expires February 14, 2018

4832-2642-3367.1 4 AA000222
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
R INTRODUCTION
Defendant/Cross-Claimant, MDB TRUCKING, LLC (“hereinafter referred to as
“MDB”), has brought Cross-Claims’ against VERSA PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC.

(hereinafter referred to as “VERSA"), in which it asserts a contribution claim against
VERSA for a personal injury claims brought by Plaintiffs, Ernest Fitzsimmons and Carol
Fitzsimmons (“Fitzsimmons”); Angela Wilt (“Wilt"); Rosa, Benjamin, Cassandra and
Natalie Robles (“Robles”); Sonya Corthell (“Corthell”); Beverly, Patrick and Ryan
Crossland (“Crossland”); Olivia and Naykyla John (“John”); Kandise Baird (“Kins"); James
Bible (“Bible”); and Geneva Remmerde (“Remmerde”) (collectively referred to as
“Plaintiffs”). See, MDB'’s Cross-Claim against VERSA, a true and correct copy attached
hereto as Exhibit 1. Plaintiffs were driving westbound on IR80 when a semi-trailer driven
by Daniel Koski and owned by Cross-Claimant MDB spilled gravel on the freeway,
causing multiple automobile accidents and the injuries alleged by the Plaintiffs. MDB’s
contribution claim is based on its allegation that the inadventent gravel dump was due to
an alleged “defect” with the VERSA valve on the subject trailer.

In discovery, MDB admitted that the VERSA valve did not have any product defect
or design defect. MDB also admitted that it did not purchase the subject valve directly
from VERSA and it did not consult VERSA on which valve to purchase. Finally, MDB
admitted that it installed the VERSA valve without consulting VERSA.

! There are a total of nine different lawsuits filed by the Plaintiffs. All except for two of the above mentioned
lawsuits have been consolidated for discovery and trial purposes. The remaining two cases, James Bible

{CV16-01914) and Geneva Remmerde (CV16-00976), have been consolidated for discovery purposes
only. VERSA is named as a direct defendant in all nine cases, except for Remmerde. VERSA is only a
Third-Party Plaintiff/Defendant in that case.

In all nine of the above mentioned lawsuits, MDB filed cross-claims/third-party action against VERSA
for Indemnity and Contribution. VERSA filed a Motion to Dismiss MDB’s Indemnity claim against VERSA in
all nine cases. The Court granted VERSA's Motions leaving MDB with a cross-claim for contribution only
against VERSA.

4832-2642-3367.1 5 AA(00223
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VERSA requests that this Court grant this Motion for Summary Judgment on the
grounds that VERSA cannot be held liable for Plaintiff's alleged injuries based on MDB's
own admission that there was no defect with the VERSA product, that it was purchased
from a third-party and installed by MDB on the subject trailer.

I STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS

VERSA provides the following material facts not in dispute in accordance with

NRCP 56(c).

1. MDB did not purchase the subject valve directly from VERSA, it was
purchased from ENGS Motor Truck Company.

2. MDB never consuited with anyone from VERSA regarding purchasing the
subject valve.

3. MDB never consulted anyone from ENGS Motor Truck Company regarding
the purchase of a different model valve.

4. VERSA never made any representations to MDB.

5. MDB investigated the subject truck and trailer after the incident and did not
find any defect with the VERSA valve.

6. MDB did not find a design defect with the VERSA valve following the
subject incident.

7. MDB kept the subject valve in use on the subject trailer for over two years
following the accidents until it was removed for destructive testing by the
experts in this lawsduit.

.  LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. Standard of Review

NRCP 56 provides:

Rule 56. Summary Judgment.

(a) For Claimant. A party seeking to recover upon a claim,
counterclaim, or cross-claim or to obtain a declaratory
judgment may, at any time after the expiration of 20 days from

4832-2642-3367.1 6 AAD00224
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the commencement of the action or after service of a motion
for summary judgment by the adverse party, move with or
without supporting affidavits for a summary judgment in the
party’s favor upon all or any part thereof.

(c) Motion and proceedings thereon. .. .The judgment sought
shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions,
answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together
with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue
as to any material fact and the moving party is entitled to
judgment as a matter of law...[.]

See, NRCP 56(a) and (c).

When a motion for summary judgment is made and supported by the facts
appearing in the record, a party “may not rest upon the mere allegations of his pleading,
but must, by affidavit or otherwise, set forth facts demonstrating the existence of a

genuine issue for trial.” Garvey v. Clark County, 91 Nev. 127, 130, 532 P.2d 269, 271

(1975). The United States Supreme Court, through its interpretation of the identical
federal rule for summary judgment, has held that entry of summary judgment is required
when the opposing party fails to identify facts supporting the elements of his claim for

relief. See, Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 322, 106 S.Ct. 2548 (1986).

The Nevada Supreme Court has made it clear that summary judgment cannot be
regarded as a disfavored procedural device, and must be granted when the

circumstances warrant. See, Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 73, 121 P.3d

1026, 1031 (2005). In Wood, the Nevada Supreme Court stated:

While the pleadings and other proof must be construed in a
light most favorable to the nonmoving party, that party bears
the burden to “do more than simply show that there is some
metaphysical doubt” as to the operative facts in order to avoid
summary judgment being entered in the moving party’s favor.
The nonmoving party “must, by affidavit or otherwise, set forth
specific facts demonstrating the existence of a genuine issue
for trial or have summary judgment entered against him.” The
nonmoving party “is not entitied to build a case on the
gossamer threads of whimsy, speculation and conjecture.”

AAQ00225
4832-2642.3367.1 7
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See, Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 73, 121 P.3d 1026, 1031 (2005)

(internal citations omitted).

The Nevada Supreme Court has eliminated the “slightest doubt” standard and held
that the party opposing a motion for summary judgment must show facts sufficient to
demonstrate that a reasonable jury could find that the party has sufficient evidence to
prove each element of his claim. Id. After adequate time for discovery, if the plaintiff fails
to make a showing sufficient to establish the existence of an element essential to their
case, then the court must summarily enter judgment against them. See, Celotex Corp. v.
Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 322-23, 106 S.Ct. 2548 (1986); see also, NGA #2 Ltd. Liab. Co. v.
Rains, 113 Nev. 1151, 946 P.2d 163 (1997).

Lastly, it is well-established under Nevada law that a party cannot avoid summary

judgment by contradicting prior sworn testimony with a subsequent self-serving affidavit.

See, Aldabe v. Adams, 81 Nev. 280, 282, 402 P.2d 34 (1965) (“[A] genuine issue of

material fact may not be created by the conflicting sworn statements of the party against

whom summary judgment was entered.”);? see also Bank of Las Vegas v. Hoopes, 84

Nev. 585, 586, 445 P.2d 937 (1968) (conflicting statements by plaintiff do not create

genuine issue of fact for purposes of NRCP 56); Nutton v. Sunset Station, 357 P.3d 966,
976, 131 Nev. Adv. Rep. 34 (Nev. App. 2015) (“The general rule is that a party cannot
defeat summary judgment by contradicting itself in response to an already-pending
NRCP 56 motion.”).

In other words, a party’s attempt to muddy the waters with an affidavit that
contradicts his prior sworn testimony does not present a “genuine” issue of fact.
Accordingly, MDB is bound by its PMK’s deposition testimony, during which he conceded
candidly and truthfully that MDB investigated the inadvertent dumping and determined

there was no product defect or design defect with the VERSA valve. See, Deposition

2 g«ldabe was overruled on other grounds by Siragusa v. Brown, 114 Nev. 1384, 1393, 971 P.2d 801
(1998).

4832-2642-3367.1 8 AA000226
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Transcript of Scott Palmer Vol. lll, a true and correct copy attached here to as Exhibit 2 at
P.97:16-25;98:1-17.

As such, MDB cannot meet the burden of proof on its claim for contribution against
VERSA for injuries alleged by Plaintiffs, because MDB has no evidence to raise a
genuine issue of material fact that there was no defect with the VERSA valve. Since
MDB’s own witnesses admit there was no defect with the VERSA valve, MDB cannot
meet its burden of proof that any damages Plaintiffs may recover at trial were caused by
VERSA. As a consequence, VERSA is entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law.

B. VERSA CANNOT BE FOUND LIABLE ON MDB'S CONTRIBUTION CLAIMS
BECAUSE PLAINTIFFS WERE NOT INJURED BY A VERSA VALVE

Where strict product liability is alleged, a plaintiff must still prove his or her case.

Shoshone Coca-Cola Bottling Co. v. Dolinski, 82 Nev. 439, 443 (1966). Strict liability does

not prove causation nor does it trace cause to a defendant. Ginnis v. Mapes Hotel Corp.,

86 Nev. 408, 413 (1970). The plaintiff must prove that his injury was caused by a defect
in a product and that such defect existed when the product left the hands of the

defendant. Shoshone Coca-Cola Bottling Co., at 444. In order to avoid summary

judgment, Plaintiff needs to submit evidence to establish a prima facia case using
depositions, interrogatories, admissions or affidavits. When a motion for summary
judgment is made and supported as provided in this rule, the adverse party may not rest
upon the mere allegations of his pleading, but he must, by affidavit or otherwise, set forth

facts demonstratin the existence of 8 enuine issue for trial. Garvey v. Clark County, 91

Nev. 127, 130 532 P.2d 269, 271 (1975); Bird v. Casa Royale W., 97 Nev. 67, 70, 624

P.2d 17, 19 (1981).
MDB has made a claim for contribution alleging that VERSA is partly or wholly
responsible for any damages incurred by Plaintiffs as a proximate result of defect in the

VERSA valve at the time of manufacturing or by negligent design. MDB bases this

4832-2642-3367.1 9 AA000227
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allegation on its allegations that: 1) VERSA manufactured a product that would cause a
belly dump gate to inadvertently activate; 2) VERSA had a safer design available in the
stream of commerce inn or before 2002; and 3) that VERSA model should have been
installed in 2013 on the subject trailer. See, MDB’s Cross-Claim, P. 3:17-24 Exhibit 1.
However, MDB’s own testimony proves that: 1) there was not a defect with the subject
VERSA valve; 2) MDB did not consult VERSA or the company from which it purchased
the subject valve from regarding other possible models; and 3) MDB installed the subject
valve without any training or knowledge regarding the installation of a VERSA valve.
Thus, MDB'’s own admissions prove there is no triable issue of genuine fact.

1. There Was No Defect in the Subject VERSA Valve

After the subject incident, MDB’s manager Tracy Shane and MDB'’s mechanics,
Patrick Bigby and Scott Palmer, inspected the subject truck and trailer in an effort to
determine the cause of the inadvertent dumping. See, Tracy Shane Deposition
Transcript, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 3 at P. 83:24-25;
84:1-4. Scott Palmer, Tracy Shane and Patrick Bigby all testified there was not a defect
with the subject VERSA valve.

Specifically, Scott Palmer testified:

Q. I'm going to ask you the same question again for after the July
2014 incident on Trailer 6775. Did MDB in their investigation after
the dump-- again, this is right after, not since litigation-- did MDB
find any defect with that Versa valve?

MR. PALMER: No. That remained in service until such time litigation
started.

Q. And on that same trailer, the same Versa valve, did MDB in their
investigation right after the subject incident -- again, pre-litigation,
right after -- did MDB discover any design defect with the Versa
valve?

MR. PALMER: No. But, once again, we weren't looking for any sort of
design defects or functionality defects. It worked.

Q. Okay.

4832-2642-3367.1 10 AA000228
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MR. PALMER: To the best of our knowledge it still worked.
Q. So it worked as you expected it to work, then?

MR. PALMER: Well, at that -- yeah. | would imagine. After that time
we had lockout devices in there so we wouldn't be able to tell if it
inadvertently opened after that incident, but as far as | know, we
could find nothing wrong with the valve.

See, Exhibit 2 at P. 97:16-25,98:1-17.
Mr. Bigby testified similarly:
Q. How about for your inspection during July 2014 after the subject
in7cident, did you find any defect with the Versa valve on trailer
67757

MR. BIGBY: | did not.

Q. And then the same again for after the July 2014 incident on trailer
6775 did you discover any design defects with the Versa valve?

MR. BIGBY: To my knowledge, no.

See, Patrick Bigby’s Deposition Transcript, a true and correct copy attached hereto as

Exhibit4 at P.118:6-19.

Tracy Shane testified that the subject valve did not have a defect and confirmed

that Patrick Bigby and Scott Palmer did not find a defect, too:

Q. Did Pat or Scott -- Following July 2014 for trailer 6775 did Scott or
Pat inform you that they found any type of defect with the Versa
valve?

MR. SHANE:  They could not find any defect as far as | recall.

Q. So foliowing July 2014 on trailer 6775 did Scott or Pat inform you
that they found any type of design defect with the Versa valve?

MR. SHANE: No, we found no such flaw.

Q. Okay. Did you personally find any design defect with the Versa
valve following the July '14 incident on equipment number 67757

MR. SHANE: No.
See, Exhibit 3 at P. 84:25;85:1-12.

4832-2642-3367.1 11
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Additionally, MDB kept the same Versa valve in use on the trailer until it was
removed in November 2016 in the subject litigation. See, Exhibit 3 at P. 84:19-24. MDB
would not have allowed a defective valve to remain in service, to potentially cause
another accident.

Accordingly, because MDB’s PMK and the two MDB employees who investigated
the subject incident all testified under oath that there is no defect with the subject VERSA
valve, VERSA is entitled to summary judgment on MBD’s claim for contribution.

2. MDB Did Not Seek VERSA'’s Advice When Purchasing the Subject Valve.

MDB's cross-claims allege that MDB purchased the subject valve from VERSA
and VERSA should have provided its customers a different valve. First, confrary to
MDB'’s allegations, VERSA did not directly sell MDB the subject valve. See, Deposition
Transcript of Scott Palmer Vol. Il, a true and correct copy attached here to as Exhibit 5 at
P.54:23-24. MDB purchased the subject valve from ENGS Motor Truck Company. |d.
Secondly, when MDB purchased the subject valve, it never spoke to ENGS Motor Truck
Company regarding the purchase of any other valve or any other type of VERSA valve.
Id. at P. 56:3-18. Further, MDB's witnesses testified that they never contacted VERSA
directly to inquire about other valve options because the subject valve is the standard
valve used. ld. Therefore, VERSA could not have known that it “should have provided
MDB a different VERSA valve model.”

MDB testified as follows:

Q. Did you or did MDB ask ENGS Motor Company about purchasing
another valve, other than the Versa valve?

MR. PALMER: No.

Q. Did MDB ask ENGS Motor Truck Company about purchasing a
different type of Versa valve?

MR. PALMER: A different model number of Versa valve?
Q. Yes, a different model.

MR. PALMER: No, we did not.

4832-2642-3367.1 12 AA000230




Q. And why did you not ask ENGS Motor -- or, why did MDB not ask
ENGS Motor Truck Company about purchasing a different model
number of a Versa valve?

MR. PALMER: More than likely, because this has been the
standard valve I've seen used for all -- for 35 years I've been
around. And that's what everybody uses, and that's what people
stock and sell, and that more than likely, we would not have
thought about a different style of Versa valve.

Id. Likewise, MDB’s mechanic, Patrick Bigby testified:

Q. Did you have any discussions with anybody else at MDB about
what type of Versa valve to purchase in order to replace the one
that you had removed?

© 00 N O O A& W N =

10 MR. BIGBY: No.
11 Q. So if you placed the order then it would have been your decision
iz on which Versa valve to order?
i MR. BIGBY: Yes.
Q. Did you look at any other types of Versa valve when you were
14 making a decision on what to purchase?
i5 MR. BIGBY: No.
16 || See, Exhibit 4 at P.96:9-18.
17 Therefore, VERSA is entitled to summary judgment against MDB’s contribution
18 || claim, because MDB admits that the subject valve was the only valve it decided to
19 || purchase and MDB did not consult VERSA or anyone else regarding the purchase of the
20 || subject valve.
21 3. MDB Installed the Subject Valve on the Subject Trailer
22 Lastly, VERSA did not install the subject valve on the trailer and was not consuited
23 || on the installation of the valve. MDB had its mechanic Patrick Bigby install the subject
24 [ valve on the trailer. See, Exhibit 5 at P. 44:1-3. Patrick Bigby had never installed a
25 || VERSA valve prior to the subject valve. Further, Patrick Bigby testified that he did not
26 || have any training by MDB nor anyone else regarding the installation of the VERSA valve:
27 Q. Were you the person that installed the Versa valve once it - once
you received the new one?
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MR. BIGBY: Yes.

Q. Had you ever installed a Versa valve before coming to work at
MDB?

MR. BIGBY: No.

Q. Did you receive any training with respect to the installation of the
Versa valve?

MR. BIGBY: No.

See, Exhibit 4 at P. 58:2-10.

No only did MDB's mechanic not have any prior experience or knowledge
regarding the installation of a VERSA valve, he did not read any manuals or instructions
prior to installing it on the subject trailer:

Q. So you did not read any manuals prior to installing it?

MR. BIGBY: | did not.

Id. at P. 58:14-16.

Q. Okay. And when you went and picked it up and then did you
notice when you opened the package for the Versa valve that
there was any written documentation include with it?

MR. BIGBY: . | would have to say that there probably was.

Q. Did you read it before you replaced the Versa valve?

MR. BIGBY: | did not.

Q. Did anyone assist you in installing the new Versa valve?

MR. BIGBY: | do not believe so.

Id. at P. 97:14-23.

By MDB’s own admission, MDB installed the subject valve without reading the
directions on installation of the product and did not consult VERSA regarding the
installation of the same. Consequently, MBD’s claims for contribution based on VERSA's
alleged “defective valve” cannot be proved based upon the undisputed evidence.

111
111
I
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IV. CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, VERSA respectfully requests that the Court grant

summary judgment in favor of VERSA and against MDB on all claims contained in MDB's

Cross-Claim against VERSA.
AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030, the undersigned hereby affirms that this document

filed in this court does not contain the social security number of any person
DATED this 1% day of May, 2017

Respectfully submitted,

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLp

By /s/ David B. Avakian

JOSH COLE AICKLEN

Nevada Bar No. 007254

DAVID B. AVAKIAN

Nevada Bar No. 009502

PAIGE S. SHREVE

Nevada Bar No. 013773

6385 S. Rainbow Boulevard, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89118
Attorneys for Defendant/Cross-
Claimant/Cross-Defendant VERSA
PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC.

4832.2642-3367.1 15 AA000233
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Exhibit 1
Exhibit 2
Exhibit 3
Exhibit 4
Exhibit 5
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MDB’s Cross-Claim

Deposition Transcript of MDB’s PMK, Scott Palmer, Volume Ili
Deposition Transcript of Tracy Shane
Deposition Transcript of Patrick Bigby
Deposition Transcript of MDB's PMK, Scott Palmer, Volume Il
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that on this 1 day of May, 2017, a true and correct copy

of DEFENDANT/CROSS-CLAIMANT/CROSS-DEFENDANT
FOR
DEFENDANT/CROSS-CLAIMANT/CROSS-DEFENDANT MDB TRUCKING,

COMPANY, INC’S MOTION

VERSA  PRODUCTS
JUDGMENT  AGAINST
LLC'S

SUMMARY

CROSS-CLAIMS was served via U.S. Mail addressed as follows:

Joseph S. Bradley, Esq.
BRADLEY, DRENDEL & JEANNEY
P.O. Box 1987

Reno, Nevada 89505

Attorney for ERNEST BRUCE
FITZSIMMONS and CAROL
FITZSIMMONS

Sarah M. Quigley, Esq.

BRADLEY, DRENDEL & JEANNEY
P.O. Box 1987

Reno, Nevada 89505

Attorney for ANGELA MICHELLE WILT;
ROSA ROBLES; BENJAMIN ROBLES;
NATALIE ROBLES; CASSANDRA
ROBLES; JULIE KINS and KANDISE
BAIRD; GENEVA M. REMMERDE and
JAMES BIBLE

Terry A. Friedman, Esq.

Julie McGrath Throop, Esq.
300 S. Arlington Ave.

Reno, Nevada 89501

Attorneys for OLIVIA JOHN and
NAKYLA JOHN

Kevin M. Berry, Esq.

247 Court St., Ste. A

Reno, Nevada 89501

Attorneys for BEVERLY A. CROSSLAND;
PATRICK E. CROSSLAND AND RYAN P.
CROSSLAND

Lisa Taylor, Esq.

5664 N. Rainbow Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89130
Attorney for USAA

Katherine F. Parks, Esq.

Brian M. Brown, Esq.

Thierry V. Barkley, Esq.
THORNDAL, ARMSTRONG, DELK
BALKENBUSH & EISINGER

6590 S. McCarran, Ste. B

Reno, Nevada 89509

P: 775-786-2882

Attorneys MDB TRUCKING, LLC and
DANIEL ANTHONY KOSKI

Matthew C. Addison, Esq.
McDONALD CARANO WILSON LLP
100 W. Liberty St., 10" Floor

Reno, Nevada 89501

RMC LAMAR HOLDINGS, INC.

Jacob D. Bundick, Esq.

Lisa J. Zastrow, Esq.

GREENBURG TRAURIG, LLP

3773 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Ste. 400 North
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

P: 775-786-2882

Attorneys for Third-Party Defendants

THE MODERN GROUP GP-SUB, INC. and
DRAGON ESP, LTD.

Craig M. Murphy, Esq.

MURPHY & MURPHY LAW OFFICES
8414 W. Farm Rd., Ste. 180 PMB 2007
Las Vegas, Nevada 89131

Attorneys for Plaintiffs CHRISTY
CORTHELL; SHAWN CORTHELL and
SONYA CORTHELL

/s/ Susan Kingsbury

An Employee of
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
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FILED
Electronicall
CV15-0234

2016-06-15 09:24:52 AM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

1 3860 . .
Katherine F. Parks, Esq., State Bar No. 6227 Transaction # 55662579 : csule ic

Brian M. Brown, Esq., State Bar No. 5233
Thierry V. Barkley, Esq., State Bar No. 724
Thomdal Armstrong Delk Balkenbush & Eisinger
6590 S. McCarran Blvd., Suite B

Reno, Nevada 89509

(775) 786-2882

Attorneys for Defendant/Third-Party Plaintiff
MDB TRUCKING, LLC

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

[OV]

>R - RS < YLV S - S WV

ERNEST BRUCE FITZSIMMONS and Case No. CV15-02349

10 CAROL FITZSIMMONS, Husband and
Wife, Dept. No. 15

i Plaintiffs,

- Vs,

I3 MDB TRUCKING, LLC; RMC LAMAR

14 HOLDINGS, INC.; VERSA PRODUCTS
COMPANY, INC.; DANIEL ANTHONY

s KOSKI; ABC Corporations I-X, Black and
White Companies, and DOES [-XX,

16 inclusive,

17 Defendants.

I8  AND RELATED CROSS-CLAIM AND

" THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT.

20

21 MDB TRUCKING, LLC'S CROSS-CLAIM AGAINST RMC
LAMAR HOLDINGS, INC, (fTka RANCH MANUFACTURING COMPANY)

22 ND VERSA PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC.

23 Defendant and Cross-Claimant, MDB Trucking, LLC, by and through its counsel of

24 record Thorndal Armstrong Delk Balkenbush & Eisinger hereby brings its cross-claim against
25 Cross-Defendants RMC Lamar Holdings, Inc. (fka Ranch Manufacturing Company) and Versa

26  Products Company, Inc.
THORNDAL ARMSTHONG

DELE BALKENBUSI
& Eisiecen 27 11/
4390 S McCasraat Samic B

Rema. Novada Sy50)

(773) Tna-2u0) 28 ///
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Genersal Allegations)

1. That Defendant/Cross-Claimant MDB Trucking, LLC was at all relevant times a
Nevada limited liability company authorized to conduct business within the state of Nevada.

2. That Cross-Defendants DOES 1-10 and BLACK AND WHITE COMPANIES are
sued herein under fictitious names and capacities of said Defendants are not known by Cross-
Claimant, who ask leave of this court to amend this Cross-Claim to set forth same as they
become known or ascertained.

KX Cross-Defendant RMC Lamar Holdings, Inc. (fka Ranch Manufacturing
Company) was at all relevant times hereto a Colorado corporation engaged in the business of
designing and manufacturing trailers and semi-trailers and placed same into the stream of
commerce and was doing business in the State of Nevada.

4, Cross-Defendant Versa Products Company, Inc. was at all relevant times hereto a
New Jersey Corporation engaged in the business of designing and manufacturing pneumatic air
solenoid valves specifically for bottom dump trailers and gate activated controls and placed into
the stream of commerce and was doing business in the State of Nevada.

5. A First Amended Complaint was filed on May 19, 2016 in the Second Judicial
Distriet Court, Case No. CV15-02349, Department 15 in which the Plaintiffs Ernest Bruce
Fitzsimmons and Carol Fitzsimmons prayed for damages against Defendant MDB Trucking,
LLC alleging negligence with regard to an accident which occurred on July 7, 2014 where a
Ranco trailer owned by MDB Trucking, LLC spilled a load of gravel causing an accident and
injury which are claims presented by Plaintiffs.

6. That upon information and belief, the Ranco trailer was activated inadvertently
causing the gates of the semi-trailer to release the subject Joad of gravel on the highway and was
defective in part or in whole as designed by Defendant RMC Lamar Holdings, Inc. (fka Ranch
Manufacturing Company) (also known by the trade name and trademark Ranco).
iy
Iy
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7. Cross-Defendant RMC Lamar Holdings, Inc. manufactured the subject Ranco
trailer in 2002 under the vehicle brand Ranco with vehicle identification number
IR9BP450821.008431 Idaho Plate #TE3528.

8. Cross-Claimant MDB Trucking, LLC was the last purchaser and end user of the
subject Ranco trailer.

9. On or about July 7, 2014, the Ranco trailer that left Cross-Defendant’s control as
designed, assembled and manufactured by the Cross-Defendant was unreasonably dangerous and

defective in one or more of the following respects:

a. The semi-trailer was designed, assembled, and manufactured and/or
configured in such a manner that the Versa solenoid valve would activate inadveriently allowing
the gates to open and release the load carried by the trailer; and,

b. That the Ranco trailer was designed, assembled, manufactured, and/or
configured in such a manner that the Versa Valve was not equipped with a safety lock to prevent
inadvertent activation allowing the gates to open.

c. That Versa Valve manufactured an alternate safer design available in 2002
including a manual lock system.

10.  Onor about July 7, 2014, that Versa Valve solenoid control as a component to the
Ranco trailer was unreasonably dangerous and defective in one or more of the following respects:

a. The Versa Valve solenoid valve would activate inadvertently allowing the
gates to open and release the load carried by the trailer; and,

b. Versa Products Company, Inc. had a safer design available in the stream of
commerce on or before 2002 which employed a manual lock safety design that should have been
provided to its end use customers in lieu of the Versa Valve installed both at the time of the
manufacturer in 2002 and/or as a standard maintenance replacement in 2013.

11/
11
111
/117
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11.  That to the extent Plaintiffs were injured as a proximate result of the unreasonably
dangerous conditions and defects at the time of manufacturing or negligent design, such is a
direct and proximate result of the negligence of the Cross-Defendants; and, any negligence that
exists as alleged by Plaintiffs is expressly denied. Cross-Defendants were actively negligent and

Cross-Claimant was passively negligent.

12. That Cross-Defendants breached a duty of care owed to the Cross-Claimant and
Cross-Defendants are required to indemnify and hold Cross-Claimant harmless with respect to all
the allegations and liabilities set forth in the Complaint filed in this matter.

13.  Cross-Claimant has placed Cross-Defendant RMC Lamar Holdings, Inc. on notice
of the claims pending in this matter prior to initiation of litigation.

14.  That Cross-Claimant has been required to expend costs and attorneys’ fees in
defending the negligence claims in the First Amended Complaint on file herein and for
prosecuting the instant Cross-Complaint.

FIRST CLAIM FOR IEF
(Implied Indemnification as to RMIC LAMAR)
15.  Cross-Claimant repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in

paragraphs 1-14 above as if more fully set forth herein.

16.  Cross-Claimant is therefore entitled to complete indemnity against RMC Lamar

- Holdings, Inc. with respect to all allegations or liabilities set forth in the First Amended

Complaint on file in this matter.

17.  That Cross-Claimant is therefore entitled to total costs and fees expended in the
defense of the claims of negligence in this matter as well as prosecution of this Cross-Complaint.
SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEE
(Contribution as to RMC LAMAR)

18.  Cross-Claimant repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1-17 above as if more fully set forth herein.
111
11
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19.  Cross-Claimant is entitled to contribution from Cross-Defendant RMC Lamar
with respect to any settlement, judgment, awards, or any other type of resolution of the claims
brought forward by the Plaintiffs in their First Amended Complaint on file herein.

20.  Cross-Claimant is therefore entitled to all costs and fees expended in the defense

of claims of negligence in this matter as well as prosecution of the Cross-Complaint.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELJEF
(Implied [ndemnification as to YERSA)

21, Cross-Claimant repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1- 20 above as if more fully set forth herein.

22.  Cross-Claimant is entitled to complete indemnity against Versa Products
Company, Inc. with respect to all allegations or liabilities set forth in the First Amended
Complaint.

23.  That Cross-Claimant is therefore entitled to all costs and fees expended in the
defense of claims of negligence in this matter as well as prosecution of the Cross-Complaint.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Contribution as to VERSA)
24,  Cross-Claimant repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in

paragraphs 1-23 above as if more fully set forth herein.

25.  Cross-Claimant is entitled 1o contribution from Cross-Defendant Versa Products,
Company, Inc. with respect to any settlement, judgment, awards, or any other type of resolution
of the claims brought forward by the Plaintiffs in their First Amended Complaint on file herein.

26.  Cross-Claimant is entitled to all costs and fees expended in the defense of the
claims for negligence in this matier as well as prosecution of the Cross-Complaint.

WHEREFORE, Cross-Claimant demands judgment against Cross-Defendants as follows:

1 For implied indemnification with respect to all negligence claims brought against

Cross-Claimant in this matter;
2. For contribution with respect to all negligence claims brought against Cross-

Claimant in this matter;

AA000241




1 3. For attorneys’ fees and costs expended in this matter; and

2 4, For such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper in the
3 premises.
4 DATED this gg day of June, 2016.
5 THORNDAL ARMSTRONG
DELK BALKENBUSH & EISINGER
6
/ Z iy
7 . e
Katﬁerrne F. arks, Esq., State Bar No. 6227
8 Fian M. Brown, Esq., State Bar No. 5233
ierry V. Barkley, Esq State Bar No. 724
9 6590 S. McCarran Blvd., Suite B
Reno, Nevada 89509 )
10 Attorneys for Defendant/Third-Party Plaintiff
MDB TRUCKING, LLC
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
THORNDAL ARMSTRONG
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AFFIRMATION

Pursuant to NRS 239E.030

The undersigned hereby affirms that the preceding document filed in above-entitled court

4 does not contain the social security number of any person.

5

O 00 N O

DATED this Zi/ day of June, 2016.

THORNDAL ARMSTRONG

DELK BAL NB

M.

& EISINGER

arks, Esq., State Bar No. 6227

TOWn, Esq State Bar No, 5233

0hlerry V. Barkley, Esq State Bar No. 724
6590 S. McCarran Blvd., Suite B
Reno, Nevada 89509
Attorneys for Defendant/Third-Party Plaintiff
MDB TRUCKING, LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), 1 certify that I am an employee of Thorndal Armstrong Delk

Balkenbush & Eisinger, and that on this date I caused the foregoing MDB TRUCKING, LLC'S
CROSS-CLAIM AGAINST RMC LAMAR HOLDINGS, INC. {fka RANCH
MANUFACTURING COMPANY) AND VERSA PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC. to be

served on all parties to this action by:

____ placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed, postage prepaid, envelope in the
United States mail at Reno, Nevada.

_#/  Second Judicial District Court Eflex ECF (Electronic Case Filing)

_____ hand delivery
electronic means (fax, electronic mail, etc.)

Federal Express/UPS or other overnight delivery fully addressed as follows:

Joseph S. Bradley, Esq.
Bradley, Drendel & Jeanney
P.O. Box 1987
Reno, NV 89505
Attorney for Plaintiffs

Matthew C. Addisen; Esq.
Jessica L. Wockfel, Esq.
McDongld Carane Wilson LLP
100 W. Liberty Street, Tenth Floor
Reno, NV 89501

Defendant RMC Lamar Holdings

Josh Cole Alcklen
David B. Avakisn
Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith, LLP
638§ S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89118
Defendant Versa Products Co., Inc.

An employee of Thorndal Armstrong
Delk Balkenbush & Eisinger

DATED this /3 day of June, 2016.
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FILED
Electronically
CV15-02349
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Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 6077749 : csulezic
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

-00o0-
ERNEST BRUCE FITZSIMMONS and

CARQL FITZSIMMONS, Husband
and Wife,

Plaintiff, Case No. CV15-02349

vS. Dept. No. 10

MDB TRUCKING, LLC; RMC LAMAR
HOLDINGS, INC.; VERSA PRODUCTS
COMPANY, INC.; DANIEL ANTHONY
KOSKI; ABC Corporations I-X,
Black and White Companies,

and DOES I-X¥X, inclusive,

Defendants.

AND RELATED THIRD-PARTY COMPLAINT,
RELATED CROSS-COMPLAINT AND
CONSOLIDATED CASE.

Pages 1 to 104, inclusive.

VOLUME ITTI

DEPOSITION OF SCOTT ALEN PALMER

Wednesday, March 8, 2017
Reno, Nevada

JOB NO.: 378334A
REPORTED BY: CHRISTINA AMUNDSON

CCR #641 (Nevada)
CSR #11883 (California)
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SCOTT ALEN PALMER, VOLUME IITI - 03/08/2017
Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES I NDE X
2 2 Volume III, Deposition of SCOT ALEN PAILMER
3 FOR PLAINTIFFS: (Via telephone) 3
4 BRADLEY DRENDEL & JEANNEY EXRMINATION BY FRGE
5 BY: SARAH M. QUIGLEY, ATTORNEY AT LAW ! Ms. Woelfel 4
6 6900 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite 2000 5§ Mr. Bundick 54,99
7 Reno, NV 89509 Ms. Shreve 59
8 775.775.525.9164 6
9 ? EXHIBITS
10 FOR MDB TRUCKING AND KOSKI: 8 EXH.
11 THORNDAL ARMSTRONG DELK BALKENBUSH & EISINGER 9 No- PESCRIPTION FAGE
12 BY: BRIAN M. BROWN, ATTORNEY AT LAW 10 Exhibit 21 Work Orders, MDB 196 11
13 THIERRY BARKLEY, ATTORNEY AT LAW 11 Exhibit 22 Work Order, MDB 356 20
14 6580 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B 12 Exhibit 23 Work Orders, MDB 161 23
5 Reno, NV 89509 13 Exhibit 24 Work Orders, MDB 031 28
16 775.786. 2882 14 Exhibit 25 ENGS Invoice 43
17 15 Exhibit 26 MDB Dropped Load of Sand 46
16 1/7/14
18 FOR DRAGON AND MODERN GROUP:  (Via telephone) 17 Exhibit 27 Record of Annual Inspection 48
19 GREENBERG TRAURIG, LLP 18 Exhibit 28 Driver/Vehicle Examination 50
20 BY: JACOB D. BUNDICK, ATTORNEY AT LAW 19 Report
21 3773 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 400 N 20 Exhibit 29 Driver/Vehicle Examination 50
22 Las Vegas, NV 89169 21 Report
23 22 -o0o~
23
24 24
25 25
e Page 3 Page 5
1/ 1 BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday, March 8,
2 APPEARANCES (Continued) 2 2017, commencing at 9:30 a.m. of said day, at
3 3 McDonald Carano Wilson LLP, 100 West Liberty Street,
4 FOR RMC LAMAR HOLDINGS, INC: 4 Tenth Floor, Reno, Nevada, before me, CHRISTINA M.
5 MCDONALD CARANG WILSON LLP 5 AMUNDSON, a Certified Shorthand Reporter, personally
6 BY: JESSICA L. WOELFEL, ATTORNEY AT LAW 6 appeared SCOT ALEN PAIMER.
7 100 West Liberty Street,Tenth Floor 7 e e e e
8 Reno, NV 89501 8 SCOT ALEN PAIMER,
9 775.788.2000 9 called as a witness in the matter herein,
10 10 who, having been previously duly sworn, was examined
11 FOR VERSA PRODUCTS: 11 and testified as follows:
12 LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARRD & SMITH LLP 12 EXAMINATION
13 BY: PAIGE §. SHREVE, ATTORNEY AT LAW 13 BY MS. WOELFEL:
14 6385 South Rainbow Boulevard, Suite 600 14 Q Good morning, Scott.
5 Las Vegas, NV 89118 15 A Good morning.
16 702.693.4317 16 Q ALl right. My name is Jessica Woelfel and
7 17 we'll continue on from yestarday.
18 ALSO PRESENT: Daniel Koski, Bill Carder 18 A Okay.
19 -00o- 19 Q And you undarstand that you ave still undar
20 20 ocath?
21 21 A Yes.
22 22 Q And that the sams admonitions apply that
23 23 have applied over the ocourse of the last two days?
24 24 A Yes.
25 Q COkay. And if you need a break at any time,

Litigation Services |

800-330-1112
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1 just let mo know, ckay?

2 A Okay.

3 Q Ckamy. After we finished yesterdey, did you
4 go and search for any other documents at MDB?

5 B No, I did not. I didn't have a chance. By
6 the time I got my work done yesterday, it was pretty
7 late.

8 Q Ckay. Did you have an opportunity to speak
9 with anybody other than your attorneys about the
10 deposition yesterday?

Fage 6

11 A No.

12 Q Or this morning?

13 A No,

14 Q Okasy. So yesterday we ware talking about

15 gute chaing undarnesth belly dumpers.

16 Do you recall that conversation?
17 A Yes.
18 Q Gkay. I want to ask you about a similar

19 devion. Are you aware of a pinning system that can
20 be on belly dumpars or other types of dump trucks?
21 A Yes.

22 Q Do the leed trailers that MDB uses utilive

23 & pinmning systes?

~ Page 8§
1 objection as to vague and foundation,

2 BY MS. WOELFEL:

3 Q 1Is the pinning dsvice utilized in the same
4 marmer as the gate chains whave it can control the

5 gize of the cpaning on a bally dumpex?

6 A Yes.
7 Q I'm gonna go back to Exhibdit 20.
8 Do you have the original exhibits in froat

9 of you, by chance? 80 if you go to Exhibit 20 at

10 tho second page, which is Bates-lsbeled MDB 240 —-
11 R Okay.

12 Q We talked sbout this document a little bit
13 yestarday. I just wanted to got a little more

14 detail from you. Under the "Work dono™ portion it
15 says -~ just to lay foundation, this is dated

16 August 2nd, 2013, for Trailer No. €775.

17 1s that ocorrect?
18 A Yes.
19 Q Ckay. And this was the investigation of

20 the unintentional gate cpening that oocurred in July

21 of 2013. 1Is that correct?
22 A Yes.
23 Q COksy. And the work that you did is listed

24 under -- or that somecne at MDB did is listed undar
25 the work done. And ons of the items listed says

24 A Yes, they do.
25 Q Okay. And g0 was Trailer No. 6773
Page 7
1 utilizing a pinning system?
2 A Yes, it does. Yes.
3 Q Did it hevo omo in July of 2013?
4 A Yes,
5 Q BAnd did it havo ono in July of 20147
6 A Yes.
1 Q And is it MDB's policy that tho pinning

8 system is activated on the -- I guass the smallest
9 pin lock when MDB drivers are pulling that trailer?
10 A Wo.

i1 Q ‘Vhen you drive a truck and pull a trailer
12 that has & pimning system, do you have the pirming

13 systen locked in to prevent cpening while you are
14 pulling a trailexr?

15 A No.

i6 Q Vhy not?

17 A I don't think that's what it was designed
18 for.

19 Q Would you cgreo that if you wera to drive

20 with a pinning system that it would prevent an
21 inadvertent opening of a bolly dieper?

22 A BAm I aware of that --

23 Q Uould you egres that -

24 A Ch, yes, I would.

25 MR. BROWN: I'm going to make a late

Page 9
1 "Isolating dump ooil circuit, removed coil hose.®

2 You know what, why don't you just read that for me
3 because I'm having trouble reading the sscond

4 sentancs under "™Work done."

5 A It appears that it reads as "Isolating dump
6 coil circuit, removed coil case ground from

7 circuit.”

8 Q Cen you tell me what that means? Can you
9 dascribe for me the work that was done to isolats
10 the cump ooil circuit and then what epecifically was
11 done to remove the coil case?

12 A Coil case ground.

i3 Q Cround. Yes. Thank you.

14 A I cannot say for certain what he did.
15 Q Do you know why this particular work was
16 dono?

17 A Well, it was done in conjunction with

18 preventing it from -- the gate from opening

19 unintentionally.

20 I believe Mr, Bigby removed the wire that
21 goes directly from the case ground to the trailer --
22 or I think he isolated it from the trailer and wired
23 it directly to =- actually, I'm not sure what he

24 did.

25 Q Ckay.

Litigation Services |
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SCOTT ALEN
Page 10
1 A I can't really say for sure.
2 Q You didn't participate in these repairs.
3 A No. Iwasn't -- I actually didn't start

4 work for them until about a week later.

5 Q Ckay, feir enough. You can put that

$ exhibit esmy. If you could grsb Exhibit ¥o. 5.

7 A Okay.

8 Q Exhibit 5 is a document —- I'm looking at
9 the first page Bates-lsbeled MDB meintenance 000144
10 and the equipment mumber listed is 6773 and the date

Page 12
1 Do you cco that?

2 A Yes.

3 Q Ckay., Jnd 6774 io the second trsiler in
4 the saries of threo trailers that wo've besn

5 discusaing. 1z that correct?

6 A Yes, that's correct.

7 Q 8o the first work oxdsr at tho bottom soys
8 "Performed by Pat." And the date of thio wvork oxder
9 looks to be July 2ist, 2013, with & date completed
|10 of nugust 2nd, 2013. Do you ses that?

il <tad is August 1ith, 2013. Do you ses that? ; 11 A Yes.

12 A VYes. 12 Q Do you Imow if this work oxdar was put

13 Q0 And this would be the lesd trailer that Me, | 13 together after tho July 2013 dump incldent or

14 Roski was pulling in July of 2013. Is that correct? | 14 bsfore?

15 A Yes. 15 A It would appear that it was done after.

i6 Q Okay. RAnd this is work that was parformed |16 0 8o would that sugpest to you that the

17 by you. 1e that correct? 17 July 2013 insdvertent dump occurred bafore

18 A That is correct. 18 July 21st 2013?

19 Q Okay. Under the notes it says "Pulled out |19 A No. I think it's July 3lst.

20 unused wire from” -- what's that word? 20 Q Ch, you think that says "July 3lgt"?

21 A  "Loom." 21 A2 I would think so.

22 Q ~- "fron loon and discooted. ™ 22 Q That would make 80EE SGNS80.

23 Io thoat zight? 23 A Yes.

24 A Yes. 24 0 Thank you for clarifying that. I'e having

25 Q 8o it oayn "Fulled out umicrd wire from 25 trouvble reading sooo of this writing.

T o Page 11 Page 13|
1 loca and dissomnectcd.” 1 2 I am too but I don't think -- I think it

2 Can you describo for me which wire you were
3 pulling cut that was unused and from where?

4 A Oh, I can't explain where the wire went.

5 A1l T know is when I pulled the 7-way receptacle out
6 of the front of the trailer there was an unused wire
7 in the loom that didn't go anywhere. It didn't go

8 to the solenoid, it didn't go anywhere on the
trailer, so I just pulled it out and got rid of it.

10 Q Do you know what that umused wire was in
11 there for?

12 A No idea.

13 0 thy did you pull it cut?

14 A VWell, there's no reason to have it in there
15 if it's not connected to anything.

16 Q TWas it cousing eny issue with the trailer?
17 A No.

18 Q I'm going to hand you & document I'll mark
19 as Exhihit 21,

20 {Deposition Exhibit 21 marked for

21 identification.)

22 BY MS. WOELFEL:

23 Q Theso aro work oxdors that aze

24 Bates-leboled 0B 196197, 204, 205, ond 206, and
25 they are each for Equipmant No. 67%.

2 happened July 31st is the date. Yeah.

3 Q@ Okay. 5o your reading on this work order

4 is the date of tho work order which was prepared by

$ Pat is July 3lst, 2013.

6 A Yes.

7 Q Ckay, thank you. Can you tall me what this

8 work order is for?

9 A Okay. He rewired the dump valve circuit
10 and this sort of is similar to what he did on the
11 prior work order for 6775, about removing the coil
12 case ground, and this kind of jars my memory of what
| 13 he did.
|14 What he did was removed the ground wire
15 from the coil that grounds to the trailer, so that
16 the wires going to the trailer from the truck go
17 directly from the truck straight to the valve
18 without having any connection to the trailer --

19 Q Chay.

20 A -- because ~-

21 Q Go aheed. Why did ba do that?

22 A He did it to prevent back-feeding through

23 the ground. And on a Ranco trailer -- these
24 particular Ranco trailers, they are not grounded
25 through the trailer. There is no ground.
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Page 14

1
2
3 to the trailer.
4 wiring system.
] Q Cksy, 8o this indicates a camplete — or
6 this dascribes the cosplete rewiring job that was
7 done on 6774 after -- or is this m portion of that?
8 A Just a portion of that, Basically he just
9 made sure that the wires, the 4-way wire, which is
10 the wire that comes from the truck to the trailer,
11 went directly to the Versa valve and didn't travel
12 through the grounding, you know, the trailer body
13 itself,
14 Q Ckay. thoro ony indiontion that therxe
15 had besn some error oz dofcct with the wiring that
16 hed occcurved that supgoctcd that Pat should remove
17 and replace this wizing?

18 A  No. I think he did this at the same time
19 he did 6774 and 6775 as a result of the inadvertent
20 dumping to make sure that both trailers were wired
21 correctly --
22 Q Chay,

23 A ~-- that --
24 Q Go shsad.
25 you.

Q Okay.
A There is no ground from the truck directly

They're all grounded through the

I spologize for interrupting

i
2
3
4
5

Page 16
Q OCkey. Next page, MDB 197, this is for

Equipment No. 6775, 6774 -- sctually, why don't you
tall me vhat equipment mmbers this is for.

A Okay. This is a work order completed on
September 15th, 2013, and it's for the set of
trailers, 6773, 6774, 6715.

@ Ckay. Can you describe for me what this
work order is for?

A Yes. I dropped a set of trailers in and I
did a normal inspect and lube of all three trailers.
So I inspected the trailers, lubed it, and at the
same time I noticed that there were some lights that
were possibly unplugged or -- the plugs weren't
making good contact so I repaired those.

There was ABS brake wire that was —- looked
like the wire tie broke on it so I tied that up.
And then also I replaced some zerk fittings on the
back axle of 6775, three zerk fittings.

Q Okey. If we can go to the next pege, ¥DB
204, cen you tell me vhat dates this work was
parformed and on what piece of couipment?

A This was perfommed February 13th, 2014,
on Trailer 6774 and Pat worked on it. It says,
"Troubleshoot in-op lights on trailer." So the
driver said there was lights that were -- ¢tne

2 to the trailer considering that the trailer did not
3 get a ground from the truck so, therefore, it's sort
4 of not being used as a ground so he removed it, the
S circuit.

6 @ Cray. Did VDB maintain any of the wires or
7 coil caco goounds that they removed from this

8 trailcr?

9 A No.

10 Q Did thoy theow the away?

11 A Yes,

12 Q Did you do omy tcsting on them at all after

13 they were removed?

14 A No. Basically he didn't really remove --
15 actually physically remove anything from the Versa
16 valve, He actually just took the wire that was

17 caming from the coil that went to the trailer and
18 discomnected -- there's two wires, one that goes
19 directly and he just wired them together into the
20 grounding system of the truck.

21 Q Okay. I undarstand.

22 R He didn't actually remove part of the
23 valve.

24 Q Just rewired?

25 A Yes.

Page 15]
1 R There was no reason to have the coil ground |

W 0 -3 A o W N

1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

| 25
|

Page 17
particular light wasn't working so he found -- %at
found the male plug at the hitch broken, replaced
the plug and tested. So on the rear of 6774 he put
in a 7-way plug. Actually, it's kinda hard —- I
think he actually did it on the front of 6774.

Q Ckay.

A I'm sorry. The front, a 7-way plug on the
front. I think he's talking about the hitch on the
back of 6773.

Q@ Ckay. Go to the next page. MDB 205, and
can you tell ms the date of this work order, the
equipment mmber, and what was occurring.

A This is February 15th, 2014, Trailer 6774,
and he replaced the rear 4-way socket and plug.

Q Emy?

A It probably wasn't making good contact so
there was not -- it wasn't -- we were not able to
dump 6775 with the switch from inside the cab, so he
replaced the 4-way socket and plug,

Q Ckay.

A So its 4-way socket is on the rear of 6775,
I believe. He doesn't make a note of where the plug
is.

@ But you would necd that in ordar to ~-

A Yeah. The plug is prcbhably on the front of
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Page 1B
1 8775, he doesn't designate which.

2 Q Ckay. And there's no name on the bottom of
3 this sheet indicating who performed ths work but
4 you're presuming that it was Pat?

5 A Oh, yeah, it was Pat. Yes.

8 Q Ckay. Co to MDB 206, the next pogs. Yhis
7 looks like it's o work order dated March 1, 201(.

8 Is that right?

g A Yes.

10 Q For 6774.

11 A Yes.

12 Q And the work order is by you and it locks

13 like tho work ip porforr=d by you. Is that correct?
14 A Yes,

15 Q And hoxo con you tall oo vhnt Lo indiceted

16 on this work ordor?

17 A The left rear subframe over the rear axle
18 on the left side was cracked from damage caused by a
19 broken spring.

20 Q Chay. 8o the fraed of tho truilor wus

21 crackes?
22 A The subframe,
23 Q Ckay. And it looko lilo you cut cut the

24 doneged ares of the frams.
25 A Yes. Had a new piece fabricated and welded

Page 20
1 the trailer. 1It's not in the subframe underneath
2 the trailer. So we would have -~ I would have taken

3 precautions to pull all the hoses out for the brakes
4 and get them out of the way so that welding wouldn't
5 cause damage to those, but there's no actual trailer
6 wiring in that location.

7 Q Bow far sway is tho trnilor wiring fron tho
8 locaticn you were working on?

g R COh, probably a foot away, and it's enclosed
10 in the side frame rail of the trailer.

11 Q Okay.

12 A In fact, I think it actually is on the

13 opposite side of the trailer in that particular

14 instance.

15 Q All right. I'm going to mark this next,
16 {Deposition Exhibit 22 marked for
17 identification.)

18 BY MS. WOELFEL:

19 Q This is a docment Bates-lebaled MB 356
20 snd this is -- cen you tall =» the date of this?
21 A August Sth, 2014.

22 Q Can you tall me the piecs of equipmant that
23 was being worksd on?

Page 19
1 it back into place. So the spring -- we had a

2 spring break, the trailer would now fall down on the
3 top of the spring, so the U-bolt caused a dent into
4 the bottam of the frame, which cracked it, so we cut
S it out and replaced it.

6 Q How large of an aren did you cut cut? Hov
7 lexge of an area was dsmeged?

8 A The actual damage area was only a few

9 inches, a couple inches wide. But the piece I

10 fabricated and put in there was probably 6 or

11 8 inches wide by 6 or 8 inches high.

i2 Q Ckay. Did you pull the main wizing hareooo
13 on this trailer prior to repaixing?

14 B No. There's no wires in that location.

15 Q Ckay. Con you tell me ezectly where the
16 locatien is? I'm not pure if I have a photo. I'm
17 trying to get @ cones of whave precisely the

18 location of thic work was on thie trailer of.

19 A Okay. It's on the rear of the trailer on
20 the left side about a foot in fram the side, so it's
21 actually the subframe. It's not the actual frame of
22 the trailer. It's the subframe that the axle and
23 the springs bolt to.

24 Q Ckay.
25 A So the wiring is actually in the frame of

24 A It looks like truck 5693.
25 Q Iz that the truck that you drowe?
Page 21
1 A Yes.
2 Q Ckay. BAnd this io o vork order that you

3 filled out?
4 A  No. This is a work order that Pat filled

5 out. It was just -- when it says "By Scott” at the
6 top, that means I am the one that brought it to his
7 attention about the repairs.

8 Q Ckay. bhed why did the truck nsed to be

9 repaired here?

10 A He says that he troubleshooted intemmittent
11 first trailer gate function.

12 Q ‘thet doss that mean? Doesp that mean that

13 the gate is not opaning or cloming properly?

14 A I would -~ before I read what he actually
15 did to fix it, I would assume that that means that

| 16 the driver's unable to operate the gate with the

17 switch fram inside the truck intemittently, so

18 sometimes he could flip the switch and it would open
19 and sometimes it wouldn't open.

20 Q Do you have a recollection of the truck

21 that you were driving having o cyitch peoblca in or
22 around August of 2014? Thio ig chozxtly oftor -- Q

| 23 eonth after your inedvertent du—p of tho oand truek.
] 24 A I don't specifically remember this but it's
25 not ~- it's not uncommon.
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Page 22
1 Q How often did you activate the dimping

2 mecheniem from ingide the truck?

3 A How often did I7

4 Q Yes. Becsuse my recollscticn of your

5 testimony ie that you would typically cperate the
6 Versa valve menually.

i A  Correct.

8 Q 8o were there some instances where you

9 would operate it from inside the truck?
10 A Yes, but not really in conjunction with
11 dumping it at the plant.
12 Q What would it be in conjunctica with?

13 A Well, for instance, when we get back to the
14 yard sometimes you want to clean your trailers

15 out -- say you're gonna go haul gypsum or something
16 that you don't want any rock in and you're hauling
17 rock until you get back to the yard, you unpin your
18 gates, unpin all three gates and then you drive
19 through the yard.
20 And then you would activate the
21 electrically as you're driving through the yard to
22 get any excess rock that might have been left over
23 in there out. So it's not scmething I typically do
24 when I'm cumping at the plant, but I would do it.
25 And I also make sure my equipment's

Page 23
1 working, so whether I do it or not, I would still

2 check to make sure it's working. So I probably just
3 told him, Yeah, it's not working, so he went out and
4 put in a 4-way plug on the back of 5683.

5 Q Chay. 2nd this treiler bed the mamual

& lockout that you had designed as of Rhugust 5th,

7 2014.

8 A Yeah, Yes, it did.

9 Q Ckay.

10 (Deposition Exhibit 23 marked for
11 identification.)

12 BY MS. WOELFEL:

i3 Q Oxey. This is & series of work orders
14 Bates-lebeled MDB 161, 170, 176, and 186 for

15 Equipmant No. 6773, and that would be the lead
16 trailer that Mr. Koski typically pulled.

17 Is that correct?
18 A That's correct,
19 Q COkay. Csn you tell ms the date of the

20 firet work order, MDB 161, and what this worit order
21 is for.

22 A August 24th, 2013, for Trailer No. 6773,
23 For some reason, this work order is made out by

24 Tracy and the work was performed by Pat and myself.
25 Q e it wouounl that Tracy would £i11 cut a

Page 24
1 work oxdsr?
2 A Not necessarily.
3 Q Ckay.
4 B Especially on a routine maintenance. He

5 might have filled it out in advance and handed it to
6 us and said, Go do this, and we just performed the

7 work.

8 Q 8o this work order is indicntive of one of
9 your routine maintenance checks cn tho tzallexs?

10 A Yes, uh-huh.

11 Q And would you and Pat typieally do theso
12 routine maintensnce checks togother?

13 A Not always, not necessarily. Usually one
14 of us would be doing something else but sametimes we
15 would do it together.

16 Q Mext page, 170, can you taoll ®e the date on
17 this work order and what it is for.

18 A This is April 5th, 2014, on Equipment No.
19 6773, and this work was perfonmed by Tracy and it's
20 a federal annual inspection.

21 Q Chkay. What does o fedsral anmual

22 inspection involve? Can you describe what Tracy did
23 on this date in deteil for me?

24 A I actually believe that we do the -- well,
25 I don't believe it. We actually do do this as a

Page 25
1 team, 80 we all go out and do it. But Tracy's

2 actually the lead guy on it so he's the one who
3 fills out the paperwork.

4 Q Than you ssy ™ all go cut and do it as &
5 temm,® who 1s on the tesm?

6 A Myself and Pat.

7 Q 8o you, Pat, and Trscy?

8 A  Sure, yeah.

9 Q Do you do the annual inspections -- the

10 fedaral annual inspections for all of the trallers
11 on the ssme day?

12 A No.
13 Q Okey.
14 A  ¥e do one -- annually whenever their

15 particular time cames up.

16 Q Ckay. BAnd vhen that trailer's particular
17 time comes wp, the three of you conduct that

18 inspaction together.

19 A Yes.

20 Q Ckay. 80 describe for me what you do in a
21 federal anmusl inspection,

22 A Well, we actually have a federal annual

23 inspection report that we fill out that has all the
24 things you're reguired to check by law. So we do
25 all that, plus we check -- basically, it involves
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1 checking lights, brakes, cracks in the trailer,

2 springs --

3 Q Ckay.

4 A -- any safety issues that are related to

5 the trailer.

6 Q GCkay. And I see that this work ozder has a
7 total time on tho bottom. It says a half.

8 Dozs thet indicate that the federal snnual
9 inspection tock approximately half an hour?

10 A I would say -- I would assume s0 for one
11 trailer, yes.
12 Q Do you check the wiring in your federal

13 anmual inspsction?

14 A We check the function of the wiring system.
i5 Q Do you open up the pluge and look, you

16 know, for debris or corxogicn to mako suve the

17 connections are good?

18 R We do vwhere they plug in but we don't

19 actually physically remove the plugs from the

20 trailer. But we would unplug where one trailer

21 plugs to another trailer and check them, yes.

22 Q Do you lock at any of the hidden wiring?
23 A No. The only time we would do that isg if
24 ve found a malfunction in the lights. Then we would

25 repair -- make the repairs.

Page 28
1 or rear 4-way socket. On a lead trailer or middle

2 trailer there'd be a 4-way socket on the front and a
3 4-way socket on the back, so it's possible one of

4 these was for the front and one was for the rear.

5 Q And each of thoss 4~wmy sockets that you
6 replaced you would heve throwm &wy the old onas.

7 A Yes,

8 Q I think I have =y last set of work ordars
9 that we're going to go through, and I eppreciate

10 your patience in walking through thess with me.

11 let's mark this as Exhihit 24.

12 (Deposition Exhibit 24 marked for

13 identification.)

14 BY MS. WOELFEL:

15 Q ALl right. This is & series of work oxders
16 Batss-lsbeled MDB 031, 073, 078, 081, 095, 101, 109,
17 119 and 155 and they 211 relate to Bquipsent Mo.

18 5694. Can you tell me what Equipment Mo, 5694

19 indicates?

20 A Truck No. 5694 is MDB's truck that is a

21 2003 Peterbilt that was mainly operated by Daniel

22 Koski and it was operated by Dan Koski on the two

23 days that we had inadvertent dumps on the highway.
24 Q Cksy. 2Arnd tho first page, ¥MDB 031, can you
25 tell ma the dato of thic work order and what was

Page 27
i Q OCkay. On to the next pege, MDB 176, and

2 can you tell m» the date and what wns going on with

3 this work order.

4 A Yes. This is August 5th, 2014, Trailer

5 6773. The trailer was inspected and lubed and

6 replaced the 4-way socket.

7 Q vhy did you need to reploco the {=xy

8 sochet?

9 A They probably found that it was —~ the pins
10 possibly were oxidized. I mean, I'm speculating.
11 Q But that would ba & typicnl zunpon way you
would replace & 4-way eocket?

B Yeah, or it could be loose.
be wore slightly.

Q Okay. Next page, MDB 186. Same thing. If
you could tell me the date and what was ocourring
heve.

A This is the date of December 18th, 2014,
Trailer 6773. The work was perfommed by myself and
20 I wrote down "Replace 4-way socket.”

21 Q BAnd that would bs probebly the same reason
22 as you emplained -—-

23 A Yes. And, unfortunately, between these two
24 work orders it doesn't -- neither one of us

25 designated whether we were talking about the front

13 The pins could
14
15
16
17
18

19

|

Page 29]

1 coourring heve?

2 A BApril 13th, 2013, is the date for 56%4.

3 And the work order indicates that Tracy Shane would

4 have informed Pat that there was a repair issue on
5 5694 and Pat wrote down that he troubleshooted, "No

6 power at gate dump 4-way plug.”

7 0 Uhat gnte dump d-amy plug ic thio roforzing
8 to?

9 A Okay. We're still talking about the same
10 4-way wire system that goes from the tractor all the
11 way through the trailers so we're talking about the
12 4-vay plug, the 4-way sockets so it's all part of
13 the same system.

14 ¥hat he's talking about in this particular
15 instance is the 4-way plug at the end of the 4-way
16 wire on the tractor itself before it plugs into the
17 first trailer 6773.

18 Q Ckay.

19 A So he would have tested it with a test

20 light and found that with the cump switches in the
21 activated position would not be providing power to
22 the 4-way. So, in other words, it wouldn't be

23 providing power to the trailer when it was plugged
24 1
25

in.
Q Ckay. 8o when he activated the switchas
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1 from insids the czb, there was no powar getting to

2 that first tzailer.

3 A  BExactly.

4 Q Okay. And what wes the czuse of tho lack
5 of power?

[ A Okay. He says he "found the switches wired

7 to light circuit.”

8 Q What's that mean?

9 A I'm not sure,
10 Q Oksy. What's the next line say?

11 A "Rewired switches to accessory." I can't
12 read that. "Wired ground to cab ground.” Okay. I
13 understand that.
14 Q TWhat's that masn?

15 A One of the wires -~ so there's four wires
16 in the 4-way system. Three of the wires go to each
17 of the subsequent bottom of the trailers in the set
18 and one of the wires is a ground.

19 So he took the wire that would come out of
20 the 4-way wire and wired it directly to the ground
21 inside the cab. I'm not sure why -- if it was not
22 grounded before, I'm not sure. It doesn't really

23 spell it out here. It says, "Also rewired 4-way

Page 32
1 a different manner so it worked.

2 Q All right. Next pege, MDB 073, can you
3 tell me the date of this work order end what work
4 was performed.

5 A The date of the work order is July 26th,
6 2013, and it's for Equipment No. 5694.

7 Q Ohay.

8 A BAnd --

9 Q ¥What does that work oxder indiemto wao
10 occurring?

11 A "Rewired gate switches,” meaning the

12 switches that operate the bottom inside the cab of
13 the truck.

14 Q And that would be the same wires that are
15 referenced on tho Ipril 13th work order?

16 A Yes, uh-huh.

17 Q That'c o yoo®?

18 A Yes.

19 Q ‘Thank you, Thy did the gate switches nsed

20 to be rewired on this date?

21 A This was following the first inadvertent
22 dumping of the material that Dan Koski had so,

23 apparently, that was actvally July 26th. I still
24 don't -- are we still assuming we don't lmow the
25 exact date of that?

24 plug to incorporate third wire for triples.” Okay.
25 Q 'What does that mean?
Page 31

1 A  So, apparently, at the time -- this might
2 have been prior to us operating that truck with the
3 set of triples --

4 Q Ckay.

5 A so it's possible that

6 Q Be was modifying it to work with a set of
7 tziple trailers?

] A Instead of just a set of double trailers.

9 Q 8o your reading of this is that MDB wag
10 rewiring Truck No. 5694 g0 that it oould pull a set
11 of triple belly dump trailers?

12 A Right. That was after he repaired the wire
13 -- repaired the power issue.

14 Q Ckay. Do you know who drove Truck Ro. 5694
15 regularly before Mr. Kogki was hived?

16 A  No.

17 Q And the date of this work order is pretty
18 shortly after Mr. Koski was hirved. Is that correct?

15 A Yeah. W¥ithin ¢ months.
20 Q Chay.
21 A So, apparently, the way I read that is when

22 we got the truck, whoever wired it initially or who
23 we got the truck fram, the source of the power for
24 the switches was inadequate and he modified it so

25 that the source of the power came from the truck in

Page 33
1 Q@ So when wa were looking at some work oxdarg

2 earlier you hed indicated that you thought --

3 A Hell, I indicated it said "July 31st® but
4 that doesn't mean that was the date it happened.
5 I'm just assuming that it was right around the end
6 of the month.

7 Q Okay. 8o as you look at this work cxder
8 todey, ¥DB 073, it's your balief that this work

9 ozder cocurred ~- or this wark order was for work
10 that occurved aftsr the inadvertent dump in July of

11 2013?
12 A Yes, might have been the same day.
i3 Q Are you certain that this reriring work was

14 performed after the dump or could it have been
15 porformed before?

16 A I'm -- I'm certain that it happened

17 afterwards and that was the reason that they did
18 this.

19 Q Ware you working at ¥DB on July 28th, 20137
20 AR No.
21 Q Con you describe for me what work wes

22 performed here?

23 R Pat installed a master switch in the cab of
24 the truck and then ran the power and the ground to
25 the batteries as the source for the switches for the
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1 bottom chmmp trailers.

2 So, now, the source of the power, the
3 ground and the positive, have to go through the
4 master switch so the master switch has to be on in
5 order to provide power now to the three subsequent

6 dump switches.
7 Q Okay.
8 A  BAnd I believe —- and I do know for sure

9 that's why they did that, because that's one of the
10 first things they said that they did.
i1 Q ¥Was install a master switch?
12 B Yeah. I don't think -- yeah.
13 is what they did, yes.

14 0 Okay. And there was also the red covars
15 over the toggle switches that were installed as

16 wall. Is that correst?

17 B Yeah. Over the three dump switches that

18 originally had the covers, and then the master

19 switch also has a cover so now there's four switches
20 with covers.

21 Q Cray. 8o tho oowors wore thore in July of
22 2013.
23

24

25 078.

Yes, That

A For the three switches,
Q Chay, thenk you. MNoxt pogs. This is MDB
Can you tall me tho dato of this work order

Page 36
1 ground from the truck or through the trailers, it

2 makes the taillights and the marker lights flash

3 with the flashers. They sorta dim at the same time
4 that the turn signals flash and that indicates a

5 poor ground.

6 So he found there was a poor ground at the
7 pogo stick at the 7-way plug and he replaced the

8 7-way socket and the plug.

9 Q Ckay. MNaxt page, MDB 081, con you tell =e
10 the date this work was complsted and whot was going
11 on in this work ordar.

12 A Okay. This is September -- it looks like
13 September 15th, 2013, for Truck 5694, and this was
14 performed by myself. And at this time it looks like
15 the truck came in for normal inspection and during
16 that time I found a few things wrong with the truck.
17 So this time we replaced the -- I replaced
18 the 7-way plug on the end of the cord going to the
19 trailer, so that's actually on the other end of the
20 cord that Pat Bigby would have just replaced a month
21 before. It's on the other end of the cord.

22 So I put a new 7-way on, replaced the

23 pigtail on the left backup light on the back of the
24 trailer -- back of the truck/tractor. Sorry.

25 hdjusted the air suspension to proper height.

1 and what this was for?

Page 35

2 A This is on August 19th, 2013, for Truck No.
3 5694.

4 Q That's the duto of completion of the work
5 ordar, correct?

6 A Yes,

7 Q RAnd the work order is datad Ruguit 17th,

8 2013.

9 A  I'mnot sure. It could be August 19th,
10 Q It's hard to tell.
11 A I can't imagine that he would take two days
12 to get around to working on it.
i3 Q Ckay.

14 B Usually worked on it right away.
15 Q Ckay. And go shesd and describe for me

16 vhat was going on hsre.

17 A Unfortunately, it doesn't tell me which

18 trailers he was pulling that day but I'm assuming
19 that we can make the assumption that he was pulling
20 the triples. It really doesn't matter which

21 trailers he was pulling.

22 But he's troubleshooting the "trailer

23 lights flashing, poor ground," which means that if
24 you turn your clearance lights, taillights on and
25 then turn your 4-way flashers and you have a poor

Page 37
1 Placed the pigtail on the right backup light an?i

2 both stop turn tail lamps. Replace the license

3 plate light.

4 And then the air conditioning was not

S blowing properly so I pulled out the H -- the heater
6 and air conditioning filter, blew it out, put it

7 back in and then made a note that we actually needed
8 to do a complete disassembly and clean -- and the

9 evaporator and the heater core needs to be cleaned.
10 Also removed the outside temperature gauge and took
11 that in for warranty.
12 Q ®as this truck out of sszvice for o walle
13 after this particuler work ordsr or did it go right
14 back into esrvice?
15 A It went back into work.
16 fixed properly.

17 0 It ssems like there was a lot of work an
18 this truck on this day.
|19 A Well, it seems like it's a lot of work but
! 20 it's only an hour or two worth of work. It's a
| 21 bunch of miscellaneous housekeeping-type work.
22 Q COkay, WNext work oxder is MDB 095. Want to
23 tall me the date completsd and describs what wag

24 occurring heve.
25 A This is on Octcber 20th, 2013, Truck 5694.

Everything was
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1 This work order -— this work was perfommad by

2 myself. And I replaced the engine brake switch, the
3 on/off switch and also installed a double-pull

4 single-throw switch to disconnect the ground and hot
5 from 4-way.

6 Q@ On the bottca notes it says "Replacing

7 master switch with DPST switch.” What is that?

8 A Double-pull single-throw.

° Q And "to isolate” -- what's that word?

10 R "Isolate ground fram 4-way wire."”

11 Q hy don't you read ma the entire sentance
i2 under "Notes."®

13 R Okay. “Replace master switch with

14 double~pull single-throw switch to isolate ground

15 from 4~way when off. Does the same thing as

16 unplugging 4-way cord. Much easier.®

17 Q Is that —— why would you do that?

18 A ¥hy would I rewire it?

19 Q Yesh,
20 B Just another one of our continuing ideas of
21 trying to make sure that we don't have any kind of

22 electrical problem.

23 Q Okay. And was this an MDB standard? Did
24 you do this type of rewiring on all of the trucks?
25 AR No. The only reason I did that is because

Page 40
1 were performed every 10,000 miles.

2 Q 1It's probebly practioslly every othexr dny
3 with the wey you guys drivo.

4 A Yeah, right.

5 Q And it looks likn you alco xcploocd o d-way
6 socket.

7 A Yes. I think we —- I'm not sure if you can
8 see it. We replace a lot of 4-way sockets and 7-way
9 sockets because we don't mess -- you know, if

10 there's any issues whatsoever, we just replace them.
11 I know some companies that try to run them forever
12 but just -- we replace them.

13 Q All right. Tell me sbout MDB 109.
14 A I believe the date on this is 3/21/2014.
15 Q It looks like that could be & "3® to mo ag

16 wall, g0 we'll go with it.

17 R Yeah, I think it is. By the mileage it

18 looks like it would be about right. And this is for
19 Truck 5694. Came in for repair. Apparently, I

20 informed Pat what the issue was and he did the work
21 and he replaced the center gate toggle switch cover.

22 Q That red part that covers the toggle
23 switch?

24 A Yes.

25 Q Chay.

Page 39
1 this truck had a master switch in it but the master

2 gwitch originally ~- which I didn't really see a

3 need for the master switch. They did that prior to
4 me coming to work there.

5 But I started thinking as long as there's a
6 master switch that's internupting the power going to
7 the 4-way, I might as well put a double-pull

8 single-throw switch in there and isolate the ground
9 circuit and the power, the positive and the negative
10 from the cord at the same time when it's off. Just,
11 you know, trying to be proactive and making sure

12 that we didn't have any problems.

13 Q Ckay. Lat's go to the naxt page. MB 101,
14 could you give me the date of cospletion of this

15 work order and what this work order is for.

16 A November 12th, 2013, Truck 5694. Pat did
17TapPMl,

18 Q twhat is that?

19 A Preventative maintenance 1, which would be

20 basically we come in and do an inspection, lube and
21 change the oil and filters, check the air filters,
22 versus a PM 2 where you would actually change the
23 fuel filters and coolant filter.

24 Q 2nd how often are P{ 1s performed?

25 A At that particular time we were —- thay

Page 41
1 A BAnd resecured deck plate. The deck plate

2 was loose on the tractor.

3 Q Go to tho nemt page, 119. Describe this
4 work order for s,
5 B This is June 25th, 2014, Truck 5694, work

€ was performed by Pat and Dan, evidently, told him

7 there's samething wrong. Pat says "Troubleshoot in
8 op turn signals and 4-way flashers.™ So I'm

$ assuming he means the truck and the trailers had no
10 turn signals for 4-way.

11 "Found low voltage at the switch, Traced
12 to fuse and fuse block. Replaced the fuse. Working
13 now. Unable to determine cause at this time." I

14 would assume that the cause was oxidation of the

15 fuse terminal -- in the fuse temminal and by pulling
16 the fuse out and putting it back in it made contact
17 and, therefore, it started to work.

18 Q@ All right. MNaxt page, MDB 155, can you

19 tell & tho dato of this work order and what this
20 involves.

21 B The date is May 19th, 2013. This is for
22 Bquipment No. 5694 and Trailer 6773, 6774, and €775
23 as a unit.

24 This was done by at the time our mechanic's
25 helper, Brandon Jones, and he would have brought the
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1 trailers around to the shop and went and greased and | 1 for repair work done on our Truck 5694, It looks

2 inspected thenm,
3 Q 8o Brandon Jomco wos tho rochanic's helper
4 at thig time?

5 R Yes.

6 Q Is he still the mechanic's helper?

7 A No.

8 Q Do you know when Brandon Jonas left MDB?
9 AR No. He wasn't there very long. He was

10 just basically helping out,

11 @ Ckay. And vhat did Brandon's inspection
12 involve?

13 R Well, as you bring the truck in, you check
14 the belts, lights, you know, windshield wipers. You
15 get under the truck as you're greasing it and you
16 are -- as you're greasing it, you're checking for
17 any damage to any air hoses or anything under the
18 truck.

19 You're checking brake shoes to make sure
20 that they're the right thickness. You're checking
21 for wheel seal leaks and so you're basically doing
22 -~ it's almost as involved as doing an annual

2 like the work was performed April 4th, 2013.
3 Q Ckay. 8o you hed sont tho txuck cut o
4 BG8 to be worked on?

5 R Yes.

6 Q Okay. 8o thig was not work that woo

7 parformed in-house?

8 A That's correct.

9 Q And eon you enll rp why this truck was sant
10 out for repair?

1 B Are you asking me what needed to be fixed

12 or why we would send it out rather than doing it

13 in-house?

14 Q Why would you esnd it cut versus doing it
15 in-housa.

16 B This was dome prior to my coming to work
17 there. And prior to my coming to work there MDB

18 Trucking didn't have the electronic tools to hook up
19 to the E(M of the trucks to do diagnostics, so they
20 had to take it to either a dealer or scmebody that
21 had those tools.

22 0 And vhen you came onboard, did you hove
23 your cm tools that you brought with you?

24 A Yes. I have a laptop that has software

25 that requires you hook up to Cummins or Caterpillar

23 inspection. You're checking everything.
24 Q Okey. You're checking the wiring?
25 AR NWo. I mean, you're checking the
- Page 43
1 functionality of the lights.
2 0 Gy,
3 R You're not actually checking the wiring.

4 Q And are you checking the valves during an
5 inspection like this, Versa valves?

6 R You don't actually -- you inspect the Versa
7 valve to make sure it's attached, I mean, but that's
8 usually never an issue.

9 But at this time you would -- if there's

10 any water in the water separator going to the Versa
11 valve, you drain that and then you would fill up the
12 oilers to go into the Versa valves.

13 Q Ckay. Go ahead and set this exhibit aside.
14 MS. WOELFEL: Why don't we take a

15 five-minute break.

16 (Recess taken.)

17 MS. WOELFEL: I'm going to mark this next
18 in order,

19 (Deposition Exhibit 25 marked for

20 identification.)

21 BY MS. WOELFEL:

22 Q Socott, I've handed you o docu—rat KDB 27
23 and 28. Can you tell mo what thic domrent is?

24 R This is an invoice fram ENGS Motor Truck
25 Company specifically for a repair order, and it's

Page 45
1 engines and do diagnostics.
2 Q Cksy. Bo tell mo what work this work ordar
3 reflects.
4 B It looks like it went in for
S troubleshooting "Engine running rough.® So they
6 hooked up -- it would have been a Caterpillar
7 electronic technician -~ and checked for ECM -~
8 checked the ECM for any trouble codes.
9 "Found inactive codes for all six
10 injectors. Run truck"™ — it says "Run truck, all
11 codes became active, Check wiring harness. Check
12 okay. Check injectors. BAll injectors were okay.
13 Check ECM. Found ECM bad” -- I can't really read
14 that. "ECM bad" -- I guess, because it says "Needs
15 new ECM."
16 Q What is "EGM?
17 R Electronic control module. That would be
18 the computer that's attached to the truck —- to the
19 engine that controls the electronics of the engine.

20 Q0 Chkay. And dooo it look like tho (M was
21 changed?
22 A No. Well, wait a minute. For some reason

23 it says, "Reinstall drive line with new strap kit.
24 I'm not sure what that's got to do with the engine
25 running rough. I have no idea. But they put one
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1 new strap kit on the yoke. Maybe they took the
2 drive line out to do this test. I have no idea. I
3 don't know why they would do that. Okay. No. 2,
4 "ECM. Removed wiring from ECM and removed ECM.
5 Installed isolater bushings on the new" -- okay.
6 they did put a new EM in.
7 "Installed isolater bushings on the new ECM
8 and installed the ECM. Reinstalled wiring, hooked
9 up to ECM program settings, see custamer specs, run
10 truck, check for codes, no codes found. Customer
11 supplied the ECM."
12 Q 8o MDB supplied its own ECH{ to ENGS to
13 replece the old BEOM with?

So

14 A That is correct.
15 Q Ckay.
16 A That would be because ENGS is not an

17 authorized TEPS dealer for Caterpillar so that we
18 would have had to get the ECM directly from

19 Caterpillar.

20 @ I'll hand you another document.
21 (Deposition Exhibit 26 marked for
22 identification.)

23 BY MS. WOELFEL:
24 Q This is ¥D 335. It was part of MDB's
25 production. What is this document?

Page 47

1 A This is a portion of an equipment list that
2 only includes the truck that I was —- the truck and
3 trailers that I was driving the day that I had a

4 load inadvertently dump on the highway. So it lists
5 Onit 5693 as the power unit and then a set of

6 Trailer Nos. 6776, 6777, and 6778.

7 Q Do you know who prepared this particulax

8 document?

9 A I would have.

10 Q Chkay, ¥Why did you prepare this document?
11 A I'm sure I was asked for it by our

12 attorneys.

13 MR. BARKIEY: You don't have to answer that
14 question. That's privileged communication.

15 BY MS. WOELFEL:

16 Q This io not a documant that you just sort
17 of maintain in the course of business.

18 A  No. I do retain this but not - this is
19 just a selection of our equipment list.

20 Q OClay.

21 B So I do keep all this information. I just

22 printed out the portion that was related to the —-

23 Q To the July 7th, 2014, chmp?
24 A Yeah, The truck that I was driving.
25 Q Ckay.

Page 48
1

2

3 BY MS. WOELFEL:
4 Q This is & document MDB 11 end MDB 12.

5 Can you tell me what page one of this

6 document is?

7 A This is a record of annual inspection form
8 and it's dated April 26th, 2013, and it's for

9 Trailer No. 6775.

10 Q Ckazy. Can you toll ms who pecformed thig

11 inspection —— actually, it says the inepector’'s name
12 was Tracy Shane. Do you ses that?

(Deposition Exhibit 27 marked for
identification.)

13 A Yes, I do.
14 Q Ckay. I was thrown off bacsuse the bottos
15 just says "Shano.”
16 A Right. I knew it was Tracy Shane. I just

17 wanted to make sure I was reading in the right spot.
i8 Q Okay. And ig thie tho typioal form that
19 MDB would £ill out for each truck or trailer during
20 the anmual inspections?

21 A Yes.

22 Q The second page of the document -- zcotually
23 not part of the same document. It's just -- I doen't
24 know why I have them attachad but we'll go with it.
25 It's & Driver/Vehicle Examinaticn Report.

Page 49
1 Have you seen this docomant bafore?
2 A I'm pretty sure I have,.
3 Q Ckay. Can you describe for o what thig

4 document is?

5 A This is a Driver/Vehicle Examination Report
6 that is provided by the highway patrol any time your
7 equipment —- any time you're pulled over and your

8 equipment is inspected or the driver is inspected or
9 maybe there's an accident or an incident on the

10 roadway.

11 Q Ckay. And is thig the Driver/Vehicle
12 Examinstion Report for the July 2014 inedvertent
13 cumap?

14 A Yes. This is for -- the inspection date is
1S July 7th, 2014. This would have been just after

16 the inadvertent cumping when the highway patrol

17 would have contacted -- got in contact with Dan

18 Koski on the side of the highway and then did their
19 inspection.
20 Q Did the highway patrol ever come oato the
21 MDB site to inspect the truck at any other time?

22 MR. BROWN: Objection, asked and answered
23 yesterday.
24 THE WITNESS: I think I testified that I

25 think that they did come to the yard and inspect but
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1 I can't say for sure. I know after the July 2013 1 just put the one trailer on there, that's all he
2 incident they for sure came to our yard. I do 2 had.
3 specifically remember seeing them there. But on 3 Q Chay. Now, in your work on Trailer 6775 my

4 this particular time I just have a vague memory of
5 them coming to the yard and inspecting.

6 MR. BROWN: It's your record, counsel.

7 Since those are unrelated, do you want to make them
8 separate exhibits?

9 MS, WOELFEL: Yes. Let's make the second
10 page Exhibit 28. That will be easier.

11 (Deposition Exhibit 28 marked for

12 identification.}

13 MS. WOELFEL: This will be next in order.
14 (Deposition Exhibit 29 marked for

15 identification,)

16 BY MS. WOELFEL:

4 understanding is that you worked cn thot trailer and
5 you assisted in the rewiring procacc of that chortly
6 aftar you started working for MDB Trucking.

7 Is that correct?

8 A Yes.

9 Q@ Ckay. And then you would perform some of
10 the routine maintenance on this trailer over the
11 course of the next year or go. Is that correct?
12 A Yes.

i3 Q Ckasy. In your work on that Trailer 6775,
14 have you been able to identify any problems with the
15 way that that trailer was manufactured that you

16 believe contributed to the wnauthorized dump in July

17 Q Go ahesd snd take a loock at Exhibit 29. 17 of 2013 or July of 2014?

18 It's MDB 149. Rovo you sean this decument before? 18 MR. BROWN: I'm going to object it's beyond
18 A I don't believe I have but it's familiar as | 19 the scope of the 30(b)6 notice and it's asking for
20 far as what it contains. 20 opinion that I don't think is proper of a 30(b)6
21 Q Cksy. And based on your rovicy of it right | 21 witness, to begin with, as opposed to an expert,
22 now, can you tell Es what this domuront is? 22 MS. WOELFEL: Well, he's here in his

23 A This is another Driver/Vehicle Examination 23 personal capacity as well.

24 Report provided to us by the Nevada Highway Patrol 24 MR. BROWN: So he's here in his personal

25 after a roadside inspection or vehicle stop. And I |25 capacity and you're asking him for opinion evidence.

Page 51 Page 53

1 believe —- I'm not sure if the date is 08/25/2013. 1 Answer if you have one in your personal capacity.

2 Is that what it loocks like to you? 2 BY MS. WOELFEL:

3 Q It's difficult to tell. I do not know. 3 Q@ Do you want the csurt grporter to yesd back

4 A But either way, there's a check station
5 that's out at Wadsworth going eastbound on 80. And
6 every once in a while, say once a month they open it
7 for a day or so and they pull trucks in there
8 randemly and they inspect you.
9 This happened to be a lLevel 2 walk-around
10 inspection which means they just walk around the
11 truck and do just a cursory inspection. They don't
12 actually crawl under the truck and check brake
13 measurements and all that kinda stuff. They
14 basically make sure nothing's obviously wrong. And
15 this is for Truck 5694 and Trailer 6773.
16 Q@ 8o doen that mean that 5654 was only
17 pulling o oirglo trailer at thie time?
18 A It would seem to indicate that but I don't
19 think so. I seriously doubt he was just pulling one
20 trailer out in that area.
21 @ ¥Would that bs umusual, to only be pulling
22 one trailex?

23 A Yes, out in that area. I mean, it's
24 possible. I can't say for sure. He could have
25 been. I would assume that if the highway patrol

4 the question?

5 A No. I understood.

6 Q Ckay.

7 A In my opinion, to be honest --

8 Q Yes.

9 A --no.

10 Q Okay. Have you baen sble to -- wall, let

11 ms sk you this: If you had identified a problem

12 with the trailer, would you have suthorized it to be
13 used?

14 A  No, not until it was repaired.

15 @ In your work on Trailer 6775 have you been

16 able to identify any problems with the dasign of the

17 trailer that you believe contributsd to the

18 wnauthorized dumps in either July 2013 or July 2014?
19 A No.

20 MR. BROWN: Objection, calls for expert

21 opinion, calls for speculation, lack of foundation.
22 BY MS. WOELFEL:

23 Q Your enswer was "no"?

24 A That is correct. No.

25 Q If you thought there was & problen with tho
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1 dasign of the Trailer 6775, mmmmm
2 it to be usad by your drivers?

3 A No. We would have made the necessary

4 repairs.

S MS. WOELFEL: I don't have any additional

6 questions at this time. I will pass the witness to
7 scmebody on the phone, perhaps.

8 Thank you for your time. I appreciate it.

9 MS. QUIGLEY: I don't have any questions.
10 MR. BUNDICK: I do have a question.

11 EXAMINATION

12 BY MR. BUNDICK:

13 Q Mr. Palemor, oxo you ouxe that your client

14 has 8 oontributicn claim cgninot both Modern and
15 Dregon in this litiguticn?

16 M3. WOELFEL: Jacob, you're going to have
17 to speak up a little bit and slow down, because scme
18 folks are having same trouble hearing.

19 MR. BUNDICK: Can you hear me now?

20 MS. WOELFEL; Yes.

21 BY MR. BUNDICK:

22 @ I just have a few questions.

23 My name is Jacob Bundick and I represent
24 the third-party defendants Modsrn Group and Dragon
25 19D, Eov oxo you today?

Page 56
1 BY MR. BONDICK:

2 0 Sure. What facts does MUB have to mupport
3 the allegations in the third-party ocomplaint that

& Modarn is responsible for contribution for MIB's

5 nagligence and/ozr lisbility?

6 MR. BROWN: I'll lodge the same cbjections
7 to foundation and invasion of the attorney-client

8 privilege, and you cannot base your answer on

9 anything that your attorneys have told you.

10 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure I can answer the
11 question. I'm not sure I understand how to answer
12 the question.

13 BY MR, BUNDICK:

14 Q Me. Palmer, I'm specifically asking, ¥hat
15 facts do you have to support MIB's allegations
16 against my client iModern that wo are responsible fog
17 contributicn for MDB's own negligence and/ox

18 lishility?

19 MR. BROWN: TI'm going to object as to --

20 I'm going to object as to foundation, legal

21 conclusion. I'm alsc going to direct the witness to
22 continue not to answer based upon any information he
23 has been provided by his attorneys.

24 THE WITNESS: 1In that case I wouldn't be

25 able to answer the question.

§5§e 55
1 A Good. How are you?
2 Q Good. Are you sware thet your clisnt, MB,
3 has aseerted third-party claiss ageinst my client
4 for contribution?

5 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation.

6 THE WITNESS: BAm I aware of that? I think
7 I am, yes.

8 BY MR. BUNDICK:

9 Q Yas.

10 A Yes.
11 Q And what facts does MOB have to support the

12 allegations in the complaint that Medern io

13 responsible for contribution to MIB for ito &m
14 negligence or lishility?

15 MR. BROWN: Objection, calls for

16 speculation, also potentially impacts the

17 attorney-client privilege.

18 BY MR, BUNDICK:

19 Q You cen answer the question.

20 MR. BROWN: Hang on a second. You're not
21 to say anything that you know based upon what you've
22 been told by your attorneys.

23 THE WITNESS: Okay. Can you repeat the
24 question, please?
25

Page 57
1 BY MR, BUNDICK:

2 Q I'm going to smsk you the same question.

3 What facts doco MDD hovo to support the

4 allegations in tho co—ploint that Dragon is

§ responsible for coatribution for MA's cwn

6 negligence and/or liability?

7 MR. BROWN: Okay. Objection, asked and

8 answered, same objection. He just said he couldn't
9 answer it.

10 THE WITNESS:
11 yes or no.

12 BY MR, BUNDICK:

I can't answer that question

13 Q 1I'm asking related to my client Dragon.
14 MR. BROWN: BAsked and answered now for the
15 third time. I'm directing him not to answer the

16 question at this point, if it's asked the same way
1 17 and we can move on.
|18 BY MR. BONDICK:

19 Q Mr. Paleow, I would ask that you answer the
20 quasticn.
21 MR. BROWN: I'm directing him not to answer

| 22 based upon the attorney-client privilege that you've
| 23 asked the same question now the fourth time and he's
[ 24 given you the answer. He does not Jnow and he's not
25 going to base it on anything —-
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MR, BUNDICK: Are you answering for Mr.

1
2 Palmer, then?

3 MR. BROWN: No. I'm directing my objection
4 to you who has asked the question four times that

5 seeks to invade the attorney-client privilege and

6 he's already answered your question.

7 MR. BUNDICK: I'm not asking him to divulge
8 attorney-client privilege information, I'm asking

9 him what facts outside of anything that he's

10 discussed with you supports the allegation in the

11 camplaint that my client Dragon is responsible for
12 contribution to MDB.

13 MR. BROWN: And what's nonresponsive to his
14 answer to that question that he gave already that

15 says that he can't answer that?

16 MR. BUNDICK: He answered that related to
17 Modern, not Dragon, sir.

18 BY MR. BUNDICK:

Page &0

Jl Q@ You didn't find anything wrong before you
| 2 put the new Versa valve on?

3 A Didn't find anything wrong with the

4 electrical connection, no.

5 Q Bow sbout in regards to aftar the July 2014
6 incident on the subject trailexr? Did }@8 inspact

7 the electrical comnection to the Versa volwe?

8 A We did a cursory check that we put the

9 lockout devices on there so at that point it became
10 not an issue.
11 Q You sald & "cursory check"?

12 A Yes, a visual check. Just, basically, we
13 didn't do a complete investigation into it but we

14 did look to see if the wires were hooked up and

15 nothing looked out of place.
16 Q Czn you open the belly dump without a Veren
17 valve?

18 A Are you meaning like a different type of

19 Q Mr. Palror, io your snswer the sems for 19 valve or without the valve?

20 Dragon? 20 Q Without the valve.

21 A Yes. I don't know the answer to that 21 A If you remove the valve from the trailer,

22 question, 22 could you open it?

23 MR. BUNDICK: That's all the questions I 23 Q Yes.

24 have. 24 A You could manually supply air to it or open

25 MS. SHREVE: I do have some followup 25 the gates manually by pulling them on, I suppose.
Page 59 Page 61

1 questions but could we break for a second before we
2 start?

3 (Recess taken.)

4 BY MS. SHREVE:

5 Q Mr. Palmor, you uvnderstand you're still

6 wndne onth, correct?

7 A Yes.

8 Q Mr. Palmer, in tho July 2013 incident did
9 MDB ingpect the elcciricnl conmsotion to the Versa
10 valve?

11 A Before -

12 Q Afper thy July 2013 incident did DB

13 inspsct the elcotricnl commecticn to the Versa

14 valve?

15 A It's my belief -~ well, we changed the

16 Versa valve so we would have hooked up the

17 electrical connection to the new valve.

18 Rre you talking about inspecting the

19 connection prior to removing the old valve?
20 Q Yes. Prior to removing the old valwe, did
21 ¥DB inspect the electrical connection to the Versa
22 valve?

23 A I believe they did. I believe it was

24 connected. We didn't find anything wrong but we put
25 a new Versa valve on.

i Q Ckay. Would pulling on thezs manuelly be

2 the only way you could cpen them without having a

3 Verse valve oz a valve on it?

4 A I'mnot sure I -- it's a little broad as

5 far as -- the question's a little broad as far as

6 I'm not sure what you're getting at.

7 Q Okay. I'll try to ask it differently for

8 you.

] If the belly dump does not have a Verss
10 valve on it, can the belly dump open?

11 A So what you're asking is if it had a

12 different manufacturer valve on there or the valve
13 just wasn't in place?

i Q If it dosen't have a valve on it.

15 A If you took the valve off, you would have
16 no air pressure. Therefore, the gates would

17 probably -- wouldn't stay closed. There'd be no air
18 to keep the gates closed so the gates would be,

19 basically, in neutral.

20 Q Ckay. And vhat hoppens when the gates ave
21 in reutral?

22 A They just kinda hang down, depending on the
23 trailer. Depending on which particular trailer

24 you're talking about, the gates could stay closed.
25 If you pull them open, you could pull them open
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1 fairly easily.
2 Q 8o spacifically Trailer No. €775, if it

Page 64
i Q 8o how many hosep axe attached to the Varsa

2 valve -- oxr in Trailer 6775 when it's ingtalled how

S&wmt--ﬁlmuuhatywmid,ifitdow't; 3 many hoses are conmectsd to the Versz velve?

4 have the air pressure, then it can go to neutral.

5 Is that correct?
6 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation.
7 THE WITNESS: Well, it takes air pressure

B to close the gates and to open the gates. So if you
9 took the Versa valve out of the system, there would
10 be mo air pressure any longer so the gates would be
11 basically -- there would be no pressure holding it
12 closed or open. It would basically stay where it
13 was.
14 BY MS, SHREVE:
15 Q 8o if the Versa valve lost pressure then,
16 would tha belly gates go to neutral?
17 MR. BROWN: 1I'll object, lack of
18 foundation, incomplete hypothetical. Probably
19 beyond the scope of the notice. Answer if you can.
20 THE WITNESS: That was probably a poor
2] choice of words as far as "neutral.” When I say
22 "neutral,” I don't mean the position of the actual
23 gates themselves. I'm saying neutral as far as
24 there's no pressure holding it one way or the cther.
25 There's nothing pushing the gates open or closed, so

4 A I believe there's five hoses.

5 Q Other then the five hoses, when installing
6 the Versa velve on Trailer 6775 in 2013 did snything
7 ales have to be connected to the Varea valve?

8 R Yes. The solenoid that activates the Versa
9 valve to the open position via electricity has to be
10 wired into the 4-way system of the —— the 4-way

11 wiring system of the trailer.

12 Q 2nd is the eolenoid that you just spoks
13 about, is that & Versa product?

14 A Yes.

15 Q Ckay. Does that solenoid come with the

16 valve that wae purchased Bugust lst, 20137

17 A VYes.

18 Q Rl right. 8o you cen corpect me if I'm
19 wrong. If I undsrstand it correctly, you connact
20 the 4-vay plug to the solsnocid — io that

21 correct? —- whan you installed it in July 2013?

22 A No. The 4-way wire comes from the tractor
23 and it goes through all the trailers. And so by the
24 time it gets to the last trailer, you still have the
25 4-way wire running through the system, but there's

Page 63
1 generally the gates would stay in a position they
2 were,
3 BY MS., SHREVE:

4 Q Okay.
5 A More likely if it's loaded than empty.
6 Q Doss MDB have to connect the Versa valve --

7 so wa'll talk epecifically the 6775 trailer -- did
8 MDB have to connect the Verse velwve to snything in
9 oxder for it to be used on the trailer?

10 MR. BROWN: Object, foundation, vague as to
11 time,

12 BY MS, SHREVE:

13 Q After the July 2013 incident when MDB

14 installed the new Versa valve cnto the Trailer 6775,
15 did M08 have to connsct tho Verss valwe to anything
16 in order for it to be used in the trailer?

17 R Yes. The Versa valve would have to be

18 attached to the trailer, bolted to the trailer. And
19 then the air supply line that comes out of the tank
20 and goes to the filter and the oiler then goes to

21 the input of the Versa valve.

22 Then the hoses going to the open and closed
23 positions on each cylinder come out of the Versa

24 solve, so the hoses would have to be attached to the
25 Versa valve in order for it to work.

Page 65
1 only one wire hot in the ground wire in that

2 particular 4-way in the back trailer. So there's

3 two wires that could connect to the solencid --

4 Q Okay.

5 A -- the hot wire and the ground wire.

6 Q 8o vhen installing the Verss vaive on

7 Trailer 6775 in 2013, in ordar to install it to the
8 trailer, it was bolted down &nd than five hoses and
9 two wires were connectad to the Versa product.

10 A That's correct.

11 Q COkay. Now, you said that there's two wires
12 connected to the last trailar. And it made it seem
13 1like -- are thare more wires that are comnectsd to
14 the first two trailers, the solencid in the first
15 beo trailers?

16 A No. To clarify that, the 4-way wire has
17 three hot wires or hot wires when activated by
18 the dump switches in the tractor and cne ground

19 wire.

20 So one of those three hot wires goes to

21 each trailer, 80 as it goes down the trailer -- and
22 the front trailer would be, say, the green wire and
23 the 4-way system would go to that solenoid. The

24 next one would be the yellow wire and the next one
25 would be the red wire, whatever wiring color
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1 designation that we use.

2 Q Okay. S0 I'm just trying to ke sure I
3 undarstand this correctly from how you're explaining
4 it. 8o thare's a 4-way wire that comss from the

5 truck. Ig that correct?

6 A Correct.

7 Q And it has three hot, one for each, and one
8 of them i5 for each trailer, correct?

9 A Correct.

10 Q Do all of those wires traval through each
i1 tredilex?

12 A Yes. They would have to to get from --
13 yes. Yes,
i4 0 Okmy. 8o when you detach & trailox, vhat

15 heppsns to that wire if you -~ lst ®o rephroco that.
i6 ¥hen you detach Trailer 6775 from 6774,

17 what heppens with the wire that is going to tho
18 Versz valve on 6775?

19 A It stays with 6775. It's hardwired from
20 the trailer. The 4-way wire in that trailer into
21 the solenoid where it goes out through the front of
22 the trailer, down the draw bar, there's a plug on
23 the end of that that gets unplugged from the back of
24 6774 and that stays with the trailer. That all
25 stays with 6775.

i Q@ Choy. Axo tho £ivo hocoo that oxo

2 comnected to the Versa velvo, axo thoy Yoroa valve's

3 products?
4 A I highly doubt it.
5 Q Ddd thoss £ivo hosss come with the purchase

6 of the Versa velvo on Jwgust lst, 20137
7 A No.
8 Q The two wires that oro atteched to the

Page 68
1 A Correct.

2 Q Ckay. Xnd thoso wires that sve in the —- X
3 don't know if it'c in or on, which ons it should be
4 -~ but in or on tho truck, are those Versa Velves'

5 prodocts?
6 A No.
7 Q Earlier you testifisd that thare was a

8 rewiring of Truck 5694 after the July 2013 incident.
9 Before MDB rewires the truck end treilers,
10 is that wiring what is on truck amd Prailer §693 in
11 July 2014? Do you need o to re~word it? Thnt was
12 terrible.

13 A I think I know what you're saying., Are you
14 saying is the wiring configuration of 5693 the same
15 or similar to 5694's wiring prior to the 2013

16 incident?

é1.‘7 Q Yes. Eow tho wiring was before MDB rewived
18 it in 2013 --

19 A Yes.

20 Q@ -- ig thot wiring tho wiring that is

21 conmistent with Truck 5693 or is it the post-wirieg

22 -- ths peviring MDB did that's an Truck 56937

23 MR, BROWN: I'm going to object. Vaque.

{24 It may only be vague to me, but I'm lost.

| 25 THE WITNESS: I think I know what you're

Page 68

1 getting at. Truck 5694, I don't believe, was ever

2 -- I mean, sorry. Truck 5693, I don't believe, was
3 ever rewired. So the wiring on Truck 5694 prior to
4 the rewiring after the first incident in July of

5 2013 would have been similar to the current wiring
6 on Truck 5693.

7 But, you know, no truck is gonna be

8 identical the way they're wired but there is no

¢ Versa valve, are thoco Voroo product? Arve they
10 cwned by -- do you kmov if thoy ronufactured thosa
11 vires?

12 A I don't know if they manufacture them but
13 they came with the valve, ves.

i4 Q Cksy. 8o the two wires that connsct --
15 that go through the truck --

16 A COh, no. I'm sorry.
17 Q Chkay,
18 R There's two - there's a pigtail of two

19 wires coming off the solenoid when you buy it.

20 Q Chay.

21 A And when you splice that into our wiring,
22 that's where it becomes our wiring at that point.

23 Q Ckay. 8o there's to wizes on tho Yozsa
24 valve that are attached to the wires that axo on tho
25 truck or in the truck.

9 master switch in 5693 so it would be similar to
110 that, ves.

[ 11 BY MS, SHREVE:

12 Q You eaid no wiring would be identicnl

13 Yhy is that?

14 A Well, you used tc be able to order trucks
15 from the factory with dump switches, and I don't

16 know that you can anymore -- no, I think you can.
17 You can still get them from the factory with dump
18 switches.

19 So some trucks come from the factory with
20 cump switches already installed as an option and
21 some trucks — well, other trucks that weren't

22 necessarily intended to hall bottom cumps and

23 somebody would retrofit them with switches for

24 bottom dumps. And so depending on where you

25 acquired the truck from and if you got it new or
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1 used and who originally did the wiring, it could be

2 slightly different.

3 But all of the trucks that I know of all
4 have a similar installation process. All the

5 switches are guarded somehow to keep it from

6 inadvertently activating the switch while you're
7 driving down the road and pretty sure all of them
8 get their power now from un-switch power.

9 BY MS. SHREVE:

10 Q Okay. 8o if you do not activats the Versa
i1 valve on Trailer 6775 monunlly, am I corrzect that
12 the only other way to activato it is electricully?

13 Is that correct?

14 A Yes, that is correct.

15 Q OCkay. And where does that electricity come
16 from in ectivating it if you are ectivating it

17 electrically?

18 MR, BROWN: I'll object, foundation.

19 THE WITNESS: We're still talking about it

20 comes from the —- the power unit, the tractor? Is
21 that what you're -~ it comes from whatever truck
22 just happens to be pulling that trailer. That's
23 where the power cames from, via the switches, yes.
24 BY MS., SHREVE:

Page 72
1 BY MS. SHREVE:

2 Q Ckay. So when installing the Versa valve
3 in 6775, if the two wires from the trailer were not
4 atteched to the Veres valve, could the Versaz valve
5 be activated electrically with the switch?

6 MR. BROWN: I'm going to —— go ahead.

7 THE WITNESS: Can you please clarify when
8 you say "attached to the trailer®? You're talking
9 attached to the trailer wiring?

10 BY MR. SHREVE:

1 Q The trailer wiring, yes.
12 A That would be correct, yes.
13 not from the tractor, no.
14 Q You said "not from the tractor.”
15 Yestarday you testified that MDB shares &
16 shop with Western Nevada Transport since July 2014,

It could not,

17 Is that ocorrect?

18 A I believe I said --

19 Q I'm sorry. January 2014.

20 A Yes, that is correct.

21 Q Ckay. Could MB have placed a Varsa valve

22 owned by Western Nevada Transport on the trailer
23 insdvertently instsad of the one that was purchased
24 on August lst, 20137

25 Q 8o for Trailer 6775 the only way for 25 A That would have been prior to this.
Page 71 Page 73|
1 electricity to get to the Versa velve is from 1 Q So mo?
2 activeting the switch? 2 A  Pardon?
3 MR. BROWN: I'm gonna object, lack of 3 Q 8o is that a "no"?
4 foundation, beyond the scope. You're asking for an 4 R We didn't share the shop with them at that

S expert opinion.

6 THE WITNESS: I can actually answer that
7 question.

8 BY MS. SHREVE:

9 Q I'm going to reask it. Mhen MOB was

10 installing -- strike that. I'll let you answer my
11 previous question.

12 A The answer to that question is no, not

13 necessarily. That's the $64,000 question.

14 Q OCkay. BEow elss can electricity activate
15 tha Verss valve that you're aware of?

16 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation, calls
17 for expert opinion.

18 THE WITNESS: Well, I'm not -- I'm not an
19 expert on electrical fields, but there is a theory
20 that possibly it could be contributed to electricity
21 from static electricity possibly in the trailers,
22 possibly from surrounding areas, electrical storms.
23 We're not sure. But in my opinion that is what

24 could have caused these trailers to open.

25

S particular time, 8o no.

6 Q Ckay. I'm going to go to Exhibit 17 —-
7 sctually, bafore I reference Bxhibit 17, I just

8 wantad to get one more question.

9 ¥ihan ingtalling tho Vexco volvo in

10 Suly 2013 on Trailer §775, i€ tho & wizxeo fron tho
1i Varsa valve were not comnceted to ¢ho wizcoo din tho
12 truck, occuld the Voron volvo ko ectdvatod romenlly?
13 A Yes.

14 Q Is there any other way that tho VYozoo walwo
15 could have been activated if the bw wirco waxo not
16 connected to the wires in the tzuck?

17 MR, BROWN: Calls for speculation,

18 foundation.

19 BY MS. SHREVE:

20 Q That you'xe exmre of, that you hawo

21 knowledge of.

22 A So the question is, Can it be activated
23 electrically if they're not hooked to the trailer?
124 Q No. The question is if the two wires om
25 the M8 valve are not comccted to the two wires in
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1 the truck, what are the ways the valve enn bo

2 sctivated?

3 MR, BROWN: Object, asked and answered.

4 THE WITNESS: If the wires are not

5 connected from the solenoid fram the Versa valve to
6 the wiring system of the trailer's tractor, the only
7 other way for us to activate it purposefully is

8 manually.

9 BY MS. SHREVE:
10 Q Okay. Now I'm going to BExhibit 17,
11 is the Driver/Vehicle Inspection Report.
12 Based on thig inepection report, would

Thie

Page 76
1 produced there was not & work order for this evemt

2 or this day -

3 A  Okay.

4 Q - 80 I'm just trying to meks suro that wa
5 have all the work ordexrs --

6 A Correct.

7 Q - sinoe it's my undsrstending you don't

8 keep all of thess Driver/Vehicle Inspection Reports.
9 B Not past a certain time.

10 Q Right, oksy. Earlisr you tastified that
11 you believed the highwsy patral did sn ingpection at
12 the yard following the 2013 incidsnt.

13 there be & work order for this? 13 Did I understand that correctly?
14 B Are you talking about any —- 14 B Yes, I believe so. I might not have been
15 Q Sorzry. The firet pege in the Exhibit 17 15 there that day and ...
16 dated 8/19/2015. This is for Tractor 5694 and 16 Q And what makes you believe that you think
17 Trailer 6775. 17 this ococurzed?
18 B There should be one, and I'm assuming there | 18 L Well, I know that when Mr, Koski lost the
19 is one, but sometimes it's not always. Certainly 19 first load in 2013 they did come to the yard and do
20 there would be a work order. For instance, if — 20 an inspection. I saw them there. S0 I'm only
21 sorry. ! 21 assuming that that's what happened.
22 Q No. Go zhesd, 22 I've worked at other companies when there's
23 B For instance, if somebody writes up that 23 an accident that somsbody was injured in and the
24 the driver's side load light not working and the guy | 24 highway patrol usually comes by the next day and
25 walks out to the truck and sees the wire unplugged 25 does a complete inspection of the vehicle. So I'm
Page 75 Page 77
1 and plugs it in, he may not fill out a work order. 1 only assuming that that's what happened. That's
2 Just basically you sign it off saying it was fixed. 2 what I think I heard. But I may not have been there
3 So it is possible that a work order isn't produced 3 that day and actually witnessed it.
4 on some sort of minor instance like that. 4 Q 8o you ooid you cav highwey patrol como and
5 Q But thic cpecific one, is this & minor S do en investipution in tho yard following the 2013
§ instanco thnt o work order would not bs done on? 6 incident.
7 A It could be. I mean, you could go out and 7 A That is correct.
8 the plug might not have been plugged in on one of 8 Q Did this cocur on the day of tho 2013
9 the trailers so the mechanic plugged it in all the 9 incidant?
10 way and then it worked and he may not have filled 10 2 I believe it was the next day.
11 out a work order. I can't say for sure cone way or 11 Q Chkay. 8o were you e=ployed with KUB ot
12 the other if he did. 12 that tima?
i3 Q Ckay. When you szy "plugged in® are you 13 A No. But I was around.
14 talking about for the cab switch not cpening gatse? 14 Q Ckay. And why ware you avound?
15 You're saying that if he just went and plugged it 15 B Because I was trying to go to work there,
16 in, then that would be the issue and it would be 16 I know everybody that works there. So I was in and
17 solved and he wouldn't do a work order. 17 out of the yard a lot and I remember them —- I
i8 Is that ocorrect? 18 wasn't actually employed with them then but I was
19 A It's possible, yeah. 19 talking to them about what was going on with these
20 Q Does MDB keep any records for when drivers |20 trailers.

21 £i1l ocut vehicle inspection reports and they den't
22 sctually have to do any, I gucsg, saintenance to
23 where they would heve to fill cut o work ord-x?
24 A No.

25 Q The reason I ask that ic vhat bas boon

21 And I was getting ready to cut - I had

22 actually given, I think, 2 weeks' notice at my prior
23 jaob so I was getting ready to came to work there and
24 so T was starting to get involved in the coampany at
25 that time, yes.
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1 Q CGimy. And do you know if the highwey
2 patrol following their investigation provided MIB
3 with any paperwork?

4 A I would imagine they would have.

5 Q@ Ckay. And what would MD8 have done with
6 that paperwork?

7 A It would be scmewhere in a file, I would

8 imagine. But that would have been Tracy Shane. I
9 could go back and see if I could find it.

10 Q Cikmy, thank you. Yesterdsy you testified
11 that you kesp handwrittem notes -- correct? --
12 maintenance notes. B8orzy.

13 A I wouldn't really say they're notes. TIt's
14 when you work on a truck and you got oily hands you
15 write everything on a piece of scratch paper and
16 then transfer it to -- when you get done and wash
17 your hands, then you take that information and you

Page 80
1 have just tightened the bolts up. He doesn't

2 remember. He didn't really remember what exactly he
3 did. He was guessing.

4 Q@ If you were -- if you were just tightsming
5 the bolts on somsthing, does MDB indicate they

6 rentteched an item versus tightening screws?

7 A No ch, yes, yes, I would. I would make
8 that distinction. But it's possible that the bolts
9 were loose and corroded so he removed the bolts and
10 put new bolts in. But it doesn't -- I don't know.
11 I'm speculating. It doesn't show any new bolts

12 installed so I really can't say.

13 Q COkay. Can we go to Exhibit 21, plesco.
14 A  Okay.
15 Q@ Earlier I believe you indicntcd thot you'd

16 be reviring the dump circuit bescauee the Trailor
17 6774 did not activate with the switch.

18 transfer it to the work order. 18 A Rre we talking about Exhibit MDB 1967
19 0 2nd does Pat do the smme thing as you? 19 Q Oh, strike that. Go to MM 205. I believe
20 A Oh, yeah. 20 that's where it was spoken sbout. 8orry sbout that.
21 Q Do you lmow if Pat keeps his handwritten, I |21 1f I recall correctly, I balisve you
22 guass -~ 22 testified that you likely would have replaced the
23 A I know that he does not. 23 4-way socket and plug becsuse Trailer 6774 would not
24 ¢ Okay. Are tho work ordars filled out after | 24 have bsen activated by tha smvitch would be & reason.
25 the work is ocosplets? 25 Is that correct?

Page 79 Page 81
1 A Yes. 1 A I would imagine that's the original
2 Q Ckay. 2 symptom, yes.
3 B Well, I take that back. Scmetimes 3 Q Ckay. And if that was the symptom, c=n

4 depending on what you're doing, sometimes you start
S your work order. When you start, like, a F¥, you'll
6 start your work order and have it on the back of

7 your truck, back of the vehicle, or on a table and
8 you kinda £ill it out as you go --

9 Q Okay.
10 A -- but most of the time it's filled out
11 after the fact.
12 Q I'n going to go to anothar exhibit. I

13 believe it's -- 80 Exhibit 7, if you want to open
14 it. Yestexdsy you indicated that you had a
15 conversation with Pat Bigby in vegards to this work

16 oxder. 1s that correct?

17 A Which one?

18 Q Oh, I'm sorxy. M8 000240. Sorry.

19 A Yes, I did.

20 Q And if I recall correctly, yesterday you

21 testified that Pat Bigby indicated that he balieves
22 it wag just tightening the bolts of the Varsa

23 valves. Is that cormect?

24 A I think what he told me was that it must
25 have been something to that effect, that he must

4 Trailer 6775 still be activated by --

5 A Yeah.
6 Q -- its owm mritch?
7 A Yes, it could be. WNot necessarily but it

8 could be, yes.

) Q@ 8o it's posgible, then, that if tho sritch
10 isn't working for one trailez, it can still work for
11 a trailer behind it.

12 A  Absolutely, yes.

13 Q 1Is the wiring different for o tzuch thnt
14 pulls two trailers versus a truck that pulls theeo
15 trailers?

16 A I'mnot sure. No. I mean, it would -- not
17 really. The truck that nommally pulls three
18 trailers would just have two switches instead of
19 three switches and one of the wires in the 4-way
20 just wouldn't be hot for the third trailer.

21 0 8o Exhibit 24, MDB 073 -- and this work
22 orcar is where you refersnced that you installed --
23 that you ware assuming it went from a two-trailer to
24 a three-trailer. Is that correct?

25 A No. No. This is the work order that there
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1 were already three switches in it and they put a
2 fourth switch in it as the master switch.
3 Q 8o I'm sorxy. MDB 31, the pego bafore
4 that, is that whare the truck went fron wiring for a
5 two-traller to a thres-trailer?
6 A Yes,
7 Q Ckny. Booo that require corc posor thot
8 needs to bo oupplied to the 4~y plug if thoro oxe
9 thres hot wixes versus two hot wieco?
10 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation.
11 THE WITNESS: When you say "more power,”
12 are you talking about a higher gauge wire that can
13 provide higher amperage to the circuit? Is that
14 what you're referring to?
15 BY MS. SHREVE:
i6 Q Earlier you hed togtificd, if I zcooll
17 corzectly, it sppesved to me thnt you woxo ooying it
18 nocded -~ tho tsuchk nesded to have more -- there was
19 reviring beceuss there nasdsd to be more power for
20 three trailexs versus two trailers.

21 Did I understand that correctly?

22 A I don't think so.

23 Q Ckay.

24 A But to answer your question, you know, it

25 wouldn't require more power or amperage in the

Page 84
1 fros the Versa valvo through the trailers to the

2 Switch Bo, 3?

3 A It's not the same wire, no.
4 Q It's a diffexent wire.
5 A Yes. There's two terminals on the switch.

6 One terminal goes all the way to the back trailer to
7 the solenoid and the other terminal goes to one of
8 the terminals on the master switch.

9 And when you put the switch in the on

10 position, that closes the circuit and completes the
11 circuit between those two wires and that's what

12 supplies the actual power to the trailer.

13 Q@ 8o from the master @mdtch where doss that
14 wire go to?

15 A The wire goes from the other terminal of
16 the master switch -~ I would say to call that the
17 input terminal -- and that would go directly to the
18 positive terminal on the battery with an inline

19 fuse.

20 Q Are there sny othr wirings thet go to tho
21 battery? Any other wires that go to the batbery?
22 MR. BROWN: Cbjection, vague, foundation.
23 THE WITNESS: Yes.

24 BY MS. SHREVE:

1 circuit. There's already adequate amperage in the

2 circuit to activate all three sclenoids. They don'‘t
3 really take a lot of amperage. And you usually

4 would never have all three on at the same time,

5 anyway.

6 Q ¥hen M8 did thelr rewiring of Truck 5694
7 and the reinstallation -- or, soxzy, mot

8 reinstallation but the installation of tho Voroo

9 valve in Trailer 6775, wheze doos tho wixo that goss
10 to the Versa valve go in the actusl txuck? lhnt

i1 conmects it £rom the match to the Vezsn volvo with
12 tho now wiring that was put in plece?

13 A Okay., The positive side of the wire that
14 goes to the solencid that travels down the 4-way

15 through all the subsequent trailers into the

16 tractor, that would go to Switch No. 3, the third

17 one to the right, and that switch would get its

18 power fram the master switch.

19 Q Chkay. S8top you right thoro.
20 A Yes.
21 Q 8o when you say that would got the power,

22 iz there another wire that comnocta fron the third
23 switch to the master switch, thoa?
24 A Yes.

25 Q@ OCkay. Ig it tho pomo wiro thot's coaing

25 Q Bow many othox wirco go to the battery?
Page 83 Page 85
1 A ®ell, in that particular truck there's

2 three batteries so there's probably half a dozen

3 wires or more that go to the batteries.

4 Q 8o doas the wiring go to all thres

5 batteries from the master switch or doss it go to
6 ome specific battery from the master switch?

7 MR. BROWN: Objection, vague.

8 THE WITNESS: It would go to one battery

9 terminal on one of the batteries. But they're all
10 connected together on the same -- all the same wire.
11 The wire goes like a jumper wire. It goes
12 from one battery terminal to the next temminal to
13 the next terminal. So it doesn't matter which

14 battery you hook it to. You're actually, in fact,
15 hooking it intc all three batteries at the same time
16 because the batteries are connected together.

17 Q And the other wires that are attached to
18 these batteries, where do thoee wires go to?

19 A  Well, you'd have three -- actually, you'd
20 have the jumper wires that go between the batteries
21 and then you'd have two 2-aught positive cables

22 going to your starter and two 2-aught negative

23 cables going to the starter.
24 And then you'd have your main cab power
25 supply for the cab and the motor, everything that

Litigation Services

800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com

AA000267




SCOTT ALEN

PALMER, VOLUME III -

03/08/2017

o S - ) Page 86
1 comes off the batteries, which goes, I think -~ I
2 believe it goes to a circuit breaker on the frame
3 rail.
4 Q Ciay.
5 A That's all factory wiring, yeah.
6 Q Okmy. Now, in regards to the July 2013
7 dirmmp, do you know if MDB wag issued, I guess, &
8 D.0.T. violation for that dump?

9 MR, BROWN: Objection, vague.
10 BY MS. SHREVE:
11 Q@ I'm asking this to try to narrow tha date

12 of the July 2013 incidant besed on Exhibit 15. 8o

13 I'e just trying to sse if it would have received one
14 of the viclations to where we could at least narrow
15 down one of the potsntial datss in July.

16 A Is that the one that's July 26th in that
17 exhibit?
18 Q 8o this would be Exhibit 15. It's the

19 safety messurement sysbtem.

20 AR Oh, yes. And what date is there on that?
21 MR. BROWN: Here (indicating).

22 BY MS. SHREVE:

23 Q 80 in this report it lists dates of

24 violations for the truck,

25 A Okay.
Page 87
1 MR. BROWN: Can you say what page you're
2 looking at for the record.
3 MS. SHREVE: Sorry. MDB 008.
4 THE WITNESS: Okay.

5 BY MS. SHREVE:

[ Q 8o I'm asking if it would have recaived a
7 violation to where we would bo gble to at least

§ narrow soms dates down.

9 Because it loocks like the subject truck had
10 in July 2013 ~ there's two different datas -- or,
11 sorry, threc different dates for vioclations or

12 inspection report mmbers.

13 A Yes. They're inspection report numbers,
14 They're not necessarily violations.

15 Q Right. Soxzy.

16 A But —

17 Q TWould they have an inspecticn report dons

18 on that July 2013 incident?
19 A Yes. BAny time the highway patrol stops
20 you, they give you one of those sheets.

21 Q Okay.

22 A I shouldn't say "every time," but I would
23 imagine they do --

24 Q  Ckay.

25 A -- most times,

- o o T Page 88
1 Q 8o would it be safe to say, thsa, the
2 July 2013 incident likely would have cocurred on
3 July 25th, 2013, July 30th, 2013, or
4 July 31st, 2013, basad on those being the only
5 dates in July that the subject truck hnd a report
6 issued?

7 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation,
8 speculation.
g THE WITNESS: First of all, I guess I

10 didn't realize we didn't know the exact date. I

11 probably could have done a little research to figure
12 that out.

13 But based on my reading this report now

14 that's in front of me, it is very hard to figure out
15 if the lines you're looking at are below or above

16 the dates.

17 My opinion from looking at this,

18 July 25th would have been the date that the load

19 was spilled. That would be my best guess, opinion,
20 is July 25th, based on all the other evidence I've
21 looked at here.

22 BY MS. SHREVE:

23 Q Chay. Would you agres that sems truck had
24 n report dome cn July 30th, 2013, and July 3ist,

25 20137

Page 89
1 A Yes, it would have had one done. Yes.

2 Q Okay. If we could go to Exhibit 2, pleass.
3 Go to MB 474, please. What is tho dnto of this

4 Driver's Daily lLog Sheet?

) A July 25th, 2013.

6 Q This is one of the dates listed on the

7 report that we just spoke about, correct?

8 A Yes.

9 Q And based off of this sheat, is there

10 anything on here that indicates that this was the
11 day that the dump occurred?

12 A Can scamebody refresh my memory about

13 something? I don't know if anybody knows this

14 answer.

i5 Q SBure.

16 A On the July 2013 incident was rock dumped
17 that day or sand? Does anybody - I don't know if--

18 MR, BROWN: I don't think anyone at this
19 table can help.
20 THE WITNESS: All right. Well, based on

21 this report, it doesn't indicate that there was any
22 —- that this is the day but it does indicate that it
23 could be that day.

24 BY MS. SHREVE:

25 Q Now, if you turn that page to MDB 475, doss
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1 this -- it locke like it was for 7/25/2013 for the

2 gubject truck and trailar,

3 Does this indicnte whether ox not this ww
4 ths day that ths trailer hed a dump?

5 A Once again, there's nothing on here that

6 actually spells it out that scmething happened.

7 Tracy at the time didn't make any notes on here, but
8 I do see that he was using that truck and those

9 trailers that day.

10 Q Mow, if rock or if something was dumped out
11 of the truck, would thare bs a note like there was
12 for July 7th, 2014, that the load is less than

13 vhat wag picked uwp?

14 A You're referring to the scale ticket being
15 changed or whatnot?

16 Q Yes.

17 A  You would think so, yes, but not

18 necessarily. He might have called Cemex and said
19 this is what happened and they might have said, oh,
20 don't worry about it. I can't -- I'm speculating
21 but it could have been. I mean, it's possible that
22 we didn't actually make any adjustments to the tag.

Page 92
1 certain that the master switch was put in after the

2 chemp on the road. So what we're looking at is we
3 can either make the assumption that July 25th was,
4 in fact, the date that he did it.

5 The master switch was put in the following
6 day on July 26th, which sounds prcbably like the

7 scenario that happened, or this date is incorrect.
8 0 That was going to be my next question, is
9 it possible that the dete —-

10 A But I know for a fact that the cump

11 switches were put in — the master dump switch was
12 put in after his first incident.
13 Q Ckay. MNow, you're saying it's possible
14 that the dato could be incorrect.

15 Could ths miles be incorrect as well, then?
16 A No.

17 Q@ Ckay. 8o if you go to Exhibit 2 ~

18 A So you're putting your detective skills to

19 work here on the mileage, I'm assuming.

20 @ I am. You are assudng correctly. I'm
21 tzying to get this dowm, sineo wo don't knov the
22 date. In the event it's lator, wo don't howe to do

23 that.
24 A Right, that's good.
25 Q COkay. 8o if you go to MI3 471, vhat'c tho

23 Q Okay. If you ¢o bock to Exhibit 24 oed go
24 to MO8 073 -~
25 A Yes.

o Page 91
i 0 -~ if thic cctugzcd -~ since we don't know

2 the actunl dawo and it'c pocoiblo it could hovo

3 ocourred ca July 30th or July 3iot — if thio

4 wag done prior to thes dip, what would be tho

5 ressoning behind that?

6 T know you explained that this work

7 oxder -- you were under the impresaion it was for
8 bafore the dmp. But now that we know it's possible
9 the dump could have cccurred on July 30th or

10 July 31st, why would he have resived the gate

11 switchas?

12 R I'm not — are you saying that I thought
13 this work order originally was from before?

14 O Yos. Esrlier when you were testifying you
15 were talking about this work ordax, and you

16 testified that you believed the rewiring cccurred
17 after.

18 A VYes.

19 Q But based on the evidence before, it locks
20 liko it could have bsen possible that it occurred on
21 July 30th oxr July 3ist. 8o thio would have

22 cccurxed, thon, befoxe the July 2013 dusp.

23 8o what would be the ressoning this would
24 have been dome?

25 A To my knowledge -- okay. I know for

Page 93

1 date on this drily driver shest?

2 A Oh, the date on this is July 29th, 2013.
3 Q Okay. And what is the starting cdometer om
4 this log sheet?

] A 396,989 miles.
6 Q Now, iz that the sams mileage that io
7 listed on Exhibit 24, ¥D8 073?
8 A Yes, it is.
9 Q Ckay. I'll zcpressat to you thare is
10 not -- & drivexr's dnily ehest for July 26th was not
11 produced.,
12 Now, would that ba becsuse the truck was in

13 service that day, if that date of July 26th, 2013,
14 is corwect?

15 A The truck was not in service?

16 Q Corzect.

17 A That is correct.

18 Q 8o, then, would it be posaible that this

19 date of July 26th, 2013, would be correct if tho
20 miles are the same ac tho starting -t of

21 July 20th, 20137

22 A I'msorry. I was thinking.

23 Q 1It's £ine. So for Exhibit 24, MDB 073, is
24 it possible that tha date of 7/26/2013 is corzcot
25 since the miles of 396,989 is consistent with ths
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1 ptarting odomster in Bxhibit 2, MOB 471, for

2 July 29th, 20137

3 A That would be the assumption I would make,
4 yes.

5 Q Chmy.

6 A And as far as a July 26th truck report —
7 or daily driver sheet missing?

8 Q And would that be because it was actually

9 getting maintenance parformed on it that day?

10 A  Well, no, I would say there's one missing
11 because there's a gap in the mileage.
iz Q Ciay.

13 A And is it possible I was asked to produce
14 Dan Roski's -- I'm not sure if I was asked to

15 produce -~ were we asked to produce Dan Koski's?

16 Q It was for the truck and the txailer.

17 B Okay, There might be a missing truck

18 report that somebody else drove the truck on Friday,
19 yeah. But we have established that yes, July 26th
20 sounds like the right date.
21 Q Oksy. Would you drive the truck on the day
22 it is getting serviced?

23 A Oh, yes, definitely,
24 Q Okay. But it is possible that that date of

25 July 26th ie correct, thea?

Page 95
1 A Yes.
2 Q Cksy. B8o if that date is correct and this

3 cccurred prior to the July dump becouse it's

4 posaible that we have esteblished it could have bean
5 on July 30th or July 3lst, 2013, do you know why

6 they would have installed the master switch before?
7 A  No. I don't know why they wouldn't have.
B Now --

9 Q Do you know why there would have been a
10 rewiring of the gate switch that day?

11 ' A I'm sorry. Rewiring the switch on
12 July 26th?
13 Q Yes. If it cocurred before the July 2013

14 incident.

15 A No. There would be no reason for it.

16 Q You're not meare of any reason?

17 B No.

i8 Q Chay. After the July 2013 incident, did

19 MDB in their investigation into it find any defect
20 with the Versa valve?

21 MR, BROWN: Can you read the question back?
22 THE REPORTER: "Q. Okay. Ahfter the

23 July 2013 incident, did MDB in their investigation
24 into it find any defect with the Versa valve?”

25 MR. BROWN: I'm going to cbject to the

Page 96
1 extent that it would call for any type of

2 attorney-client privilege that's occurred since the
3 commencement of the litigation.

4 You understand that?
5 THE WITNESS: Not exactly, but —-
6 MR, BROWN: If you determine there was a

7 defect before the litigation, you can answer the

8 question. But if it's something that I've told you
9 afterwards, you don't need to say.

10 THE WITNESS: Okay.

11 BY MS. SHREVE:

12 Q 8o in July 2013, right after the incident
13 and your investigation imto it ——

14 B Yes.

i5 Q -- which would ba before this litigatien

16 commenced, so your knovlcdpo at that point, did MIB
17 detgrmine that thoso wos any dafect with the Versa
18 valve?

19 A The original Versa valves that was

20 installed on that date was actually never tested.
21 That is in my opinion -- in our opinion that there
22 was nothing wrong with the valve. We didn't -- I
23 mean, we didn't actually do a thorough testing but
24 we didn't find anything wrong as far as ...

25 Q  Ciay.

Page 97
1 R Yeah.

2 Q 2nd how sbout MDB'g investigution right

3 after the July 2013 incid-at -- cpnin, thic is that
4 tirn after, not eince litigation has comzsnosd —
5 did MDB find that there was anything wrong with the
6 design -- did they find there wag a defect with the
7 deeign of the Versa valve?

8 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation,
9 speculation.
10 THE WITNESS: It's not something we tried

11 to determine, so I quess the answer would be no but
12 we didn't actually try to determine that. And we're
13 still using the same valve so I don't think there

14 was a design flaw, necessarily.

15 BY MS. SHREVE:

i6 Q I'm going to ask you the same quastion

17 spain for after the July 2014 incident cn Trailer
18 6775. Dnid ¥DB in their investigation after the dump
19 -- again, this is right after, not since litigation
20 -- did M08 find any defect with that Versa valve?

21 A  No. That remained in service until such

22 time litigation started.

23 Q And on that seme trailer, the samo Versa
24 valve, did M8 in their investigation right aftox
25 the subject incidant —— sgain, pre-litigation, right
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1 after ~- did MDB discover sny design dafect with tho

2 Versa valve?

3 MR, BROWN: Objection, foundation.

4 THE WITNESS: No. But, once again, we
5 weren't looking for any sort of design defects or
6 functionality defects. It worked.

7 BY MS. SHREVE:

8 Q Okay.

9 A To the best of our knowledge it still
10 worked.

11 Q 8o it worked as you espacted it to wozk,
12 then?

13 A Well, at that -- yeah., I would imagine.

14 After that time we had lockout devices in there so
15 we wouldn't be able to tell if it inadvertently

16 opened after that incident, but as far as I know, we
17 could find nothing wrong with the valve.

i8 Q Okay. And I'C going to ask tho same

19 questions with regards to the sand truck as wall for
20 the truck you were driving and the trailer, 6778, on
21 thas July 2014 day.

22 Did MDB in their investigation find any
23 dafect with the Versa valve?

24 A No.

25 Q Okay. And the same goes for the Trailer

Page 100
1 up a little bit, please.

2 MR, BUNDICK: Sure. Let me take you off
3 speaker phone.

4 Hello?

5 MS. WOELFEL: Go ahead.

6 BY MR, BUNDICK:

7 Q Mr. Palmer, in your opinicn how is =y

8 client Modern Czoup responsible for the eccident

9 that coourved in July 20137

10 MR. BROWN: I'll object again to the extent
11 it would call for an invasion of the attorney-client
12 privilege and beyond the scope of the 30(b)6

13 notification.

14 To the extent that your knowledge is based
15 upon what you've been told by your attorney, don't
16 answer the question. If you have knowledge beyond
17 that, feel free to give it to him.

18 THE WITNESS: If you're asking for my

19 opinion, I don't really --
20 BY MR. BONDICK:
21 @ Do you heve knoxledge cutside of what you
22 discussed with your attormey?

23 A Pardon?
24 MR, BROWN: We can't hear you.
25 MS. SHREVE: If you could talk slower.

Page 99
1 6778. After tho July 2014 incident did 1B find any

2 defact in the dasign of the Versa valve aftor thoir
3 investigation?

4 MR. BROWN: Cbjection, foundation.

5 THE WITNESS: But, once again, we didn't do
6 an investigation of it. We have found -- we haven't
7 looked for it but we have found no indication of a

8 defect.

9 MS. SHREVE: I think that's all the

10 questions I have right now. I will pass the

11 witness. Jessica, do you have any followup.

12 MS. WOELFEL: No, I have no other followup.
13 I'm good.

14 MS. SHREVE: Does anyone on the phone have
15 any followup questions?

16 MS. QUIGLEY: Ro.

17 MR. BUNDICK: Yeah, I have one.

18 FURTHER EXAMINATION

19 BY MS. BUNDICK:

20 Q Mr. Palmer, this is Jeocdh Bundick ond I

21 represent Modezn Group and Drogon Ltd.

22 In your opinicn how ig Modern recponsible
23 for the --

24 MS. WOELFEL: The chiropractor couldn't

25 hear you. Would you be able to talk slower and talk

Page 101
1 BY MR. BUNDICK:
2 Q Mr, Palmar, can you answar tho question
3 without divulging sttomnsy-client privilege
4 informstion?
5 A If 1 remember the question, I don't have an
6 opinion of why -~ I don't have an opinion of that.
7 You're asking for my opinion and I don't have one.

8 Q You do not have an cpinion, Thank you.

9 MR. BUNDICK: I have no further questions.
10 MR, BROWN: I have no questions.

11 MS. WOELFEL: We've completed this witness'
12 deposition. Thank you for your time.

13 THE WITNESS: Thank you

14 MR, BROWN: I know you don't send

15 originals, but I'll take the copy for signature.
16 MS. WOELFEL: We've all ordered copies of
17 the transcript.

18 THE REPORTER: Counsel on the phone, are
19 you ordering copies of the transcript, or no?

20 MS. QUIGLEY: Yes, I'll take an E-tran.
21 MR. BUNDICK: Yes, for E-Transcript.
22 {¥hereupon, deposition was concluded at
23 12:19 p.m.)

24 ~-000-

25
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1 STATE OF NEVADA ) 1 RRRATA SHEET
H ss 2 Page Line Should read: Reason for Change:
2 COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 3
3 &
4 I, CHRISTINA AMUNDSON, a duly commissioned and H
5 licensed court reporter, Washoe County, State of & _
6 Nevada, do hereby certify: 7
7 That I reported the taking of the deposition of ] -
8 SCOT ALEN PALMER, commencing on Wednesday, March 8, ]
9 2017, at 9:30 a.m. 0 __
10 That prior to being examined, the witness was 1
11 duly sworn to testify to the truth. That I 2 __
12 thereafter transcribed my said shorthand notes into 13
13 typewriting and that the typewritten transcript of i —_—
14 said deposition is a complete, true, and accurate 15
15 transcription of said shorthand notes. 6 __ __
16 I further certify that I am not a relative or 17
17 employee of an attorney or counsel of any of the 18  Date:
18 parties, nor a relative or employee of an attorney Signature of ¥itness
19 or counsel involved in said action, nor a person 19
20 financially interested in the action.
21 20 Hame Typed or Printed
DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 14th day of March 21
22 2017, w m W% 2
23 23
24 CHRISTINA AMUNDSON CCR #641 24
25 25
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2 ERRATA SHEET
3
4
5 I daclare under penalty of perjury that I have read the
6 foregeing pages of my testimony, taken
7 on (date) at
8 (city), {state},
1]
10 and that the same is a true record of the testimony given
11 by me at the time and place herein
12  above set forth, vith the following exceptions:
13
14  Page Line Should read: Reason for Change:
15
€
17
8 _
19
2 _
21
2
23
24
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

ERNEST BRUCE FITZSIMMONS
and CAROL FITZSIMMONS,
husband and wife,

Case No. CV15-02349
Dept. No. 10

Plaintiffs,

vs.

CONDENSED
TRANSCRIPT

MDB TRUCKING, LLC, et al.,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED CASES.

e e M et e e N e i et e e e e

DEPOSITION OF TRACY SHANE
Taken on Tuesday, April 11, 2017
At 9:00 a.m.
At 100 West Liberty Street, 10th Floor

Reno, Nevada

REPORTED BY: JANET ANN MENGES, CCR #206
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Page 2 Page 4
; APPEARANCES: 1 INDEX
3 Forthe Plaintiffs: 2
‘ SARAH g{wgg{n E{Q&<m g‘e(lephonicauy) 3 WITNESS: TRACY SHANE
3 6900 South McCarran Boulevard : E)YQ})XI}SQ’ISWON VE PA?E
Suite 2000 HRE
6 Ee;g SNzg\f;n;laMB%W BY JESSICA WOELFEL 101
7 6 BY PAIGE SHREVE 128
4 For Versa Products Company, Inc.: 7
2 PAIGE SHREVE, ESQ.
LEWIS, BRISBOIS, BISGAARD & SMITH 8 INDEX TO EXHIBITS
10 6385 South Rainbow Boulevard 9
Suite 600 1 EXHIBIT P /.\GE
n Las Vegas, Nevada 89118 11 Record of Annual Inspection 93
(702) 893-3383 11
12 12
13 For RMC Lamar Holdings, Inc..
14 JESSICA WOELFEL, ESQ. 13
McDONALD CARANO 14
15 100 West Liberty Street
10th fioor 15
16 Reno, Nevada 89501 16
(775) 788-2000 17
17
18 For MDB Trucking, LLC: 18
19 BRIAN BROWN, ESQ. 19
THEIRRY BARKLEY, ESQ.
20 THORNDAL, ARMSTRONG, DELK, 20
BALKENBUSH & EISINGER 21
2 6590 South McCerran Boulevard
Suite B 22
22 Reno, Nevada 89509 23
(775) 786-2882
23 24
24 25
25
Page 3 Page 5
1 (Continued Appearances) t TRACY SHANE
2 For The Modern Group GP-SUB, Inc.: ) 2 called as a witness, being first duly
3 JACOB BUNDICK, ESQ. (Present Telephonically) 3 swom, was examined and testified
GREENBERG TRAURIG . as follows:
3773 Howard Hughes Parkway :
Suite 400 North ’
5 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 6 EXAMINATION
] (702) 792-3773 7 BYMS. SHREVE:
8 Q. Good moming.
7 For USAA: )
8 LISA TAYLOR, ESQ. (Present Telephonically) ’ A Good moming.
Law Office of Lisa A. Taylor 10 Q. My name is Paige Shreve, and I represent Versa
9 5664 North Rainbow Boulevard 11 Products in this lawsuit.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89130 12 Can you please state your name and spell it for me?
1(1) (702) 645-0150 13 A Tracy Shane, T-r-a-c-y S-h-a-n-e.
12 14 Q. Thank you.
13 15 And you understand that the oath you just took is the
14 16 same oath that you would take in a court of law and you're
i‘: 17 subject to the same penalty of perjury?
1a 18 A Yes.
18 19 Q. Have you ever had your deposition taken before?
19 20 A No.
20 21 Q. I'm going to go over some ground rules with you in
;; 22 regards to depositions so you understand everything that we're
23 23 doing today.
24 24 First to my lefl is a court reporter. She is taking
25 25 down everything that we say today. So I request that any
N ___
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Page 6

Page 8

1 answers be verbal and not um-hum or that. So if you do say 1 Q. Truckee?
2 um-hum [ may say is that a yes. I'm not trying 10 be rude. [ 2 A Truckee, California.
3 Jjust want to make sure that the court reporter can type down 3 Q. Can you spell that for me?
4 everything. So just request again verbal answers for everything 4 A T-r-u-c-k-e-c.
5 that  ask you. 5 Q. And how long did you live in Truckee?
€ Additionally 1 would request that you wait for me to 6 A Eighteen years.
7 complete my question before you respond. In normal conversation 7 Q. And I'm going to go over a bunch of background
8 a lot of times you anticipate what the person is going to ask 8 information about you before we start to get into questions
9 and so you start to answer. That is difficult for the court 9 about the accident that was involved in the subject litigation,
10 reporter to take down. So if you could wait for me to finish 10 just to give you a little heads up.
1 before you answer [ would greatly appreciate it and so would the 11 Where do you currently live now?
12 court reporter, 12 A. Sparks.
13 During your deposition sometimes the attorney to your 13 Q. And how long have you lived in Sparks?
1 right may make an objection, but that is okay for him to make 14 A In the current house or in the town?
15 the objection. You can go ahead and answer unless he instructs i5 Q. Let's start with what is your address of your current
16 you otherwise. 16 house?
17 Any question that | ask you and you answer | will 17 A 2685 Rio Seco Lane.
18 assume that you understood it. If for some reason you don'‘t 18 Q. And how long have you lived there?
19 understand the question that I'm asking or you need me to 13 A Seventeen years.
20 rephrase it, please let me know and I will be happy to ask ita 20 Q. And then before there did you live in Sparks?
2t different way or maybe give you some more information to help 21 A Reno.
22 you understand it better. 22 Q. How long did you live in Reno?
23 A Okay. 23 A Fifieen years.
24 Q. After we are done the deposition, you will be provided 24 Q. Before that where were you?
25 a copy of the ranscript, You can look over it and if you need 25 A Antarctica,
Page 7 Page 9
1 to make any changes. There are two different types of changes 1 Q. | have never heard that before.
2 you can make. 2 MR. BROWN: You don't hear that one every day.
3 One is just small grammatical errors, that kind of 3 BY MS. SHREVE:
4 thing. You're welcome to do that. Another one is substantive 4 Q. How long did you live in Antarctica?
5 changes. Those are big things like if you tell me a stoplight, s A Three years.
6 which 13 not involved in this case, but if you tell me it was 6 Q. This is just out of curiosity. What brought you to
7 red and then later you change it and say it was green that would 7 Antarctica?
8 be a substantive change and that is something if this case were 8 A Work.
9 to go to trial ] can comment on. 9 Q. We will getinto that a little more then, Where were
10 A 1see Lo you before Antarctica?
i1 Q. Also ifat any time you need a break please let me 1 A. Truckee.
12 know. | just request that you would answer the question, if a 12 Q. Okay.
13 question is pending, before we break and we can gladly break. 13 Are you currently married?
14 So at any time just let me know and we can take a break. 14 A No.
15 A Thank you. 15 Q. Have you ever been married?
16 Q. s there any reason that you cannot give your best 16 A Yes
17 testimony today? 17 Q. How long were you married?
18 A None 18 A Five years.
19 Q. Okay. 19 Q. And when was that?
20 Have you taken any medication today? 20 A 1995
21 A No. 21 Q. To2000?
22 Q. Can you please tell me your date of birth? 22 A. Um-hum.
23 A 10th of March 1966. 23 Q. Do you have any children?
24 Q. And where were you bom? 24 A No.
25 A Truckee. 25 Q. Did you attend high school in Truckee?
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Page 10 Page 12
1 A, [did. 1 reported to the owner the state of affairs.
2 Q. What high school did you go t0? 2 Q. The owner, is that Terry Davis or somebody else?
3 A Truckee Tahoe. 3 A No, it's Travis Bonanno.
4 Q. And did you graduate high school? 4 Q. I'm going to go back a little later and talk about the
5 A ldid 5 different duties that you did more in detail, but prior to MDB
6 Q. Didyou attend any secondary education after high 6 where did you work?
1 school? 7 A Iworked for Atlas Contractors in Sparks.
8 A No. 8 Q. And when did you work at Atlas, if you can recall when
9 Q. What is your current occupation? 9 you started there?
10 A Dispatcher. 10 A 1believe that was March of 1992.
1 Q. For what company? 11 Q. And then when did you leave Atlas?
12 A Cyclone Transport. 12 A It was in March of 2007.
13 Q. And how long have you worked there? 13 Q. Why didyou leave Atlas?
14 A One and a half years. 4 A Went to start my own business.
15 Q. What do you do as a dispatcher at Cyclone? 15 Q. What business did you start?
16 A Coordinate orders and equipment to jobs and customers, 16 A Metal building construction.
37 Q. And before Cyclone where did you work? 17 Q. Metal building?
18 A MDB Trucking. 18 A Um-hum.
19 Q. And how long were you at MDB Trucking? 18 Q. Is that what it was called, the company?
20 A Five -- if 1 am correct, five years and a month. 20 A No.
21 Q. Do you remember when you started? 21 Q. What was the company called?
22 A It was in November of 2010. 22 A. It was Silver State Construction.
23 Q. And do you remember when you left? 23 Q. How long did you have Silver State Construction for?
24 A December 2nd, 2015. [ A lended up not buying the business. I worked there
25 Q. Why did you leave MDB? 25 for three years.
Page 11 Page 13
1 A 1 was dismissed, fired. 1 Q. So was that from 2007 to 2010?
2 Q. Why were you fired? 2 A That is correct.
3 A There were no reasons given, 3 Q. Is there any particular reason why you decided not to
4 Q. Who was it that fired you? 4 buy the business?
s A Safety director of a sister company, Terry Davis. 5 A The economy for one. Two, couldn't agree upon a sale
6 Q. He didn't provide any reason? € price in the end.
7 A He didn't even know, no. 7 Q. Okay.
8 Q. He didn't know what - He is the one that informed you 8 When you were working at Silver State Construction
8 that you were fired? 9 what was your job title?
10 A Um-hum. 10 A. Estimator, project superintendent.
n Q. And he didn't know the reason why you were? 11 Q. What were the job duties that you would perform?
12 A Um-hum. 12 A Managed construction crews, go to bid openings, job
13 Q. Did you ask about it? i3 box.
14 A Yes. 4 Q. Soyour duties here were a little bit different than
15 Q. Did they do any investigation to give you any more 15 as dispatcher at MDB and what you're currently doing; is that
16 information? 16 correct?
17 A Never talked to them again. 17 A Yes.
18 Q. Okay. 18 Q. So before that you were at Atlas. What was your job
13 And at MDB Trucking what was your job title? 19 title at Atlas?
20 A. Dispatcher. 20 A. Low bed truck driver.
21 Q. Briefly take me through the job duties that you would 21 Q. Did you only drive low bed trucks?
22 perform at MDB Trucking? 22 A ldrove - Primarily, yes, that was my truck, but ]
23 A. ] did the hiring of drivers, the training of the 23 filled in on others as needed.
24 drivers, approved timecards. I'm trying to remember the exact 24 Q. What were other types of trucks that you drove?
25 word, essentially reconciled paperwork and timecards and 25 A Transfers, end dumps, bottom dumps, water trucks.

N
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Page 14

Page 16

1 Q. When you say bottom dumps are bottom dump and belly 1 A Yes.
2 dump considered the same? 2 Q. What type of training did you receive?
3 A Yes. 3 A There were no instruction manual.
4 Q. So you drove belly dumps at Atlas? 4 Q. There was no instruction manual?
5 A Yes. 5 A There were no instruction manual, but just simple
€ Q. How ofien would you drive a belly dump? € here's the switches, this is how they work, this is the valve,
7 A At Atlas | very rarely did. 7 this is how you use the valve.
8 Q. Like once a month, would you guess, or fess than that? 8 Like at Granite you're paving with bottom dumps and so
9 A Less than that 9 there is a dump man that walks beside you and actually operates
10 Q. And the belly dumps or bottom dumps that you drove, 0 the valve for you regulating the size of the windrow. So he
1 did they have Versa valves on them, do you recall? does most of that and it's almost like being taught how to ride
12 A 1 believe they did. 12 a bicycle from a tricycle. So it's very just very simple and
13 Q. At Atlas were you provided any training regarding 13 obvious.
14 driving transfer trucks, end dumps or bottom dumps? 14 So training almost seems as though it's probably the
15 A Yes 15 least amount of training involving the trailers you use as
16 Q. What type of training did you receive? 16 compared to the truck.
7 A Well, [ believe it would be to me considered 17 Q. Okay.
18 rudimentary, simple operation of the switches of the trailer. 8 So would a dump man usually be the one operating the
19 Most of that for most any driver is fairly cornmon knowledge. 15 valve then on the trucks that you drove?
20 It's not like flying a space shuttle, for example. You can look 20 A Correct.
2t ata piece of equipment and see it's very simple. 21 Q. Did you ever have to actually aperate the Versa valve
22 Q. Okay. 22 for opening?
23 A And they are all the same. 23 A From inside the cab, yes.
2 Q. Were you provided any specific training regarding the 24 Q. So you would never actually do it manually, that would
25 operation of the Versa vaive on the belly dumps, if you recall? 25 be the dump man?
Page 15 Page 17
1 A No, I believe | had that knowledge prior. 1 A Correct.
2 Q. Okay. 2 Q. So before Granite Construction where were you, where
3 So then let's go back even further. Before Atlas 3 did you work?
4 where were you? 4 A Sierra Rental and Transport.
5 A Granite Construction. 5 Q. Sierra?
6 Q. When did you begin working at Granite Construction? ¢ A Um-hum.
7 A lbelieve it was'91. 7 Q. And where was that located?
8 Q. Where is Granite Construction located? 8 A Sparks.
9 A Sparks. 9 Q. When did you start working at Sierra Rental and
io Q. And you worked for Granite Construction from '91 to 10 Transport?
it ‘92; 15 that correct? 11 A 1987
12 A That's correct. 12 Q. Did you work there until '92?
i3 Q. And what was your job title at Granite Construction? 13 A 91
14 A Truck driver. 14 Q. I'msorry, yes,'91.
15 Q. Why did you leave Granite Construction? 15 What was your title at Sierra Rental and Transport?
6 A Winter layoff. 16 A Truck driver.
17 Q. What type of trucks would you drive there? 17 Q. What type of trucks did you drive?
18 A Bottom dumps. 18 A Truck and pup, end dump, bottom dump.
19 Q. Only bottom dumps? 9 Q. Did you receive any training in regards to driving the
20 A Thatis correct. 20 trucks at Sierra Rental and Transport?
21 Q. Do you recall if those bottom dumps had Versa valves 21 A Yes.
22 on them? 22 Q. And again what kind of training did you receive, was
23 A | believe they did. 23 it in-house training?
24 Q. Did you reccive any training regarding operating or 24 A Yes.
25 25 Q. And what exactly did they teach you in regards to

driving the bottom dumps at Granite Construction?
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A
Page 18 Page 20
1 training you? i A Yeah, Antarctica was from '85 to the end of '87 ~ '88
2 A Basic how to operate the various trailers. 2 actually.
3 Q. You operated bottom dumps at Sierra Rental and 3 Q. So Sha-Neva, were you still working -- | have '77 to
1 Transportation? 1 '87, so was it '857
s A. Yes. 5 A Well, Antarctica I went down in the summers, our
€ Q. How often would you drive a bottom dump trailer? 6 winters here, summers there.
7 A. lrregular. 7 Q. So Sha-Neva was seasonal and then you would go -~ you
8 Q. Would you say once a month? 8 were up there half the year and Antarctica half the year?
9 A. Probably less. s A Um-hum.
10 Q. Once every three months maybe? o Q. Where did you work in Antarctica?
1t A. That's more like it. 1 A Two summers in McMurdo and one at the South Pole
12 Q. Okay. 12 station.
13 Did those bottom dumps have Versa valves on them? 13 Q. What company did you work for?
1 A. Those did. 14 A 1 worked for ITT.
15 Q. So prior to Sierra where did you work? 15 Q. What does that stand for?
16 A. Sha-Neva Incorporated. 16 A Intemational Telephone Telegraph was the parent
1? Q. Where was that? 17 company. Antarctica services was the division that -- was their
18 A. Truckee. 18 polar division,
19 Q. When did you start working at Sha-Neva? 19 Q. What was your job title?
20 A. It was a family business. Legally I think I got my 20 A Eguipment operator. Truck driver for the first
21 first paycheck in '77. 21 season, I should say. Equipment operator for the last two.
22 Q. So you worked there from '77 t0 '91 -- I'm mean sorry, 22 Q. As atruck driver did you operate belly dumps?
23 to'877 23 A No.
24 A. Correct. 24 Q. Asan equipment operator what did that entail?
25 Q. What was your job title there? 25 A Running loaders, loading dump trucks, forklifts, what
Page 19 Page 21
1 A. Slave. 1 people call dozers. [ believe that's - rough drills for
2 Q. So you did a little bit of everything they needed? 2 drilling and blasting.
3 A. Um-hum. 3 Q. Did I miss any other jobs?
4 Q. Was this a trucking business as well? 4 A None.
5 A. It did have a trucking division to it, yes. 5 Q. Okay, great,
6 Q. Did you drive trucks? 6 Did you do anything to prepare for your deposition
7 A. ldid 7 today?
8 Q. Did you drive any bottom dumps or beily dumps? 8 A No.
9 A Yes. s Q. Did you speak to anyone in preparation for your
10 Q. How often would you drive those? 10 deposition today?
n A Scasonal, summer, a third of the time. 11 A 1have not.
12 Q. Did they have Versa valves in those? 12 Q. Did you speak with Daniel Koski about his deposition?
13 A. Those did, yes. 13 A. No.
14 Q. Why did you leave Sha-Neva? 14 Q. Did you speak with Scott Palmer about his deposition?
15 A To see the world. is A No.
16 Q. With Sierra, why did you leave Sierra Rental and 16 Q. Did you speak with Patrick Bigby about his deposition?
17 Transport? 17 A No.
18 A Lack of work. 18 Q. I'mgoing to go back to your time at MDB Trucking. So
19 Q. Okay. 19 you were there from 2010 to 2015. Who hired you at MDB
20 So before Sha-Neva where did you work? 20 Trucking?
21 A. T was astudent. 21 A Travis Bonanno.
22 Q. Okay. 22 Q. And when you arrived were you trained by anybody at
23 A. That was the beginning, 23 MDB Trucking to do any of the — for the hiring, training,
24 Q. So where was Antarctica, I feel like we're missing 24 timecards, paperwork and that sort of thing?
23 Antarctica? 25 A. No.
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Page 22

Q. How many people did you hire during your time at MDB

Page 24

of your employees or did you yourself perform any inspection on

2 Trucking, if you can recall? 2 the trailer prior to putting it in service?
3 A I'would say under 30. Icould be wrong. 3 A Yes.
4 Q. Did you hire Daniel Koski? 4 Q. Who performed the inspection when you first leased the
5 A ldid 5 traifer before you put it in service?
6 Q. Did you hire Scott Paimer? 6 A 1don't recall who specifically did that.
7 A ldid 7 Q. Did you do that?
8 Q. Did you hire Patrick Bigby? e A Icenainly inspected many, but I can't say for sure.
9 A ldid ? The record indicates, but I don't recall.
10 Q. Were you responsible for any of the purchasing or 10 Q Did you receive any maintenance records from the
11 leasing of the trucks and traiters at MDB? 11 company that you icased the trailer 6775 from before you started
12 A, 1was. 12 leasing it? So that was probably a badly phrased question, so
13 Q. Okay. 13 strike that,
14 Do you happen to recall the equipment number of the 14 From SKS Corp, did they provide you any of the
15 truck and trailer for the July 2014 unintentional dump on the 15 maintenance records of 6775 before it was acquired by MDB?
16 highway driven by Daniel Koski? 16 A No, 1 don' recall seeing any previous paperwork.
17 A ldo. ? Q. Okay.
18 Q. What equipment number was that? 18 So you're not sure if there was anything done to the
19 A The trailer was number 6775, 19 trailer prior to MDB leasing the trailer, any work performed or
20 Q. Okay. 20 maintenance done on it?
21 And were you responsible for leasing that trailer? 21 A Well, the trailer was used so I'm certain there was
22 A Twas involved. 22 pormal maintenance performed, which would be common, unknown to
23 MS. SHREVE: Brian, do you have any objection to using 23 me what it may have been.
24 the exhibits from yesterday for today? 24 Q Okay.
25 MR. BROWN: Yes. 25 When you were working at MDB did you or did you have
Page 23 Page 25
! I'm just kidding. 1 anyonc at MDB perform maintenance on trailer 6775 or did you
2 BY MS. SHREVE: 2 have to send it to SKS Corp?
2 Q. T'm going to show you this is Exhibit 1. Does this 3 A No, MDB did all of their own maintenance.
4 look familiar to you? 4 Q. Earlier you testifted you did all the training at MDB
s A Yes. 5 when you were employed there; is that correct, you did all the
6 Q. Sois this a bill from the purchase of the truck and € training for the employees?
7 traiter that Danicl Koski drove or one of them? 7 MR. BROWN: I'm going to object. 1 think it misstates
8 A This is looks like an invoice for six trailers, two 8 his testimonty. [ think it was limited to certain areas, but you
9 sets, train sets, one of which was Danny's, yes. No trucks, i can answer, if you can.
10 though. 10 THE WITNESS: 1don't believe | did all of it.
11 Q. Just the trailers, sorry. 11 BY MS. SHREVE:
12 And then did MDB lease the trailers from SKS Corp; is 12 Q. Whattraining did you perform?
1 that correct? 13 A Well, 1 arranged for training through MSHA as MDB was
14 A lbelieve that's how he had that set up. 14 an MSHA carrier. 1 was a trainer for Cemex, which is one of
15 Q. Did you negotiate the lease of the truck and trailer, 15 their customers, and 1 did the training for all the employees
16 50 6775 trailer? 16 who went to that customer.
17 A No. 17 Q. Wentto Cemex?
18 Q. Who negotiated the lease for that? 18 A Yes, which was all of our employees.
1e A That 1 would have no idea. 19 So 1 was trained by Cemex to train our guys, and
20 Q. Okay. 20 you're wanting 1o know other type of training?
21 But you were involved in the process of it, though? 21 Q. Yes.
22 A As I see that as being internal, 22 Did you do any other training for any of the employecs
23 Q. Okay. 23 at MDB?
24 A Which | had no involvement in. 24 A It was all task specific training. So whatever job
25 Q. 25 that the various employees had 1 made sure that they had the

When MDB first leased trailer 6775 did you request any
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Page 26 Page 28
i training, whether the training was in-house or outsourced. 1 could be a kindergartner and do it. They explain every facet of
2 Q. Okay. 2 it as far as the moving as unloading, the surroundings, the
3 A Every position. 3 sofiness or the hardness of the ground, getting stuck on your
4 Q. Okay. 4 load, 1 mean --
5 As a trainer for Cemex, you said that Cemex actually 5 Q. Soyou said that they taught you about the switch and
6 trained you themselves; is that correct? 6 manually using the lever to open and close; is that correct?
7 A Thatis. 7 A Yes.
8 Q. What type of training did Cemex provide you? 8 Q. So how did they teach you how to manually open and
8 A MSHA for one. Actually myseif and others, Danny 9 close the lever?
10 included, received our MSHA training at and through Cemex. 10 A Well, MSHA is very safety oriented. 1 don't want to
11 Q. And what is MSHA? 1 sound childish, but they — you almost -- they treated it like
12 A Mine and Health Safety. 12 it was a nuclear bomb practically. You had to have all your
13 Q. What type of training does that include? 13 safety gear, eyewear. You had to check your surroundings of
b A Itis geared towards surface mining, the training of 1 where you were at. Even though it's the most simplest thing
15 awareness around the various equipment, how to operate -- task i5 they teach you even how to walk on a job site.
16 training what you operate. Every individual piece of equipment 16 So it is all encompassing in the training of the
B that you operate you're task trained for that specific piece of 17 bottom dump, as simple as it is. ] mean it's very difficult for
18 equipment. 18 me to even recall all the minute of what they taught us because
19 Q. Does that include driving a belly dump truck and 19 it 1s such second nature.
20 trailer? 20 Q. Let's go, then, specifically your - we don't need to
21 A Specifically, yes. 2t talk about the other safety stuff, but just actually the opening
22 Q. Did it include operating the opening and closing of 22 and closing of the belly dump, how you actually do that like
23 the belly dump truck and trailer? 23 step by step, do you just push the handle in, how did you
24 A Yes. 24 perform that?
25 Q. So tell me a little bit about -- so Cemex had you go 25 A Well, the lever is spring loaded, air pressure is
Page 27 Page 29
t to MSHA training; is that correct? B behind it. You push it to open the gate and the further you
2 A Yes. 2 push it in the more the gate opens.
3 Q. So tell me a littde bit about the -- what was 3 Q. When you say it are you talking about the lever?
¢ explained to you regarding driving a belly dump trailer during 4 A The lever itself.
5 your MSHA training? s Q. Okay.
6 A What was explained to me? € A And if you let go of the fever it closes.
7 Q. Yes, what did they tell you about driving a belly dump K Q. Okay.
8 trailer? 8 A And there is a relief valve, I don't recall the exact
¢ A Well, I'm not sure | think along those lines. I don't 9 terminology, that if you push that in it relieves the pressure,
10 want to read into it, but perhaps we went through the 10 the air pressure in that cylinder that the lever is attached to.
i rudimentary safety of operating it on a site. Maybe I'm not 11 Q. Are you talking about the accumulator?
12 understanding exactly. 12 A Thats it
13 Q. So were they training you more on the safety of 13 Q. Okay.
R driving versus actually operating the truck, how to operate it? 14 A That's it, and that will allow the lever to stay in
15 A Both 15 any position to move it and it wili stay there. That
i6 Q. Okay 16 accumulator will equalize the pressure, So you can operate it
17 So let's go to when you were operating a belly dump, v by hand two different ways.
18 how did they teach you how to operate a belly dump to open it 18 Q. So they taught you two different ways to operate the
19 and close it? 19 lever manually, is that correct?
20 MR. BROWN: At- 20 A Cormrect.
21 BY MS. SHREVE: 21 Q. And correct me if I'm wrong, the first way you said
22 Q. At MSHA training, what about the MSHA training -~ 22 was just pushing the lever in and then did you say it would
23 A Oh, boy, they explain training hands on, on-site, the 23 automatically close; is that correct, is that what you said?
24 operation with the switches in the cab, the valve on the 24 A Thatis.
25 25 Q. That was the first way?

outside. They go -- after you're finished with that class you
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Page 30 Page 32
: A Um-hum. 1 A ldon't recall precisely, but I must have
2 Q. And then the second -- what was the second way, sorry? 2 Q. Did you keep any records after an employee completed
3 A The accumulator. 3 their MSHA training or Cemex training?
4 Q. And can you go through that process again? 4 A Yes.
5 A That equalizes the pressure in the cylinder. > Q. What type of record was kept?
6 Q. So would you push the accumulator first or afier you 6 A You were issued a certificate from MSHA from your
7 moved the lever? 7 trainer that you were required to carry a copy to present when
8 A Most times first, because it would be the simple step 8 needed and there were multiple copies through carbon or some
9 to push that and then adjust the lever where you want. 9 such thing. One copy was left with the trainee, one went into
10 Q. Okay. 10 his qualification file, because in the case of an audit MSHA --
1 So you would push it and put it wherever you want and 11 an MSHA audit you would have to show that —
12 then would it automatically close or would it stay there? 12 Q. That they had their training?
13 A It would stay there until you moved the lever. 13 A Intheir quslification file, yes.
14 Q. Okay. 14 Q. Okay.
15 So if you pushed it and moved it forward and it opened 15 Would you let a driver drive if they didn't have their
16 how would you close the belly dump? 16 MSHA waining?
17 A You wouid pull the lever back and then you would 17 A Yes,
18 function through the switch on the dash to reset the 18 Q. How long would you let a driver drive without having
19 accumulator. 19 their MSHA training?
20 Q. So for the second way you would do it manually and 20 A MSHA isn'trequired for all positions.
21 then have to use the switch inside; is that correct? 21 Q. So what positions is it required for?
22 A Electrically. 22 A When you're entering a mine site that is regulated by
23 Q. Okay. 23 MSHA.
24 Were you ever taught to not use the switch after you 24 Q. So for drivers that were not entering mine sites did
25 used the accumuiator? 25 they have other training regarding operating a belly dump
Page 31 Page 33
1 A. No. 1 trailer?
2 There were no instructions supplied with the 2 A Yes.
3 manufacturer, but that's just common sense. 3 Q. Was that the waining that was performed by Cemex or
4 Q. Okay. 4 did you provide the training at MDB?
5 Common sense to do the switch after, is that what 5 A Both, as a matter of fact.
6 you're saying, if | understood correctly? 6 Q. What was the training -- did you take any training
7 A 1would say. 7 from Cemex other than the MSHA training regarding operating the
8 Q. Okay. 8 belly dump?
¢ A Everyone does it. s A ldid
10 Q. Okay. 10 Q. Was that training different or were you told
11 So that is what you were taught at MSHA, correct, that 11 differently regarding operating the belly dump at Cemex than
12 Cemex sent you to? I'm just trying to get the -- 12 MSHA?
13 A Yes, that was part of the MSHA training. It wasn't 13 A No, there were no differences.
14 anything new, it was known, but that was reinstilled there. 4 Q. Was every driver at MDB required to go through the
15 Q. And you said Daniel Koski also attended that MSHA 15 Cemex training?
16 training? 16 A Yes
17 A Hedid 17 Q. Did MDB keep records of the Cemex training performed?
18 Q. And what about Tracy Shane? 18 A Yes.
19 A ['was there, too. 19 Q. Was it a certificate like the MSHA?
2e Q. 1mean, sorry, Patrick Bigby? 20 A Similar.
21 A. Yes, he went through MSHA training as well. 2 Q. Would you allow a driver to drive without having their
22 Q. What about Scott Palmer? 22 Cemex training?
23 A Yes. 23 A No.
24 Q. For Daniel Koski, Patrick Bigby and Scott Palmer did 24 Q. When you were employed with MDB did MDB have any
25 vou schedule their training with Cemex and MSHA for that? 25 written company policy regarding the operation of the trucks or
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Page 34 Page 36
1 trailers? 1 Q. Okay.
2 A Yes. 2 A The second one was Danny.
3 Q. Okay. 3 Q. Did you have any other drivers driving the bottom dump
4 What was the company's written policy, did they have a 4 trailers?
5 handbook? s A Only had two and those were the two fellows.
6 A Yes & Q Okay.
7 Q. Was that written handbook around prior to your 7 So from 2010 to 2015 yourself, Louis and Daniel were
8 employment at MDB? 8 the only three drivers of bottom dumps at MDB?
9 A Prior to my employment I can't really say. s A. No, no, by 2015 there were dozens of trailers by that
10 Q. When you started working there did they have that i time.
i handbook? 11 Q. Okay.
12 A 1 don't believe there was a handbook that I received. 12 What about in 2013.
13 Q. Do you recali the first time you remember seeing the 13 A '13, number of trailers?
14 company handbook regarding the operation of the trucks and 14 Q. Yes, we will do the number of trailers, bottom dump
15 trailers? 15 trailers?
16 A Repeat that, please. 16 A 1believe eight.
17 Q. 1believe you just testified that there was written 17 Q. Eight bottom dumps.
18 company policies or procedures regarding the operation of the 18 Would that be eight trucks with trailers or just eight
19 trucks and trailers? 18 actual trailers?
20 A Um-hum, 20 A Eight separate trailers that can be configured into
21 Q. !believe you said that you do not recall them having 21 train combinations.
22 one when you first started at MDB. So I'm trying to figure out 22 Q What about 2014, how many bottom dump trailers did you
23 when they implemented the written policies regarding the 23 have or did MDB have?
24 operation of the truck and trailer, so just trying to recall 24 A lbelieve in'14 we added 16 more.
25 what year you remember seeing it first? 25 Q. Okay.
Page 35 Page 37
1 A Twouid have to say it was shortly into 2011. 1 1 So sixteen to the eight, on top of the eight?
2 should say that they didn't have bottom dumps originally. That 2 A. Correct.
3 came along in 201 1. 3 We may have -- we may have — actually in '13 we had
4 Q. So MDB first started with bottom dumps in 2011 then? 4 seven.
5 A. Correct. 5 Q. Seven.
6 Q. So when MDB received the bottom dumps in 2011 there 6 So then in 2014 did MDB have to hire additional bottom
7 was a written policy regarding the operation of those trailers 7 dump drivers to accommodate the 16 additional belly dump
8 then; is that correct? 8 trailers?
9 A Well, I guess you couid say that. I was the driver. 9 A. Yes.
10 I was the only - | was the only one to tow the bottom dump so 10 Q. Who did you hire or who did MDB hire at that time to
11 - 1 drive the additional belly dump trailers?
12 Q. When did other drivers begin driving the other bottom 12 A You want their names?
13 dump? 13 Q. Please.
14 A 1would have to say 2012. It could have been late -- 14 A Boy, I'm not sure I can —
15 it could have been —~ could have been '11, but I believe it was 15 Q. If you can remember.
16 in'12, i€ A Boy, I haven't thought about this in quite a while.
17 Q. Okay. 17 Q. Testing your memory today.
18 Did you hire the drivers to drive the bottom dump 18 A Yes, Jim Logan,
19 trailers? 19 So between the Reno division we had Louis that we
20 A ldid 20 mentioned, Danny and Jim. We had three sets up here. 1s
2 Q. Who did you hire to drive the bottom dump trailers? 21 Sacramento relevant?
22 A Names? 22 Q. We will just talk about Reno.
23 Q. Yes, please. 23 A Okay.
24 A The first driver was Louis Solidab. He took my 24 Well, that's -- Sacramento was the remaining trailers
25 25 that were obtained in that year,

position.
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Page 38
Q. So how many of the bottom dumps were added to Reno?
A None.
Q. So the 16 additional were for Sacramento in 20147
A Correct.
Q. Okay.
A That is correct.

Q. So Reno had seven total bottom dump trailers; is that
correct?

A Yes, that is correct.

Q. And yourself, Louis and Daniel and Jim were the only
drivers of those bottom dump trailers?

A 1would say so, yes.

Well, Scott he drove. He and | drove when needed.
Anybody else drive occasionally?
Pat.
Anybody else that you can think of?
Well, no, not that | can think of.
Okay.
Who trained Pat, Scott, Louis, Daniel and Jim in
driving and operating the belly dump trailers?

A Well, officially I was as required by DOT, not to
mention all of the various training that we need to be subjected
10 through job requirements of our customers. Even though it's
all rudimentary and been the same for years we all have to
submit to annual training. So either myself or someone at Cemex
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Page 40

inspection station or Highway Patrol, clarifications.

Q. When you were at MDB did you require your belly dump
drivers to perform inspections on the trucks and trailers each
day?

A Every day.

Q. Was that implemented by you or was that prior to your
time?

A I'm centainly sure it was prior to my time.

Q. And how would you ensure that the drivers were
performing their daily inspections of their trucks and trailers
on the belly dumps?

A T would ensure it in a number of ways.

Q. Okay.

A Through visual, through back-up inspection by myself
or the maintenance crew, by looking at the paperwork that is
involved by the driver to do these inspections.

Q. After they would do the inspections they would -
would they turn paperwork into you?

A That is correct.

Q. And what would you do with that paperwork?

A. Depending upon what was written on it. 1f it was -
there were no defects then it went into a file for that
particular trailer. If there were defects a report was written
up always — someone would always verify prior to writing up the
paperwork to see what was involved, and 1 mean the flow of

20
21
22
23
24

Page 39

would do those.

Q. When you hired Louis, Daniel, Jim, Scott and Pat did
you provide them with the written company poticy regarding
operation of the belly dumps?

A 1did with whatever form it was at the time.

Q. Do you recall what form it was at the time?

A It's always a work in progress from one year to the
next, sometimes revised more often depending upon need.

Q. Isitabook or is it sheets of paper?

A 1don't believe it was bound or hole punched. I think
mostly a handout in stapled form.

Q. And when there were updates who would provide the
updated versions of the handbook, is that something you would
work on -~

A Yes.

Q -and provide?

A Yes.

Q. Would you type something up on the computer and print
it out and give it to them?

A It would be presented at a safety meeting or with a
paycheck, depending upon what it was

Q. What sort of things would be in the revisions?

A New rules set upon by our customers, anything that the
feds would come out with in the handbook, to be aware of laws
that are being misinterpreted by inspectors at either the

w @ w9 ;o

Page 41

paperwork just went on from there.

Q. Would you keep the daily inspection reports that you
would receive?

A The daily, yes. The law requires, I believe, 90 days.

Q. So you would keep them for the 90 days and then
discard, is that correct?

A Oh,yes.

Q. If there was an issue with a truck or trailer during
the driver's daily inspection would they still continue -- would
you allow them to continue to pick up their load for the day?

A It depends on what type of defect.

Q. Do you have an example of a type of defect that they
would still be allowed to drive even though they indicated there
was a defect prior to leaving?

A Well, I can — Yes, [ can recall. These trailers are
detachable. You can run as three or two or one. A landing leg
for the tongue on a trailer, for instance I can remember being
written up that like the foot needed to be welded or a new tire
put on it or something, and those sorts of items, unrelated to
our daily activity depending upon what it was, you know, we
wouldn't repair it then, maybe not until the end of the shift or
the next day, if we weren‘t going to unhook it, just common
sense.

Q. Did you have the drivers check to make sure the belly
dumps would activate correctly, open and close each moming?
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Page 42 Page 44
1 A In the pre-trip, yes. 1 upon the job. Sometimes you would tighten them up so it would
2 Q. How about the post-trip? 2 open up very little and other times you would not have them
3 A Oh, yes, and daily every use. 3 restricting the width at all.
4 Q. And would you have them in the moming before they 4 Q. Would you ever put those gate chains on when you're
5 left -- how would you have them check it, using the electrical 5 driving to ensure the belly dump doesn't open while driving?
6 switch or actually manually using the lever? 6 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation.
? A Both, and there was plenty of time to do this as it is 7 BY MS. SHREVE:
g air operated.  You couldn't move the truck because the brakes 8 Q. Go ahead, you can answer.
s are air and you couldn't leave until you had enough air pressure 9 A 1can answer?
10 for the brakes to release and there were safeties involved in 10 MR. BROWN: You can.
n that, so — 1 THE WITNESS: That is not the design or purpose of
12 Q. So when they would check each moming manuaily would 12 those chains. [ suppose you wouldn't want to trust them.
13 they do manually one or two? I'm just going to list them as one 13 BY MS. SHREVE:
b or two from what we discussed earlier. Do you understand what [ 14 Q. Okay.
15 mean by manual one and two? 15 Earlier you testified you hired Patrick Bigby;
16 A One would be manually on the valve. Two would be 16 correct?
7 switch in the cab. 7 A Yes.
18 Q. No, | wilt go back. 8 Q. What was the position you hired Patrick Bigby for?
19 So the one you said was just manually moving it. Two 19 A Mechanic,
20 you said was pushing the accumulator and then moving it, 20 Q. Did MDB have a mechanic prior to Patrick Bigby?
21 specifically for the manual, the two types of manual ways to do 21 A No.
22 it. Would you have them perform both manual ways? 22 Q. Was Patrick Bigby -- Strike that,
23 A [t was up to their discretion to verify its function. 23 Prior to Patrick Bigby how would maintenance be
2 Q. Okay. 24 performed on the trucks and trailers that MDB used?
25 A Releasing the pressure in the accumulator was not a 25 A May | ask the definition of maintenance, airing of
Page 43 Page 45
1 function that was required by us or the driver or the job, but i tires?
2 you could tell if it was working just by the tension on the 2 Q. Any of the duties that Patrick Bigby performed when he
3 lever. So there was no need to reset or push in the accumulator 3 was hired. So the duties that he performed who was responsible
4 because you knew if there was tension on the lever there was 4 for those prior to his arrival at MDB?
5 pressure on the accumulator. s A Well, general maintenance we had a tire guy, an
6 Q. Okay. 6 independent tire contractor so we didn't -- that wasn't part of
7 During the pre-trip inspection were the drivers 7 our maintenance. That was something that an outside vendor did
8 required to make sure the electrical connections between the 8 maintenance-wise.
s trucks and trailers were working properly? s 1 hired Pat because of the onset of the miles being
10 A Yes, they were an integral part of the system. 10 put on the trucks that we were going to need a mechanic and it
1 Q. During your time at MDB did you have any policy 11 was far more effective to have on our on staff rather than
12 regarding the gate chains? 12 sending it out and waiting and having unknown people working on
13 I'm not sure -- So there is chains to limit how far 13 the trucks. So there hadn't been any — depending upon your
14 the belly dump can open and close. Do you understand which 4 definition of maintenance there hadn't been really any heavy
15 chaimns I'm talking about? 15 maintenance required quite yet.
16 A Yes, ldo. 16 Q. Who would you send the trailers or trucks out to to do
17 Q. 1 will call them the gate chains to make it easy so we b any of the type of performance that Patrick Bigby would perform?
18 know what we're talking about. e A There hadn't been any at that point, any needed -- any
18 Did MDB have any policy while you were there regarding 19 repairs like that.
20 placing the gate chains on the belly dump at all? 20 Q. Okay.
2l A Not in general terms, no. 2 Was Patrick Bigby the only person responsible for
22 Q. Were there any other terms other than general terms? 22 performing maintenance on the trucks and trailers?
23 A Yes, I suppose depending upon the job that the truck 23 A No.
24 was going to that was, like you mentioned, a gauge to set a 24 Q. Who else performed maintenance on the trucks and
25 width of the gates. So that was a normal practice depending 25 trailers?
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Page 48

1 A Scottdid, | did. 1 believe somewhere along during i Q. Okay.
2 that time there were some part-time feflows, but I don't recali 2 Prior to July 2013 did you have any experience
3 who they were. 3 regarding maintenance of a Versa valve?
4 Q. Did you have any previous training regarding 4 A Maintenance?
5 maintenance of trucks and trailers? 5 Q. Yes.
6 A Um-hum, yes. 4 A 1don't-- no.
7 Q. What type of training did you have? 7 Q. Did you have any experience prior to July 2013
8 A Inmy file and all of their files are certificates 8 regarding installation of a Versa valve on a trailer - on a
9 that met the requirements of DOT for brake inspection, brake 9 belly dump trailer?
10 adjustment. Part of the federal annual inspection program, 10 A No.
1 there's certificates for all of us to show that we are able and 1 Q. Prior to July 2013 did you have any expenience in
12 approved to do such inspections. 12 maintenance of a belly dump trailer's electrical wiring?
13 Q Okay. i3 A Well, let me seek some clarification,
4 What type of maintenance work would you perform on the 1 Q. Okay.
15 trucks and trailers? 15 A Maintenance on the electrical? 1'm not aware of any
16 A Just routine grease, pretty much greasing, maintenance 18 maintenance needed on an electrical system.
12 of that nature, filling the oilers on the bottom dump. 17 Q. Before July 2013 would you perform any inspection of
18 Q. What type of records did MDB require to be kept 18 the electrical wiring on a belly dump trailer?
19 regarding maintenance of trucks and trailers? 19 A Yes.
20 A Everything was recorded, everything was written. 20 Q. What sort of inspection would you perform?
21 Q. How were they recorded? 21 A If the lights worked, the plug is clean, no corrosion.
22 A There were various forms depending upon the task. 22 That was pretty rudimentary,
23 Q. What were the various forms? | know we have a work 23 Q. Would you ever inspect the electrical wiring in the
24 order that I will discuss with you. 24 belly dump trailer to the Versa valve?
25 A Well, | don't really remember specifically, but | 25 A Only if the switch in the cab didn't activate the
Page 47 Page 49
: believe there was a repair order form, there was a work order. L Versa valve,
2 1 think there was a parts requisite form, not all of which 2 Q. Did that occur at any time before July 2013?
3 necessarily were needed, but I'm kind of seeing that one and | 3 A The files would indicate. I'm sure, but | don't
4 see that it's familiar. It was check-offs depending upon what 4 remember specifically.
5 was done. s Q. I'm not trying to trick you here.
€ Q. And would MDB keep all of the work orders, repair & A No, it's a common -- electrical things are common and
L orders, part request forms? 7 usually it's very simple.
€ A Oh, yes. 8 Q. 1guess we will go into some of the maintenance
9 Q. How long would MDB keep those forms? 9 records then and kind of help you out.
10 A As far as when | was there indefinitely. 10 So I'm going to go to -- This will be Exhibit 2. I'm
11 Q. When you hired Patrick Bigby do you know if he had any 11 going to ask you to turn to MDBMAINT 0000312, 1t will be at the
12 prior experience on maintenance of belly dump trucks and 12 bottom of the page. Do you see those numbers?
13 trailers? 13 A Yes
14 A Yes. 14 Q. TIthink it should be the second page, if I'm correct.
15 Q. Yes, he did have prior experience? 15 A 3027
16 A Yes 16 Q 312
17 Q. Do you recall what that prior experience was? 17 A Okay.
18 A ldonot 18 Q. So this work order is dated February 20th, 2014;
19 Q. Do you recall if he had any education and training on 19 correct?
20 maintenance and repair of belly dumps and beily dump trucks? 20 A Yes.
21 A [ don't remember specifically, but he does. 21 Q. Actually sorry, wrong one.
22 Q. Okay. 22 MDBMAINT 000315, it should be the next page.
23 Do you recall if Patrick Bigby had any experience in 23 A Okay.
24 regards to maintenance of a Versa valve prior to coming to MDB? 24 Q. Sorry about that.
25 25 This work order is dated April 16th, 2014; correct?

A Couldn't really say that for sure.
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1 A Um-hum 1 Q. Yes, did someone sign off on them to know who actually
2 MR. BROWN: Is that a yes? 2 looked at that report?
3 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, yes. 3 A Oh, they were signed ofT by whoever made the repair.
4 BY MS. SHREVE: 4 Q. So they would -- I'm trying to make sure that [
s Q. And you were currently employed at MDB at this time; ] understand.
€ correct? & So the driver vehicle inspection report would come in
7 A Yes. 7 and the driver would put it in the office; is that correct?
¢ Q. Do you recall this work order, it says Versa valve 8 A Yes, which is adjacent to the shop.
9 handle loose and it looks like spring action, check lever not s Q. And from there either yourself or Patrick Bigby or
10 working cormectly? 10 Scott Palmer would look at the driver vehicle inspection report;
1 MR. BROWN: I'm going to object foundation. You i1 correct?
12 haven't even established that he ever saw it before. 12 A Yes.
13 THE WITNESS: Yes, ['m not sure that | have seen it. 13 Q. What would occur afier one of you looked at the driver
14 BY MS. SHREVE: 14 vehicle inspection report?
15 Q. Solet's back up then. How does Scott receive 15 A Then it was to be determined what the issue was,
16 information that he needs to perform work on a trailer? 16 determine what parts were needed, order, procure and repair.
17 A Multiple ways. The driver through his DVIR or 17 Q. Who would determine that, the person who looked at the
18 verbally, and/or verbally, | should say, not just or, but and/or 18 driver vehicle inspection report?
13 verbally. 19 A Notalways. It could be any one or all of the three
20 Q. So whenever a truck or trailer needs work performed on 20 of us.
21 it does that go through you? 21 Q. How would you ensure that every driver vehicle
22 A Notalways. 22 inspection report was seen by one of the three of you?
23 1n addition through - there was checks and balances 23 A [t would be inconceivable that one of the three didn't
2 in addition to the DVIR through the normal weekly maintenance. 24 see it. A truck would come in, it was obvious to whoever was on
2% Q. Okay. 25 duty. If you hadn't received phone calls of an issue or fair
Page 51 Page 53
! So things could be performed on trucks and trailers 1 warning of an issue then you would be ex~~—ting that DVIR ora
2 and you would not be aware of that then, is that correct? 2 comment from the driver. [t was a policy to review these.
3 A Me personally? 3 Q. Okay.
4 Q. Yes. 4 How would you ensure that someone was actually
5 A Oh, absolutely. 5 reviewing those? How would you know that someone reviewed them,
6 Q. Okay. 6 are they moved to a different stack, are they signed off on, how
’ So would the drivers -- when you said the DVIR we're 7 would you know?
8 talking driver vehicle inspection report; cormect? 8 A Yes, the DOT DVIRs that we used there was no provision
9 A Daily. ° on there to sign off on a clear DVIR, in other words a DVIR that
16 Q. So who would the drivers hand those reports to? 10 had no repair requests or equipment failures, only if there was
11 A In Reno they were turned in where they tum in their i problems then it was signed ofT after being fixed.
12 paperwork in the office, which is where everything hubbed, the iz So yes, it would go to a basket where it was turned
13 hub of everything B in, removed, and then filed if there was no issue, and if there
14 Q. So would that be to you or somebody else? 4 was thien one of these type of forms that you have here would be
15 A Multiple, to myself, to Pat, to Scott 5 filled out and affixed to the DVIR.
16 Q. Okay. 16 Q. Youcan hold onto Exhibit 2. We will just go to
17 So you would see -- so would you see every driver 17 Exhibit 10. This might be easier in discussing it since we have
18 vehicle inspection report that would come in then? 18 a driver vehicle inspection report so we can make sure that
19 A One of the three of us would. 19 we're on the same page here.
20 Q. Okay. 20 A Yes
21 Is there a way you would be able to determine who 21 Q. So if you go to the second page on Exhibit 10.
22 would see the driver vehicle inspection report? 1s there a way 22 A Onthis?
23 to determine who looked at the driver vehicle inspection report 29 Q  Yes, please.
24 whether it was you, Scott or Patrick? 24 So at the top the date is 11/21/2015; correct?
25 A Is there a way to know who looked at it? 25 A Yes.
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Page 54 Page 56
1 Q. This is for tractor 5694; correct? 1 Q. Okay.
2 A Um-hum. 2 A. lmeanno.
3 Q. So the date of November 21, 20185, that is the date you 3 Q. Okay.
4 — that is the date the driver vehicle inspection report was 4 We will then go to Exhibit 3.
5 prepared; is that correct? 5 A. Are these for me to keep?
6 A Yes. 6 MR. BROWN: No.
7 Q. So that is turned into the office. Then one of the 7 BY MS. SHREVE:
8 three of you look at the report and then at the bottom do you 8 Q. No, they are not. She needs to keep them.
9 know whose signature that is? 9 MR. BROWN: If you take off with them you're in big
10 A ldon't even recognize the driver's signature, but no, 10 trouble.
n I'm not -- it would - 1 can guess, but [ don't know for sure. n THE WITNESS: 1 don't have any --
12 Q. So it looks like someone signed off on iton 11/25/185, 12 BY MS. SHREVE.
13 is that correct? 13 Q. This is Exhibit 3. It should be MDB 031. Do you see
L4 A Yes. 14 that at the botiom?
5 Q. Sothat is when -- so it would be signed off afier the 18 A. Yes.
16 work was performed, is that correct? L6 Q. This is a work order from 4/13/2013; is that corvect
17 A That is what it appears to be. 17 on what it says up there?
18 Q. But there is no way looking at this to determine who 18 A Um-hum, yes.
19 actually looked at this report and gave it to maintenance to be 18 Q. Have you seen this work order before?
20 repaired, is that a correct understanding? 20 A. This report?
2 A Yeah, yes. 21 Q. Yes.
22 Q. Okay. 22 A My name is on it, so | would assume that 1 had seen
23 A. Yeah, I'm just not even -- [ don't recognize the 23 it.
24 signatures, if that is what that is. Nothing looks out of the 24 Q. Okay.
23 ordinary to me. 25 Is this your handwriting?
Page 55 Page 57
1 Q. Okay. 1 A ltisnot
2 I'm just trying to figure out if there is a way to 2 Q. So would this indicate that you would have told -- it
3 determine whether you looked at a driver vehicle inspection 3 says performed by Patrick Bigby. So would this indicate that
4 report before turning it over to maintenance or not, but there 4 you would have told Patrick to perform this job?
s would be no way of knowing? 5 A Yes, yes, that is the layout of this, yes.
6 A Well, | may not even have been there. 6 Q. Do you recall this event?
7 Q. But during your time at MDB there would be no way of 7 A Not specifically.
8 knowing if you looked at the driver vehicle inspection report 8 Q. Okay.
9 versus Scott Palmer or Patrick Bigby? s A. Tmreally having a difficult time even reading it,
10 A Oh, Isee. No, no way of determining. 10 what work was done,
1 Q. Okay. 1 MR. BROWN: We have been going about an hour and a
12 So we will go back then to number 2, that page that 12 half, so whenever is good for you, if we could take a break.
13 you're on, Exhibit Number 2, MDBMAINT 000315. 13 MS. SHREVE: Would you like to take a break?
u A Okay. 14 THE WITNESS: Sure.
15 MR. BROWN: This is the document that he says he 15 MS. SHREVE: We will take a break and go off the
16 doesn't even recall seeing any more. 16 record.
17 MS. SHREVE: Cormect. 17 (A recess was taken.)
18 MR. BROWN: Okay. 18 BY MS. SHREVE:
19 BY MS. SHREVE: 19 Q. Back on the record.
20 Q. Do you ever recall there being an issue regarding a 20 Mr. Shane, you understand that you're still under
21 Versa valve on equipment number 67777 2 oath; correct?
22 MR. BROWN: At any time? 22 A Yes.
23 BY MS. SHREVE: 23 Q. Are you aware of an incident that occurred in

Q. Atany time in his employment at MDB.
A I don't remember specifically.

July 2013 with trailer 6775 in which an unintentional dumping
occurred on the highway?
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Page 58 Page 60
1 A | doremember that. 1 A I'msure he did, yes.
2 Q. What do you recall of that incident? 2 Q. Okay.
3 A Iremember Danny calling me and telling me that when 3 A I'msure there were a lot of questions.
4 he got to the job where he was unloading that someone had 4 Q. Did you have him write down any statement regarding
s followed him in and told him that his back trailer had opened up s the incident?
6 and it was a rainy day. He got out in the rain and looked 6 A. The Highway Patrol did and I have -- I received a copy
7 before he went into the ready mix plant to unload and he told me 7 of that, because I do recall speaking with the Highway Patrol,
8 that he saw that the gate was open and that that had happened. 8 giving them instructions on how to find our yard.
9 That was the beginning of that. 9 Q. Okay.
10 Q. Did he call you that day or did he wait until he came 10 So the Highway Patrol came to your yard afier the
1 back? u July 2013 incident?
12 A Oh, no, he called me the instant that he leamed of 12 A Yes.
13 it. 13 Q. Did you provide any written report or did you write
14 Q. What did you tell him to do when he called you? " anything down regarding the July 2013 incident?
15 A. To get the name, exchange information with the car 15 A May have been included in some report | may have made
16 that witnessed this, which I don't recall had any damage, that 16 for the office pertaining to the events of that month or that
17 there was no one hurt, just exchange that information. 17 week or quarter.
18 Thinking back about that I don‘t believe the Highway 18 Q. Did you provide written statements to someone
19 Patrol knew of that, so it's like they didn't appear. | don't 19 regarding events that occurred in a month or a period or
20 recall if I called the Highway Patrol to coordinate other calls 20 whatever — however you just indicated?
21 that surely were made, I don't know, but { believe I did. 21 A You asked - Ask me that again, please.
22 Q. Do you recall if you told Daniel Koski to continue 22 MS. SHREVE: Can you repeat his answer?
23 working that day? 23 (The record was read by the reporter.)
24 A That happened to be his last load of the day. 24 BY MS. SHREVE:
25 Q. Do you recall if you told Daniel Koski to place those 25 Q. So based on your testimony there, did you provide
Page 59 Page 61
1 gate chains on the trailers to ensure that there was no 1 monthly reports or quarterly reports regarding events that
2 additional dumping on the highway? 2 occurred at the Reno location?
3 A By this time he was already at the job site to unload. 3 A At times.
4 Q. So do you recall informing Daniel Koski that he should 4 Q. What were those times that you would make those
s put the gate chains on the trailers? 5 reports?
6 A At that moment? § A. Typicaily production reports. 1may be confusing it
7 Q. Yes, when you spoke to him? 7 with what went on in the future when we had multiple locations
8 A No need, because he was there on the job to unload. 8 and that might be my progress reports involving that. Here it
9 Q. So is that a no? 9 may have been payrol! reports and production reports.
10 A Correct, no. 10 Q. In those reports you would inctude any type of big
1 Q. Okay. 1 event that would occur at the Reno location; is that comrect?
12 Do you recall if you contacted anyone else to tell 12 A Ifit-- Yes, could be, if it wasn't something that
t3 them about Daniel's losing of the load in July 20137 13 had been previously discussed.
14 A. On that particular day? 14 Q. And who would you give those reports to?
15 Q. Yes. 15 A To the office, the main office.
16 A Notuntil [ learned more information, no, { didn't 16 Q. What is the main office?
17 make any other phone calls that I recall. 7 A Various locations through time, but whatever was
18 Q. And when did you leam more information? 18 considered the main office.
19 A When he retuned to the yard. 1o Q. What was the main office in 20137
20 Q. What was your discussion with Daniel when he retumed 20 A A residence belonging to the secretary.
21 to the yard? 21 Q. Do you know that secretary's name?
22 A [ don't remember anything specific. 1 could guess 22 A Stephanie.
23 what | asked and all. 23 Q. Do you know Stephanie's last name?
24 Q. Did he provide you with more information regarding the 24 A Morello, I'm not positive of the spelling.
25 25 Q. Do you know where that was located?

incident?
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Page 62

A North of Reno. 1don't recall the address.
Q. This was MDB's main office; is that correct?
A It was her home where she operated. I'm not sure what

Page 64

A. Pat and Scott.
Q. So Scott was employed with MDB at the time of the
July 2013 incident?

4 would be -- A Yes.
5 Q. Did she work for MDB Trucking? 5 Q. Do yourecall the date that the July 2013 incident
6 A Yes. 6 occurred?
7 Q. And then in 2014 what was the main office? 7 A Ireally don't, no.
8 A 1believe it was still there. 8 Q. Okay.
9 Q. Did the main office change from 2013 to when you left ° So afier Daniel came back to the yard in the July 2013
0 in 20157 10 incident what occurred next?
i A Itdid 1 A Ikept him there to meet with the Highway Patrol and
12 Q. When did it change? 12 we did our rudimentary observation.
13 A TI'mnot certain of the date. It could be in'15 13 Q. What does that consist of?
14 Q. Where did you change to? 14 A Just looking for any clues as to say what may have
15 A Anormal office complex in Sparks off of Glendale. 15 happened, what may have caused it.
16 Q. Do you know the address? 16 Q. Was it just a visual inspection?
17 A Idonot 17 A Um-hum, we didn't want to interfere with anything
18 Q. Did you still report to Stephanie Morello? 18 before the Highway Patrol did their investigation.
19 A ldid 19 Q. And then after the Highway Patrol came and did their
20 Q. So you would provide those reports to Stephanie? 20 investigation what occurred next?
21 A Correct. 21 A The Highway Patrol wasn't able to find anything wrong.
22 Q. Would you provide them to anybody else other than 22 We tested the system, to my recollection we were dumfounded as
23 Stephanie? 23 to a cause and what to do next.
24 A No 24 Q. So after the Highway Patrol left did you perform any
25 Q. So other than a monthly report or quarterly or 25 inspection on the truck and trailer?
Page 63 Page 65
1 something along those lines, do you recall providing any sort of 1 A Ibelieve | just visually inspected.
2 written statement to anyone at MDB Trucking or the owners or 2 Q. Did you direct anyone to perform any other additional
3 anything like that regarding the incident - 3 inspection on the truck and trailer?
4 A Regarding this incident? 4 A 1did
s Q in July of 2013, yes? 2 Q. Who did you direct to perform that?
6 A No. € A Patand Scott.
7 Q. Did you teke any pictures of the truck or trailer 7 Q. What did you direct them to do?
8 following the July 2013 incident? 8 A To find clues.
4 A No. 2 Q. Did you tell them anything specific that you wanted
10 Q. Were you at the yard when the Highway Patrol arrived 10 them to do?
1 in the July 2013 incident? 1 A Nothing specific.
12 A 1was. 12 Q. Did you assist Patrick Bigby at all in investigating?
13 Q. Do you recall if the Highway Patrol took any pictures 13 A Idon't believe I did anything other than the visual.
ta of the truck or trailer? b Q. Okay.
15 A They did 15 Do you recall the type of inspections that Pat and
16 Q. Did they provide MDB with copies of those pictures, if 16 Scott performed afier the July 2013 incident?
17 you recall? 17 A Tbelieve I would have an idea, but 1 don't recall
18 A None that I'm aware of. 18 specificatly. The paperwork they filled out at that time would
Lo Q. Okay. 19 probably be more specific. 1 would only be guessing based upon
20 Did you speak 1o anyone else other than Daniel Koski 20 what | would probably do.
21 and the Highway Patrol regarding the July 2013 incident? 21 Q. What would you probably do?
22 A Yes. 22 A Just check the ground, electrical continuity, that
23 Q. Who else did you speak with? 23 sort of thing.
24 A Our shop crew. 24 Q And did Patrick or Scott inform: you that they found
25 Q. Who would consist of your shop crew? 25 anything wrong with trailer 67757
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Page 66 Page 68
A They found nothing. 1 investigation into what Daniel Koski did on the day of the
2 Q. Did Pat or Scott tell you what they found in regards 2 subject incident?
3 to the truck 6773 and the other two trailers, so 6773, 6774, 3 A Nothing specifically other than hear his side of the
4 regarding their investigation? 4 story, which was routine, nothing out of the ordinary.
s A My recollection was they found nothing. 5 Q. Did MDB or did you investigate the possibility that
6 Q. Okay. € Daniel Koski could have done something to contribute to the
? And did Patrick or Scott indicate that they found any ? July 2013 incident?
8 type of defect with the Versa valve after the July 2013 8 A ]deemed that there was nothing that he did to
9 incident? 2 contribute.
10 A No defects. 10 Q. Okay.
u Q. Did Pat or Scott inform you that they found any design 1 Following the July 2013 incident did you implement any
12 defect with the Versa valve following the July 2013 incident? 12 type of retraining of the belly dump drivers regarding the use
13 MR. BROWN: Objection to the extent it calls for 13 of the trailers?
14 speculation and beyond this person's knowledge, foundation. 14 A None was needed other than — he didn't know that his
15 BY MS. SHREVE: 15 load had dumped until he got 30 miles down the road, couldn't
16 Q. You can answer. 16 tell, It was a third, three trailers, so a third of the load,
17 Did Pat or Scott tell you that there was any design 17 he didn't feel a weight difference, a pull difference. It's all
18 defect with the Versa valve following the July 2013 incident on 18 on flat.
19 trailer 67757 18 All we did was pay super particular attention, more
20 MR. BROWN: Same objection, foundation. 20 than what you normally would, if that is possible, and to pay
21 BY MS. SHREVE: 21 attention to other clues that might lead to whatever caused this
22 Q. You can answer. 22 to happen in the first place. In other words, everyone's eyes
23 A No disrespect, is that something that I can answer? 23 were wide open looking for any possible reason.
24 MR. BROWN: Yes, unless I tell you not to answer. 24 Q. Okay.
25 m 25 Following the July 2013 incident did you or anyone at
Page 67 Page 69
1 BY MS. SHREVE: i MDB do any type of retraining regarding the operation of opening
2 Q. Unless he tells you not to answer, you can answer. 2 and closing the belly dumps?
3 A To my knowledge there were no defects found. 3 A No retraining.
4 Q. And did you find any defect with the Versa valve, you 4 Q. So I'm going to go back to Exhibit 3 which you have in
5 personally find any defect with the Versa valve following the s front of you. I'm going to ask you to go to MDB 073. ltalso
6 July 2013 incident? 6 says MDBMAINT 000057.
? MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 7 A Yes
8 THE WITNESS: Do you want to reword that, 1 guess? 8 Q. This work order I believe it says July 26th, 2013; is
8 BY MS. SHREVE: 9 that correct?
e Q. No. 10 A Um-hum.
1 Did you personally find any defect with the Versa 11 Q. Have you seen this work order before?
12 valve following the July 2013 incident? 12 A Ibelieve that is my writing on the date completed, so
13 A No. 13 1 must have.
14 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 14 Q. This says you rewired gate switches on equipment
15 BY MS. SHREVE: 15 number 5694. Do you recall the rewiring of gate switches on
16 Q. Did you find any -- did you personally find any design 16 equipment number 56947
1 defect with the Versa valve following the July 2013 incident? 17 A ldo.
18 MR. BROWN: Objection, foundation. 18 Q. Okay.
19 You can answer. Go ahead and answer. 19 And do you recall why that was performed?
20 THE WITNESS: We never found any defect. 20 A Yes.
21 BY MS. SHREVE: 21 Q. And why was that performed?
22 Q. So you personally did not find any design defect? 22 A The truck was equipped factory with these dump
23 A No. 23 swiltches from Peterbilt and in trying to determine the cause of
24 Q. Okay. 24 this gate opening we were all racking our brains trying to look
25 Following the July 2013 incident did you do any 25 for clues as to why. The power source for the gate switches

All-American Court Reporters (702) 240-4393
www.aacrlv.com

AA000291




Tracy Shane

April 11, 2017

19 (Pages 70 to 73)

Page 70

came from the dashboard where you could have problems with
ground or other issues. We decided to ~— in an effort to try to
prevent such a thing from get unadulterated power and ground
source directly from the battery rather than through a cab
harness so we would have better protection of ground and power
that would operate the -~ send power down to the lines lo

Page 72

the trailers?

A Not at that time | don't recall ever finding need, no.
1 recall this instance where we seeked ground, direct power from
the battery.

Q. So that was only in the truck, not the trailers then;
cormrect?

7 operate the dump valves. 7 A Yes.
8 Q. Who decided to rewire to have the wiring, the 8 Q. Is that what you're saying?
9 electrical winng come from the battery instead of inside the 9 A Um-hum.
10 cab? 10 Q. Okay.
1 A Ibelieve it was a group agreement between Scott, Pat i Hang on one second. I'm going to take you then to ~
12 and myself. 12 Sorry, one second.
13 Q. Did anyone have any type of training or education that 13 Let's go to Exhibit Number 6. I'm going to hand you
14 indicated that that -- to make the wiring from the battery 1 this one.
15 instead of the cab? 15 A Okay.
16 A Oh,yes. 16 Q. I'm going to have you go to the second page, please.
1 Q. Where did you learn that from? 17 It should be MDB 015.
18 A Well, electrical is rudimentary to all mechanical 18 A Okay.
19 problems and as vehicles become newer, newer designs, it gets 19 Q. This looks like date completed of August 2nd, 2013.
20 more complicated. We wanted to go back to basic and I don't 20 Do you see that?
21 personally have an electrical background, but I was a part of 21 A Yes
22 this decision. It was a group collective decision. 2z Q. Does this work order fook familiar to you?
23 They have -- these other two fellows have very good 23 A No, no.
24 electrical knowledge, but it really didn't take much to 24 Q. Sothis looks like Pat investigated the unintentional
25 determine that it would be an improvement. 25 gate opening. Do you recal! replacing the Versa valve on
Page 71 Page 73
! Q. Soif I understand you correctly, the newer designs 1 equipment number 67757
2 come from the dash and the older designs used to come from the 2 MR. BROWN: When you say you, [ don't think he has
3 battery, is that a correct understanding? 3 ever done any of this stuff himself. Are you talking you as in
4 A Correct, yes. 4 MDB?
s Q. So you guys made a group effort to take it back to 5 BY MS. SHREVE:
6 what the older designs had of coming from the battery versus the ¢ Q. Does he recall there was a replacement of the Versa
7 dash; is that correct? 7 valve on equipment number 67757
8 A Well, that might be a convoluted way of looking at it. 8 A 1do recall having replaced the dump valve, that it
s It's to obtain a good ground was the goal and you weren't — 9 had been replaced. 1 don't specifically recall when.
0 it's not possible to get a good ground from behind the dash. Go 10 Q. When a part is replaced on a truck or trailer does
i to where the ground originates from and that's the battery. 1 that go through you to order new parts or whatever is needed to
12 Q. Okay. 12 replace the part?
13 Do you recall if you did the rewiring to any other 13 A Not necessarily. One of the three of us will procure
14 trucks or trailers? 14 or research available parts and order, kind of a collective
15 A We concentrated only on this one initially. There 15 effort.
16 were only three combined. We concentrated efforts on this one 16 Q. So Pat and Scott don't need to receive authority from
17 Q. Were the other two, were they wired straight to the 17 you to order a part or something that needs to be --
18 battery or were they to the dash? 18 A Notatail,
19 A One each. 19 Q. Do you recall if Patrick Bigby spoke to you about
20 Q. Okay. 20 replacing the Versa valve on equipment number 6775 in 2013 after
21 Do you recall if you rewired the electrical to each of 2 the July 2013 incident?
2z the trailers as well? 22 A [ don't specifically recall that. I'm sure it was a
23 A That was already in place, so we did not at that time 23 topic, and if memory serves me right I think that was probably
24 run -- rewire the trailers. 24 the first thing that was done was just replace the valve.
25 Q. So the trailers, you didn't change out the wiring in 25 Q Okay.
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Page 74 Page 76
1 Did you place the order for the Versa valve after the 1 Did you ever ask Patrick Bigby if he had any education
2 July 2013 incident? 2 or experience in installing a Versa valve on a trailer?
3 A Tdon't believe so. 3 MR. BROWN: Obijection, foundation. Go ahead and
4 Q. Okay. 4 answer the question.
5 Do you have any recollection of who did place the 5 THE WITNESS: Well, there are no specific instructions
6 Versa valve order? 6 that come with how to install it. [ think there is a diagram
A No. ? that describes how it works and you install it.
8 Q. I'm going to move to Exhibit 7. I'm going to hand you 8 A Versa valve is a generic valve and you remove one and put
9 this. This is an invoice for the purchase of the July 2013 8 one in place, like so many other valves, air valves and whatnot
10 Versa valve for equipment 6775. Do you recall seeing this 10 that it's part of a collective knowledge rather than something
n document? 1 specific, in my opinion.
12 A Not particularly, no. 12 BY MS. SHREVE:
13 Q. Who receives the invoices when a part is purchased? 13 Q. Okay.
14 A The office. 14 So were you aware of whether or not Patrick Bigby had
15 Q. When you say office, who is considered the office? 15 any experience or knowledge of instailing a Versa valve in
16 A Stephanie, for example, the lady we mentioned earlier. 16 July 2013 for trailer 67757
17 Q. So these invoices would go to Stephanie, not to you? 1 A I'would say so, that he had knowledge to do so.
18 A Correct, the address on there was a P.O. Box they 18 Q. So at that time you knew that he had knowledge
19 would get maited to. 19 regarding installation of Versa valve in July of 20137
20 Q. Okay. 20 A Are you asking if he knows how to or that | know that
21 Did you have any conversation with Pat or Scott 21 he did so?
22 regarding the purchase of any other valve other than the Versa 22 Q. [I'm asking if you had any knowledge that he had
23 valve for trailer 6775 for July 2013? 23 experience installing -
24 A Purchasing another one? 24 A Oh, yes, [ have knowledge of that.
25 Q. A different company's valve versus Versa valve? 25 Q. You had knowledge that he had experience installing?
Page 75 Page 77
1 A No, we had several different varieties of valves. 1 A Yes, yes.
2 That trailer was equipped with a Versa valve and that's what we 2 Q. Did you have knowledge that he had installed a Versa
3 replaced it with, a like valve. 3 valve prior to July of 2013, is that —
4 Q. So you did not have any discussion, then, with Scott s A Tdidn't doubtit. 1 don't recall consciously knowing
5 and - 5 as a fact.
6 A About changing -- 6 Q. I'mtrying to figure out what the experience that you
7 Q -- Patrick about changing it to a different type of ? knew that he had regarding installing the Versa valve in July of
8 valve? 8 20137
9 A No. 9 A. Well, 1didn't -
10 Well, we may have had that on the table, a discussion. 10 MR. BROWN: Just answer her question as faras ~ |
i Q. Do you recall any conversation about it? 11 mean, you guys are talking around each other as far as I'm
12 A. Tdon't remember anything specific other than I can 12 concerned.
13 see that we agreed that we didn't need to change brands. 13 What knowledge, if any, did you have about him installing a
14 Q. Okay. 14 Versa valve when you hired him, any specific knowledge, do you
15 A Butldon't remember anything specific. 15 remember talking to him about this?
16 Q. Do you recall why you — why the three of you decided 16 THE WITNESS: No.
17 you did not need to switch brands? b BY MS. SHREVE:
18 A We didn't see anything wrong with what was installed 18 Q. Did you provide Patrick Bigby with any handbook or
19 new on the trailer. 19 installation manuals regarding installing the Versa valve in
20 Q. Would you direct -- Strike that. 20 July of 20137
21 Did you direct Patrick Bigby to install the Versa 21 A. We had a Ranco manual, several copies that was in the
22 valve in July of 2013? 22 shop that he used. So I believe that information was in there
23 A 1don't specifically remember doing it, but he didn't 23 as well as others,
24 need my authority to do so. 2 Q. Did you provide that to him to use for installing that
25 25 valve, Versa valve?

Q. Okay.
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Page 78

A For working in general on the trailer, not
specifically for the valve,
Q. Did you contact Versa after the July 2013 incident?

Page 80

he was — may have had an NHP there with him. So it was beyond
my giving him instructions as to what to do.
Q. Did you instruct him to finish dropping off the load

4 A No. 4 that day?
5 Q. T'm going to go back to Exhibit 6. I'm going to go to s A No.
s MDBMAINT 000240. The date completed is 6/30/2014. Have you 6 Q. Did you instruct him to come back to the yard?
7 seen this document? U A Well, 1 do know that ali of the trucks were instructed
8 A No. 8 to go to the yard immediately, whether they were in that area or
8 Q. This looks like it's a work order requested by Dan and 8 not, wherever they were. [f they were towing a bortom dump they
10 performed by Pat according to it. [t says reattached Versa 1o were all to return to the yard immediately. That meant two
i valve. Are you aware in June 2014 of a reattachment of the 1 other trucks, and Danny retumed at some point, but I don't
1z Versa valve on equipment number 67757 12 recall how much time elapsed between when this happened and when
13 A No, I'm not even sure what that means. 13 he came into the yard. 1 wasn't there, but from the phone 1
14 Q. Okay. 14 directed everyone clse to seturn to the yard,
15 So let's go to July 2014, which is the subject 15 Q. Did you indicate whether or not they should unload the
16 incident of this lawsuit. Do you know whai happened on 16 rest of their Joad prior to coming to the yard?
17 July 7th, 206147 17 A T'mnot sure that I had much choice in that. 1 don't
18 A No. 18 remember. Something tells me that the NHP dirccted him to go
19 Q. 1will represent to you that is the day that Mr. Koski 19 straight to our yard or 1 did. 1don't even think he finished
20 had an unintentional dumping again on the highway? 20 his round. Our yard at that time was on the way to where he was
21 A Oh, I'm familiar with that. 21 delivering, so I think he was sent straight to the yard.
22 Q. Okay, perfect 22 Q. Where was your yard at that time?
23 So in July 2014 how did you become aware of what 23 A Mustang,
24 occurred with Mr. Koski's unintentional dumping? 24 Q. Did you direct Mr. Koski or the other two belly dump
25 A 1received a phone call from Danny. 25 drivers to put the gate chains on the gates for the rest of
Page 79 Page 81
1 Q. Okay. 1 their drive?
2 What did he say? 2 A. ldon't recall that specifically. Idon't find that
3 A Told me what had occurred, that his gate had come 3 as a safety myself, but I don't recall. People do do that 1
4 open. 4 have done it, but it's not -- I'm not sure that I -~
5 Q. Okay. s Q. You said you have done it before?
€ What did you say to Mr. Koski? 6 A Thave done it.
7 A Well, afer all the normal things of, you know, 7 Q. Why did you do that?
8 anybody hurt, are you okay, all of the normal things | ask, 8 A 1don't recall the exact instance, but it's a -- it is
9 where in his route did it happen. 9 one means to keep your gate closed, I don't think it's
10 Q. When you asked if anyone was hurt and everyone as okay 10 neoessarily designed that way.
11 what did Mr. Koski say? 1 Q. Okay.
12 A He said there was a lot of the scene that he couldn't 12 Did you speak to anyone else regarding Mr. Koski's
13 see from where he was so he didn't have any knowledge 13 2014 incident?
14 specifically. 14 A Did I speak to someone else of it?
15 Q. Where did he say it occurred? 15 Q Yes
16 A Painted Rock. 16 A That was a topic of conversation around that time with
17 Q. What else did he tell you? 1 a number of people.
18 A 1dor't remember specifically. I think that pretty 18 Q. Did you speak with anyone at MDB regarding -- other
19 much got the point across to me and he just very basic indicated 19 than Daniel Koski regarding the incident?
20 that he didn't know exactly why or what caused it. 20 A Oh, yes.
21 Q. Didyou instruct Mr. Koski to take any pictures of the 21 Q. Who did you speak with regarding it?
22 truck or trailer? 22 A Well, I can well imagine it was Scott and Pat, the
23 A ldon't recall if I did. 23 owner Travis. That is probably the main ones that I can think
24 Q. Do you recall what you told Mr. Koski to do next? 24 of, probably the other drivers that were towing those trailers.
25 A He was stopped on the side of the road and | believe 25

Q. Okay. Vﬂ
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Page 82 Page 84

! Did you have Mr. Koski provide any sort of written 1 inspection on the truck and trailer?

2 statement regarding the incident? 2 A Absolutely.

3 A Ibelieve he did 3 Q. Who did you direct?

4 Q. Who did he provide the written statement to? 4 A Once again Scott and Pat.

5 A It would have been to me. 5 Q. Did you tell them to do anything specific?

6 Q. And do you know what you would have done with that € A. Build some sort of safety lock to attach, to hold the

7 written statement? 7 lever on the valve from moving.

8 A It would have been collected, tumed in with whatever 8 Q. Who came up with that idea?

° other information the insurance company or agent needed. 9 A [ believe it was collective between Pat and Scott on
10 Q. So would that have gone to Stephanie or would you have 10 the design and they fabricated them and instaiied them on all
n passed that along directly? u trailers before they left.

12 A That particular document I don't recall, but | 12 Q. And did they do any type of inspection on the truck or

13 certainly scanned and e-mailed to our agent at various times or 13 trailer other than the lockout device?

14 passed along to the office either electronically or personally. 14 A 1don't remember specifically, but my guess is that

15 Q. Okay. 15 that particular trailer and truck combination did not go out

18 Do you know if anyone else performed any type of 18 that day and 1 think it stayed behind and I'm not certain for

1 written statement regarding the July 2014 incident? 17 how long before it went out again.

18 A In general in the period since? 18 Q. But that truck and trailer did go out again?

19 Q. At MDB did anyone provide a written statement 19 A Oh, eventually it did, yeah. Somewhere in the records

20 regarding the July 2014 incident of Mr. Koski's unintentional 20 you have here I'm sure there is something specific, but [ know

21 dumping? 21 for a fact it didn't go out that same day.

22 A Not that I'm aware of. 22 Q. But it went out afier and continued to be used; is

23 Q. Did the Highway Patrol come to the yard following the 23 that correct?

24 July 2014 incident? 24 A I have seen it on the road recently.

25 A I'mpretty sure they did, yes. Yeah, | think | may 25 Q. Did Pat or Scott -- Following July 2014 for trailer
Page 83 Page 85

i have been present. 1 6775 did Scott or Pat inform you that they found any type of

2 Q. Do you recall if the Highway Patrol took any pictures 2 defect with the Versa valve?

3 of the truck or trailer following the July 2014 incident? 3 A They could not find any defect as far as [ recall.

4 A [ never saw any, but I'm certain they did. 4 Q. So following July 2014 on trailer 6775 did Scott or

5 Q. Did you go to the scene in July 2014 where the 5 Pat inform you that they found any type of design defect with

6 incident occurred? 6 the Versa valve?

7 A ldidnot. 7 A No, we found no such flaw.

8 Q. Did you direct anyone to go out there from MDB? 8 Q. Okay.

s A No. 9 Did you personally find any design defect with the
10 Q. Did you speak with anyone from the Highway Patrol? 10 Versa valve following the July '14 incident on equipment number
1 A 1did, yes. no 67757
12 Q. Was that when they came to the yard? 12 A No.

3 A Yes, and on the phone, I believe. 13 Q. Did you personally find any design defect with the

14 Q. On the phone, was that on the day of the subject 14 Versa valve following the July 2014 incident on equip b
15 incident? 15 67757

16 A Ibelieve it was shortly afierwards. 16 A No.

17 Q. That day or another day? 17 Q. Okay.

18 A. Shortly after it occurred within an hour or two. 18 Did MDB or did you direct any of the employees to have
18 MS, SHREVE: It's 11:52. Do you want to break for 19 any retraining regarding the operation of the Versa valve

20 lunch or do you want me to continue on a little bit longer? 20 following the July 2014 incident?

21 Off the record. 21 A Again all we did was reiterate the rules and

22 (A discussion was held off the record.) 22 procedure. There wasn't any new — anything new to add.

23 BY MS. SHREVE: 23 Q. So in regards to operating the Versa valve you dida

24 Q. So after the July 2014 incident with Mr, Koski's truck 24 retraining on what was already done; is that correct, is that

25 and traifer did you direct anyone to perform any type of 25 what you're saying?
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Page 86

A Well, as part of a safety meeting here or there I'm
most certain without any direct recall, but it would justbe a
reiteration of, not a change in procedure.

Page 88

you would require for your maintenance, so for Patrick Bigby
when you hired him?
A Certification of their brake adjustment, brake

4 Q. What would be entailed in that reiteration? 4 inspection. It's all of the various things that the Federal
5 A The same as what it was in the very beginning, how the 5 Highway Administration requires that your mechanics or anybody
6 damn thing functions, how it works. 6 that does maintenance have. It's all listed on their website.
7 Q. Can you explain to me what the reiteration would have 1 Q. So you required everything that was required by the
8 been after the July 2014 incident? 8 federal --
° A No, nothing specific. I can formulate what it would 9 A Absolutely, yes.
10 have been, but ! don't have the paperwork or anything, but 1 can 10 Q. How did you ensure that they had those qualifications?
11 imagine what was said. [ don't remember specifically. 1 A Obtained those from them and put it in their file.
12 Q. [wouldn't expect you to remember word for word, but 1z Q. Did you require anything else other than what is
13 guess what do you expect you most likely would have said with 13 listed on the federal regulation website for maintenance?
" reiterating how to operate the Versa valve following the 14 A [didn't require a college diploma or anything like
15 July 2014 incident? 15 that, but [ required a knowledge of such things and during a
16 A To always reset the valve electrically from the cab 16 preliminary period, during the beginning of their employment
17 afier unloading 17 such things were determined.
i8 Q. Okay. 18 Q. And then did you require your maintenance, so Patrick
19 [s that the only thing you would have discussed? 19 Bigby to undergo any additional training while he was employed
20 A No, that's the most important. 20 at MDB?
21 Q. Following the July 2014 incident did you investigate 21 A Seems he went to some classes, | think air
22 Daniel Koski's actions to determine whether or not he had done 22 conditioning, things that were put on by our parts suppliers.
23 anything that could have potentially caused the unintentional 23 Q. What about your belly dump drivers, did you require
24 opening? 24 they have any specific certifications and/or license?
25 A Oh, 1 think as a part of an every day deal you watch 25 A Yeah, their CDL, of course, the MSHA that we spoke of,
Page 87 Page 89
the mannerisms and habits of people. 1 may have -- I don’t i ail of the things that are more or less typical.
2 remember specifically, but 1 may have looked closer at him just 2 Q. Are these all listed in the federal regulations as
3 to see if 1 could pick up on anything and there was no question 3 well that are required?
4 in my mind that there was anything like that to guess or 4 A Yesh, you have to have certain endorsements for your
5 substantiate. 5 air system, train, doubles, triples. You certainly have to have
6 Q. Did you do any ride alongs with Daniel Koski at all € those endorsements on your CDL.
7 after - 7 Q. Anything else that you required of your drivers?
8 A Oh, yeah, yes. 8 A They went through routine drug testing.
e Q. Was that to inspect the way he was operating the truck 2 Q. Okay.
10 and trailers? 10 A They had to renew their driver's license.
A No, I believe there was a vibration or something like 11 Q. Did you require any additional training at all once
12 a tire -- there was a tire problem and | went with him o 12 they were hired?
13 observe it while he was driving. 13 A Just the semi-annual - annual and semi-annual job
14 Q. So it wasn't related to how he was actually operating 14 site training.
15 the truck or anything like that? 15 Q. Who performed those trainings?
16 A No. 16 A 1did some of them, the customer did some of them,
17 Q. Okay. 17 MSHA instructors.
18 A No, there has been no such suspicions to warrant that. 18 Q. What sort of things would occur in the annual or
18 Q. Did you require that your drivers or maintenance have 19 semi-annual job site trainings?
20 any certifications or special license when you were hiring 20 A All of the things that we discussed earlier at Cemex
21 them -- 21 and at MSHA. It's all refresher courses.
22 A Yes. 22 Q. So it's nothing new, it's just refreshers?
23 Q - for MDB? 23 A Correct, yes.
24 A Yes. 24 MS. SHREVE: I'm going to stop right here because
25 Q. What were the special certifications or license that 2 we're at a good stopping point. So we will break for lunch.
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Page 90 Page 92
1 Off the record. 1 A Yes, that is a normal thing.
2 (The noon recess was taken.) 2 Q. Is this your handwriting on this work order?
3 3 A As amatter of fact it is.
4 4 Q. Okay.
5 5 We will go to the next page, should be MDB 170 or
6 6 MAINT 000154,
7 7 A Yes.
8 8 Q. And this the date completed is April Sth, 2014; is
9 9 thatcomect?
10 10 A Yes.
11 n Q. And does this look familiar to you?
12 12 A Yes.
13 13 Q. And can you tell me what this is?
14 14 A. That was just a work order directing the federal
15 15 annual inspection of this particular trailer.
16 16 Q. And this trailer is 6773; correct?
17 17 A Correct.
18 18 Q. And do you typically perform the annual inspections on
19 is the equipment or did you when you were at MDB?
20 20 A It was a combined effort between us, we all did it.
21 21 Q. Okay.
22 22 A It's not typical for either one of us to do it or not
23 23 doit
24 24 MS. SHREVE: Okay.
25 2 I'm going to mark this next exhibit as Exhibit 11.
Page 91 Page 93
1 RENO, NEVADA, TUESDAY, APRIL 11, 2017, 1:05 P.M. 1
2 -000- 2 (Exhibit 11 was marked.)
3 3 BY MS. SHREVE:
4 EXAMINATION 4 Q. Thisis MDBO11. Does this look familiar to you?
5 (Resumed) s A Yes.
6 BY MS. SHREVE: 6 Q. What is this document?
7 Q. We can go back on the record. 7 A It's just the form to use as a guideline for the
8 You understand that you are still under oath; correct? 8 federal annual inspection.
2 A Yes. o Q. And is this your handwriting or your signature at the
10 Q. I'm going to go over a couple more exhibits with you. 10 bottom?
i This will be Exhibit Number 4, and I'm going to have you look at 1 A Yes.
12 MDB 161 or it's MDBMAINT 000145, 12 Q. So would you have been the one who filled out this
13 A Okay. 13 form?
14 Q. The date of this looks like August 24th, 2013; 14 A Not only filled it out, but did the inspection.
15 correct? 15 Q. Okay.
16 A Um-hum, yes. 16 Then I'm going to go back to -- Would you do these,
17 Q. Have you seen this work order before? 17 you, Scott Palmer or Patrick Bigby would perform these annual
18 A Yes. 18 inspection checklists on each equipment number?
19 Q. Is this the type of services that you would usually 19 A Yes.
20 20 Q. I'm going to go back to Exhibit Number 6. I'm going

perform? | know we talked earlier, you said you would do some
maintenance, but would that be the greasing and that kind of
thing?

A Yes.

Q. 1see it was performed by Pat and Scott and not you,
but I just wanted to see.

to go to MDBMAINT 000249. The date compleled is September 16th,
2014; is that comrect?

A Yes.

Q. Have you seen this document before?

A I'may have.
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Page 94 Page 96
B Q. Is this your handwriting? 1 What were those reasons?
2 A No. 2 A Well, they are designed to operate that way. You have
3 Q. On here it looks like it says the work order was by 3 the switches in the cab. If they come in and lineup on the
4 Tracy? 4 grizzly the way they should as a train configuration there would
5 A Yes. 5 be no reason to get out and do it by hand. So it was expediency
6 Q. Is that you? 6 and utilizing the equipment the way it was designed to be used.
7 A Oh, yes. 7 Q. So when you say the first trailer, so for instance on
Q. When you supply work orders how do you know what the 8 5694 or 93, that would be trailer 6773, is that the first
work order is for, would it be from an inspection you performed? e trailer?
10 A You're asking how this form, this work order is 1 A That would be in that combination, yes.
1 generated? B Q. So that one is longer than 6774 and 67757
12 Q Yes 12 A Correct.
13 A It's generated either as a result of a DVIR, something 13 Q. So you would recommend to do that one by hand and then
i that someone in the shop may have inspected and found to be 14 the other two manually; is that correct?
15 hay wire or something that we routinely do and it starts the 15 A Exactly.
16 process for something to be done, handled. It can be any number 16 Q. When you do the first one manually how did you explain
17 of ways. 17 to Mr. Koski how to do that one?
18 Q. So there is no way of knowing how exactly this work 18 A Didn't really need to, but 1 showed him how I wanted
19 order came about, just that it came about from you, is that 19 it done. He was well versed, but I'm particular.
20 correct? 20 Q. When you showed him can you explain to me the process
21 A Correct. 21 that you showed him of how to do it manually of how you wanted
22 Q. Okay. 22 it done?
23 When you first hired Daniel Koski did you ever take 23 A Besides all the safety nonsense the actuality was pull
24 him on drives with you to do like hands on training? 24 the safety pin that we installed, push the ~ what was that deal
25 A Yes 25 you called it?
Page 95 Page 97
1 Q. What would that entail? 1 Q. The accumulator?
2 A Asrequired by the federal government we're supposed 2 A The accumulator, right. Push the accumulator, crack
3 to verify that they can drive, and so even though I have known 3 the gate open, get it going, and then you walk to the next two
4 Danny for years, like in our business we know just about 1 trailers, unpin them, come back up to the truck, get in the
5 everybody, it's just a formality. 5 truck, by that time the trailer is empty, you open the gate with
s S0 you take him out on the drive tests. You have a € the switch in the cab to clear it and closc it, pull ahead, dump
7 particular route. You have a form that you check off just like 7 the next trailer by the switch in the cab, pull up, dump the
8 you do when you're getting your driver's license and he had to 8 next one, pull out of the way, repin them and leave.
9 go through the same thing as everyone else. 9 Q. So for the first one after you opened it then do you
10 Q. When you were doing your drive did you ever take the 10 pull it closed or do you leave it open?
11 belly dumps over grizzlies and empty them over grizzlies? 1 A No, you just leave it open and then you go to the cab
12 A Yes. 12 and use the switch and open it.
13 Q. During that time how did you explain to Danie} Koski 13 Q. Okay.
14 how to operate the Versa valve over grizzlies? 14 A To clear the gates of material.
15 A 1 don't remember what [ specifically told him, but | 15 Q. So you're not supposed to pull it close until -
16 can tell you that it was probably the same routine as everyone 16 A Noneed. No need because you're going to do it from
17 else that [ wanted them done by hand. 17 the cab and that resets the accumulator as well.
18 Q. Okay. 18 Q. Okay.
19 A In certain circumstances the lead trailer, the gate 19 Now, did you do the same driving with Patrick Bigby
20 was long, wouldn't fit on a grizzly. You had to do that by 20 when you hired him?
21 hand. The two back trailers were short gated trailers, they 2 A Um-hum, even though he was a mechanic, yes.
22 could be done from the cab, and my instructions and training 22 Q. And did you explain to him the same way to operate or
23 involved them unloading the front trailer by hand and the last 23 to dump the belly dump over grizzlies?
24 two from the cab for multiple reasons. 24 A Twould -- ] don't remember specifically. Very rarely
25 Q. Okay. 25 did he run these, but probably the first time he did | did his
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Page 98

site training and that was part of the site training so [ would
surmise that he did.

Q  And how about Scott Palmer?

A Oh, most definitely.

Q. And did you explain to Scott the same way you
explained to Daniel Koski how to dump the load over a grizzly?

A ] probably did. Wasn't necessary, he's pretty sharp.

Not that Danny isn't, but Scott had done other processes at the
plant and had seen and known and probably showed others before |
ever got a chance to show him how | wanted it. So my guess is |
did, but -

Q. Would you have any issue of someone operating trailer
6774 or 6775, so the last two trailers, manually from inside the
truck?

MR. BROWN: Objection, vague.
THE WITNESS: Would | have an issue, did you say?
BY MS. SHREVE:

Q Like inside the truck versus manually.

A Reask that.

Q Ifyou were informed that an employee preferred to
open the last two trailers manually versus inside the truck,
would you advise them to do it otherwise or would you be okay
with them performing that manually instead?

MR. BROWN: Obijection, incomplete hypothetical, lacks
foundation. You can answer.

L R N I S TRy CO
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Page 100

or they are shorter than the gate so you open itupina
controlled width so that it doesn‘t overflow.

Q. Can you meter it manually without pressing the
accumulator?

A. Youcan. Youhave to just stand there and hold the
lever because it's spring loaded. It has tension on it.

Q. Have you ever directed them to meter it slowly without
pressing the accumulator?

A No, I don't micromanage them too much. [ showed them
what I did, then they can come up with their own plan as long as
it was expedient,

Q. Okay.

Fcan't recall if I asked this or not, 50 I apologize
if 1 already asked this. I know asked about the July '13
incident, but I wasn't sure about July ‘14.

So after the July ‘14 incident did you call Versa
regarding the incident?

A This is the very first time you're talking about?

Q. No, the July 2014 incident, so the second time.

A Oh, the second time.

No, no, I don't believe there was any phone calls to
them, not to say there wasn't.

Q. But you personally did not call them?

A 1don't believe 1did, no.

MS. SHREVE: 1 think that was all | had. So I will

Page 99

THE WITNESS: Okay.

I prefer that they did not, but if for some reason
obstacle-wise or other in the plant they were unable to maneuver
their trailer over where they could do it from the cab, in other
words the gate would just open up fully and they couldn't do
that so they had to go out there and meter it slowly by hand,
that was fine, but there were steps they needed to do to reset
that valve from the cab, which was all known and common
knowledge, but I preferred to hit the target the first time and
do it in a timely manner and that's just how we did it, but
there is always exceptions.

BY MS. SHREVE:

Q. So is your reasoning for that the timeliness of it or
is there any other reason?

A Well, sure. The other reason is -- well, it's just
outside of the routine. You want to utilize the equipment to
the fullest of its ability, but there are processes to follow if
you had to do that by hand.

Q. You said metering it stowly. What did that mean when
you said you were doing it manually metering slowly?

A. Well, you push the accumulator in and you adjust the
lever on the dump valve to get the gate open to a certain width.
If you don't do that and if you don't have your chains or your
pins to adjust it then the gate will just open up full width and
some of the grizzlies that you dump into can't handle the volume

won e

~

Page 101

pass the witness at this point.

EXAMINATION
BY MS. WOELFEL:

Q. 1 will move right here.

A 1didn't know I was going to be tossed around like
this.

Q. Ido have a few follow-up questions for you. My name
is Jessica Woelfel.

You just testified a few moments ago that in
connection with dumping over a grizzly, you were talking about
how you prefer and how you tell your employees on their drive
tests that they should open the first trailer, the one that is
attached to the truck by hand, and then the second two should be
opened electrically from the inside of the cab,; is that correct?

A Thatis.

Q. And you said the reason you prefer that is because
there are processes to follow if you have to do it by hand for
the Iatter two trailers; is that correct?

A I think specifically for any, for all.

Q. Okay.

Are any of those processes written down for your
employees to review?

A No, 1 don't think in that detail.

Q. Okay.

s _
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Page 102

A To that specific, no.

Page 104

Q. Did you ask him when you were interviewing - ot let

z Q. How do your employees or how do the employees at MDB 2 me ask you this.
3 learn the processes that have to be followed when opening & 3 Did you interview Mr. Koski before you hired him?
4 valve by hand? 4 A Yes
5 A Well, it isn't that complicated. I think through the 5 Q. Did you ask him in his interview if he had ever worked
6 practice of, use is probably more effective than giving them é with belly dumpers before?
7 something to read that they wouldn't read. 7 A ldon't recall making that exact question, because
8 Q. Okay. 8 it's quite common knowledge.
9 You alluded to the fact that you knew Daniel Koski - 9 Q. Did you ask him if he had ever operated Versa valves
0 A That | lured -~ 10 before in your interview?
B Q. That you knew Daniel Koski prior to hiring him; is 1 A I probably didn't ask him that specifically.
12 that right? 12 Q. Okay.
13 A We were acquaintances 13 Had you ever worked with Patrick Bigby before?
14 Q. Did you guys work together before? 14 A lhad
15 A No 15 Q. At what employer?
16 Q. Never worked together? 16 A Atlas Contractors.
17 A No. 17 Q. How long did you work with Patrick Bigby?
i8 Q. How long had you known Dan Koski before you had hired 18 A Oh, I would guess as I don't remember, but ] would
19 him? 19 guess at least five years,
20 A Let's sec, over 20 years, 20 Q. Okay.
21 Q. Inwhat capacity did you know Dan Koski? 21 And what was his position at Atias while you were
22 A Just acquaintances in our construction field. 22 working with him?
23 Q. Had you ever worked 10gether on a project before 23 A He was mechanic, night supervisor, field mechanic at
24 working together at MDB? 24 one point, He held multiple jobs,
25 A Never in that situation. We have hauled out of the 25 Q. Did you approach him about the job at MDB Trucking?
Page 103 Page 105
1 sarne plants, but never delivered to the same place, never worked 1 A 1did, yes.
2 together on the same job. 2 Q. And why did you approach him about the job at MDB
3 Q. So you had never worked with him prior to MDB to 3 Trucking?
4 release product from a belly dumper before? 4 A Because he was a very desirable employee, very
5 A No, only seen him in that, but never shared the same 5 talented, and the company, Atlas, was closing and wanted to give
6 job. & him the opportunity to have somewhere to go.
? Q. Okay. 7 Q. Okay.
8 You said when you were talking abour Dan Koski and his 8 Do you know if Patrick Bigby had any experience
9 drive test that he was well versed, 1 believe those were your 2 working with belly dumpers while at Atlas?
10 words, in unloading a belly dumper manually. Why do you believe 10 A There were a fimited number of bottom dumps, so he had
n he was well versed in unloading a belly dumper manually? i exposure to them.
12 A Well, remembering and being familiar with his prior 12 Q. Did you ask him when you interviewed him for the
3 jobs, knowing what those companies and the job sites were ail 13 position -- Let me ask you this.
14 about, knowing the processes that took place would lead to my 14 Did you interview him for the position at MDB
15 understanding of that. 15 Trucking?
16 Q. Okay. 16 A 1did
1 So you presumed that based on your knowledge of his 17 Q. Didyou ask him if he had performed work on belly dump
18 prior employment history that he was well versed in manually 18 trailers?
19 operating valves to open a belly dumper? 19 A Not specifically.
20 A Well, 1 suppose you could say that. It was more of a 20 Q. You were talking about your work at Granite
21 presumption, more of a factual from his - how should I say 2 Construction and you were saying that in your work with belly
22 that, his application that showed where he worked reminded me of 22 dumpers with that employer that you had a dump man operating the
23 the companies that he was at and knowing personally what those 23 valves for you; is that correct?
24 companies were doing, if he was there doing it then he was doing 24 A Um-hum, yeah.
5 25 Q. Have you ever acted as a dump man before?

it that way,
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Page 106 Page 108
L A Sure. 1 THE WITNESS: He would pull in. | would stop him
z Q. Have you? 2 where the hopper or the trailer was over the grizzly. Like I
3 A Sure. 3 said the hopper on the front trailer was longer than the ones on
4 Q. For MDB Trucking? 4 the back, 50 he had to be in a particular spot. So he would
5 A Sure, yes. 5 stop, I would unpin, push the accumulator in, set the dump valve
§ Q. And how often do you act as a dump man? 6 to a certain position to where the gate would open up so far,
7 A Occasionally. 7 get him going, walk to the back, unpin those, do normal
8 Q. On specific job sites or for specific clients? 8 inspection and, you know, looking over equipment, come back, and
9 A Specific job sites, yeah. 9 by that time the material would have emptied, the gates sre
10 Q. Okay. 10 still only half open. So 1 would give him the thumbs up, he
i1 Have you ever acted as a dump man for Dan Koski? 11 would flip the switch to open it from inside the cab, that would
12 A Oh, yes, many times. 12 clear the rest of the material out of the gates. He would then
13 Q. And when you act as a dump man for Dan Koski does he 13 close it, pull up.
14 stay in the truck while you're operating the valves manuaily or i From that point he could sce what he was doing and he can
15 does he get out and stand next to you while you're operating the 15 operate, because of the smaller gates on that set of doubles,
16 valves? 1€ which was the second two trailers. He would do those. As he
17 A I prefer that he stay in, but often he would find 17 finished open and close 1 would pin them then he was out of
18 himself outside. 18 there.
19 Q. Can you tell me for what clients you would act as the 19 BY MS. WOELFEL:
20 dump man? 20 Q. Did you ever act as the dump man before your pinning
1 A Cemex only. 21 system -
22 Q. And how often for Cemex would you act in the position 2z A Oh, yes
23 as the dump man? 23 Q -~ wasinplace?
24 A No particular schedule, only when the situation called 24 A Yes
25 for it. 25 Q. Would that only be at Cemex?
Page 107 Page 109
1 Q. What would be a situation that would call for you to B A Yes
2 act as the dump man? 2 Q. And on an as needed basis?
2 A When we would have over, say, four or five bottom dump 3 A Same purposes.
4 trucks running into the piant, I would go there -- and that is 4 Q. Okay.
5 not a general rule, that is just an example of usually when 1 5 And would the process be exactly the same but for the
€ would show up and it was to keep the trucks moving, 6 fact that there is no pin to remove?
7 Q. Soyou- 7 A Exactly, there were no chains.
8 A Speed up the process. 8 Q. And if a driver does not have a dump man available and
¢ Q. So you were there to expedite the process, because if s is doing it himself, would you expect them to follow the exact
10 there is a dump man then your drivers don't have to getout of 10 same procedure that you just described?
11 their trucks theoretically? 1 A Oh, yes, and they would do it.
12 A Exactly, plus I would have sub haulers coming in there 12 Q. Has there been occasion where you found that a driver
13 and 1 was responsible for them and their drivers, | would be 13 was not dumping via the procedure that you just described?
4 there to train their guys, if they were new. So multiple 14 A T'mnot sure there is another way to do it.
15 reasons. I would be there and dump a guy if I was there and 15 Q. Meaning if the driver manually dumped the second and
16 they drove in, I would just run over there and do it to help 16 third trailer, that's not the same process that you just
17 them. 17 described, but are you aware that some drivers would do that?
18 Q. Ifyou are acting as the dump man and you have a three 18 A Oh, okay, sure, sure. Yeah, there would be, |
19 bottom dump train, tell me about the process. Let's say, Dan 19 suppose, an instance where they off shot the grizzly and
20 Koski pulls his truck up, walk me through step by step what 20 couldn't open it fully so they would do it manualty. The
21 happens? 21 procedure was to always — when you're done you return to the
22 A If he does it himself -- 22 truck, flip the switch, open it to clear it and to close it, and
23 Q. Well, if you're there as the dump man. 23 typically we would always have one more trailer to do after
24 MR. BROWN: I'm just going 1o state a late objection, 24 that, same thing.
25 foundation, incomplete hypothetical. 25 Q. Ifadriver just shut it manually and did not go into
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Page 112

! the truck and flip the switch to clear it, would that be a B A Um-hum,
2 violation of your procedures? 2 Q. Is he also the owner of SKS Corporation?
3 A Not exactly 3 A 1believe he is. | don't know that for sure.
4 Q. Why not? 4 Q  Would you ever report directly to Travis Bonanno?
5 A Well, because then the alternate would be doing it on s A Twould.
6 the way out of the ready mix plant, doing it at the plant before 6 Q. Did you have any discussions with Travis Bonanno about
? they load. 7 the July 2013 inadvertent dump incident?
8 Q. You're presuming that at some point in time the driver 8 A I'msure we did. ] don't remember specifics, but Fm
9 would flip the switch from the inside? s most certain we discussed it.
10 A They would need to. 10 Q. And as you sit here today you don't recall anything
i1 Q. Why would they need to? 1 that you discussed with Travis Bonanno regarding that incident?
12 A Because that resets the accumulator, 12 A Nothing out of the ordinary.
13 Q. What happens if they don't flip the switch from the 13 Q. Did you tell Travis Bonanno any conclusions that you
14 inside and the accumulator is not reset? 14 came to regarding the cause of the July 2013 incident?
15 A Well, you have the chance of when the loader goes to 15 A 1 was never able to give him a conclusion,
16 load you, he throws the first bucket of material in there and 16 Q. Because you weren't able to reach a conclusion as to
17 the gates will open up. We have seen that happen. Fortunately 17 the cause?
18 at MDB during the time | was there it was never reported that 18 A Only suspicions.
18 that had happened, but we all saw examples. 19 Q. What did you suspect was the cause in July 2013?
20 Q. Where a driver would forget to flip the switch after a 20 A Ground issue, an electrical ground issue.
21 dump to re-actuate? 21 Q. Were you able to discover an actual electrical ground
22 A You would assume that is what happened. 22 issue after having Patrick and Scott investigate?
23 Q. Did you investigate whether or not for the July 2013 23 A My recollection was that we were never able to
24 or July 2014 dumps Mr. Koski did not flip the switch on the 24 pinpoint or determine as the damn thing functioned just
25 inside of the cab, did you explore that possibility? 25 perfectly shortly thereafier the accident.
Page 111 Page 113
1 A Certainly. 1 Q. What about July 2014, did you have any conversations
2 Q. How did you explore that possibility? 2 with Travis Bonanno that you can recal! about that incident?
3 A 1talked to the loader operator at the ready mix plant 3 A remember that more specifically.
4 and to the plant operator to see if they were around, if they 4 Q. Okay.
saw him, if they noticed anything. The plant operator wasn't 5 What did you guys talk about?
é there. His view is not of that area so — and he wasn't out & A [don't think there was much of a conversation other
7 walking around. ? than telling him that a disaster had happened and nobody was
8 The loader operator, as | remember, | don't remember 8 hurt and it was a quick phone call.
9 which one it was, hie didi't remember anything directly specific, S Q. Did he ask who the driver was?
7o but he didn't remember anything out of the ordinary. 10 A 1think I probably told him.
11 Q. Did you take a statement from Dan Koski? 11 Q. Was there any concern by you about the fact that the
12 A Yes. 12 same driver had these two incidents a year apart?
13 Q. Did you ask him how he was emptying product on the 13 A No, there was no concern about the driver. There was
14 loads that he had done that day? 14 concern about the trailer. 1 think it was more derived as to it
15 A Isimply asked him if there was anything out of the 15 happened again.
16 ordinary from ordinary process and he said there was not. 16 Q. And did you interview Dan Koski about the actions that
17 Q. And that's the extent of the questioning that you 17 he took prier to the date of the July 2014 accident to see if he
18 asked him? 18 had donc anything that might cause the incident?
19 A Yep, yes. 19 A Yes, during that same conversation that we had when
20 Q. Yousaid that you were hired by Travis Bonanno; is 20 you were asking me about if he functioned his gates and loaded
21 that correct? 21 the previous load in the normat fashion, ! think during that
22 A Correct. 22 same conversation pertaining to anything out of the ordinary,
23 Q. Who is Travis Bonanno? 23 was there anything done differently and there wasn't.
24 A He is the owner of the company. 2 Q. Okay
2% Q. The owner of MDB? 25 You say there was concern about the trailer after the
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Page 114 Page 116
L July 2014 incident. What concern did you have about the B A Because 'ma collector of information. 1 like full
2 trailer? 2 file cabinets.
3 A Well, I certainly wasn't concerned about the driver. 3 Q. Okay.
1 1 was concerned that this specific trailer, the same specific 4 So when the trailer 6775 came to you did you do an
s trailer opened the gates on its own again. 5 inspection of the trailer?
& Q. Okay. € A Yes, before we bought it.
7 Did you reach any conclusions about why the trailer 7 Q. Did you go to Western Nevada Transport to conduct that
8 opened its gates in July 2014? 8 inspection?
8 A We never were able to pinpoint why, but saw it as a 8 A Yes.
10 coincidence in that there had to be a reason and a simple 10 Q. Do you know how old the trailer was when you acquired
u reason, but I mean it's just mechanical. It's just very simple u it for MDB?
12 determining what it was and it has alluded us all this time. 12 A I would guess that that back trailer was a 2002 and |
13 Q. Now, when you first obtained trailer 6775 you were 13 believe we purchased it in '12.
14 working at MDB when the company first acquired that trailer; is 14 Q. So approximately ten years old?
15 that correct? 15 A Yes.
16 A Correct. 16 Q. And do you know if it had oniginal wiring and original
17 Q. And my recollection of your testimony is that you did 17 components at the time you acquired it in 20127
18 not receive any paperwork with that trailer from the previous 18 A I'm guessing that it did.
19 owner? 19 Q. Is that a guess or do you know?
20 A As far as manuals, no, there were no manuals. 20 A Well, I really don't know for sure.
21 Q. What about maintenance logs? 21 Q. Did you ask anybody if it had its original component
22 A No, there weren't any maintenance logs with those. 22 parts or original wiring?
23 Q. Did you ever ask if you could receive any maintenance 23 A. No, and I wouldn't because it's not an uncommon thing
24 logs from the prior owner? 24 to have different parts.
25 A That's a pretty common thing. 25 Q. Because when you're using it things break and things
Page 115 Page 117
1 Q. What is a pretty common thing? 1 get changed?
2 A It's pretty common to want the previous records just 2 A Yeah, normal routine things,
3 to complete — so you have a complete record, and it's also 3 Q. Would it be unusual for a trailer such as 6775 to have
4 pretty common never to get it. 4 the original component parts ten years after it was
5 Q. Is it your recollection that you asked for them and 5 manufactured?
6 didn’t receive it? € MR. BROWN: Objection, vague.
7 A. ltis conceivable that | asked, yes, because I want 7 THE WITNESS: It wouldn't be unusual. They didn't use
8 those things. 8 those trailers a lot, not like say if it was a Granite trailer.
g Q. Who would you have asked to receive those records? 9 You know, their trailers were not barely used, but they weren't
10 A. Well, I knew all of the people over there at Western 10 heavily used.
n Nevada Trucking or Transport, so it wouldn't be out of lin¢ to 1 BY MS. WOELFEL:
12 think that I went directly to their mechanic, but I don't think 12 Q. Soinyour inspection of the trailer did you see
13 so 1 think I just asked the owner during the transaction that 3 anything that concerned you before you acquired it?
14 I would like to have it. 4 A. Nothing.
1% Q. And can you recall the owner's name? 15 Q. Did you operate the Versa valve or do anything with
16 A Paul Gianoli. 1€ the trailer before you acquired it?
17 Q. And it's your recollection that you never received the 17 A The trailers were sitting there unhooked from a truck
e maintenance records for that trailer? e so they were depleted of air. I didn't function anything like
19 A 1don't believe we did. Didn't really expect to 18 that. Mainly, you know, those are things that wouldn't bring a
20 either, but -- 20 deal to not go. In other words, | was just looking at other
21 Q. Why not? 21 more important things.
22 A. Justnot common. People tend to not give up those 22 Q. What were you looking at?
23 sort of things. Not that they are hiding anything, it's just -- 23 A. The condition of the hoppers, the thickness of the
24 you know, I'm kind of weird, I kind of want all that. 24 walls, you know, see how wore out it was. Tires are immaterial.
25 Q. Why would you have liked to see that information? 25 You buy tires, that is parnt of the negotiation. Those sort of

All-American Court Reporters (702) 240-4393
www.aacrlv.com

AA000303




Tracy Shane

April 11, 2017

31 (Pages 118 to 121)

Page 118

Page 120

1 things are not as important as others. They are repairable. ! A Sure.
2 Q. What was the condition of the trailer at the time you 2 Q. What employer were you with when this occurred?
3 acquired it? 3 A Years ago at Sha-Neva.
4 A 1 thought it was probably 75 percent of a hundred. 4 Q. Just on one occasion?
Q. Okay. 5 A Yes.
6 When you went on-site to Western Nevada Transport to 6 Q. So at the time you were acquiring these MDB belly dump
7 inspect the trailers that you were acquiring, did you ask when 7 trailers from Western Nevada Transport you were certainly aware
8 you were on-site to see any paperwork associated with the 8 that inadvertent dumps could happen?
9 trailers? 8 A Oh, sure, and if I may add, | hate to say anything
10 A No. 10 inappropriate, but it was on a trailer from a previous era where
it Q. Did you ask if the trailers had ever been in an B the gate switches were run through the seven wire cord on the
12 accident before? 12 electrical, and the one that opened up tumed on the tumn
i3 A 1don't believe there was anybody there to ask. 13 signal, the gates opened and closed. You know, modern trailers
14 Q. Oh, you were there by yourself? 14 are — have got a completely separate circuit. So, you know,
15 A 1 was there alone. 15 that is one of the beauties of the modern technology.
16 Q. Okay. 16 Q. Thank you.
17 Is that a question you asked just in general during b A Sojust wanted to ciarify.
18 the acquisition process, did you ask anybody if the trailers had 18 Q. 1appreciate that.
19 ever been involved in an accident? 12 So I want to talk a ittle bit more about the MSHA
20 A ldon't believe so, no. 20 training that you talked about. My understanding was if you
2 Q. s that information you would want to know before 21 were going to Work at Cemex you had to go through MSHA training;
22 acquiring a trailer? 22 is that right?
23 A Well, not necessarily. 23 A Yes
24 Q. Why not? 24 Q. Where was the MSHA training performed?
25 A Because it really wouldn't have any bearing on -- to 25 A Multiple locations.
Page 119 Page 121
i me if it had been in an accident or not. 1 Q. Where did you take MSHA training?
2 Q. Why wouldn't it have any bearing on your decision to 2 A Itook itin Reno.
3 acquire? 3 Q. Where in Reno?
4 A Well, it's common to get trucks, trailers, whatever 4 A Itwas held in Cemex's conference room st that batch
s that have been in an accident, you know. As long as it pulls 5 plant on Galletti Way.
6 straight and it functions well it doesn't really matter. 1 mean 6 Q. How long did MSHA training last?
7 - K A It's a three-day course.
8 Q Did you ever ask anybody in the acquisition process if 8 Q. Are all three days in a conference room or are you out
9 any of the trailers had ever had inadvertent dumps? 9 in the field?
10 A No. 10 A No, it's all in a conference room.
11 Q. Would that be information that you want to know? 1 Q. So you're not actually working with the trucks in the
12 A Today it would. 12 conference room, | would presume; is that right?
13 Q. But at the time you didn't think that was information 13 A Thatis correct. That part of the MSHA training is
14 you needed to know? 14 all classroom.
15 A it wasn't anything on anybody's mind. 1t hadn't 15 Q. It'salecture course for three days?
16 presented a known issue. 16 A Yes.
17 Q. Have you in your employment history in working with 17 Q. We have all been there. That's painful,
8 various types of trucks and trailers, of which it appears you 18 A Yes.
19 have worked with quite a few, would you agree? 19 Q. Is there any part of the MSHA training that is not
20 A Nothing out of the ordinary. 20 lecture?
21 Q. Have you had any other occasion where a belly dump 21 A They showed videos.
22 truck has opened while you were employed with a company? 22 Q. Okay.
23 A But not necessarily with me at the controls? 23 A Soyes.
24 Q. Not necessarily with you at the controls, but are you 24 Q. Any part of MSHA training that is out in the dirt
25 25

aware of any of your co-workers having a belly dump truck open?

working with a truck hands on?
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L Page 122 Page 124
1 A Not in that 24-hour, 3-day class. 1 A Yes.
2 Q. So when you said that the MSHA training involved 2 Q. And those would be in your personnel file?
3 training on trucks and trailers and Versa valves that would be 3 A There is one with me, one with the trainer and should
4 through lecture and video, is that correct? 4 be in the qualification file.
s A That was specific task training per the equipment you 5 Q. Okay.
€ were wanting to be signed off on to use. So that was in the 6 So if someone's file did not have a copy of a
7 field. 7 certificate then it's likely they didn't take that course; is
8 Q. So if there was specific task training that is field 8 that right?
9 training? 2 MR. BROWN: Objection, leading.
10 A Yes. 10 THE WITNESS: Yeah, it's not necessarily likely. The
1 Q. Where does that field training take place? 11 fail safe is that you have it in your wallet. 1 wanted itin
12 A 1t could be done anywhere. 12 the file so that I can track the expiration dates and that's ~-
13 Q. Who provides that field training? 13 but that isn't necessarily meaning that it isn't -- hasn't been
1 A An MSHA certified 1rainer. u done. It was simply office keeping for me.
15 Q. s there a course book where you sign up for specific 15 BY MS. WOELFEL:
16 tasks that you would like to be trained on? L6 Q. Did require all of your drivers to attend the MSHA
17 A No, 1 believe the way it works is you need someone to 17 three-day lecture course?
18 do something, you ensure that they have gone through the 24-hour 18 A Yes.
19 class or that they have their certificate, then you find -- you 18 Q. For MDB?
20 get them their task training for any particular task that you're 20 A. Yes.
21 needing them to do. 21 Q. And then with respect to specific task training for
22 So in other words, when 1 received mine 1 had to get 22 individual drivers that you had hired, who chose what courses
23 it from a trained MSHA person that knew how to do my job to 23 those drivers had to go to?
24 ensure that I knew how to do mine or to show me how to do it 24 A Well, in effect it was the employee. If they wanted
25 following the guidelines of MSHA. 25 to work then they would have to submit and there was some
Page 123 Page 125
i Q. Soyou went to a 3-day lecture course for MSHA; 1 fellows that didn't want to go. They didn't have to go. They
2 correct? 2 went on different duty.
3 A Yes. 3 Danny, however, wanted to go and submitted and so |
4 Q. Okay. ¢ guess it would be false to say that everybody was required to
s And then after you did your 3-day lecture course you 5 have it, but if they wanted to work consistently and to do the
6 did some specific task training? 6 job 1 needed them to do they did so.
7 A Yes. 7 Q. Okay.
8 Q. What specific task training did you do? 8 Did you receive when you went to the specific task
9 A. How to operate a bottom dump, how to operate pneumatic 2 training any written materials from Cemex?
10 cement trailers, manlift, forklift, loader. 10 A There was no written material for the task training
u Q. So five different specific task trainings? 11 through MSHA. It was hands on. Most all the time it was very
12 A That 1 recall for myself. 12 rudimentary, very simple, which generally isn't synonymous with
13 Q. How long do each of those task trainings last? 13 MSHA, but the task at hand is usually very simple.
14 A. Depends on how complicated it is, could be an hour. ] Q. Now, you said or I believe you said in your testimony
15 Q. Andis it onc-on-one training or part of a group? 15 that you have, while driving, used gate chains to keep the belly
16 A Thave seen them where it could be in a group setting 16 closed on occasion; is that correct?
17 and [ have seen it one-on-one. 17 A Yeah, 1 can think of those times.
18 Q. What were yours? 18 Q. On what nccasions would you usc the gate chains to
19 A One-on-one. 19 keep the belly dump closed?
20 Q. And it was somebody from Cemex that was giving you 20 MR. BROWN: Object as to foundation. Go ahead.
21 this training? 2 THE WITNESS: Quick release valves on the cylinders
22 A 1 would say a hundred percent of it was. 2z that keep the gates open and keep them closed, the diaphragm on
23 Q. Okay. 23 the quick release valve will get a hole in it. 1t's an obvious
24 And did you receive certificates upon completion of 24 defect of sound, air is leaking through there. You have the
25 your specific task training? 25 gauges to monitor what the pressure is and how bad the loss is,
Yo
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Page 126

if it's nothing serious. [ can remember empty just pulling the
chains on this one trailer. On the doubles it's hard to get in
there and do that, but on the lead trailer 1 have pulled ones
and 1 did that, but it's not normal practice.
BY MS. WOELFEL:

Q. Have you driven with the gate chains closed, have you
been able to drive down the highway with the gate chains closed?

A Youcan. [havel think once.

Q. Do you recall ever telling Dan Koski that he should
use gate chains just as an extra safety precaution while
driving?

A [think 1 told him that when he -- this last incident.
1 think when he had to come into the yard after they were done,
released him, 1 think 1 told him even though we have had no
experience with those front two trailers having a problem, but
we're not knowing what was going on | may have and he might be
able to concur this, but | believe I said just pin the front
one, pull the chains on the middle one. It wouldn't be unusual
10 think that.

Q. So the front trailer has a pinning system in lieu of
gate chains; is that correct?

A Tt'sa newer trailer,

MR. BROWN: I'm going to object, foundation, as to the

pins and the gate chains are the same purpose, but go ahead.
"

Page 128

watching.
Q. Is that based on a rule or --
A 1 think back now, it's been so long, but if I think
back it would be part of their training.
Q. The MSHA training?
A Yeah
MS. SHREVE: Do you want to take a break real quick?
MS. WOELFEL: No, [ think I might be done, but that
doesn't mean that you're done. We might have a few questions
from the folks on the phone, but thank you very much for your
time. | appreciate it.
Does anyone on the phone have any questions?
MS. QUIGLEY: 1don't have identify questions.
MR. BUNDICK: 1 do not have any questions either.

FURTHER EXAMINATION

BY MS. SHREVE:

Q. Thave just one follow-up just to clarify.

Earlier you just testified that you had spoken to

Mr. Koski following the July 2014 incident and he had said he
didn't do anything differently with operating the trailers, did
I understand that correctly?

A Yes.

Q. Soif Mr. Koski manually opened the last two trailers
instead of doing it in the truck, would that be operating it

Page 127

BY MS. WOELFEL:

Q. In your opinion is the pinning system and the gate
chains, do they serve the same purpose?

A Yes.

Q. What purpose is that?

A Unloading purposes, to meter the material, to set the
gales a certain width to unload.

Q. Ifyou have the pin set in the pinning system on the
first trailer in the lowest setting while you're driving would
that prevent the belly dump from opening all the way?

A On the first pin setting | would guess. It would
either be the first or the last, I'm not sure which, but it
would do as you say, yeah.

Q. Is there any reason that you can think of not o have
that pin set while you're driving?

A Inan MSHA environment there is.

Q. What is that?

A We weren't allowed to get underneath your equipment
for one.

Q. Why not?

A Some silly MSHA -- someone stubbed their toe or
something at some point in time and 1 don't know it's -- but
normally you can't do certain things. You can't even get up on
your trailer above four feet there. No, being undemeath you

probably if | remember you have to have a second person

- o

Page 129

differently than what he was told?

A Ina perfect world it would be, but there -- it
wouldn't be out of line to think that he had to manually
function the trailers.

Q  So when Mr. Koski told you he didn't do anything
differently, what did that mean to you that he had done?

MR. BROWN: Object, calls for speculation.

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I'm really not sure.

BY MS. SHREVE:

Q  You don't know what your opinion was when he told you
he didn't do anything different?

A Well, | know what that is, but I'm not sure that | can
tell you specifically what -- after all this time what that
would be.

My guess is that he unloaded them with the switch,
because he said that he hadn't done anything out of the
ordinary, but unloading it by hand would not be out of the
ordinary either. It's just not the desired method.

Q. I'mjust looking to try to figure out what you - when
he told you he did not do any thing differently, what you
interpreted from when he said that, so your thought of that.

MR. BROWN: Object, he just answered it.

MS. SHREVE: | thought he was saying what Mr, Koski ~
what he assumed Mr. Koski --

MR. BROWN: He said I can't tell you. Either one
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would not be out of the ordinary.
MS. SHREVE: Can you repeat his answer then?

(The record was read by the reporter.)

BY MS. SHREVE:

Q. So that was your opinion, then, regarding how
Mr. Koski, when he said he did not do anything differently, that
was your opinion as to what he did?

A Yes.

Q. Okay.

A Yes.

Q. If he had opened the gates manually, the last two
trailers manually versus inside the truck would you have wanted
to know that from Mr. Koski?

A Not specificaily.

Q. Okay.

So that would not have changed your investigation as
to what he had performed during that day?

A Correct, because that wouldn't be out of the ordinary
as far as we're concemed. You know, him as a driver is someone
that wants to make sure processes are upheld, either way is
fine.

MS. SHREVE: Okay.

That was all I had. That will conclude so we can go of T
the record.

(The deposition concluded at 2:15 p.m.)
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
I, JANET MENGES, Certified Court Reporter, State of
Nevada, do hereby certify:

That 1 reported the deposition of TRACY SHANE,
commencing of Tuesday, April 11,2017, at 9:00 am.
That prior to being deposed, the witness was duly swomn by me to
testify to the truth. That I thereafter transcribed my said
shorthand notes into typewriting and that the typewritten
transcript is a complete, true and accurate transcription of my
said shorthand notes. That prior 1o the conclusion of the
proceedings, the reading and signing was requested by the
witniess or a party.
I further certify that I am not a relative or employee of
counsel of any of the parties, nor a relative or employee of the
parties involved in said action, nor a person financially
interested in the action.
In witness whereof, I hereunto subscribe my name at Reno,
Nevada, this 20th day of April, 2017.
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CERTIFICATE OF DEPONENT

PAGE LINE CHANGE

sseens

1, TRACY SHANE, deponent herein, do hereby certify and
declare under penalty of perjury the within and foregoing
Iranscriplion 1o be my deposition in said action; that I have
read, corrected and do hereby affix my signature to said
deposition.

TRACY SHANE, Deponent
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

ERNEST BRUCE FITZSIMMONS
and CAROL FITZSIMMONS,
husband and wife,

Case No. Cv15-02349
Dept. No. 10
Plaintiffs,

vs.

MDB TRUCKING, LLC, et al.,

CONDENSED
TRANSCRIPT

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED CASES.
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DEPOSITION OF PATRICK BIGBY
Taken on Monday, April 10, 2017
At 11:30 a.m,
At 100 West Liberty Street, 10th Floor

Reno, Nevada

REPORTED BY: JANET ANN MENGES, CCR #206

All-American Court Reporters (702) 240-4393
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2 (Pages 2 to 5)

Page 2 Page 4
: APPEARANCES: 1 INDEX
3 For the Plaintiffs: 2
. ‘ssm &Ug@bﬁoﬁgmgwmmm 3 WITNESS: PATRICK BIGBY
5 6900 South McCarran Boulevasd & EXAMINATION PAGE
. Suite 2000 5 BY JESSICA WOELFEL 5
(Rﬁ.;;, sr;z;?a“mw BY PAIGE SHREVE 108
) 6
e For Versa Products Company, Inc.: 7 INDEX TO EXHIBITS
s PAIGE SHREVE, ESQ.
LEWIS, BRISBOIS, BISGAARD & SMITH 8 EXHIBIT PAGE
1o 6385 wua Rainbow Boulevard 9 1 Invoice 45
o
n L::i/egps, Nevada 29118 10 2 Work orders 69
N (702) 893-3383 1 3 Work orders 75
1 For RMC Lamar Holdings, Inc.: 12 4 Work orders 86
1 J&sgz)ch? AYSE'A% r(s)so. 13 5 Work orders 90
" ; 14 6 Work orders 92
1 100 West Liberty Street
. 10th floor ey 15 7 Invoice 96
! Reno, Nevada 89501 16 8 Work orders 104
g  PITEIm 17 9 Work orders 105
16 For MDB Trucking, LLC: 18 sver' i i
1 UDRIAN BROWEL ESG o 10 Driver's Vehicle Inspection 112
THEIRRY BARKLEY, ESQ.
20 THORNDAL, ARMSTRONG, DELK, 20
BALKENBUSH & EISINGER 21
21 6590 South McCarran Boulevard
Suite B 22
22 Reno, Nevada 89509 23
(775) 786-2882
23 24
24 2 5
25
Page 3 Page 5
1 (Continued Appearances) ! PATRICK BIGBY
2 For The Modern Group GP-SUB, Inc.: ' 2 called as a witness, being first duly
3 JACOB BUNDICK, ESQ. (Present Telephonically) s sworn, was examined and testified
GREENBERG TRAURIG . as follows:
4 3773 Howard Hughes Parkway "
Suite 400 North i
5 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 6 EXAMINATION
] (702) 792-3773 7 BY MS. WOELFEL:
8 Q. Good afternoon,
7 .
For USAA. 9 Could you state and spell your full name for the

i0
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

LISA TAYLOR, ESQ. (Present Telephonically)
Law Office of Lisa A. Taylor

5664 North Rainbow Boulevard

Las Vegas, Nevada 89130

(702) 645-0150

N
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Ge W N O B @ YW e W N R O

record, please?

A My name is Patrick Dean Bigby, P-a-t-r-i-c-k D-e-a-n
B-i-g-b-y.

Q. Patrick, where do you live?

A 1live in Sparks.

Q. What is your address?

A 395 Boise Court, Sparks, Nevada, 89431,

Q. My name is Jessica Woelfel. I'm one of the attorneys
in this matter, Irepresent RMC Lamar and I will be asking you
some questions today.

Have you ever had your deposition taken before?
I have not.
Have you ever been a party to a lawsuit before?
No.
Have you ever testified in court before?
[ have not.

>0 >0 >
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D
Page 6 Page 8
1 Q. Okay. 1 deposition?
2 I'm going to just go over some ground rules for this 2 A. Thave not.
3 deposition since this is your first time and just let me know if 3 Q. Did you talk with Scott Palmer?
4 you have any questions as we go through these rules, okay? 4 MR. BROWN: Objection, vague. About his deposition?
s A Um-hum. s BY MS. WOELFEL:
€ Q. First rule 1 will need you to respond audibly, because € Q. About your deposition.
7 we have a court reporter here who is taking down everything that 7 A No.
8 we say. So if we mumble or just nod our heads the court 8 Q. Did you talk with Scott Palmer about his deposition?
2 reporter can't take that down. So if you could answer audibly s A [havenot.
10 with yes or no 1 would appreciate it and so would the court 10 Q. What about Dan Koski, did you speak with him about
i reporter, okay? 11 your deposition?
12 A Okay. 12 A 1 have not spoken with Dan.
13 Q. Thank you. 13 Q. Have you spoken with Dan about his deposition?
14 Please do your best to provide me with complete 14 A No.
15 information in response to my questions, okay? 15 Q. Did you review any documents today in preparation for
16 A Okay. 16 your deposition?
17 Q. Ifyou don't understand my question that's okay, just 17 A Today, no.
18 let me know that you don't understand it and I can rephrase the 18 Q. Did you review any documents at any point prior to
19 question, okay? 19 today's deposition?
20 A Allright. 20 A. Thave not.
21 Q. Have you taken any medication or drugs today that 21 MR. BROWN: Can I just say one thing, Jessica?
22 would prohibit you from answering truthfully? 22 If you remember during Scott's depo there were a couple of
23 A 1 have not. 23 questions that Scott went and asked Patrick about and then Scott
24 Q. s there any reason you can't provide me with truthful 24 testified about the next day. I don't think he was meaning to
25 testimony today? 25 exclude that he didn't talk to him at that time about that.
Page 7 Page 9
1 A No. 1 MS. WOELFEL: Yes, understood, and I appreciate that.
2 Q. Any reason that you can think of that we cannot 2 Thank you.
3 proceed with your deposition? 3 BY MS. WOELFEL:
4 A Pardon? 4 Q. Just go back one more admonition. Let me finish my
5 Q. Any reason that you can think of that we cannot 5 question before you answer. Iknow in typical conversations a
€ proceed with your deposition today? € lot of times we will anticipate what the other person will say
7 A No reason that I'm aware of. 7 and we will just answer. Because this is not your typical
8 Q. Afler the deposition you're going to get a copy of the 8 conversation and the flow of it is being recorded we want to
s transcript and you will be able to review the questions that | 9 make sure that we don't talk over each other, okay?
10 have asked you today and your answers. You will be able to make 10 A Very well.
it any changes to the deposition transcript, to your answers if 1 Q. Can youtell me your date of birth?
12 there is some sort of a mistake that you made, okay? 12 A July 27th, 1963.
13 A Okay. / 13 Q. Married?
14 Q. Ifyou do make a change | will be able to comment on 14 A Yes.
15 that change, if we get to trial, okay, and so I tell you that so 15 Q. And what is your wife's name?
16 that you can make sure that if you don't understand something 16 A Christie.
17 that I'm asking you that you make sure to ask for clarification. 17 Q. How long have you been married?
18 If you answer me | will presume that you understood the 18 A Twenty-nine years.
is question, okay? 19 Q. Have any children?
20 A Understood. 20 A Two.
21 Q. Thank you 21 Q. What are their names?
22 Did you meet with anybody in preparation for your 22 A John and Alan.
23 deposition today outside of your attorney? 23 Q. How old are they?
24 A No. 24 A One is 19 and the other one is 29.
25 25 Q. Where did you go to high school?

Q. Did you speak with anybody in preparation for your

All-American Court Reporters (702) 240-4393
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Page 10 Page 12
1 A Lost River High School in Memili, Oregon. 1 Q. Do you know through whom you took that course?
2 Q. What year did you graduate? 2 A The last one I think was probably through Truck Parts
3 A 1981 3 here in Reno.
‘4 Q. Do you have any secondary education after high school? 4 Q. How many hours was that course?
5 A A few semesters in the technical institute. 5 A Oh, Idon't recall. It was an afternoon, 1 believe,
6 Q. What is the name of the technical institute? 6 or an evening,
7 A It's Oregon Technical Institute, OTL 7 Q. Okay.
8 Q. What did you study there? 8 And do you recal] what you leamned in that course?
9 A Diesel mechanics. 9 A [Ican't give you any specific.
0 Q. What years were you at the Oregon Technical Institute? 10 Q. Do you hold any certificates from any nationally
1 A What years? 1 recognized institutes or training groups that you can think of?
12 Q. Yes. 12 A [ would say no.
13 A I could not be specific. 13 Q. Okay.
14 Q. Was it immediately after high school? 14 Where are you currently employed?
15 A No. 15 A I'm currently employed with MDB Trucking.
16 Q. Can you approximate how many years after high school 16 Q. When did you start working at MDB Trucking?
17 you attended? 17 A 1don't know the exact dates.
8 A This is approximate, | would say five, 18 Q. Can you recall what year?
19 MS. WOELFEL.: Did someone just join the call? 19 A [believe it was in 2013,
20 MR. BUNDICK: There is some background noise coming 20 Q. We're going to talk in detail about your job at MDB,
24 through the phone. 21 but 1 want to go back in time before we go into your job with
22 MS. WOELFEL: | don't think there is any background 22 MDB. Can you tell me where you worked prior to obtaining
23 noise coming from this end, but we will try to speak up for you, 23 employment with MDB?
24 MR. BUNDICK: Thank you, | apologize. | couldn't hear 24 A 1worked for Atlas Contractors in Sparks, Nevada.
25 the last six or seven questions because of it. 25 Q. What was your position at Atlas Contractors?
Page 11 Page 13
B MS. WOELFEL: No problem. 1 A [ was a mechanic.
2 BY MS. WOELFEL: 2 Q. When did you start working for Atlas?
3 Q. Can you describe for me what courses you look at OTI 3 A This is an estimation, I believe it was in the fall of
4 related to diesel mechanics? 4 2001.
s A They were basically general theory courses in 5 Q. When did you leave Atlas?
6 operation and theory of diesel. 6 A Again an estimation, I believe it was in the fall of
7 Q. Did you receive any certificates or degree of any 7 ~- fall or winter, possibly spring of 2013.
8 type? 8 Q. So approximately 12 years?
9 A [ have received no degree or certificates. 9 A Yes, maam,
10 Q. Can you remember the names of any specific courses 10 Q. And what does Atlas Contractors do?
11 that you took while at OT1? 1 A Atlas Contractors, they did primarily paving and site
12 A 1don't believe I can. 12 pad preparation.
13 Q. Okay. 3 Q. And were you in the position of mechanic for the
14 Outside of OT] have you taken any other courses or any 14 entire 12 years that you worked for Atlas Contractors?
15 ather technical training? 15 A Yes.
16 A 1have taken some that are typically offered through 16 Q. Describe your position as mechanic, what were your job
17 like our parts stores and such, more like seminars versus actual 17 duties?
18 courses. 18 A My job duties was to asscss, repair, maintain
18 Q. Can you recall specifically any courses or seminars 19 equipment as directed.
20 that you have taken? 20 Q. What type of equipment did you assess, repair and
21 A ] couldn't say exactly or some pertaining to like 21 maintain?
2z brakes and - 22 A We had some large earth moving equipment, graders,
23 Q. Do you remember when you took a course related to 23 tracior-trailer or tractors as in trucks, and light equipment,
24 brakes? 24 pickups.
25 A Its been several years. Ido not know exactly when, 25 Q. Were you the only mechanic?
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